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a message to our shareholders

In the story of First Community Corporation, 2012

will forever be noted as a special year. It was a year in

which your company not only exceeded many financial

targets but also accomplished a number of important
strategic objectives that have set a course for growth.




The highlight of the year was a total return

of 38.1 percent to you, our shareholders,
through a combination of increased share
value and cash dividends. As you will see

later in this report, this total return exceeded
relevant banking industry and general market
performance. We are also pleased to report
that earnings available to shareholders
increased by 24.0 percent, to $3.3 million from
$2.7 million in the prior year. While pleased
with this progress, we will remain focused

on further improvement in this result.

It was also a year in which our planning and
work to diversify sources of revenue paid
handsome results. Customer sources of non-
interest income increased by 30.3 percent, led
by our residential mortgage line of business,
which produced $4.2 million in revenue —
more than twice that of the prior year. This
success enabled your company to continue to
grow revenue in the face of the headwinds of
net interest margin compression experienced
by the financial industry. With customer driven
non-interest income representing 33 percent
of total revenue, our model provides the
opportunity for long-term revenue growth.

It is also important to recognize significant
accomplishments on our balance sheet.

Pure deposits, including cash management,
grew nicely during the year at 11.7 percent.
This helped drive down our overall cost of
deposits from 84 basis points in December
2011 to 53 basis points in December 2012.
We are also pleased to report that, for

the first time since 2009, we experienced
growth in our loan portfolio. At a 2.4 percent
increase, we sense some positive trends

in credit demand and are working hard to
appropriately underwrite and price these
opportunities. All of this has occurred with
the risk levels in our loan portfolio continuing
to be a strength of the company. Non-
performing assets ended the year declining
to a modest level of 1.45 percent, and net
loan charge-offs were only 17 basis points.

As noted in last year’s annual report, we
continued to actively monitor the capital
markets to determine the optimal window

to access the equity markets. in July 2012,

we completed a very successful issuance

of common stock in the gross amount of

$15.0 million. The offering was more than
three times oversubscribed, with a blend of
institutional and retail investors. The proceeds
were used to redeem the preferred shares
issued in the TARP-CPP program, repurchase
the warrants associated with those preferred
shares, and repay a subordinated debt
issuance. The result is that your company has

a strong and high quality capital position. In
January 2013, we announced an increase in the
cash dividend for you, our valued shareholders.

This past year was, indeed, a great one.

Now, we look ahead with a renewed spirit and
extra energy in our step. We see opportunities
for organic growth in all three lines of
business: commercial and retail banking;
residential mortgage banking; and financial
planning/investment advisory services. We
see opportunities for new banking offices

and targeted acquisitions. As the largest
community bank in the Midlands of South
Carolina, we have the talent, capital, credit
quality, and diversified earnings model to
move forward from a position of strength.

We promise to work hard and thought-
fully, every day, to optimize your long-term
return as a shareholder while providing

a safe and sound investment.

Thank you for your trust and for
your continued support,

. ] X{‘Q / - AL —
LA (v/%>

Mike Crapps
PRESIDENT AND CEO




l

SR
N

.
U

o

i

=

-

L

o
i

v
SRS G
L
N

A o
e : G
i S o T
L e Mo
i

o
P
e

s

o
G

o

u o

e Dy Say i e i o A el e

L . o "éf}m . o o . . A‘?’

S i
o

.
:
S e
o e
e .
i ,

S
g
\
. ‘2{“1"‘"»3 L i
| .
HE »'s‘«

i




(Y
Ja
S @i

i
cc
8

¢

|
i@

i
3
ol

|

I'},“ r

i
st

4

o
%

o

grie

i

S

-

i

a0,

L
Wg‘w i

0
S

=
=

=

|

M
o
‘ﬁgﬁay(g‘%.‘A
D
i

H
ﬁ;.

o

i

G

‘-

o
s
@ w

.
.
A
L
g
([

A_,.,
remeE

A
A
o

WV

L

fee
oo i
i l/r,,:wv,,'

¢

o
L
}}"%m WES il 45

: i
wavs those
YWaVs i;_» L@

0
Lo
. gé, 7

N
L
e
o
SN Q/r:d;:y»«ﬂl{%“v‘
o

L

R !
LR
o
0

e
S o
5 o
> O

=

¥
i

i
‘ﬁ%ﬁm fé&

(vz%?ﬂ\ =

—
—

=




}

[P ———

1 SR, "SI

{
H

k““lﬂm‘

J pmsmarasimio

o,
P

AMW e,

g o s s K - B N m’%\

S e




a model that sets us apart

It became clear to us that in this changed economic and
regulatory environment, diversification of revenue was a
top priority. We believed a wider and more stable business
model would best serve First Community in the future; we
were certain that in making that shift, it was vital to stay
true to our style of “customer first” community banking.

Our answer came in listening to them.

A plan for the future.
A b j; §¢"‘N§ f@*‘”ﬁ’ 5&“6? 9‘}‘9"&’* \; Y 5 53‘“\% P | j””‘“'&éi‘““ f‘““% ”“‘j;g %@*f” g ’*‘ég” ¥, ‘i’

So rather than attempting to generate diversified revenue through
increased fees for existing products (conventional banking wisdom
at the time), we enhanced our mortgage and financial planning
lines of business to provide new services our customers would
value. While margin will be built over time in these expanded offer-
ings, 2012 confirmed our belief in this broader banking model.
Customer-driven non-interest income reached $8.5 million. Most
impressive is the success of our mortgage division with a total loan
production of $140 million and total revenue of $4.2 million—an
increase of 115 percent over 2011 and 310 percent over 2010.



a powerful story of momentum

In 2010, net income available to common shareholders for the corporation was
$1.2 million. By 2011, that number had more than doubled, to $2.7 million. We're
pleased to report 2012 saw another notable increase, to $3.3 million. This positive
earnings trend is significant for many reasons — which makes it a key indicator of
our bank’s strength, stability and potential for growth.

it should be noted that a number of factors contributed to this success, but it
was largely fueled by revenue growth of 3.8 percent, or $926,000. We are confi-
dent our focus on diversified revenue streams, as evidenced by the contributions
of our expanded mortgage and financial planning lines, is a changed banking
model that works.

NET INCOME
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Deposits are another big story as we worked to enhance revenue while strategically
limiting overall balance sheet growth. We are pleased to report pure deposit growth
of 11.7 percent or $35.1 million, well exceeding our goal for the year.

Loan growth was an interesting, if somewhat
unexpected, part of the year’s story. The

first three quarters remained flat, no doubt

a reflection of ongoing challenge in the
marketplace. But the fourth quarter of the
year came on strong, remarkably allowing

us to meet budget for loan growth for the
year at 2.40 percent, or $7.8 million, resulting
in total commercial and retail production

of $59.0 million. While we expect to see the
pace of commercial loan activity increase

as our local economy recovers, we are
heartened by this uptick going into 2013.

Of course any discussion about loans is
incomplete without a look at loan quality, a
hallmark of our bank. We have always been
conservative lenders, a practice that has
served us (and, quite frankly, our customers)
particularly well during these recent years
of volatility. That’s why we consistently
outperform peer banks in nearly every loan
portfolio quality metric. This year was no
exception, with continued gains in every
category, including net charge-offs dropping
from $1.6 million in 2011 to $574,000.

ASSETS, LOANS, AND DEPOSITS (IN MILLIONS)

$700 -
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customer need drives business
success drives investor success

It is a mantra we live and breathe at First Community Bank. It's a
formula that this year resulted in shareholder return of 38.1 percent.
While diluted earnings per common share decreased slightly
year-over-year, from $0.81 to $0.79, due to the higher share count
following our 2012 offering, our share price increased from $6.19

at year-end 2011 to $8.39 on December 31, 2012. We continued

to pay a cash dividend to our common shareholders that equated

to a payout ratio of 20.25 percent of earnings available and in the
first quarter of 2013, shareholders saw an increase in dividends.

ONE YEAR STOCK PRICE PERFORMANCE VS. RELEVANT INDICES

—~ U5 BANKS {$500M — $17
-— NASDAQ BANK
e SEP 500

17%
15%

DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN SEP 1 NOV DEC
2011 201z 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
NOTE? 7

SOURCEL S

11



12

positioned for tomorrow. now.

It’s an exciting time for First Community Bank. Today we are known as the premier
community bank in the Midlands and rank among the largest banks headquartered
in South Carolina based on asset size. And we have spent years charting a path to

this moment: stable, well-capitalized, and eager to take advantage of opportunities

in the marketplace right now.

OUR PRIORITIES ARE THESE:

wit current lines of business
ch their full potential

e

A disciplined approach to expanding our footprint to
other South Carolina communities that are a good
match for our brand of community banking

As we look toward 2013 and beyond, we are
doing it with a renewed spirit of possibility, a
sense of purpose that energizes us, motivates
us, moves us forward. We hope you feel it, too.

We thank you for your belief in First

Community and for your commitment to the
communities we serve. It’s a great time to be
here, serving the Midlands of South Carolina.
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(doltars in thousands except per share amounts)

BALANCE SHEET DATA:

Total assets

Loans held for sale

Loans

Deposits

Total common shareholders’ equity
Totalshareholders’ equity

Average shares outstanding, basic
Average shares outstanding, diluted

RESULTS . OF OPERATIONS:

interest income

Interest expense

Net interestincome

Provision forfoanlosses

Net interest income after provision for loan losses
Non-interest income {loss)

Securities gains {Josses)

Non-interest expense

Impairmert of goodwill

Income (loss) before taxes

Incometax expense (benefit)

Net income {loss)

Amortization of warrants

pPreferred stock dividends, including discount accretion
Net incame {loss) available to common shareholders

PER SHARE DATA:

Basic earnings {loss) per common share
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share
Book value atperiod end

Tangible book value at period end
Dividends per common share

ASSET QUALITY RATIOS:

Non-performing assets to total assets®
Non-performingloans to period end loans

Net charge-offs to average loans

Allowance for loanlosses to period-end total loans
Allowance for loan losses to non-performing assets

SELECTED RATIOS:
Return'on.average assets:
GAAP-earnings {loss)
Operating earnings®
Return oa average common equity:
GAAP earnings (loss)
Operating earmings {loss)®
Return on average tangible common equity:
GAAP sarnings (loss)
Operating earnings (loss)
Efficiency Ratiol
Noninterestincome to operating revenue®
Net interest margin
Equitytc assets
Tangible common shareholders’ equity to tangible assets
Tier Lrisk-based capital
Total risk-based capital
Leverage
Averageloansto average deposits ©

14

Year Ended December 31,

2012

5 602,925
9,658
332,111
474,977
54,183
54,183
4,144
4,172

§ 23,002
5,428
17,574
496
17,078
7,929
26
19,445
5,588
1,620
3,968
72

604
3,292

$ 0.79
0.79

10.37
10.23

0.16

1.45%
1.44%
0.17%
1.39%
52.77%

0.55%
0.55%

7.40%
7.40%

7.55%
7.55%
74.82%
31.16%
3.22%
8.99%
8.88%
17.33%
18.58%
10.63%
70.33%

2031

$ 593,887
3,725
324,311
464,585
36,759
47,896
3,287
3287

§ 25526
7,209
18,317
1,420
16,897
5,710
575
18,401
4,781
1,457
3,324
102
568
2,654

$ 0.81
0.81

11.11
10.83

0.16

2.16%
1.67%
0.50%
1.45%
35.83%

0.44%
0.44%

7.98%
7.98%

8.16%
8.16%
75.55%
25.55%
3.33%
8.06%
6.04%
15.33%
17.25%
9.40%
70.59%

2010 2009 2008
$°.599,023 . $.605,827 % 650,233
329,954 . 344,187 332,964
455344 449,576 423,798
30,762 30,501 57,306
41,797 41,440 68,156
3,262 3,252 3,203
3,262 3,252 3,203
$ 27511 % 30,981 S 33,008
9,374 13,104 15,810
18,137 17,877 17,198
1,878 3,103 2,129
16,259 14,774 15,069
3,017 3,543 {10,056)
827 1,489 (28)
17,684 16,530 15,539
— 27,761 -
2,419 (24,535) (10,554)
565 696 (3,761)
1,854 (25,231) (6,793)
96 89 9
568 567 62
1,190 (25,887) (5,864)
$ 036 § (7.95) ¢ (2.14)
0.36 (7.95) (2.14)
9.41 9.38 17.76
9.14 8.92 8.50
0.16 0.24 0.32
2.20% 1.38% 0.39%
1.90% 1.50% 0.54%
0.54% 0.84% 0.34%
1.49% 1.41% 1.38%
37.39% 58.21%  178.53%
0.20% (3.90)% (1.10)%
0.20% 0.39% 0.48%
3.73%  (4966)%  (11.11)%
3.73% 4.98% 4.82%
3.87%  (89.13)%  (21.60)%
3.87% 8.94% 9.37%
73.07% 73.47% 72.74%
17.48% 21.97% 19.78%
3.26% 3.10% 3.16%
6.97% 6.84% 10.48%
5.00% 4.80% 4.42%
13.73% 12.41% 12.58%
14.99% 13.56% 13.73%
8.79% 8.41% 8.28%
73.53% 76.99% 75.45%



RECONCILIATIONS
The following is a reconciliation for the five years ended December 31, 2012, of net income (loss) as reported for generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”) and the non-GAAP measure referred to throughout our discussion of “operating earnings.”

December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Net income (loss), as reported (GAAP) $ 3968 $ 3324 $ 1854 $ (25231) $ (6,793)
Add: Income tax expense (benefit) 1,620 1,457 565 696 (3,761)
5,588 4,781 2,419 (24,535) (10,554)
Non-operating items:
Goodwill impairment charge - - - 7,761 -
Other-than-temporary impairment on
FHLMC preferred shares — — - - 14,325
Pre-tax operating earnings 5,588 4,781 2,419 3,226 3,771
Related income tax expense 1,620 1,457 565 696 825

Operating earnings (NET INCOME, EXCLUDING NON OPERATING ITEMS) $ 3,968 § 3,324 $ 1,854 $ 2530 $ 2946

The following is a reconciliation for the five years ended December 31, 2012, of non-interest income (loss) as reported for GAAP and the
non-GAAP measure referred to throughout our discussion regarding non-interest income (loss).

December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Non-interest income (loss), as reported (GAAP) $ 7955 $ 628 $ 3,844 $ 5032 $ (10,084)
Non-operating items:
Other-than-temporary impairment charge - — — — 14,325
Operating non-interest income $ 7955 $ 628 $ 3844 $§ 5032 $ 4,241

The following is a reconciliation for the five years ended December 31, 2011, of non-interest expense as reported for GAAP and the
non-GAAP measure referred to throughout our discussion regarding non-interest expense.

December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Non-interest expense, as reported (GAAP) $ 19445 $ 18401 $ 17684 $ 44,341 $ 15,539
Non-operating items:
Impairment of goodwill — - — 27,761 -
Operating non-interest expense $ 19445 $ 18401 $ 17684 $ 16,580 $ 15,539

Our management believes that the non-GAAP measures above are useful because they enhance the ability of investors and
management to evaluate and compare our operating results from period to period in a meaningful manner. These non-GAAP
measures should not be considered as an alternative to any measure of performance as promulgated under GAAP, and
investors should consider the OTTI charges in the second and third quarter of 2008 when assessing the performance of the
company. Non-GAAP measures have limitations as analytical tools, and investors should not consider them in isolation oras a
substitute for analysis of the company’s results as reported under GAAP.

@ The efficiency ratio is a key performance indicator in our industry. The ratio is computed by dividing non-interest expense,
less goodwill impairment, by the sum of net interest income on a tax equivalent basis and non-interest income, net of any
securities gains or losses and OTTl on securities. It is a measure of the relationship between operating expenses and earnings.
@ Operating revenue is defined as net interest income plus noninterest income, excluding OTTI related to the write-down of
FHLMC preferred shares in 2008.
@ Constitutes a non-GAAP financial measure. Please see “Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures” below.
@ Includes non accrual loans, loans > 90 days delinquent and still accruing interest and OREO.
® Includes loans held for sale. 15



consolidated balance sheets

Year ended December 31,
(dollars in thousands except par values) 2012 2011
ASSETS:
Cash and due from banks $ 11,517 $ 10,599
Interest-bearing bank balances 6,779 5,512
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell 412 381
Investment securities - available for sale 203,445 201,032
Other investments, at cost 2,527 5,637
Loans heid for sale 9,658 3,725
Loans 332,111 324,311
Less, allowance for loan losses 4,621 4,699
Net loans 327,490 319,612
Property, furniture and equipment - net 17,258 17,483
Bank owned life insurance 10,868 10,974
Other real estate owned 3,987 7,351
Intangible assets 160 365
Goodwill 571 571
Other assets ‘ 8,253 10,645
Total assets $ 602,925 $ 593,887
LIABILITIES:
Deposits:
Non-interest bearing demand $ 97,526 $ 83,572
NOW and money market accounts 150,874 136,483
Savings 41,100 34,048
Time deposits less than $100,000 111,182 128,616
Time deposits $100,000 and over 74,295 81,866
Total deposits 474,977 464,585
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 15,900 13,616
Federal Home Loan Bank Advances 36,344 43,862
Junior subordinated debt 15,464 17,913
Other liabilities 6,057 6,015
Total liabilities 548,742 545,991

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Preferred stock, par value $1.00 per share; 10,000,000 shares authorized;

0 and 11,350 issued and outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 2011 - 11,137
Common stock, par value $1.00 per share; 10,000,000 shares authorized;

issued and outstanding 5,227,300 at December 31, 2012

and 3,307,531 at December 31, 2011 5,227 3,308
Common stock warrants issued 50 560
Nonvested restricted stock (152) -
Additional paid in capital 61,615 49,165
Accumulated deficit (14,915) (17,603)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 2,358 1,329

Total shareholders’ equity 54,183 47,896

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 602,925 $ 593,887

16



consolidated statements of income

(dollars in thousands except per share amounts)

INTEREST INCOME:
Loans, including fees
Investment securities - taxable
investment securities - non taxable
Other short term investments
Total interest income

INTEREST EXPENSE:
Deposits
Securities sold under agreement to repurchase
Other borrowed money
Total interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan losses

NON-INTEREST INCOME:
Deposit service charges
Mortgage origination fees
Investment advisory fees and non-deposit commissions
Gain on sale of securities .
Gain (loss) on sale of other assets
Other-than-temporary-impairment write-down on securities
Fair value loss adjustments on interest rate swap
Loss on early extinguishment of debt
Other

Total non-interest income

NON-INTEREST EXPENSE:
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy
Equipment
Marketing and public relations
FDIC insurance assessments
Other real estate expense
Amortization of intangibles
Other

Total non-interest expense
Net income before tax
Income tax expense
Net income
Preferred stock dividends
Preferred stock redemption costs
Net income available to common shareholders

Basic earnings per common share

Diluted earnings per common share

Year ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010

$ 18361 $ 19,110 $ 19,851

3,832 6,291 7,376
725 51 190
84 74 94
23,002 25,526 27,511
3,122 4573 6,281
35 40 60
2,271 2,596 3,033
5,428 7,209 9,374
17,574 18,317 18,137
496 1,420 1,878
17,078 16,897 16,259
1,562 1,810 1,875
4,242 1,973 1,034
651 767 501
26 575 827
(89) (155) 35
(200) (297) {1,560)
(58) (166) (581)
(217) (188 =~ -
2,038 1,966 1,713
7,955 6,285 3,844
11,152 9,520 8,942
1,358 1,289 1,229
1,168 1,147 1,162
478 452 402
597 889 1,003
1,010 840 823
204 517 621
3,478 3,747 3,502
19,445 18,401 17,684
5,588 4,781 2,419
1,620 1,457 565
$ 3968 S 3324 S 1,854
557 670 664
119 — —

$ 3292 $ 2654 $ 1,190

$ 0.79

£Y.3

081 $ 0.36

$ 0.79

%)

081 $ 0.36

17



independent registered
public accounting firm

The Board of Directors
First Community Corporation
Lexington, South Carolina

We have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of First Community Corporation and
subsidiary (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated
statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash

flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2012 (not presented
herein); and in our report dated March 28, 2013, we expressed an unqualified opinion on

those consolidated financial statements. The accompanying consolidated balance sheets and
statements of income are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the information set forth in these consolidated financial statements
in relation to the consolidated financial statements from which they have been derived.

In our opinion, the information set forth in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as
of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of income for each
of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2012, is fairly stated, in all material

respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements from which it has been derived.

G tbistt Laves, LXC

Elliott Davis, LLC
Columbia, South Carolina
March 28, 2013

18



shareholder information

ANNUAL MEETING INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
The annual meeting of shareholders will be held at PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
11:00 am, Wednesday May 22, 2013: Elliott Davis, LLC

The South Carolina State Museum 1901 Main Street

Palmetto Gallery Suite 900

301 Gervais Street Columbia, South Carolina 29201
Columbia, SC 29201

TRANSFER AGENT

Registrar and Transfer Company
10 Commerce Drive

Cranford, New Jersey 07016-3572
(800) 456-0596

10K/FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Copies of First Community Corporation’s Annual Report
to the Securities and Exchange Commission form 10K
and other information may be obtained from:

Joseph G. Sawyer

First Community Corporation

Post Office Box 64

Lexington, South Carolina 29071

stock information

First Community Corporation’s common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the trading symbol “FCCO.” The
following is a summary of stock prices for the company. These prices have been adjusted for all stock splits and stock dividends.

2012 2011
HIGH Low DIVIDENDS PAID HIGH Low DIVIDENDS PAID
1Q $ 8.00 $598 $0.04 $ 6.75 $5.40 $ 0.04
2Q $ 8.80 $ 765 $ 0.04 $ 735 $ 6.44 $ 0.04
3Q $ 8.60 $7.84 $ 0.04 $ 7.00 $ 6.17 $ 0.04
4Q $ 8.68 $8.15 $ 0.04 $ 6.60 $ 5.42 $ 0.04

All outstanding shares of our common stock are entitled to share equally in dividends from funds legally available when, and
if, declared by the board of directors. The future dividend policy of the company is subject to the discretion of the board of
directors and will depend upon a number of factors, including future earnings, financial condition, cash requirements and
general business conditions. in addition, our ability to pay cash dividends may be dependent upon receiving cash in the form
of dividends from First Community Bank. Statutory and regulatory limitations apply to the Bank’s payment of dividends to
the Company. As a South Carolina chartered bank, the Bank is subject to limitations on the amount of dividends that it is
permitted to pay. Unless otherwise instructed by the S.C. Board, the Bank is generally permitted under South Carolina state
banking regulations to pay cash dividends of up to 100% of net income in any calendar year without obtaining the prior
approval of the S.C. Board. The FDIC also has the authority under federal law to enjoin a bank from engaging in what in its
opinion constitutes an unsafe or unsound practice in conducting its business, including the payment of a dividend under
certain circumstances.
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Richard K. Bogan, MD, FCCP
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First Community Corporation
First Community Bank
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Greenleaf Enterprises

O.A. Ethridge, DMD
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George H. Fann, Jr, DMD
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J. Thomas Johnson
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First Community Corporation
First Community Bank
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Executive Officer

Citizens Building &

Loan Association

Greer, SC

W. James Kitchens, Jr.
Certified Public Accountant
The Kitchens Firm, LLC

Alex Snipe
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Attorney & Counselor at Law
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vision statement

To be the provider of choice of financial
solutions to local businesses, entrepre-
neurs and professionals in the markets
we serve, we optimize the long-term
return to our shareholders, while

providing a safe and sound investment.

Quality and integrity in all endeavors
Passionate focus on the customer experience

Mutual respect for our colleagues
and their role in our success
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FIRST COMMUNIW CORPORATION
5455 Siinset Boulevard
Lexingtoh, South' @Hrolma‘ﬂ%ﬁ

] ‘MEE'_ITING or SHAREHOLDERS
Aprll 8 2015 T

Dear Fellow Shareholder" R L '

We cordlally mvrte you to attend the 2013 Annual Meetmg of Shareholders of Fxrst Commumty
Corporation, the holding company for First Community Bank. At the meeting, we will report on our
performance in 2012 and answer your questions, We, ook, forward to discussing both our
accomplishments and our plans wrth you We hope that you ¢ can attend the meetmg and look forward
to seemg you there e SR ~ st

B This letter serves as your 0ff1c1al notlce that we w1ll hpld the meetmg on May 22 12 013 at ;. v
11:00 a.m. local tlme at The: South Carolma State Museum, ,Palmetto Gallery,, 301 ( ervals Street
Columbla S, C 29.201 for,., the followmg purposes: e ;

1. To elect four Class I directors to serve on the company s board of- dlrec’tOrs each for
three-year terms; : . »

3. To approve a non-blndmg resolutlon to determme whether shareholders should v e o o
v.Say- n-Pay proposals every one, two, or three years, (“Say—on-Frequency”) :

5. 'To transact any other busmess that may properly come b
of the meeting. Cm e i

+ Shareholders.owning ; shares of our common stock at the, close of busmess on. March 25 2013 are
entltled to attend and vote, at the | meeting, A complete list of, these shareholder ill ibe avarlable at the,
company’s -offices prior to- the meetmg At the. meeting, we wilk report on our, peri;‘ormance n;2012

Please use ' this opportumty to ‘take ‘part in the ‘affairs of § your company’ by’ votmg on' ’the Business to’
come before this meeting: Even if you plari‘to attend the: Hieeting; We eficourage you 1o vote as soonas’
possible by telephone, through the; Internet, or by sgnmgz datmg and maﬂmg yQur; proxy card.in, the
envelope enclosed. Telephone and, Intemet votmg permits. you to vote.at your convenience, 24 hours 3,
day, seven days .a week. Detaﬂed voting instructions are. mcluded on.your, proxy card, However if your
shares are. held in “street name,” you will need. to vbtarn a proxy\form from thekmstltu on;that; holds,
your shares in orde,r to vote. at our annual.meetm & e r

LS

s ‘f*Byff oiﬂdfef«of’fthe"Boajr‘d of Ditéctors;

Mlchael C. Cta apps
Presm‘ent and Ghtef Executzve Oﬁ‘icer

Mitchell M. Willoughby
Chairman. of the Board ::.-

5455 Sunset Boulevard, Lexington, South Carolina 29072
Telephone: (803) 951-2265 / Fax: (803) 358-6900




4 "FIRSBGONIMUNITY CORPQRAFION 515
_$455 Sunget Boulevard = -
Bexington; Squth; Carolina 23072
sqn ooy Statement. for Annual Meeting, of 7y > ye e
Shareholders tg,l:)g Held on May 22, 2013 3

Our board of directors is soliciting proxies for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. This
proxy statement contains important information for you to consider when decidingihow, i vote;on the v
matters brought before the meeting. We encourage you to read it carefully. We are distributing this

N R R Soepr s B Ui e a0 < Fe Py

proxy éatément 'ofi br aboit April 8; 2013 sl s

STV

SRR ITT TR O MU+t B Y
Voting Thformation’~ -+ ' : B
T A apty ean 0y RETT DO Y : L ¢

Gadd DIE B e 0T P RETY Do n e ST TEEHIEEeo
The board set March 25, 2013 as the record date for the meeting. Shareholders owning "sh%é@\,éf o
our common stock at the close of business on that date are entitled to attend and vote at the meeting,
with each share entitled td ‘one:vote: Thierd wire'57200,452 shares of cottimbi stock dutstandifig o1 the
record dae” A motity of thi butstaridifig shires of comifion 'stdkk lentitked to vote 4t the iéeting Wil
constitute a quorum. We will.count abstentions and brokef iﬁdﬁ%@té«ff‘ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%’f@Hegg;ff)%d%él WP
determining, whethes a quorum exists: . e ol oo e cF et b aasbl ke !

Many of our shareholders hold their shares through a stockbroker, bank, or’ other nominée rather
than directly in,gheir own name., If.you hold qur shares in a.stock brokerage.accoynt,ay;by,a hank or
other nomines, you. areconsidered. the beneficial owner of shares: held in strect namey, and your broker
or nominee, who is considered the shareholder of record with respect to those shares, is forwarding
these mAteriily {6'you, As theél béneficial < wnet, Joui ‘Have the-tight tb' direct yolir br oket; barik, or other
nominee how to vote arid ate’dlso’ifivitéd to ‘4tterid ‘the ‘anniial meeting:” owévet] since youlare not the

shareholder of zegord, you.may notivate these, shares in,person at the megtingJinless;yop obtain a;.

e =

signed proxy from the shareholder of record giving you the right to vote the shares. Your broker, bank,
7 ohisr pbiitide has enclofed or provided a votiiig ‘ifistruiction card for you''to use’ to-direct your -
broker, bank, or other nominee how to vote these shares. R

gyl gﬁagg;igéfggfégsnted«%afffaﬁy piirposé at thie anrittal ticeting By the presehc of thiel Pegistefed
owhef 8t a persott Bitiiing a valid progy for the registéred owner, it IS déémed’to/ be present ot e
purposé-of estabiistiifie’a qitortn, Therefore, Valid proxiés which aré ‘matked! “Abktain of “WithHoIP"

oF 38,14y which no, vate is, marked, including broke, non-vafes (described below),, will be; ingluded.imy

fpre

determining the number,of voies. prescut o1, represented at the pnnualmeeting,

When 64 sighthe prosy card youtappbint David K. Proctor dind Josephi G Safvyer a9 your
représeiitatives st the' iceting. Mess. Broctor Hnd Sawyet will v proxy-as You héve tistricted
thetiton (i Préxy cardl I ‘you siibmit ut do e g o '
MESRI BRILEE Al Sawger Will votd Yout ptoxy forthe’ dlection o the boird of ditectors'ofall™®

P 4 . R a5 2 gy
ST eind srotan aeon

- proky bt 'd6 nio specify hiow-you wotild fike it t8 be voted,

Ehea vt
nominees listed below under “Election of Directors,” ot the’ approval of fﬁé‘&’iﬁ;’ﬁbﬁéﬁﬁ%ﬁ'ofﬁéﬁ}? »
named executive officers as disclosed in this proxy statement (this is a non-binding, advisory vote), for
the non-binding resolution to apprgvg;@@;{re&pgpgy@@@tpre&;@gu@ye compensation votes to be every
three years, and for the ratification of the appointment of our independent registered public
accountants for{\;!le year ending December 31, 2013. We are not aware of any other matters to be
considered at t_li‘e;jmee;i{gg;"I*Iowever, if any other matters come before the mgeting, Messrs. Proctor

ok Lo | Al N ) . . AP RS R Y
and Sawye W 0i&otr iproxy on such matters in accordance with their judgment. :

] AN IS

‘i : ‘ pex R A2 B I 1 20

-« Withrespedt ito' Proposal No:1; the directors will be elected by a plurality efsthe votés of the .. .
shares present in person or represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote on the

election of directors. This means that the individuals who receive the highest number of votes

E S S I
AL S T A o

¥



ate selected as drrectors up to the maximum number of directors to be elected at the meeting."
We will not count abstentions, broker non-votes ot 'the failure to return a signed proxy as either

+ for or against a director, so abstentions, broker -non-votes and the failure to- retum a srgned
proxy have no impact on the election-of a* d1reetor =

* With respect to Proposal No. 2, the proposal wrll be approved 1f the number of shares of
‘common stéck voted-in favor of the matter exceed the number of shares of common stock voted
againist the matter. This vote is advisory and will not be binding upon our board of directors. .~ *

- However, the human resources/compensation committee and the board of directors will take into

"“-account the outcome of-the vote when considering fature executive - compensatlon arrangements
'If a shareholder submits a proxy but does not specify how he"or shé would like it to be voted, -
then the proxy will be voted “FOR” the approval of thé compensation of the company’s named

- executive officers. We will not ‘count abstentions, broker' non-votes or the failure to return'a
signed proxy as either for or against this proposal, so abstentions, broker non-votes and the
failure to retiirn 'a ‘signed proxy will not affect the approval of the non-brndrng resolutlon to
approve the compensation of the company’s named executive officers. :

* With respect to Proposal No: 3, the frequency of the advisory vote on the ‘non-binding resolution
to approve the compensation of our named executive officers receiving the greatest number of
votes (either every'three years, every two years, or evety year) will be the frequency that our
shareholders recommend. You may vote for a frequency of one, two or three years, or you may
abstain from voting on this proposal. If a shareholder submits a proxy but does not specify how
he or she would like it to be voted, then the. proxy.will be voted for a frequency of every three

. years. Abstentions, broker non-votes, and the failure to return a signed proxy will have no effect

. _'on the outcome of the votes on this matter. ‘

* With respect t0 Proposal No. 4, the proposal will be approved if the number of shares of
common stock voted in favor of the matter exceed the number of shares of common stock voted
against the matter. If a shareholder submits a proxy but does not specify how he -or she would : -
like it to be voted, then the proxy will be voted “FOR” the ratification of the appointment of
our independent registered public accountants. for the year ended December 31, 2013. We will
not count .abstentions, broker non-votes or the failure to return a signed proxy as either for or
against thiS proposal, so abstentions, broker non-votes and the failure to return a signed proxy
have no impact on the ratification of the appomtment of our 1ndependent reglstered public
accountants. , D : \

- You may revoke your proxy and change your vote at any time before the polls close at the
meeting. If you are the record holder of the shares, you ‘'may do this by (a) signing and“delivering
another proxy with a later date, (b) by voting in person at the meeting, or (c) by voting again over.the-
Internet or by telephone prior to 3:00 a.m., Eastern Daylight Time, on: May 22, 2013.

Brokers who hold shares for the accounts of their clients may vote these shares either as dirécted
by their clients -or in their own discretion if permitted by the exchange or other:organization of which
they are members. Proposals that brokers do not vote on are referred to as “broker non-votes.” A
broker non-vote does not count as‘a vote in favor of or against a particular-propesal for which the
broker has no discretionary voting authority. In  addition, if a.shareholder abstains-from:votingon a
particular proposal, the abstention does not count as a vote in favor of or against the proposal.

"If you hold your shares in street name through a broker, bank, or other nominee, it is critical that
you cast your vote if you want it to count in the election of our director nominees, for the approval of
the Say-on-Pay proposal, or in the Say-on-Frequency proposal. In the past, if you held your shares in:
street name and you did not indicate how you wanted your shares voted in the election of directors,
your broker, bank, or other nominee was allowed to vote those shares on your behalf as they felt
appropriate. However, new regulations now prohibit your broker, bank, or other nominee from voting



uninstructed shares on a discretionary basis on proposals one, two or three at the annual meeting.
Thus, if you hold your shares in street name and you do not instruct your broker how to vote at the
meeting, no votes will be cast on your behalf for proposals one, two or three. Further, if you abstain
from voting on a particular proposal, the abstention does not count as a vote in favor of or against the
proposal (or for the frequency of one, two, or three years for the Say-on-Frequency proposal).

Solicitations of proxies may be made i in petrson or by mail, telephone or other means. We are
paying for the costs of preparing and mailing the proxy materials and of reimbursing brokers and
others for their expenses of forwarding copies of the proxy materials to our shareholders. Upon written
or oral request, we will promptly deliver a separate copy of our annual report on Form 10-K or this
proxy statement to our shareholders at a shared address to which a single copy of the document was
delivered. Alternatively, if you are sharing an address with other shareholders and are receiving
multiple copies of our annual report on Form 10-K or this proxy statement, you may request a single
copy be sent to your shared address, if you prefer. Please contact us at (803) 951-0500 for any such
request. Our directors, officers, and employees may assist in soliciting proxies but will not receive
additional compensation for doing so. '

Important Notice of Internet Availability. This proxy statement and the accompanying 2012 Annual
Report on Form 10-K and 2012 Annual Report Overview are available to the public for viewing on the
Internet at http://www.cfpproxy.com/5474. Directions to the meeting are available on our website at:
www.firstcommunitysc.com.

Proposal No. 1: Election of Directors

The board of directors is divided into three classes with st;aggefed terms, so that the terms of only
approximately one-third of the board members expire at each annual meeting. The current terms of the
Class I directors will expire at the meeting, The terms of the Class II directors will expire at the 2014
Annual Shareholders Meeting and the terms of the Class 111 directors will expire at the 2015 Annual
Shareholders Meeting. Our directors and their classes are::

Class L . Class I Class IT
Richard K. Bogan, M.D. Thomas C. Brown Chimin J. Chao
Michael C. Crapps 0.A. Ethridge, D.M.D. Loretta R. Whitehead
Anita B. Easter W. James Kitchens, Jr. - J. Thomas Johnson
George H. Fann, Jr., D.M.D. Roderick M. Todd, Jr. Alexander Snipe, Jr.

Mitchell M. Willoughby

Shareholders will elect four nominees as Class I directors at the meeting, to serve a three-year
term, expiring at the 2016 Annual Shareholders Meeting. The directors will be elected by a plurality of
the votes cast at the meeting. This means that the four Class I nominees receiving the highest number
of votes will be elected directors.

Richard K. Bogan, MD, Michael C. Crapps, Anita B. Easter and George H. Fann Jr., DMD,
whose terms expire at the meeting, have been nominated by the board of directors for reelection by the
shareholders. The board recommends that you elect Dr. Bogan, Mr. Crapps, Mrs. Easter, and Dr. Fann
as Class I directors. All nominees are currently members of the board and each has consented to being
named in this proxy statement and to serving as a director on the board if elected.

If you submit a proxy but do not specify how you would like it to be voted, Messrs. Proctor and
Sawyer will vote your proxy to elect Dr. Bogan, Mr. Crapps, Mrs. Easter, and Dr. Fann. If any of these
nominees is unable or fails to accept nomination or election (which we do not anticipate),

Messrs. Proctor and Sawyer will vote instead for ‘a replacement to be recommended by the board of
directors, unless you specifically instruct otherwise in the proxy.



Information Regarding Nominees for Directors

All of our board members bring to the board of d1rectors leadershlp expenence, derived from thelr
business, professional, and board experiences. Ten of the thirteen directors have served as directors of
First Community since the: 1noeptlon of our company in 1994. Two others were directors on the board
of two companies that we acquired, one in 2004 and the other in 2006: The third has served as a
director on our board since 2005. Certain individual qualifications and skills of our directors that
contribute to the board of d1rectors effectiveness as a whole are described in the 1nformat10n prov1ded
below. S

Set.forth below is. certaln information about the Class I nominees, each of whom is also a director
of the bank : :

chhard K Bogan, 67, Class I dlrector has served as a dlrector of the company since 1ts formation
in 1994. Dr. Bogan has practiced medicine ‘in Columbia, South Carolina, since he started Pulmonary
Associates of Carolina in 1978. He graduated with a B.S. degree from Wofford College in Spartanburg
'in 1966 and earned an M.D. degree from the Medical College of South Carolina in Charleston in 1970
Dr. Bogan has been president of Bogan Consulting, Inc., a medical consulting company, since -
December 1992 and holds memberships in numerous medlcal organizations. He currently serves on the
board of directors of the National Sleep Foundation and is the chairman and chief medical offlcer of
SleepMed, Inc. Dr. Bogan has served in ‘this position since 1999. 4

Dr: Bogan’s experience and background as chairman, founder, and executive of several medical
related companies allows him to bring significant management and leadership skills to our board He
has strong commumty ties to the Midlands of South Carolina. ‘ :

Michael C. Crapps, 54, Class I director, has served as our president and chlef executive officer and
as:a director of the company since its formation in 1994. A lifelong Lexington County resident, he
began his banking career with South Carolina National Bank in 1980, and by the time he changed jobs
in 1985 he was a vice president and senior commercial lender in a regional office of that bank. From
1985 to 1993, he worked for Republic National Bank in Columbia, becoming president, chief executive
officer, and a director of that bank. During his career, Mr. Crapps has been responsible for virtually all
aspects of banking, mcludlng branches, commercial banking, operations, credit administration,
accounting, human resources, and compliance. He also serves the banking industry through his
involvement in the South Carolina Bankers Association having served as its chairman and on its board
of directors. Mr. Crapps was selected as the 1997 Young Banker of the Year by the. South Carolina
Bankers Association. He received a B.S. degree in Economics in 1980 from Clemson University and an
M.B.A. degree from the University of South Carolina in 1984. Mr. Crapps is also a graduate of the
L.S.U. Banking School of the South. Mr. Crapps currently serves as chairman of the Board of the
Nav1gat1ng Good to Great Foundation; on'the board of directors of the South. Atlantic Division of the
American Cancer Society (past chairman); on the Saluda Shoals'Park Foundation (past chairman); on
the Board of Directors of the Central Carolina Community Foundation; on the Lexington County
School District One. Foundation; the River Alliance; and on the Midlands, Busmess Leadership Group
He is also a past chalrman of the Lexmgton Chamber of Commerce. -

Mr. Crapps’ expenence in banking and-vision for-our company give him' the leadershlp and
consensus. building skills that provide significant insight and expertise to the board. He is a lifelong
resident of Lexington, South Carolina, and has significant ties to the Midlands of South Carolma He -
has been very active-in IOCaI community and civic organizations.. S »

Anita B. Easter, 68 Class I director, has served as a director of the company since its formatlon in
1994. Ms. Easter is retlred She is a former owner and director or Anchor Continental, Inc., a
manufacturer of pressure-sénsitive tapes. As a Registered Nurse, she returned to school and received a
B.S. in Nursing from the University of South Carolina and was inducted into Sigma Theta Tau, the



international honor society for nurses. She is past chair of the Greater Columbia Community Relations
Council and is a member of the Columbia Luncheon Club, The League of Women Voters, and The
USC College of Nursing Partnership Board. ’

Mrs. Easter’s experience, as a former owner and director of a large manufacturing company,
provides the board with significant business insight and analytical skills. She has been active in civic:and
community organizations within the Midlands of South Carolina and is knowledgeable about the
markets we serve. : :

George H. Fann, Jr, D.M.D,, 68, Class 1 director, has served as a director of the company since its
formation in 1994. Dr. Fann has practiced dentistry in West Columbia, South Carolina for 40 years. He
earned a B.S. degree from Clemson University in 1966 and a D.M.D. from the University Of Louisville
School Of Dentistry in 1969. Dr. Fann is past chairman of the board of directors of Lexington Medical
Center in West Columbia, South Carolina. Dr. Fann is a recipient of the Order of the Palmetto
awarded by the Governor of South Carolina. ‘ ‘ o

Dr. Fann’s experience as a medical professional, operating his business in the Midlands for
40 years, brings to the board.insights relative to challenges and opportunities facing small businesses
and healthcare professionals within our market areas. He has served as a board member and chairman
of the board of a large medical center. As a lifelong resident of the Midlands of South Carolina, he- has
significant knowledge of the business environment and the markets we serve. :

If a quorum is present, the directors will be elected by a plurality of the votes cast at the meeting.
This means that the four Class III nominees receiving the highest number of votes will be elected
directors. Abstentions, broker non-votes, and the failure to return a signed proxy will have no effect on
the outcome of the vote on this, matter.

Information Regarding Continuing Directors

Set forth below is also information about each of the company’s other directors. Each of the - .
following directors is also a director of our bank..

Thomas C. Brown, 54, Class II director, has served as a diréctor of the company since its formation
in 1994, Mr. Brown is currently the Rector at St. Pauls Church Greenville, South Carolina. From 2008
to 2011 he served as the Assistant Rector at All Saints' Church, Pawleys Island, South Carolina. .
Previously, Mr. Brown was the president and owner of T.C.B. Enterprises of South Carolina, Inc., a
restaurant business based in Myrtle Beach. Mr. Brown graduated from Clemson University in 1981 with
a B.S. degree in Civil Engineering. '

Mr. Brown has operated and owned a small business since 1989. He has extensive knowledge of
the small business environment and the related challenges. He brings to the board a unique insight and
useful perspective related to the small business environment, which.is a primary target market segment
for our company. - ‘ ‘ ‘

O.A. Ethridge, D.M.D,, 69, Class II director, has served as a director of the company since its
formation in 1994. Dr. Ethridge currently resides in Lexington, South Carolina and practiced children’s
dentistry in West Columbia, South Carolina for more than 20 years. After graduating with a B.A.-
degree in Science from Erskine College in Due West, South Carolina in 1965, Dr. Ethridge received a
D.M.D. in 1971 from the University Of Louisville School Of Dentistry in Louisville; Kentucky. He
became a pedodontist in 1974 after receiving a pedodontist specialty from Children’s Medical Center in
Dayton, Ohio. .



Dr. Ethridge’s experience as a medical professional, operating his business in the Midlands of
South Carolina, brings to the board insights relative to challenges and opportunities facing small
businesses and medical professionals within our market areas. As a lifelong resident of the Midlands of
South Carolina he has extensive knowledge of the business environment and the markets we serve.

"W, James Kitchens, Jr, 51, Class II director, has served as a director of the company sirice its
formation in 1994. Mr. Kitchens is a Certified Public Accountant and holds the Chartered Financial
Analyst designation. He is the president of The Kitchens Firm, LLC, a certified public accounting firm
in Columbia, South Carolina. Mr. Kitchens earned a B.S. degree in Mathematlcs from The University
of the South and an M.B.A. degree from Duke University.

Mr. Kitchens is a certified public accountant and brings to the board knowledge and understanding
of tax and financial accounting issues. He is a l1felong resident of the Midlands of South Carohna and
has a strong knowledge of the business environment in the markets we serve. :

Roderick M. Todd, Jr, 49, Class II director, has served as a director of the company since our
merger with DeKalb Bankshares, Inc. in June 2006. He served as a director of DeKalb Bankshares, Inc.
and the Bank of Camden from its inception in 2001 until June 2006. In July 2000, Mr. Todd founded
the law firm Roderick M. Todd, Jr. Attorney and Counselor at Law. Formerly he was a partner in
Cooper and Todd, LLP, Attorneys, from 1994 to 2000. Mr. Todd is a graduate of the Un1vers1ty of
South Carolina and the University of South Carohna School of Law.

‘Mr. Todd has extensive experience in running:and operatmg h1s own legal practlce in Camden
South Carolina. As a prior director of a start-up community bank, he brings additional .insights to_our
board relative to commumty bank operations. He has strong ties to the:Camden market, Whlch is a.
market we expanded into in 2006 through acquisition.

Mitchell M. Willoughby, 65, Class II director, has served as a dlrector of the company since its
formation in 1994. On March 17, 2009, Mr. Willoughby was eleéted to serve as chairman of the board
beginning on May 19, 2009. Mr. Willoughby has lived in Columbia, South Carolina since 1970, has
practiced law in the community since 1975, and is a founding member of the law firm Willoughby & ..
Hoefer, PA. Mr. Willoughby has previously served as general counsel of the Greater Columbia
Chamber of Commerce as well as a member of its Board of Directors. Mr. Willoughby served three ..
years with the United States Army and over 33 years with the South Carolina Army National Guard,
retiring in 2005 in the rank of Brigadier General. He received a B.S. degree i in 1969 from Clemson
Un1vers1ty and a J.D. degree from the Un1vers1ty of South Carolma in, 1975. ' '

Mr. Willoughby’s experlence as-a founding partner in the legal fxrm of Wllloughby & Hoefer, PA
and over 36 years experience in the United States Army and the S.C. Army National Guard allows him
to bring significant organizational and administrative skills to:the board of directors. His legal
experience and insights provides the board with 1mportant perspectwe on corporate governance related
matters.and corporate strategy :

Chimin J. Chdo, 57, Class III director, has served as a dlrector of the company since its formation
in 1994. Mr. Chao lives i in Lexington, Souith Carolina ard since 1987 has been president of the
engineering firm Chao and Associates, Inc. in Irmo, South Carolina. Mr. Chao is a member of the
American Society of Engmeers and the National Society of Professional Engineers. He was selected as
Civil Engineer of the ‘Year by the American Society of Civil Engineers, South Carolina Section in 2009.
He received a M.S. degree in Structural Engineering at the University of South Carolina and holds a
Professional Engineer license and Building Inspector license in South Carolina. :

Mr. Chao is president of his engineering firm and has a strong knowledge of the issues facing
small business professionals, which are a target market segment for our company. He has extensive
knowledge of the business environment and the markets we serve.



Loretta R. Whitehead, 70, Class III director, has served as a director of the company since its
formation in 1994. Ms. Whitehead has been a realtor since 1981 and is currently broker in charge of
EXIT Real Estate Consultants in Lexington, South Carolina. She taught full-time from 1964 through
1968, after receiving a B.A. degree in English and Elementary Education-from Columbia: College in
1963. She also took additional graduate work at the University of South Carolina and University of
Tennessee from 1963 through 1968. She is a member of the National Association of Realtors, the South
Carolina Association of Realtors and the Central Carolina Association of Realtors. She currently serves
as chair of the Lexington Medical Center Foundation scholarship committee and is past chair of the
Lexington Medical Center Foundation. ' -

Mrs. Whitehead has significant insights into and experience in the real estate market in the
Midlands of South Carolina. She has been active in civic and community organizations within the
Midlands of South Carolina and is knowledgeable about the markets we serve.

J. Thomas Johnson, 66, Class III director, has served as vice chairman of the board since our
merger with DutchFork BancShares in October 2004. From October 2004 until October 2007, he served
as executive vice president of the company and the bank. From 1984 until October 2004, Mr. Johnson
served as chairman and chief executive officer of DutchFork BancShares and Newberry Federal Savings
Bank. From 2009 to present, Mr. Johnson has served as ,Pr‘e's,ic'lent and Chief Executive Officer of |
Citizens Building and Loan Association in Greer, South Carolina. Mr. Johnson has been. in banking
since 1968. He has served as chairman of the Community Financial Institutions of South Carolina and
formerly served on the board of directors of the South Carolina Bankers Association, He is a member
of the board of directors of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta representing South Carolina -
member banks. He is also chairman of Business Carolina, a statewide economic development lender.
He received a B.S. in Marketing in 1968 from the University of South Carolina. He formerly served on
the boards of the Newberry Opera House Foundation, the Central Carolina Alliance, the Central
Carolina Community Foundation, and S.C. Independent Colleges and Universities. '

Mr. Johnson has extensive experience as a director, chairman, and CEO of a community bank for
20 years, prior to its acquisition by our company. He also serves as a director-on the Federal Home
Loan Bank of Atlanta. His experience brings substantial insight to our board as it relates to challenges
and issues facing the comniunity banking industry. ' '

Alexander Snipe, Jr, 62, has served as a Class III director of our :company since May 2005.
Mr. Snipe has been the president and chief executive officer of Glory Communications, Inc. since
September 1992. Glory Communications, Inc. operates five gospel radio stations located in South
Carolina markets, including its first station, WFMYV;, which began broadcasting in November 1993 in
Columbia, South Carolina: Prior to forming Glory Communications, Inc., Mr. Snipe was the general.
sales manager at a radio station for 10 years. He has over 20 years of broadeasting: experience.
Mr. Snipe serves on the board of the William L. Bonner Bible College, The National Association of .
Broadcasters Radio Board, The Radio Board’s Membership Committee (chairman), and The Gospel
Heritage Foundation. Mr. Snipe is a former board member of the Columbja . Urban League and The
Gospel Music Association, and he is past president of the South Carolina Broadcasters Association.

: L I
M. Snipe has significant experience operating a small business since 1992: He also serves on the
boards of several other associations and foundations. He has strong ties to the Midlands of South
Carolina and has extensive knowledge of the business environment-and the markets we serve. -

Information Regarding Remaining Executive Officers

Set forth below is information about our executive officers, other than_Mi. .Crapps who is also a
director and is discussed above. - o ‘



David K.. Proctor, 56, On February 19, 2013, Mr. Proctor was named executive vice president and
chief risk officer of the company. Prior to this he was senior vice president and senior credit officer of
the company since First Community Bank opened for business in 1995. From May 1994 to June 1995,
he was the vice president of credit for Republic Leasing' Company. From 1987 to 1994, he held various
positions with Republic National Bank in Columbia and most recently was executive vice president and
senior credit officer. He is a 1979 graduate of Clemson Umver51ty with a B. S in business
administration.

Joseph G. Sawyer, 62, On February 19, 2013, Mr. Sawyer was named executive vice president and
chief financial officer of the company. Prior to this he was senior vice president and chief financial
officer of the company since First Community Bank opened for business in 1995. Prior to joining the
company, he was senior vice president and general auditor for the National Bank of South Carolina.
He is a certified public accountant and a 1973 graduate‘of The Citadel with a B.A. in political science. -

Proposal No. 2: Non-Binding, Adv1sory Vote on Compensatlon of the Named Executive Officers

The recently enacted Dodd- Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (the
“Dodd-Frank Act”) enables our shareholders to vote to approve, on a non-binding basis, the
compensation of the company’s named executive officers. Accordingly, we are asking you to approve
the compensation of the company’s named executive officers as described under “Compensation of
Directors and Executive Officers” and the tabular disclosure regarding named executive officer
compensation (together with the accompanying narrative disclosure) in this proxy statement.

The company seeks to align the interests of our named executive officers with the interests of our
shareholders. Therefore, our compensation programs are designed to reward our named executive
officers for the achievement of strategic and operational goals and the achievement of increased
shareholder value, while at the same time avoiding the encouragement of unnecessary or excessive
risk-taking. We believe that our compensation policies and procedures are competitive and focused on
performance and are aligned with the long-term 1nterest of our shareholders

The proposal described below, commonly known as a “Say-on-Pay” proposal glves you as a
shareholder the opportunity to express your views regarding the compensation of the named executive
officers by voting to approve or not approve such compensation as described in this proxy statement.
This vote is advisory and will not be binding upon the company, the board of directors, or the human
resources/compensation committee. However, the company, the board, and the human resources/
compensation committee will take into account the outcome of the vote when considering future
executive compensation arrangements. The vote on this resolution is not intended to address any
specific element of compensation, but rather relates to the overall compensation of our named
executive officers, as described in this proxy statement in accordance with the compensation disclosure
rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”).

The board of directors believes our compensation policies and procedures-achieve this objective,
and therefore recommend shareholders vote “FOR” the proposal through the following resolution'

“RESOLVED, that the compensation paid to the company’s ‘named executive ofﬁcers as
disclosed in the company’s Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders pursuant
to the compensation disclosure rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, including the
compensation tables and any related material disclosed in the Proxy Statement, is hereby
APPROVED.”

If a quorum is present, the proposal will be approved if the number of shares of common stock
voted in favor of the matter exceed the number of shares of common stock voted against the matter.
Abstentions, broker non-votes, and the failure to return a signed proxy will have no effect on the
outcome of the vote on this matter.



Proposal No. 3: Advisory, Non—Bmdlng Vote on the Frequency of Approval of the Compensatlon of the
Named Executlve Ofﬁcers ;

The Dodd-Frank Act requires that the company prov1de shareholders w1th the opportunlty to vote,
on a non-binding, advisory basis, for their preference as to how frequently the company. should conduct
an advisory Say-on-Pay vote. Shareholders may indicate whether they would prefer that the Company
conduct future Say-on-Pay votes every year, every two years, or every three years. Shareholders also
may abstain from casting a vote on this proposal

The board of directors has determmed that a Say-on-Pay vote that occurs once every three years is
the most appropriate alternative for the company and, therefore, the board recommends that you vote
in favor of conducting a Say-on-Pay vote every three years. The board believes that a Say—on—Pay vote
occurring every three years will provide our shareholders with sufficient time to evaluate the .
effectiveness of the company’s overall compensation philosophy, policies and practices in the context of
our Jong-term business results for the corresponding period, while, avoiding an over-emphasrs .on_short
term variations in compensation and business results. A Say-on Pay vote occurring every three years
will also permit shareholders to observe and evaluate the effect of any changes to our executive
compensation policies and pract1ces that have occurred since the last: adv1sory vote on executlve
compensation. ' : S

This vote is .adv1sory, which means that it is not bmdmg on the company, the board of drrectors, or
the human resources/compensation committee. The Company recognizes that the shareholders may
have different views as to the best approach and looks forward to hearing from the shareholders as to
their preferences on the frequency of the Say-on-Pay vote. The board of directors and the human
resources/compensation committee will carefully review the outcome of the Say-on-Frequency vote;
however, when considering the frequency of future Say-on-Pay votes, the board of directors may decide
that it is in the company’s and the shareholdérs” long-term best interest to hold a Say-on-Pay vote more
or less frequently than the frequency- rece1v1ng the most votes cast by our shareholders.

The proxy card provides shareholders with the opportunity to choose among four optlons (holdmg
the Say-on-Pay vote every year, every two years, or every three years, or abstain from veting). -
Shareholders are not being asked to approve or disapprove the recommendation of the bodrd of
directors. If a quorum is present, the frequency of the advisory vote on the non-binding resolution to
approve the compensation of our named executive officers receiving the greatest number of votes
(either every three years, every two years, or every year) will be the frequency that our shareholders
recommend-. Abstentions, broker non-votes, and the fallure to return a signed proxy Wlll have no effect
on the outcome of the votes on this matter. :

The board recommends you vote for the preferred frequency of future Say-on-Pay proposals to be
every three years.

Proposal No. 4: Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

On March 19, 2013, the audit/compliance committee of the board of drrectors appointed Elliott
Davis, LLC as our independent registered public accounting firm for the year ‘ending December 31,
2013. Although we are not required to seek shareholder ratification in the selection of our accountants,
we believe obtaining shareholder tatification is desirable. If the shareholders do not ratify the -
appointment of Elliott Davis, the audit/compliance committee will re-evaluate the engagement of our
independent auditors. Even if the shareholders do ratify the appointment, our audit/compliance
committee has the discretion to appoint a different independent registered public accounting firm at
any time during the year if the audlt/comphance committee believes that such a change would be in the
best interest of cur shareholders and the company. We expect that a representative of Elliott Davis will
attend the meeting and will be available to respond to appropriate questions from shareholders
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If a quorum is present, the proposal will be approved if the number of shares of common stock -
voted in favor of the matter exceed the number of shares of common stock voted against the matter.
Abstentions, broker non-votes, and the failure to return a- s1gned proxy will have no effect on the -
outcome of the voté on this matter. ‘

The board unammously recommends that shareholders vote “FOR?” the ratification of the.
appointment of Elliott Davis, LLC as our 1ndependent registered publlc accounting firm for the year
ending December 31, 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The board of drrectors met, 12 times in 2012. Each director i in 2012 attended at least 75% of the
combined total of meetrngs of the board of directors and meetings of each committee on which such
director served :

" Neither the board nor the nomination and corporate governance committee has implemented a-
formal policy regarding director attendance at an annual meeting of shareholders, although board
members are encouraged to attend the ‘annual shareholders meetrng In 2012, ten directors attended
the 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. ~

The board. has determmed that a majority of its members are independent as defined by the llstmg
standards of The NASDAQ Stock Market, Specifically, our board. of directors. has determined that the
following directors aresmdependent Richard K. Bogan, M.D., Thomas C. Brown, ‘Chimin J. Chao,
Anita B. Easter 0. A. Ethndge D.M. D George H. Fann, Jr., D.M.D., W James Krtchens Jr.,
Alexander Smpe, Jr., Roderick M. Todd, Jr., Loretta R. Whltehead and Mitchell M. Wllloughby

The board of ditrectors has established a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all
directors, officers and employees, which may be found on our website at www, firstcommunitysc.com. The
information on our website is not part of this proxy statement. The company intends to post on its
website all disclosures that are reqmred by law or The NASDAQ Stock Market listing standards
concerning any arnendments to, or waivers from, the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.
Shareholders may request a copy of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics by written request
directed to First Community Corporation, Attention: Corporate Secretary, 5455 Sunset Blvd, Lexrngton
South Carolina 29072

Shareholders may commumcate d1rect1y to the board of dlrectors in wrltmg by sending a letter to
the board at: First Community Corporation,, Attentlon Corporate Secretary, 5455 Sunset Blvd.,
Lexington, South Carolina 29072. All letters directed to the board of directors will be received and
processed by the corporate secretary and will be forwarded to the chairman of the nomination and
corporate governance commlttee w1thout any editing or screenlng

Board Leadershlp Structure and Role in Risk Over51ght

We are focused on the company s corporate governance practices and Value 1ndependent board
oversight as an essential .component of strong. corporate performance to enhance shareholder value.
Our commitment to mdependent oversight is demonstrated by the fact that a majority of our directors
are independent. In addition, all of the members of our board of directors’ audlt/comphance human
resources/compensatlon and nominating and corporate governance commlttees are 1ndependent

Our board of directors believes that it is preferable for.one of our mdependent directors to. serve
as chairman of the board. The individual our board of directors appointed as chairman, Mitchell M.
Willoughby, has been one of our directors since 1994 and is a long-time resident of our primary market
area. We beheve it is the Chief Executlve Officer’s responsibility. to manage the company and the )
charrman s responsxbrhty to guide the board as it provides leadership to our executive management. As '
directors continue to be faced with more oversight responsibility than ever before, we believe it is
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beneficial to have separate individuals in the role of chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
Traditionally, the company has maintained the separateness of the roles of the chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer. In making its decision to have an independent chairman, the.board of directors
considered the time and attention that Mr. Crapps is required to devote to managing the day-to-day .
operations of the company. By having another director serve as chairman of the board of directors,

Mr. Crapps will be able to focus his entire energy on runnlng the company. This will also ensure there
is no duplication of effort between the Chief Executive Officer and the chairman. We believe this board
leadership structure is appropriate in maximizing the effectiveness of board oversight and in providing
perspective to our business that is 1ndependent from executive management

Our audit/compliance committee is prlmarlly respon51ble for overseemg the company’s risk
management processes on behalf of the full board of directors. The audlt/comphance committee
focuses on financial reporting risk and oversight of the internal audit process. It receives reports from -
management at least quarterly regarding the company’s assessment of risks and the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal control systems, as well as reviewing credit and market risk (including liquidity
and interest rate risk) and operational risk (including compliance and legal risk). Strategic and-
reputation risk are also regularly considered by this committee. The audit/compliance committee also-
receives reports from management addressing the most serious risks impacting the day-to-day
operations of the company. Our director of internal audit reports to the audit committee and meets
with the audit/compliance committee in executive sessions as rieeded to discuss any potential risk or
control issues involving management. Thie audit/compliance committee reports regularly to the full-
board of directors, which also considers the company’s entire risk profile. The full board of directors”
focuses on certain significant risks facing the company and on certain aspects of the company s general
risk management strategy. Management is responsible for the day-to-day risk management processes.
We believe this division of responsibility is the most effective approach for addressing the:risks facing
our company and that our board leadership structure supports this. approach.

We recognize that different board leadershrp structures may be approprlate for companies in -
different situations. We will continue to reexamine our corporate governance po]1c1es and leadershlp
structures on an ongomg basrs to ensure ‘that they continue to meet the company s needs

Commiittees of the Board

Our board of directors has three standing committees: the aud1t/comphance commlttee, the human
resources/compensatlon committee, and the nomination and corporate governance committee. Each
committee serves in a dual capac1ty as a comnnttee of the company and_of the bank

Audit/Compliance Committee

The following directors are members of the audlt/comphance commlttee W. James Krtchens Jr
(Chairman), Anita B. Easter, O. A. Ethridge, D.M.D., Loretta R. Whitehead, and Mitchell M.
Willoughby. The board of directors has determined that all of these committee members are
independent, as (ontemplated in the listing standards of The NASDAQ Stock Market. Our board has
determined that Mr. Kitchens, who was appointed to the audrt/comphance committeée on March 16,
2004, qualifies as an audit committee fmancral expert under SEC rules ‘The audrt/comphance
committee met four times in 2012. ‘

The audlt/comphance committee has the responsrbrhty of rev1ew1ng the company s f1nanc1al
statements, evaluating internal accounting controls, reviewing reports of regulatory authorities, and
determlnlng that all audits and examinations required by law are performed. The committee
recommends to the board the-appointment of the 1ndependent auditors for the next fiscal year, reviews
and approves the audltor s audit plans, and reviews with the independent auditors the results of the
audit and management S responses The board of d1rectors has adopted ah audlt/comphance committee
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charter; which may be found by clicking on the link for “Investor Information” on our website at
www.firstcommunitysc.com. The charter outlines the committee’s responsibilities for overseeing the
entire audit function and appraising the effectiveness of internal and external audit efforts and may be
amended by the board at any time. The audlt/comphance commrttee reports its findings to the board of
directors. ~ . : . :

Human ResourcesiCompensatlon Commlttee

The following directors are members of the human resources/compensatlon committee: Thomas C.
Brown (Chairman), Chimin J. Chao, Roderick M. Todd, Ir., and Loretta R. Whitehead.

The human resources/compensation committee is compnsed entirely of independent dlrectors as
prescribed by The NASDAQ Stock Market listing standards. The board of diréctors has adopted a
human resources/compensation committee charter, which may be found by clicking on the link for-
“Investors” on our website at www, firstcommunitysc.com. The human resources/compensatlon committee
met five times during 2012. This committee is responsible for determining director and executive officer
compensation. The human resources/compensation committee discusses and evaluates employee -
compensation plans in light of an assessment of any risk posed to the company from such plans. The
human resources/compensation committee annually evaluates and recommends to the board:the
compensation package for the President/Chief Executive Officer.

The human resources/compensation committee also annually reviews the compensation packages
for members of the bank’s executive committee. The President/Chief Executive Officer has the
responsibility to annually evaluate the performance of each of the members of the bank’s executive
committee ‘and determine their compensation-packages. Compensation packages for non-executive
employees is determined by individual supervisors in conjunction with the bank’s Director of Human -
Resources and these compensation decisions are made based on criteria included in the bank’s overall
budget which is approved annually by the company’s board of directors.

The human resources/COmpensat'iOn comnittee is responsible for:*

a) .Annually rev1ewmg the form and amount of director compensatron and recommendmg
', compensation packages to the board

b) Annually reviewing employee compensation strateg1es bénefit plans 1nclud1ng insurance and
retirement plans and equrty programs. :

<) Appomtmg trustees to oversee‘, the company’s 401K plan.

d) Annually evaluating the President/Chief Executive Officer’s performance as it compares to the
company’s goals and objectives, providing feedback to him on his performance, and :
recommending to the board his compensation-package, including base salary level, mcentlve
compensatron plan, equity plans, and any spe01a1 or supplemental benefits. ‘

e) Reviewing and makmg recommendat1ons to the board concerning employment agreements,
severance agreements change in control agreements as well as any supplemental benefits.

f)  Overseeing all incentive plans, and, as such, considering methods of creating incentives for
management to achieve sustained growth in earnings and shareholder value and to retain key
. management, personnel, including annual cash incentive plans, long- -term incentive plans,
equity plans, as well as any special supplemental benefits and _making recommendatrons to the
board concerning ‘the design structure of such plans.

g) Serving as the stock committee 6r stock sub-committee -and, as- such has the authonty to
approve awards under the company’s stock option plan and other equity plans.
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h) Approving the annual report on executive compensation and director’s fees for inclusion in
the company’s proxy statement. - - C

i) Approving the annual comimittee report for inclusion in the company’s proxy statement.

H j) Annually, reporting to the board on succession planning for the Chief Executive Officer. The
board should consider and evaluate potential successors to, the Chief Executive Officer.

k) Reporting its activities and recommendations to the board of directors at any regularto
special meeting of the board. ‘ e 8

1) Annually reviewing its charter and presenting it to the board for approval.

Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee.

"The following directors are members of the nomination and corporate goVernance committee:
George H. Fann (Chairman), Chimin J. Chao, Alexander Snipe, Jr., and Roderick M. Todd, Jr.

The nomination and corporate governance committee.is comprised entirely of independent . .
directors as prescribed by The NASDAQ Stock Market listing standards. This committee met three
times during 2012. : . R ; - : :

On March 16, 2004, our board adopted a nomination and corporate governance committee charter
which may be found on our website by clicking on the link for “Investor Information” at o
www.firstcommunitysc.com.com. The charter provides that the responsibilities of the committee include:
(a) reviewing the qualifications and independence of the members of the board and its various :
committee assignments; (b) evaluating incumbent directors in determining consideration for reelection;
(c) recommending board nominees for election as officers; (d) providing guidance on board and
corporate governance issues; and (e) considering director candidates recommended by shareholders
who submit nominations in accordance with our bylaws. _ g

Shareholders who submit candidates for nomination must deliver nominations in writing to-the
secretary of the company no later than (i) with respect to an election to be held at an annual meeting
of shareholders, 90 days in advance of such meeting; and (ii) with respect to an election to be held at a
special meeting of shareholders for the election of directors, seven days after notice of the special
meeting is given to shareholders. Each notice must set forth: (i) the name and address of the-
shareholder who intends to make the nomination and of the person or persons to be nominated; (i) a
representation that the shareholder is a holder of record of stock of the company entitled to vote at
such meeting and intends to appear in person or by proxy at the meeting to nominate the person or
persons specified in the notice; (iii) a description of all arrangements or understandings between the
shareholder and each nominee and any other person or persons (naming such person or persons)
pursuant to which the nomination or nominations are to be made by the shareholder; (iv) such other
information regarding each nominee proposed by such shareholder as would be required to be included
in a proxy statement filed pursuant to the SEC’s proxy rules, had the nominee been nominated, or
intended to be nominated, by the board of directors; and (v) the consent of each nominee to serve as a
director of the company if so elected. The chairman of the meeting may refuse to acknowledge the
nomination of any person not made in compliance with the foregoing procedure. -

The nomination and governance committee has not adopted a formal policy with regard to the
consideration of diversity in identifying director nominees. In'determihing,Whe\t«her ‘to'reddnimend a
director nominee, the nomination and governance committee members consider.and discuss diversity,
among other factors, with a view toward the needs ‘of the board of directors.as a whole. The
nominating committee members-generally conceptualize diversity expansively to include, without
limitation, concepts such as race, gender, national origin, differences of viewpoint, proféssional
experience, education, skill and other qualities or attributes that contribute to board heterogeneity,
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when identifying and recommending director nominees. The nomination.and governance committee
believes that the inclusion of diversity as one of many factors considered in selecting director nominees
is consistent with-the committee’s goal of creating a board of directors that best serves the needs of the
company and the interests of its-shareholders. ~

In evaluating such director recommendations, the committee uses a variety of criteria to evaluate
the qualifications and skills necessary for members of .our board of directors. Under: these criteria,
members of the board of directors should have the highest professional and personal ethics and values,
consistent with our longstandlng values and standards. They should have broad experience at the
policy-making level in business, government, education, technology or public interest. They should be
committed to enhancing shareholder value and should have sufficient time to carry out their duties and
to provide insight and practical wisdom based on’ experience. Their service on other boards of public
companies should be limited to a number that permits them, given their individual circumstances, to
perform respon51bly aIl dlrector duties. Each director must represent the interests of our shareholders

The comrmttee uses a varlety of methods for 1dent1fy1ng and evaluatrng nommees for director,
They regularly assess the appropriate size of the board of directors, and whether any vacancies are
expected due to retirement or otherwise. If vacancies are anticipated, or otherwise -arise, the committee:
considers various potential candidates for director. Candidates may come to their attention through
current members of the board, shareholders, or other persons. These candidates are evaluated at
regular or special meetings of the board, and may be considered at any point during the year. The
committee considers properly submitted shareholder recommendations for candidates. In evaluating
such recommendations, the committee uses the ‘qualifications and standards discussed above, and it
seeks to achieve a balance of knowledge, experience and capability on. the board of dlrectors

Report of the Audit/Compliance Committee

) Management is responsrble for the company’s internal controls and the financial reportmg process
The independent auditors are responsrble for performing an independent audit of the company’s
cconsolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and issuing a report thereon. The audit/compliance commrttee s respons1b111ty
is to monitor and oversee these processes. : :

, In this context, the committee has met and held discussions with management and Elliott

Davis, LLC, the company’s independent auditors in 2012. In discharging.its oversight responsibility as
to the audit process, the audit/compliance committee has received the written disclosures and the letter
from the independent auditors required by applicable requirements of the Public Comipany Accounting
Oversight Board regardmg the independent auditor’s communications with the audit/compliance
committee concerning independence and has discussed with the independent auditors their
independence from the company and its management. The committee also discussed with management,
the internal auditors and the 1ndependent auditors the quality and adequacy of the company’s mternal
controls and the internal audit function’s organization, responsibilities, budget and staffing. The
committee reviewed both w1th the independent and internal audrtors their audit plans, audlt scope and
identification of audit Tisks:"

The committee reviewed and discussed with the independent auditors all communications required
by generally accepted auditing standards, including those described in Statement on Auditing Standards
No. 61, as amended, “Communication with Audit and Finance Committees,” and, with and without
management.present, -discussed and reviewed the results.of the independent auditors’ examination of -
the financial statements. The committee also discussed the results of the internal audit examinations.

The committee reviewed and discussed the audited consolidated financial statements of the
company as ‘of and for the year ended December 31, 2012, with’ management and the independent -
auditors.
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Based on the above-mentioned review and discussions with management and the independent
auditors, the committee recommended to the board that the company’s audited consolidated financial
statements be included i’ its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012, for
filing with the SEC. On March 19, 2013, the committee appointed Elliott Davis, LLC as the company’s
independent auditors for 2013.

The report of the audit committee is included herein at the direction of its members Mr. Kitchens,
Ms. Easter, Dr. Ethridge, Ms. Whitehead, and Mr. Willoughby. : o
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION AND OTHER INFORMATION
' Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers _
Executive Compensation

The following table shows the compensation we paid for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
2011 to our chief executive officer and president, our chief financial officer, and the most highly
compensated other executive officer who earned over $100,000 for the year ended 2012 (collectively,
the “named executive officers”). : R : .

Summary Compensation Table

Non-Equity Non-qualified |.
Incentive Deferred
I ) Stock Option | .~ Plan Compensation - All-Other .

Name & Salary Bonus Award Award | Compensation(2) | Earnings(3) | Compensation(4),(5)&(6) | Total

Principal Position Year [£) ®) ®a - ® ® i () 8 : (£))

Michael C. Crapps, 2012 | $312,360 |  $25,000(7) | $87,356 $— $46,655 $64,501 $13,582 $549,454
President and Chief |2011 |$298,750| § — 5 — $— 5 — .| . $60,603 . $13,739 $373,902
Executive Officer e : ) ‘ : )

David K. Proctor, 2012 | $174,675| §  — $29,309° $— $62,580 : $36,318 . $ 9,045. $311,927
Senior Vice 2011 [$168,750| $ — $ — $— $  — $34,123 $ 8,767 $211,640
President, Senior ‘ . i - '
Credit Officer, and
Senior Risk Officer ) ) ) .

Joseph G, Sawyer, 2012 | $205500} $ — $34,478 $— $73,666 $62,289 $ 9,484 . $385,417
Senior Vice President | 2011 | $198,333| § — $ - $— $ 1 $58524 - $ 9,397 $266,254
and Chief Financial
Officer

(1)  This represents the value of restricted shares issued under the terms of the equity incentive plan. The shares cliff vest at the end of three years.
The grant date fair value of the restricted stock grants shown above equals $8.28 in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. See discussion of
assumptions used in the valuation of the stock awards in Note 17, “Stock Options and Restricted Stock” in the “notes to the consolidated
Financial Statements” included within the Annual Report on Form 10K for the year ended December 31, 2012.

(2) The amount represents the total cash payout under the terms of the equity incentive plan. Of this amount 20% is deferred and cliff vest after
three years. Ry ) ©a :

(3)  Amounts reflect the change in the present value of benefits attributable to named executive officers for the applicable compensation, as
calculated under non-qualified retirement benefit plans.

(4  For Mr. Crapps, includes $10,000 and $9,800 company matching contribution to 401(k) plan for 2012 and 2011, respectively, and $1,045 for
- country club dues for 2012 and 2011 and $2,537 and $2,894 for premiums paid on term life insurance policy for 2012 and 2011, respectively.

(5)  For Mr. Proctor, includes $6,987 and $6,750 company ’matching contribution to 401(k) plan for 2012 and 2011, respectiveiy, as well as $1,045 for’
country club dues for 2012 and 2011 and $1,013 and $972 for premiums paid on term life insurance policy for 2012 and 2011, respectively.

(6)  For Mr. Sawyer, includes $8,220 and $7,933 company matching contribution to 401(k) plan for 2012 and 2011, respectively, as well as $249 for
health club dues for 2011and $1,264 and $1,215 for premiums paid. on term life insurance-policy for 2012 and 2011, respectively.

(7)  Consists of a $25,000 discretionary cash bonus paid to Mr. Crapps on February 19, 2013, based on performance from August-30, 2012 through
December 31, 2012.

Due to strong performance during 2012, the company paid higher levels of incentive compensation
than has been paid in recent years. This included payments to executives and other employees with
incentive compensation plans and some discretionary incentive payments to other key employees. In
addition, the Board of Directors awarded a discretionary cash incentive to Mr. Crapps for post TARP
activities during the last four months of 2012.
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Named Executive Officer Employment Agreements:

Michael C. Crapps.© On June 1, 2008, we entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Crapps
to serve as the President and Chief Executive Officer of the company and bank. Unless terminated
earlier according to provisions | in the employment agreement, the agreement prov1des a three—year term
of employment and at the end of each day during the term of employment the term of the" agreement is
automatically extended for an additional day so that the remammg term continues to be three years,
except that either party can give the other party wntten notice of and fix the term to a fmlte term of
three years from the date of the wntten notlce

The initial base salary for Mr. Crapps was $249 867, Wthh amount is sub]ect to annual review by the
board of directors and may be increased. Under his agreement Mr. Crapps is eligible to receive bonuses
if he meets the goals set forth annually for hun by the human resources/compensatlon committee of the
board of directors. Furthermore, Mr. Crapps is eligible for the company’s long-term equity incentive
program and for the grant of stock options, restricted stock and other sumlar awards

Mr. Crapps is provided with a country club ‘membership as well as a life i insurance pohcy for the
benefit of his spouse and heirs. Mr. Crapps is also entitled to partlclpatlon in retirement, health welfare
and other benefit plans and programs of the company apphcable to ernployees generally or to senior
executives.

The employment agreement provides that, if the company terminates Mr. Crapps employment
without cause, the company shall be obligated to pay. Mr.. Crapps compensation in an amount equal to
100% of his then current monthly base salary each month, subject to a six month delay, for 24 months
from the date of termination, plus any bonus earned or accrued through the date of termination. After a
change in control, the company will pay Mr. Crapps an amount equal to three times the then current
annual base salary. In addition, the company will pay Mr. Crapps any bonus earned or accrued through
the date of change in control. The company will remove any restrictions on outstanding incentive awards
so-that all such.awards vest immediately. The company must.continue to pay at its expense medical,
dental, disability and life insurance benefits for a period of two years.

In the event that the company’s independent accountants acting as its auditors on the date of a
change in control determine that the payments provided for in the employment agreement constitute
“excess parachute payments” under Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code; then the compensation
payable under the employment agreement will be reduced to an amount the value of which is $1.00 less
than the maximum amount that could be paid to Mr. Crapps ‘without his compensation bemg treated as

“excess parachute payments” under Sect1on 280G.

The employment agreement contains prov151ons relatmg to non-solicitation of customers and
personnel and non-competition during the term of employment and the two years thereafter, as well as a
provision relating to the protection of confidential information. .

David K. Proctor and Joseph G. Sawyer. On June 1, 2008, the company entered into' employment
agreements with David K. Proctor, as senior vice president and senior credit officer, and Joseph G.
Sawyer, as senior vice president and chief financial officer. Both employment agreeménts provide for an
initial term of three years, to be extended automatically each day for an additional day so that the
remaining term of the agreement will continue to be three years. The term may be fixed at three years
without extension by notice of either party to the other. The term of each agreement is currently three
years. The agreement with Mr. Proctor provides for a starting annual salary of $127,500 and the
agreement with Mr. Sawyer. provides for an annual salary of $140, OOO per year, and the amounts are
reviewed annually and may-be increased from time to time. Mr. Proctor and Mr. Sawyer are also eligible-
to receive annual payments-based upon achievement criteria established by the board of directors.
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Both agreements provide that, if the company terminates the executive’s employment without
cause, the company shall be obligated to pay the executive compensation in an amount equal to 100%
of his then current monthly base salary each month, subject to a six month delay, for twelve months
from the date of termination, plus any bonus earned or accrued through the date of termination. After
a change in control, the company will pay the executive an amount equal to two times the then current
annual base salary. In addition, the company will pay the executive any bonus earned or accrued
through the date of change in control. The company will remove any restrictions on outstanding
incentive awards so that all such awards vest immediately. The company must continue to pay at its
expense medical, dental, disability and life insurance benefits for a period of two years.

~ Each employment agreement contains prov1s10ns relatmg to non-solicitation of customers and
personnel and non-competition during the term of employment and the two years thereafter, as well as
a provision relating to the protection of confldentlal information.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

The following table shows the number of shares covered by both exercisable and non- -exercisable
options owned by the individuals named in the Summary Compensation Table as of December 31, 2012
as well as the related exercise prices and explratlon dates. Options are granted pursuant to the
company’s equlty incentive plan .

Outstandmg Equity Awards at December 31, 2012

Option Awards ' Stock Awards

Equity
Incentive
. Equity Plan
Equity ) ' ‘ ) Incentive Awards:
Incentive : Plan Market or
Plan Awards: Payout
Awards: Number of | Value of
Number of : Number of |- Market Unearned |: Unearned
Securities Number of | Securities ) Number of | Value of Shares, Shares,
Underlying Securities Underlying Shares or | Shares or | Units or Units or
Unexercised | - Underlying | Unexercised Units of Units of Other Other

Options (#) | Unexercised | Unearned Option Option | Stock That | Stock That | Rights That | Rights That
Exercisable | Options. (#) | Options (#) | Exercise | Expiration | Have Not | Have Not | Have Not | Have Not |

Name [¢)) Unexercisable . (2). ‘ Price ($) Date Vested (#) | Vested ($) | Vested (#) | Vested.($)
Michael C. Crapps 5,000 — 10,563 $20.20 |1/19/2015 — — 10,563 | $88,095
David K. Proctor 5,000 — 3,544 $20._20 1/19/2015 = — 3,544 $29,557
Joseph G. Sawyer 5,000 — . 4,169 $20.20 | 1/19/2015 | - — —_ 4,169 $34,769

(1) All outstanding options are fully vested as of January 19; 2010.
(2) Equity Incentive Plan awards cliff vest on May 15, 2015. -

Option Exercises and Stock Vested

BT

There were no stock options exerc1sed by any named executlve offlcers during the year ended
December 31, 2012.

Certain Retirement and Salary Continuation Benefits

The company has established the First Community Bank, Profit Sharing Plan a qualified 401(k)
defined contribution plan, pursuant to which the company makes matching and discretionary
contributions on behalf of the each of the executive officers. The company also maintains and pays
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premiums- on behalf of ‘each executive officer under a life insurance plan: and prov1des partlal payment
of premiums for medical benefits if the executive officer so elects. :

We have entered into salary continuation agreements with Michael Crapps, David Proctor, and
Joseph Sawyer. The salary continuation agreements provide for : an annual supplemental retirement
benefit to be paid to each of the applicable executives, commencing at the specified normal retirement
age and payable in monthly installments for a prescribed number of years. Each applicable executive
will also receive this benefit if his employment is terminated following a change in control (as defined
in the executive’s employment agreement). :

If the executive dies after separation of service but before his annual supplemental benefit
commences, the executive’s benefit will be paid to his beneficiaries, beginning with the month following
the bank’s receipt of a copy of the executive’s death certificate. If the executive dies after his benefit
has commenced, the remaining benefits will be paid to the executive’s beneficiaries at the same time
and in the same amounts that would have been distributed to the executive had he survived. If the
executive dies during active service, 100% of his accrual balance (as deflned in the salary contmuatlon '
agreement) will be paid in a lump sum to his beneflclanes

If the executive experiences a disability that results in separation of service prior to the normal -
retirement age, the executive will be entitled to 100% of his accrual balance determined as of the end _
of the plan year preceding termination. : -

If the executive is terminated without cause (as defined in the executive’s employment agreement),
the executive is entltled to 100% of his accrual balance determined as of the end of the plan year ‘
preceding such termination. This beneﬁt is determined by vesting the executive in 10% of the accrual
balance at the end of the first plan year, and an additional 10% of such amount at the end of each
succeeding year thereafter until the executive becomes 100% vested in the accrual balance.

To offset the annual expense accruals for the benefits payable to the executives under the salary
continuation agreements, the bank acquired bank-owned life insurance (“BOLI”). It is anticipated that
the BOLI will provide full cost recovery of the benefits paid to the executives under the salary
continuation agreements upon their deaths

The foregoing summary of the matenal features of the salary continuation agreements for
Messrs. Crapps, Proctor and Sawyer is qualified in its entirety by reference to the provisions of the
agreements, the form of which is attached as Exhibit 10.1 to a Form 8- K filed by the company with the
SEC on August 3, 2006.

~ See also the discussion under “Named Executive Officer Employment Agreements.”

Director Compensation

During the year ended December 31, 2012, outside directors received a retainer in the amount of
$7,500 and fees of $1,000 for attendance at each board meeting and $400 for attendance at each -
committee meeting. Committee chairpersons received $8,500 as an annual retainer. The chairman of
the board received a $12,500 retainer and $1,350 for each board meeting: Mr. Crapps, as an employee
of the company, does not receive any board fees. He is not listed in the table below because his
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compensation as a named executive officer is described above in this proxy statement. The followmg is
a summary of the compensation paid to directors for 2012.

)

©)

Q)

Fees o Non-Equity = Nongqualified -
Earned or Incentive Deferred
Paid in Stock Option Plan Compensation  All Other
- Cash: Awards Awards Compensatlon Earnings ~Compensation Total'
Name mE Q2O *() : ® &3] % (6]
Richard K. Bogan.......... $22,700 $4,995 — - — —  $ 27,695
Thomas C. Brown.......... 24,100 4995 — - —_ = 29,095
Chimin J. Chao ........... 25,300 4,995 — —_ — ' = 30,295
. Anita B. Easter. . .. .. D - 20,700 4,995 — — —_ = 25,695
O.A. Ethridge . . .. .. e 23,100 4,995 — — — = 28,095
George H. Fann, Jr. ... ..... 26,500 4,995 — — — T = 31,495
W, James Kitchens, Jr, ...... 24,100 4995 — — — o — 29,095
J. Thomas Johnson(3) . ...... 24,300 4,995 — —_— — 142,500 - 171,795
James C. Leventis(4)........ 13,500 4,995 — — — 30,100 48,595
Alexander Snipe, Jr. ........ 21,300 4,995 — — L —_ = 26,295
Roderick M. Todd, Jr. ...... 22,300 4,995 — — - — 27,295
Loretta R. Whitehead . . ... .. 22,700 4995 —  — — ' — 27,695
Mitchell M. Willoughby . . . ... 28,700 4,995 — — — — 33,695
(1) The company has 1mplemented a director deferred compensatlon plan whereby the director can

elect to defer the annual retainer and earned monthly fees. For the amounts deferred under the -
plan the director receives units that can be exchanged for stock when the dlrector retires. The.
amounts reflected in this column include the deferred amounts. ’

On May 15, 2012, each non-officer director was granted 604 shares of restncted stock as part of
the overall board compensatlon plan. The shares were valued at $8.27 per share which was the
closing price of the company’s common stock on May 14, 2012 as reported by The NASDAQ Stock
Market. The shares were fully vested on January 1, 2013. The value of restricted stock grants
shown above equals the grant date fair value in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. ‘

Mr. Johnson was pald $12, 500 per month for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 ‘under
the terms of his employment, consulting and noncompete agreement entered into upon
consummation of the DutchFork merger on October 1, 2004 and $30,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2012 under the terms of his supplemental executive retirement agreement which
agreement is further described below

James C. Leventis retired as an executive officer of the bank and terminated his employment
agreement in February of 2010. Mr. Leventis did not receive any severance payment under his
employment agreement. He was paid $30,100 for the year ended December 31, 2012 under the
terms of his supplemental executive retirement agreement, which agreement is further described
below. Mr. Leventis’ term expired at the May 16, 2012 annual meeting. He did not seek reelectlon
as he had reached the mandatory retirement age. based on the company’s bylaws
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The following table summarizes the fee amounts deferred for each director electing all or partial
deferral.

2012 Accumulated

Fees ‘Accumulated  Share Units
. . ) - Deferred Share Units Since
Name - : ’ $) (1) #1) Inception
Richard K. Bogan ................... ... $ 1872 227 11,841
Chimin J. Chao . . . .o oo oo e e 27,738 3,264 . 16,217
O.A.Ethridge ............oouvuninnn.. 156 19 986
- George H. Fann . . ... e e e e 20 2 128
J. Thomas Johnson ...................... 1,130 130 7,148
W. James Kitchens, Jr. . ........ S 78 9 .493
Alexander Snipe, Jr. ©.................... 23,491 2,768 14,498
Loretta R. Whitehead . ............ e 133 . 16 840

Mitchell M. Willoughby . .................. 13,878 1,619 8,714

(1) Amounts include dividend allocation on accumulated units.

In connection with their prior employment by the company, the company entered into
supplemental executive retirement agreements with each of James C. Leventis and J. Thomas Johnson.
If either such director dies after his benefit has commenced, the remaining benefits will be paid to the
executive’s beneficiaries at the same time and in the same amounts that would have been distributed to
the executive had he survived. Pursuant to their respective supplement executive retirement
agreements, Mr. Johnson is entitled to receive $30,000 annually for seventeen years, beginning in
October 2009, and Mr. Leventis is entitled to receive $30,100 annually for ten years, beginning in
March of 2010. Mr. Johnson was paid $30,000 in 2012 under the plan, and Mr. Leventis was paid
$30,100 in 2012 under the plan.
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. Security. Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management

The following table sets forth information known to the Company with respect to beneficial
ownership of the Company’s-common stock as of March 31, 2013 for (i) each director and nominee,
(ii) each holdet of 5.0% or greater of the'‘Company’s common stock, (iii) the Company’s named
executive officers, and (iv) all executive officers and directors as a group. Unless otherwise indicated,
the mailing ‘address for each beneficial owner is care of First Community Corporation, 5455 ‘Sunset
Boulevard, Lexington, South ‘Carolina, 29072. : A h

Number of Right to % of Beneficial

Name : - ‘ Shares Owned(1) . Acquire(2) - Ownership(3)
Richard K. BOgam. . . .. i viiiiiiiieee e e 4973 -~ v 09%
Thomas C. Browr. . . .. [P B S 22998 - 7,740 - . .58%
ChiminJ. Chao ........... . ..iiiiieonnnn e 36,112 -« - - .68%
Michael C. Crapps ... ... e e e e e e 96,151 . 6,290 7 1.93%
Anita B. Baster ... ..ottt e s 23,528 . 44%
OA.Ethridge .......... ..oty e e 023,184 - - 4730 S53%
George H.Fann, Jr. . ...... ... ..o, 68,115 24,080 1.73%
W. James Kitchens, Jr. ...... U i ieeea.... 6634 34400 17%
J. Thomas JORNSON .« . . . vt e in e eee e e . ..... 30335 0 4300 | 65%
David K. ProCtOr . ... voeeeiinnineenn. el 28279 5430 1 64%
Joseph G. Sawyer . ... ..... [P Lo L. 21411 6,720 4%
Alexander Snipe, JT. .. ... oottt e 4515 C.09%
Roderick M. Todd, Jr. ...... R e S 7983 " 15%
Loretta R. Whitehead . . .. .............. e 17,623 "33%
Mitchell M. Willoughby. . . ......... ... ..ot e 24,436, 4,300 S54%
Sandler O’Neill Asset Management, LLC, et al(4) ........ 450,600 8.52%
Manulife Asset Management (US) LLC, et al(5) ......... 365,000 : 6.90%
All executive officers and directors as a group (15 persons). . 1,237,877 97,990 24.79%

(1) Beneficial ownership is determined under the rules of the SEC and generally includes voting or
investment power with respect to securities. Except as indicated in the footnotes to this table and
pursuant to applicable community property laws, to the company’s knowledge the persons named
in the table above have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of common
stock beneficially owned.

(2) Includes shares that may be acquired within the next 60 days as of March 31, 2013 by exercising
vested stock options but does not include any unvested stock options. On December 16, 2011, the
company sold 2,500 units, with each unit consisting of an 8.75% subordinated note due in 2019,
$1,000 principal amount, and a warrant to purchase 43 shares of common stock of the company at
an exercise price equal to $5.90 per share, to certain accredited investors, including directors and
executive officers of the company, for an aggregate purchase price of $2,500,000. The subordinated
debt was subsequently redeemed by the company on November 15, 2012. The warrants remain
outstanding and are exercisable at any time and expire December 16, 2019. Warrants issued to
directors and executive officers have been included in the table.

(3) For each individual, this percentage is determined by assuming the named person exercises all
options which he or she has the right to acquire within 60 days, but that no other persons exercise
any options or warrants. For the directors and executive officers as a group, this percentage is
determined by assuming that each director and executive officer exercises all options which he or
she has the right to acquire within 60 days, but that no other persons exercise any options. The
calculations are based on 5,290,452 shares of common stock outstanding on March 31, 2013.
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(4) Based on information set forth in a Schedule 13G/A filed with the. SEC on February 14, 2013 by
- Sandler O’Neill Asset Management LLC and certain related entities. Sandler O’Neill Asset
' Management beneflclally owned 450,600 shares of Common Stock as of December 31, 2012, with
shared voting power over 450,600 shares and shared dlsposrtrve power over 450,600 shares. The
address of Sandler O’Neill Asset Management LLC Management LLC is 150 East 52nd Street,
30th Floor, New York, New York 10022.

(5) Based on information set forth in a Schedule 13G-filed with the SEC on February 13, 2013 by
Manulife Asset Management (US) LLC and certain related entities. Manulife Asset Management
(US) LLC beneficially owned 365,000 shares of Common Stock as of December 31, 2012, with sole
voting power over 365,000 shares and sole dispositive power over 365,000 shares. The address of
Manulife Asset Management (US) LLC is 101 Huntmgton Avenue, Boston, Massachusetts 02199.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The bank has had, and expects to have in the future, loans and other banking transactions in the
ordinary course of business with directors (including our independent directors) and executive officers
of the Company and its subsidiaries, including members of their families or corporations, partnerships
or.other organizations in which such officers or directors have a controlling interest. These loans are
made on substantially the same terms (including interest rates and collateral).as those:available at the
time for comparable transactions with persons not related to the bank and did not involve more than
the normal risk of collectability or present other unfavorable features.

In addltlon our: bank subsidiary is subject to the provisions of Section 23A of the Federal Reserve
Act which places limits on the amount of loans or extensions of credit to, or investments in, or certain
other transactions with, affiliates and on the amount of advances to third parties collateralized by the
securities or obhgatrons of affiliates. The bank is also subject to the provisions of Section 23B ‘of the
Federal Reserve Act which, among other things, prohibits an institution from engaging in certain
transactions with certain affiliates unless the transactions are on terms substantrally the same, or at
least as favorable to such institution or its subsrdlarres as those prevalhng at the-time for comparable
transactions with nonaffiliated companies. o ‘ : : :

The aggregate dollar amount of loans outstanding to d1rectors and executrve offlcers of the bank
was approxrmately $10. 9 m11110n at March 31 2013. »

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership 'ﬁepofting Compliahce h

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ‘requires that the company’s executive
officers, directors and persons who own more than 10% of any registered class of the company’s equity
secuntles file reports of ownership and changes in ownershrp with the SEC. Executlve officers, dlrectors
and greater than 10% shareholders are requrred by regulation to furnlsh the company Wlth copies of all
Sectlon 16(a) reports they file.

‘Based solely on review of Forms 3 4 afid 5 and any representatrons made to the company, the -
company believes that all such reports for these persons were filed in a timely fashion during 2012. .
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Independent Registered Public Accountants

We have selected Elliott Davis, LLC, _td serve as our ind’epevndeht registered public accounting firm
for the year ending December 31, 2012. A'represqntative of Elliott Davis, LLC, will be present at the
annual meeting and will have the opportunity to make a statement if desired, and is expected to be
available to respond to appropriate questions. o

:Audit Fees'
Year Ended}‘ Year Ended
‘ December 31, 2012 Dgcember 31, 2011
Audit Fees(1) «.onvnvneneninennn. ieiee.. $96875 $ 95,400
Audit-Related Fees(2) . ... ...oovnoeennnn... 89,955 33,900
TAX FEES © o oot eveeee e et aane s 13,170 10,095
Other(3) « v v v et eeee et 6,750 6,500
Tl « v eveee e $206,750 -+ $145,895

(1) Audit Fees consisted primarily of the audit of the company’s annual consolidated financial
statements and for reviews of the condensed consolidated financial statements included in
the company’s quarterly reports on form 10-Q.

(2) Audit Related Fees for 2012 and 2011 consisted primarily of procedures related to offering
documents, the audit of the Company’s 401 (k) plan audit, HUD compliance audit, and
- miscellaneous accounting and research discussions.

(3) Other fees for 2012 and 2011, consisted of fees related to Bank Secrecy Act compliance.

Oversight of Accountants; Approval of Accounting Fees

Under the provisions of its charter, the audit/compliance committee is responsible for the
retention, compensation, and oversight of the work of the independent auditors. The committee reviews
any proposed services to insure that securities laws do not prohibit them and approves the scope of all
services prior to being performed. All of the accounting services and fees reflected in the table above
have been reviewed and approved by the audit/compliance committee, and individuals who were not
employees of the independent auditor performed none of the services.

Sharehelder Proposals for the 2014 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

~ If shareholders wish a proposal to be included in the company’s proxy statement and form of proxy
relating to the 2014 annual meeting of shareholders, they must deliver a written copy of their proposal
to the principal executive offices of the company no later than December 9, 2013. To ensure prompt
receipt by the company, the proposal should be sent certified mail, return receipt requested. Proposals
must comply with the company’s-bylaws relating to shareholder proposals in order to be included in the
company’s proxy materials. . Lo : ' '

Any shareholder proposal to be made at an annual meeting, but which is not requested to be
included in our proxy materials, must comply with our bylaws. Proposals must be delivered to our
principal executive offices not later than 90 days in advance of the annual meeting.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report, including information included or incorporated by reference in this document, contains
statements which constitute “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Forward-looking .
statements may relate to, among other matters, the financial condition, results of operatlons, plans,
objectives, future performance, and business of our Company. Forward-looking statements are based on
many assumptions and estimates and are not guarantees of future performance. Our actual results may
differ materially from those anticipated in any forward-looking statements, as they will depend on many
factors about which we are unsure, including many factors which are beyond our control. The words -
“may,” “would,” “could,” “should,” “will,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “predict,” "‘project,” “potential,”

“continue,” “assume,” “believe,” “intend,” “plan,” “forecast,” “goal,” and “estimate,” as well as similar
expressions, are meant to identify such forward-looking statements. Potential risks and uncertainties
that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those anticipated in our forward-looking
statements include, without limitation, those described under the heading “Risk Factors” in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) and the following: .

« credit losses as a result of, among other potential factors, declining real estate values, increasing
interest rates, increasing unemployment, or changes in payment behavior or other factors;

« the amount of our loan portfolio collateralized by real estate and weaknesses in the real estate
market; ’

* restrictions or conditions imposed by our regulators on our operatlons

« the adequacy of the level of our allowance for loan losses and the amount of loan loss prov151ons
required in future periods;

* examinations by our regulatory authorities, including the possibility that the regulatory
authorities may, among other things, require us to increase our allowance for loan losses or
write-down assets; '

* reduced earnings due to higher other-than-temporary impairment charges resulting from .
additional decline in the value of our securities portfolio, specifically as a result of increasing
default rates, and loss severities on the underlying real estate collateral,

e increases in competitive pressure in the banking and financial services industries;
« changes in the interest rate environment which could reduce anticipated or actual margins;

* changes in political conditions or the legislative or regulatory environment, including
governmental initiatives affecting the financial services industry;

» general economic conditions resulting in, among other things, a deterioration in credit quality;
* changes occurring in business conditions and inflation;

* changes in access to funding or increased regulatory requirements with regard to funding;

* increased cybersecurity risk, including potential business disruptions or financial losses;

* changes in deposit flows;

* changes in technology;

* changes in. monetary and tax policies;

* changes in accounting policies and practices;



* the rate of delinquencies and amounts of loans charged-off;

* the rate of loan growth in recent years and the lack of seasoning of a portion of our loan
portfolio;

* our ability to maintain appropriate levels of capital;

* our ablllty to attract and retain key personnel;

°  our ability to retain‘our ex15t1ng clients, including our depos1t relationships; _

* adverse changes in asset quality and resulting credit risk-related losses and expenses;

. loss of consumer confidence and economic disruptions resulting from terrorist aetiﬁties; and
* other risks and uncertainties descnbed under “Risk Factors” below.

Because of these and other risks and uncertainties, our actual future results may be materlally
different from the results indicated by any forward-looking statements. For additional information with
respect to factors that could cause actual results to differ from the expectations stated in the forward-
looking statements, see “Risk Factors” under Part I, Item 1A of this' Annual Report on Form 10-K. In
addition, our past results of operations do not necessarily indicate our future results. Therefore, we
caution you not to place undue reliance on our forward-looking information and statements. We
undertake no obligation to update or otherwise revise any forward- looklng statements, whether asa
result-of new information, future events, or otherwise. S :

, All forward- -looking statements in this report are based on information available to us as of the
date of this report. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in our ‘forward-looking -
statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee you that these expectatlons will be achieved. We
undertake no obligation to publicly update or otherwise revise any forward-looking. statements whether
as a result of new 1nformat10n future events or 0therw1se



~PART 1
Ttem 1. Business.
General

First Community Corporation (the “Company”), a bank holding company registered under the
Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended, was incorporated under the laws of South Carolina
in 1994 primarily to own and control all of the capital stock of First Community Bank (the “Bank”),
which commenced operations in August 1995 as a national banking’ association. On October 1, 2012,
the Bank converted from a national bank charter to a South Carolina state bank charter and the bank
name was changed from First Community Bank, NA to First Community Bank. As a national bank, the
Bank’s primary federal regulator was the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (the “OCC”).
Subsequent to the conversion to a state bank charter, the Bank’s primary federal regulator is the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”). The Bank is also regulated and examined by the
South Carolina Board of Financial Institutions (the “S.C. Board”). S

On October 1, 2004, we completed our acquisition of DutchFork Bancshares, Inc. and its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Newberry Federal Savings Bank. During the second quarter of 2006, we completed
our acquisition-of DeKalb Bankshares, Inc.; the holding company for The Bank:of Camden. On
September 15, 2008, we completed the acquisition of two financial-planning and investment advisory .
firms, EAH Financial Group and Pooled Resources, LLC. The Bank expanded its residential mortgage.
business unit with the acquisition of the assets of Palmetto South -Mortgage Corporation: (“Palmetto -
South”), effective July 31, 2011. Palmetto South, which operates as a division of the Bank, offers
mortgage loan products for home purchase or refinance in the South Carolina market area. We engage
in a commercial banking business from our main office in Lexington, South Carolina and our 11
full-service offices located in Lexington (two), Forest Acres, Irmo, Cayce-West Columbia, Gilbert, .
Chapin, Northeast Columbia, Prosperity, Newberry and Camden. We offer a wide-range of traditional
banking products and services for professionals and small-to medium-sized businesses, including
consumer and commercial, mortgage, brokerage and investment, and insurance services. We also offer
online banking to our customers.

Our stock trades on The NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “FCCO”.

Location and Service Area

The Bank is engaged in a general commercial and retail banking business, emphasizing the needs
of small-to-medium sized businesses, professional concerns and individuals, primarily in Richland,
Lexington, Kershaw and Newberry Counties of South Carolina and the surrounding areas. These
counties, which we refer to as the “Midlands” region of South Carolina, had an estimated aggregate
population of 756,239 (July 2011 estimates based on survey changes to 2010 U.S. Census data) and
total deposits of approximately $15.3 billion as of June 30, 2012 according to the most recent data -
published by the FDIC. Lexington County, which is home to six of our Bank’s branch offices, had a
population of 267,129 (according July 2011 estimates) and total deposits of $3.4 billion as of June 30,
2012. As of December 31, 2012, approximately $232 million, or 48.8%, of our total deposits are located
in Lexington County. Richland County, in which we have two branches, is the largest county in South
Carolina with a population of 389,116 and total deposits of $10.9 billion as of June 30, 2012. Columbia,
which is located within Richland County, is South Carolina’s capital city and is geographically
positioned in the center of the state between the industrialized Upstate region of South Carolina and
the coastal city of Charleston. Intersected by three major interstate highways (I-20, I-77 and I-26),
Columbia’s strategic location has contributed greatly to its commercial appeal and growth.

We serve attractive banking markets with long-term growth potential and a well educated
employment base that helps to support our diverse and relatively stable local economy. According to



2010 U.S. Census Data, Lexington, Richland, Kershaw and Newberry counties had median household
incomes of $52,205, $47,922, $44,064 and $41,815, respectively, compared to $43,939 for South Carolina
as a whole. The principal components of the economy within our market areas are service industries,
government and education, and wholesale and retail trade. The largest employers in our market area,
each of which employs in excess of 3,000 people, are Fort Jackson Army Post, the University of South
Carolina, Palmetto Health Alliance, Blue Cross Blue Shield and Lexington Medical center. In addition,
Amazon has built a distribution center t}lat is expected to add approximately 2,000 full-time jobs to our
market area when fully operational. The Company believes that this diversified economic base has
reduced, and will likely continue to reduce, economic volatility in our mark‘et: areas. Our markets have
experienced steady economic and population growth over the past 10 years, and we expect that the
area, as well as the service industry needed to support it, will continue to grow. R

Banking Services ‘ , ,

We offer a full range of deposit services that are typically available in most banks and thrift _
institutions, including checking accounts, NOW accounts, savings accounts and other time deposits of
various types, ranging from daily money market accounts to longer-term certificates of deposit. The
transaction accounts and time certificates are tailored to our principal market area at rates competitive
to those offered in the area. In addition, we offer certain retirement account services, such as
Individual Retirement Accounts (“IRAs”). All deposit accounts are insured by the FDIC up to the

maximum amount allowed by law (currently, $250,000, subject to aggregation rules).

We also offer a full range of commercial and personal loans. Commercial loans include both
secured and unsecured loans for working capital (including inventory and receivables), business
~expansion (including acquisition of real estate and improvements), and the purchase of equipment and
machinery. Consumer loans include secured and unsecured loans for financing automobiles, home
improvements, education, and personal investments. We also make real estate construction and
acquisition loans. We originate fixed and variable rate mortgage loans, substantially all of which are
sold into the secondary market. Our lending activities are subject to a variety of lending limits imposed
by federal law. While differing limits apply in certain circumstances based on the type of loan or the
nature of the borrower (including the borrower’s relationship to the bank), in general, we are subject to
a loans-to-one-borrower limit of an amount equal to 15% of the Bank’s unimpaired capital and surplus,
or 25% of the unimpaired capital and surplus if the excess over 15% is approved by the board of
directors of the Bank and is fully secured by readily marketable collateral. As a result, our lending limit
will increase or decrease in response to increases or decreases in the Bank’s level of ‘capital. Based
- upon the capitalization of the Bank at December.31, 2012, the maximum amount we could lend to one
borrower is $9.2 million. In addition, we may not make any loans to-any director, officer, employee, or
10% shareholder of the Company or the Bank unless the loan is approved by our board of directors
and is made on terms not more favorable to such person than would be available to a person not
affiliated with the Bank. .

Other bank services include internet banking, cash management services, safe deposit boxes,
travelers checks, direct deposit of payroll and social security checks, and automatic drafts for various -
accounts. We offer non-deposit investment products and other investment brokerage services through a
registered representative with an affiliation through LPL Financial. We are associated with Jeannie, .
Star, and Plus networks of automated teller machines and MasterCard debit cards that. may be used by
our customers throughout South Carolina and other regions. We also offer VISA and MasterCard - .
credit card services through a correspondent bank as our agent. \ : :

We currenﬂy do not exercise trust poWe{s, but we can begin to do so with the pfi(_)r approval of
our primary banking regulators, the FDIC and the SCBFL ' ‘

#



Competition

" The banking business is highly competitive. We compete as a financial intermediary with other
commercial banks, savings and loan associations, credit unions and money markét mutual funds
operating in Richland, ,Lexing"ton,yKersAhaW and Newberry Counties and elsewhere. As of June 30, 2012,
there were 24 financial institutions operating approximately 196 offices in Lexington, Richland,
Kershaw and Newberry Counties, The competition among the various financial institutions is based
upon a variety of factors, including interest rates offered on deposit accounts, interest rates charged on
loans, credit and service charges, the quality of services rendered, the convenience of banking facilities
and, in the case of loans to large commercial borrowers, relative lending limits. Size gives larger banks
certain advantages in competing for business from large corporations. These advantages include higher
lending limits and the ability to offer services in other areas of South Carolina. As a result, we do not
generally attempt to compete for the banking relationships of large corporations, but concentrate our
efforts on small-to-medium sized businesses and individuals. We believe we have competed effectively
in this market by offering quality-and personal service. In- addition, many of our non-bank competitors
are not subject to the same extensive federal regulations that govern bank holding companies and
federally insured banks. -~ . o :

Market Share .

As of June 30, 2012, the most recent date for which market data is available, total deposits in the
Bank’s primary market area, Lexington, Richland, Kershaw and Newberry Counties, were over -
$15.2 billion. At June 30, 2012, our deposits represented 3.1% of the market. -

Employees

As of December 31, 201‘2.,‘ we had 158 full-time employees. We belieVe that our relations with our
employees are good. = ' '

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

-Both the Company and the Bank are subject. to extensive state and federal banking laws and -
regulations that impose specific requirements or restrictions on and provide.for general regulatory.
oversight of virtually all aspects of our operations. These laws and regulations are generally intended to
protect depositors, not shareholders. The following summary is qualified by reference to the statutory
and regulatory provisions discussed. Changes in applicable laws or regulations may have a material
effect on our business and prospects. Our operations may be affected by legislative changes and the
policies of various regulatory authorities. We cannot predict the effect that fiscal or monetary policies,
economic control, or new federal or state legislation may have on our business and earnings in the -
future. : : , S

Following a 2012 on-site examination of the Bank, the OCC notified the Bank that, effective
June 28, 2012, the Bank was no longer subject to the Formal Agreement that it-entered into with the
OCC in 2010. The OCC also notified the Bank that, effective June 28, 2012; it was. no longer subject to
the Individual Minimum Capital Ratios established for the ‘Bank on February 24, 2010, which had
required the Bank to maintain a Tier 1 leverage capital ratio of at least 8.00%, a Tier 1 risk-based
capital ratio of at least 10.00%;, and a total risk-based capital ratio of at le‘:asv\t‘lw’?zg.()ﬂ%.. The general
regulatory minimums to be well-capitalized are a Tier 1 leverage capital rvé&io""&}‘f at least 5.00%, a
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of at least 6.00%; and a total risk-based capital ratio of at least 10.00%.
These regulatory capital ratios for the Bank were 10.34%, 16.87% and118,12%, respectively, as of
December 31, 2012. In addition, the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond ‘notified the Company that,
effective July 10, 2012, the Company was no longer subject to the Memorandum of Understanding that
it had entered into with the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond in December of 2011 (which had



terminated and replaced a Memorandum of Understanding entered into in June of 2010) (the
E‘MOU”). ) N i =
First Community Corporation

We own 100% of the outstanding capital stock of the Bank, and therefore we are considered to be
a bank holding company under the federal Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (the
“Bank Holding Company Act”). As a result, we are primarily subject to the supervision, examination
and reporting requirements of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve (the “Federal Reserve
Board”) under the Bank Holding Company Act and its regulations promulgated there under.
Moreover, as a bank holding company of a bank located in South Carolina, we also are subject to the
South Carolina Banking and Branching Efficiency Act. "

Permitted Activities. Under the Bank Hélding Company Act, a bank holding yco'mpany is generally
permitted to. engage in, or acquire direct or indirect control of more than 5% of the voting shares of
any company engaged in, the following activities:

* banking or managing or controlling banks;
* furnishing services to or performing services for our subsidiaries; and

* any activity that the Federal Reserve Board determines to}b.e so closely related to banking as to
be a.proper incident to the businéss of banking. -

Activities that the Federal Reserve Board has found to be so closely related to banking as to be a
proper incident to the business of banking include: - ' .

* factoring accounts ieceivable;

* making, acquiring, brokering or servicing loans and usual related activities;

. léasing‘_persdnal or feal property; v ; |

* operating a non-bank depository insﬁtution, such as a savings association;

. ‘trust:évoih‘pany functions; ' .

* financial and investment advisory activities;

* conducting discount sécurities brokerage activities; v

'V°'>undemrit.ing and deaiing in ‘gove\,rn_ment .obligaﬁ;)ns and money markét instruments;
* providing specified management consulting and counseling activities;

. performingb‘s_elécted‘databpirocessing servicés,and supportlservices;

* acting as agent or broker in selling credit life insurance and other types of insurance in
connection with credit transactions; and ’

* performing selected insurance underwriting activities.

As a bank holding company, we also can elect to be treated as a “financial holding company,”
which would allow us to engage in a broader array of actjvities. In sum, a financial holding company
can engage in activities that are financial in nature or incidental or complimentary to financial
activities, including insurance underwriting, sales and brokerage activities, providing financial and
investment advisory services, underwriting services and limited merchant banking activities. We have not
sought financial holding company status, but may elect such status in the future as our business
matures. If we were to elect in writing for financial holding company status, each insured depository



institution we control'would have to be well capitalized, well managed and have at least a satisfactory
rating under the Community Reinvestment Act (“CRA”) (discussed below).

The Federal Reserve Board has the authority to order a bank holding company or its subsidiaries
to terminate any of these activities or to terminate its ownership or control of any subsidiary when it
has reasonable cause to believe that the bank holding company’s continued ownership, activity or ~
control constitutes a serious risk to the financial safety, soundness or stability of it or any-of its bank -
subsidiaries. ; ' R -

Change in Control. In addition, and subject to certain exceptions, the Bank Holding Company Act
and the Change in Bank Control Act, together with regulations promulgated. thereunder, require -
Federal Reserve Board approval prior to any person or company acquiring “control” of a bank holding
company. Control is conclusively presumed to exist if an individual or company acquires 25% or more
of any class of voting securities of a bank holding company. Control will be rebuttably ‘presumed to
exist if a person acquires more than 33% of the total equity of a bank or bank holding company, of -
which it may own, control or have the power to vote not more than 15% of any class of voting
securities. ’

Source of Strength. There are a number of obligations and restrictions imposed by law and
regulatory policy on bank holding companies with regard to their depository institution subsidiaries that
are designed to minimize potential loss ‘to depositors and to the FDIC insurance funds in the event
that the depository institution becomes in danger of defaulting under its obligations to repay deposits.
Under a policy of the Federal Reserve Board, a bank holding company is required to serve-as a source
of financial strength to its subsidiary depository institutions and to commit resources to support such
institutions in circumstances where it might not do so absent such policy. Under the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 (“FDICIA’), to avoid receivership of its insured ‘
depository institution subsidiary, a bank holding company is required to guarantee the compliance of
any insured depository institution subsidiary that may become “undercapitalized” within the terms of
any capital restoration plan filed by such subsidiary with its appropriate federal banking agency up to
the lesser of (i) an amount equal to 5% of the institution’s total assets at the time the institution
became undercapitalized, or (i) the amount which is necessary (or would have been necessary) to bring
the institution into compliance with all applicable capital standards as of the time the institution fails to
comply with such capital restoration plan. o

The Federal Reserve Board also has the authority under the Bank Holding Company Act to
require a bank holding company to terminate any activity or relinquish control of a nonbank subsidiary
(other than a fionbank subsidiary of a bank) upon ‘the Federal Reserve Board’s determination that such
activity or control constitutes a serious risk to the financial soundness or stability.of any subsidiary
depository institution of the bank holding company. Further, federal law grants federal bank regulatory
authorities’ additional discretion to require a bank holding company to divest itself of any bank or
nonbank subsidiary if the agency determines that divestiture may aid the depository institution’s
financial condition. : ‘ ‘

In addition, the “cross guarantee” provisions of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (“FDIA”) -
require insured depository institutions under common control to reimburse the FDIC for any loss
suffered or reasonably anticipated by the FDIC as a' result of the default of a'commonly controlled
insured depository institution or for any assistance provided by the FDIC to a commonly controlled
insured depository institution in danger of default. The FDIC’s claim for damages is superior to claims
of shareholders of the insured depository institution or its holding company, but is subordinate to
claims of depositors, secured creditors and holders of subordinated debt (other than affiliates) of the

commonly controlled insured depository institutions.

The FDIA also provides that amounts received from the liquidation or other resolution of any
insured depository institution by any receiver must be distributed (after payment of secured claims) to



pay the deposit liabilities of the institution prior to payment of any other general or unsecured senior
ligbility, subordinated liability, general creditor or shareholder. This provision would give depositors a

preference over general and subordinated creditors and shareholders in the event a receiver is
appointed to distribute the assets of our Bank.

~ Any capital loans by a bank holding company to any of its subsidiary banks are subordinate in
right of payment to deposits and to certain other indebtedness of such subsidiary bank: In the event of
a bank holding company’s bankruptcy, any commitment by the bank holding company to a federal bank-
regulatory agency to maintain the capital of a subsidiary bank will be assumed by the bankruptcy '
trustee and entitled to a priority of payment. . ‘ ‘

Capital Requirements. The Federal Reserve Board imposes certain capital requirements.on the
bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act, including a minimum leverage ratio and
a minimum ratio of “qualifying” capital to risk-weighted assets. These requirements are essentially the -
same as those that apply to the Bank and are described below under “First Community Bank—Capital
Regulations.” Subject to our capital requirements and certain other restrictions, we are able to borrow
money to make a capital contribution to the Bank, and these loans may be repaid from dividends paid
from the Bank to the Company. Our ability to pay dividends depends on, among other things, the
Bank’s ability to pay dividends to us, which is subject to regulatory restrictions as described below in
“First Community Bank—Dividends.” We are also able to raise capital for contribution to the Bank by
issuing securities without having to receive regulatory approval, subject to compliance with federal and
state securities laws.

Dividends. Since the Company is a bank holding company, its ability to declare and pay dividends
is dependent on certain federal and state regulatory considerations, including the guidelines of the
Federal Reserve Board. The Federal Reserve Board has issued a policy statement regarding the
payment of dividends by bank holding companies. In general, the Federal Reserve Board’s policies
provide that dividends should be paid only out of current earnings and only if the prospective rate of
earnings retention by the bank holding company appears consistent with the organization’s capital
needs, asset quality and overall financial condition. The Federal Reserve Board’s policies also require
that a bank holding company serve as a source of financial strength to its subsidiary banks by standing
ready to use available resources to provide adequate capital funds to those banks during periods of
financial stress or adversity and by maintaining the financial flexibility and capital-raising capacity to
obtain additional resources for assisting its subsidiary banks where necessary. In addition, under the
prompt corrective action regulations, the ability of a bank holding company to pay dividends may be
restricted if a subsidiary bank becomes undercapitalized. These regulatory policies could affect the
ability of the Company to pay dividends or otherwise engage in capital distributions.

In addition, since the Company is legal entity separate and distinct from the Bank and does not
conduct stand-alone operations, its ability to pay dividends depends on the ability of the Bank to pay
dividends to it, which is also subject to regulatory restrictions as described below in “First Community
Bank—Dividends.” ‘

South Carolina State Regulation. As a South Carolina bank holding company under the South
Carolina Banking and Branching Efficiency Act, we are subject to limitations on sale or merger and to
regulation by the S.C. Board."We are not required to obtain the approval of the S.C. Board prior to |
acquiring the capital stock of ‘a national bank, but we must notify them at least 15 days prior to doing
so. We must receive the S.C. Board’s approval prior to engaging in the acquisition of a South Carolina
state chartered bank or another South Carolina bank holding company. : : :

4



First Community Bank

As noted above, on October 1, 2012, the Bank converted from a national bank charter to a South”
Carolina state bank charter and the bank name was changed from First Community Bank, NA to First
Community Bank. Subsequent to the conversion to a state bank charter, the Bank’s primary federal
regulator is the. FDIC. In addition, the Bank is regulated and examined by the S.C. Board. Deposits in
the Bank are insured by the FDIC up to a maximum amount of $250,000, pursuant to the provisions of
the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Proteetion Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”) signed into
law by the U.S. President on July 21, 2010. The FDIC insurance coverage limit applies per depositor,
per insured depository institution for each account ownership category. In addition, the FDIC provided
unlimited deposit insurance coverage for noninterest-bearing transaction accounts (typically business
checking accounts) and certain funds swept into noninterest-bearing savings accounts through
December 31, 2012 through the Transaction Account Guarantee program. The Transaction Account
Guarantee program expired as of January 1, 2013 and these accounts are now insured up to the
maximum $250,000 noted above. K ~ S : '

The S.C. Board and the FDIC regulate or monitor virtually all areas of the Bank’s operations,
including: .

* security devices and procedures;

« adequacy of capitalization and loss reserVes;

* loans;

* investments;

* borrowings;

* deposits;

. ihergers;

* issuances of securities;

¢ payment of dividends;

« interest rates payable on deposits;

« interest rates or fees chargeable on loans;

* establishment of branches;

* corporate reorganizations;

« maintenarce of books and recordé; and ‘
» adequacy of staff training to carry on safe lending and deposit gathering practices.

The FDIC requires that the Bank maintain specified capital ratios of capital to assets and imposes
limitations on the Bank’s aggregate investment in real estate, bank premises, and furniture and fixtures.
Two categories of regulatory capital are used in calculating these ratios—Tier 1 capital and total capital.
Tier 1 capital generally includes common equity, retained earnings, a limited amount of qualifying
preferred stock, and qualifying minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries, reduced by goodwill and
certain other intangible assets, such as core deposit intangibles, and certain other assets. Total capital
generally consists of Tier 1 capital plus Tier 2 capital, which includes the allowance for loan losses,
preferred stock that did not qualify as Tier 1 capital, certain types of subordinated debt and a limited
amount of other items.

10



The Bank is required to calculate three ratios: the ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets,
the ratio of total capital to risk-weighted assets, and the “leverage ratio,” which is the ratio of Tier 1
capital to assets on a non-risk-adjusted basis. For the two ratios of capital to risk-weighted assets,
certain assets, such as cash and U.S. Treasury securities, have a zero risk weighting. Others, such as
commercial and consumer loans, have a 100% risk weighting. Some assets, notably purchase- money .
loans secured by first-liens on residential real property, are risk-weighted at 50%. Assets also include
amounts that represent the potential funding of off-balance sheet obligations such as loan commitments
and letters of credit. These potential assets are assigned to risk categories in the same manner as
funded assets. The total assets in each categoty are multiplied by the appropriate risk weighting to
determine risk-adjusted assets for the capital calculations. T ' ’

The minimum capital ratios for both the Company and the Bank are generally 8% for total capital,
4% for Tier 1 capital and 4% for leverage. To be eligible to be classified as “well capitalized,” the Bank
must generally maintain a total capital ratio of 10% or more, a Tier 1 capital ratio of 6% or more, and
a leverage ratio of 5% or more. Certain implications of the regulatory capital classification system are
discussed in greater detail below. . '

- Prompt Corrective Action. The FDICIA established a “prompt corrective action” program in which
every bank is placed in one of five regulatory categories, depending primarily on its regulatory capital
levels. The FDIC and the other federal banking regulators are permitted to take increasingly severe
action as a bank’s capital position or financial condition declines below the “Adequately Capitalized”
level described below. Regulators are also empowered to place in receivership or require the sale of a
bank to another depository institution when a bank’s leverage ratio reaches two percent. Better ’
capitalized institutions are generally subject to less onerous regulation and supervision than banks with
lesser amounts of capital. The FDIC’s regulations set forth five capital categories, each with specific
regulatory consequences. The categories are: ‘ ’ '

* Well Capitalized—The institution exceeds the required minimum level for each relevant capital
measure. A well capitalized institution is one (i) having a total capital ratio of 10% or greater,
(ii) having a Tier 1 capital ratio of 6% or greater, (iii) having a leyerage capital ratio of 5% or
greater and (iv) that is not subject to any order or written directive to meet and maintain a
specific capital level for any capital measure.

~» Adequately Capitalized—The institution meets the required minimum level for each relevant
capital measure. No capital distribution may be made that would result in the institution
becoming undercapitalized. An adequately capitalized institution is one (i) having a total capital
ratio of 8% or greater, (ii) having a Tier 1 capital ratio of 4% or greater and (iii) having a
leverage capital ratio of 4% or greater or a leverage capital ratio of 3% or greater if the
institution is rated composite 1 under the CAMELS (Capital, Assets, Management,. Earnings,
Liquidity and Sensitivity to market risk) rating system. : .

* Undercapitalized—The ‘institution fails to meet the required minimum level for any relevant
capital measure. An undercapitalized institution is one (i) having a total capital ratio of less than
8% or (ii) having a Tier 1 capital ratio of less than 4% or (iii) having a leverage capital ratio of
less than 4%, or if the institution is rated a composite 1 under the CAMEL rating system, a
leverage capital ratio of less than 3%. :

* Significantly Undercapitalized—The institution is significantly below the required minimum level
for any relevant capital measure. A significantly undercapitalized institution is one (i) having a
total capital ratio of less than 6% or (ii) having a Tier 1 capital ratio of less than 3% or
(iii) having a leverage capital ratio of less than 3%.
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* Critically Undercapitalized—The institution fails to meet a critical capital level set by the -
appropriate federal banking agency. A critically undercapitalized institution is one havmg a ratio
of tangible equity to total assets that is equal to or less than 2%:-

If the FDIC determines, after notice and an opportunity for hearing,” that the bank is in an unsafe
or unsound condition, the regulator is authorized to reclassify the bank to the next lower capital
category (other than critically undercapltahzed) and require the subm1s510n of a plan to correct the
unsafe or unsound condition.

If a bank is not well capltalized, it cannot accept brokered deposits without :prior regulatory
approval. In addition, a bank that is not well capitalized cannot offer an effective yield in excess of 75
basis points over interest paid on deposits of comparable size and maturity in such institution’s normal
market area for deposits accepted from within its normal market area, or national rate paid on .deposits
of comparable size and maturity for deposits accepted outside the bank’s normal market area.
Moreover, the FDIC generally prohibits a depository institution from making any capital distributions
(including payment of a dividend) or paying any management fee to its parent holding company if the
depository institution would thereafter be categorized as undercapitalized. Undercapltahzed institutions
are. subject to growth limitations (an undercapltahzed institution may not acquire another institution,
establish additional branch offices or engage in any new line of business unless determined by the
appropriate federal banking agency to be consistent with an accepted capital restoration plan, or unless
the FDIC determines that the proposed action will further the purpose of prompt corrective actlon)
and are required to submit a capital restoration plan. The agencies may not accept a capital restoration
plan without determining, among other things, that the plan is based on realistic assumptions and is
likely to succeed in restoring the depository institution’s capital. In addition, for a capital restoration
plan to be acceptable, the depository institution’s parent holding company must guarantee that the
institution will comply with the capital restoration plan. The aggregate liability of the parent holding
company is limited to the lesser of an amount equal to 5.0% of the depository institution’s total assets
at the time it became catégorized as undercapitalized or the amount that is necessary (or would have
been necessary) to bring the institution into compliance with all ¢apital standards applicable with
respect to such institution as of the time it fails to comply with the plan. If a depository institution fails
to submit an acceptable plan, it is categorized as significantly undercapitalized.

Significantly undercapitalized categorized depository institutions may be subject to a number of
requirements and restrictions, including orders to sell sufficient voting stock to become categorized as
adequately capitalized, requirements to reduce total assets, and cessation of receipt of deposits from
correspondent banks. The appropriate federal banking agency may take any action authorized for a
significantly undercapitalized institution if an undercapitalized institution fails to submit an acceptable
capital restoration plan or fails in any material respect to 1mp1ement a plan accepted by the agency. A
critically undercapitalized institution is subject to having a receiver or conservator appomted to manage
its affairs and for loss of its charter to conduct banking activities.

An insured depository institution may not pay a management fee to a bank holding company
controlling that institution or any other person having control of the institution if; after making the
payment, the institution, would be undercapitalized. In addition, an institution cannot make a capital
distribution, such as a dividend-or other distribution that is in substance a distribution of capital to the
owners of the institution if following such a distribution the institution would be undercapitalized. Thus,
if payment of such a management fee or the making of such would cause a bank to become
undercapitalized, it could not pay a management fee or dividend to the bank ﬁoldmg company.

In December 2010, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision, an international forum for
cooperation on banking supervisory matters, announced the “Basel III” capital rules, which set new
capital requirements for banking organizations. On June 7, 2012, the Federal Reserve Board, the OCC,
and the FDIC issued a joint notice of proposed rulemaking that would implement sections of the
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Dodd-Frank Act that encompass certain aspects of Basel III with respect to capital and liquidity. On
November 9, 2012, following a public comment period, the US federal banking agencies announced ..
that the originally proposed January 1, 2013 effective date for the proposed rules was being delayed so
that the agencies could consider operations and transitional issues identified in the large volume' of
public comments received. The proposed rules, if adopted, would lead to significantly higher capital
requirements and more restrictive leverage and liquidity ratios than those currently in place. The
ultimate impact of the US implementation of the new capitat and liquidity standards on the Company
and ‘the Bank is currently being reviewed and is dependent on thé terms of the final regulatrons ‘which
may differ from the proposed regulations,” At this point, the Company cannot determine the ultimate
effect that any final regulatlons if enacted, would have on its earnings or financial posrtron In’ addition,
important questions remain as to how the numerous ‘capital and liquidity mandates of the Dodd Frank
Act will be integrated with the requlrements of Basel IIL

Standards for Safety and Soundness. The Federal Depos1t Insurance Act also requires the federal
banking regulatory agen(nes to prescribe, by regulation or guideline, operatronal and managerial
standards for all insured depository institutions relating to: (i) internal controls, information systems
and internal audit systems; (ii) loan documentation; (iii) credit underwntmg, (iv) interest rate risk
exposure; and (V) asset growth. The agencies also must prescrlbe standards for asset quality, earnings, _
and stock valuation, as well as standards for compensation, fees and benefits. The federal banking
agencies have adopted regulations and Interagency Guidelines Prescrrbmg Standards for Safety and
Soundness to implement these required standards. These gurdehnes set forth the safety and soundness
standards that the federal banking agencies use to identify and address problems at insured depository
institutions before capital becomes impaired. Under the regulatlons if the FDIC determines that the
Bank fails to meet any standards prescribed by the guidelines, the agency may require the Bank to
submit to the agency an-acceptable plan to achieve compliance with the standard, as required by the
FDIC. The final regulations establish deadlines for the submission and review of such safety and
soundness compliance plans. ‘ =

Regulatory Exammatwn The FDIC also requires the Bank to prepare annual reports on the
Bank’s financial condition and to conduct an annual audrt of its fmanaal affairs in comphance with 1ts
minimum standards and procedures -

All insured institutions must undergo regular on-site examlnatlons by their appropnate banking
agency. The cost of examinations of insured depository institutions and any affiliates may be assessed
by the appropriate federal banking agency against each ‘institution or affiliate as it deems necessary or
appropriate. Insured institutions are required to submit annual reports to the FDIC, their federal
regulatory agency, and ‘state supervisor when applicable. The FDIC has developed a method for insured
depository institutions to ‘provide supplemental disclosure of the estimated fair market value of assets
and liabilities, to the extent feasible and practicable, in any balance sheet, financial statement, report of
condition or any other report of any insured depository institution. The federal banking regulatory
agencies prescrrbe by regulatron standards for all insured depository institutions and deposrtory
institution holdrng compames relating, among other things, to the followmg

e internal controls;
'+ information systems and audrt systems;
- loan documentation; ’

* credit underWriting;

* interest rate risk exposure; and

* asset quality.
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Transactions with Affiliates and Insiders. The Company is a legal entity separate and distinct from
the Bank and its other subsidiaries. Various legal limitations restrict the Bank from lending or
otherwise supplying funds to the Company or its non-bank subsidiaries. The Company and the Bank
are subject to Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act and Federal Reserve Board
Regulation W.

Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Act places limits on the am‘ount of loans or extensiOns of
credit to, or investments in, or certain other transactions with, affiliates and on the amount of advances
to third parties collateralized by the securities or obligations of affiliates. The aggregate of all covered
transactions is limited in amount, as to any one affiliate, to 10% of the Bank’s capital and surplus and,
as to all affiliates combined, to 20% of the Bank’s capital and surplus. Furthermore, within the
foregoing limitations as to amount, each covered transaction must meet specified collateral
requirements. The Bank is forbidden to purchase low quality assets from an affiliate.

Effective July 21, 2011, the Dodd-Frank Act expanded the definition of affiliate for purposes of
quantitative and qualitative limitations of Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Act to include mutual
funds advised by a depository institution or its affiliates. The Dodd Frank Act will apply Section 23A
and Section 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Act (governing transactions with insiders) to derivative
transactions, repurchase agreements and securities lending and borrowing transaction that create credit
exposure to an affiliate or an insider. Any such transactions with affiliates must be fully secured. The
current exemption from Section 23A for transactions with financial subsidiaries will be eliminated. The
Dodd-Frank Act will additionally proh1b1t an insured depos1tory 1nst1tut10n from purchasing an asset
from or selling an asset to an insider unless the transaction is on market terms and, if representing
more than 10% of capital, is approved in advance by the disinterested directors.

Section 23B of the Federal Reserve Act, among other things, prohibits an institution from engaging
in certain transactions with certain affiliates unless the transactions are on terms substantially the same,
or at least as favorable to such institution or its subsidiaries, as those prevailing at the time for
comparable transactions with nonafﬁllated companies.

Regulation W generally excludes all non-bank and non-savings association SubSldlal‘leS of banks
from treatment as affiliates, except to the extent that the Federal Reserve Board decides to treat these
subsidiaries as affiliates. The regulation also limits the amount of loans that can be purchased by a
bank from an affiliate to not more than 100% of the bank’s capital and surplus.

The Bank is also subject to certain restrlctlons on extensions of credit to executlve officers,
directors, certain principal shareholders, and their related interests. Such extensions of credit (i) must
be made on substantially the same terms, 1nclud1ng interest rates and collateral requirements, as those
prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with third parties and (ii) must not involve more.
than the normal risk of repayment or present other unfavorable features. . .

Dividends. 'The Company’s principal source of cash flow, including cash flow to pay dividénds to
its shareholders, is dividends it receives from the Bank. Statutory and regulatory limitations apply to
the Bank’s payment of dividends to the Company As a South Carolina chartered bank, the Bank is
subject to limitations on the amount of dividends that it is permitted to pay. Unless otherwise
instructed by the S.C. Board, the Bank is generally permitted under South Carolina state banking
regulations to pay cash dividends of up to 100% of net income in any caléndar year without obtaining
the prior approval of the S.C. Board. The FDIC also has the authority under federal law to enjoin a
bank from engaging in what in its opinion constitutes an unsafe or unsound practice in conducting its
business, including the payment of a dividend under certain circumstances.

Branching. Under current South Carolina law, the Bank may open branch offices throughoilt
South Carolina with the prior approval of the S.C. Board. In addition, with prior regulatory approval,
the Bank is able to acquire existing banking operations in South Carolina. Furthermore, federal
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legislation: permits interstate branching, including out-of-state.acquisitions by bank holding companies,
interstate branching by banks, and interstate merging by banks. The Dodd-Frank Act removes previous
state law restrictions on de novo interstate branching in states such as South Carolina. This change
perniits out-of-state banks to open de novo branches in states where the laws of the state where the de
novo branch to be opened would permlt a bank chartered by that state to open a de novo brarnch.

Antt Tymg Resmctwns Under amendments to the Bank Holdrng Company Act and Federal
Reserve Board regulations, a bank is prohibited from engagrng in certain tying or reciprocity
arrangements with its customers. In general, a bank may not extend credit, lease, sell property, or
furnish any services or fix or vary the consideration for these on the-condition that (i) the customer
obtain or provide some additional credit, property, or seryices from or to the bank, the bank holding
company or subsidiaries thereof or (ii) the customer may not obtain some other credit, ‘property, or
services from a competitor, except to the extent reasonable conditions.are imposed to assure the’
soundness of the credit extended. Certain arrangements are permissible: a bank may offer combined-
balance products and may otherwise offer more favorable terms if a customer obtains two or more
traditional bank products; and certain foreign transactions are exempt from; the general rule. A bank
holding company or any bank affiliate also.is sub]ect to anti-tying requrrements in connection with
electronic benefit transfer servrces , ,

Vi

Commumty Reinvestment Act. The CRA requires that the FDIC evaluate the record of the Bank in
meeting the credit needs of its local community, including low and moderate income neighborhoods.
These factors are also considered in evaluating mergers, acqursltrons, and apphcatrons to open a branch'
or facility. Failure to adequately meet these criteria could impose. addrtlonal requlrements and
limitations on our Bank.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley: Act (the “GLBA”) made variols changes to the CRA Among other
changes, CRA agreements with private parties must be disclosed and annual CRA reports must be
made available to a bank’s primary federal regulator. A bank holding' compay will not be permitted to
become a financial holding company and no new activities authorized under the GLBA may be
commenced by a holding company or by a bank financial subsidiary if any of its bank subs1d1ar1es
recerved less than a satrsfactory CRA ratrng in its latest CRA exammatron ‘ : .

Fmam:zal Subszdumes Under the GLBA sub]ect to certaln condltrons 1mposed by therr respectrve,
banking regulators, national and state-chartered banks are permitted to form “financial subsidiaries”
that may conduct financial or incidental activities, thereby permitting bank subsidiaries to engage in
certain activities that previously were impermissible. The GLBA imposes. several safeguards and ,
restrictions on financial subsidiaries, including that the parent bank’s equity investment in the financial
subsidiary be deducted from the bank’s assets and tangible equity for purposes of calculating the bank’s
capital adequacy. In addition, the GLBA imposes new restrictions 6n transaction$ between' a bank and
its financial subsidiaries similar to restrrctrons apphcable to transactrons between banks and non-bank
affiliates. S K

Consumer Protectzon Regulatwns Activities of the Bank are sub]ect to a varrety of statutes and
regulations designed to protect consumers. Interest and other charges collected .or contracted for by the
Bank are subject to.state usury laws and federal laws concerning interest rates. The Bank’s loan
operatrons are also sub]ect to federal laws applicable to credit transactions, such as: .

* the federal Truth -In- Lendrng Act, governrng ‘disclosures of credit terms: to’ consumer borrowers,

* the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act of 1975, requlrrng financial 1nst1tut10ns to provrde _
information to. enable the public and public officials to determine whether.a, financial institution
. Is fulfilling its obligation to help meet the housing needs of the communlty it serves;
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» the Equal Credit Opportunity Act,.prohibiting discrimination on the basis-of race creed or: other‘
. prohibited factors in extending credit; S

* the Fair Credlt Reportmg Act of 1978, gdvérning the use and provision of infbhhation to ﬂcr.edit
~ reporting agencies; ' ‘

* the Fair Debt Collection Act, govemlng the manner in whlch consumer debts may be collected
by collectmn agenc1es and ‘

* the rules and regulations of the various, federal agencres charged w1th the: respons1b111ty of
implementing such federal laws. . : :

The depos1t operatlons of the Bank also are subject to:

* the Right to Financial Privacy Act ‘which imposes a duty to maintain confrdentrahty of consumer
financial records and prescribes procedures for complying with admlmstratxve subpoenas of .
financial records; and .

¢ the Electronic Funds Transfer Act and Regulatlon E issued by the Federal Reserve Board to
implement that Act, which governs automatic deposits to and withdrawals from ‘deposit accounts
and customers’ rights and liabilities arising from the use of automated teller machines and other
electronic banking services. :

Enforcement Powers. The Bank and its “institution-affiliated parties,” including its management,
employee’s agent’s 1ndependent contractors and consultants, such as attorneys and accountants, and
others who participate in the conduct of the financial institution’s affairs, are subject to potential civil
and criminal penalties for violations of law, regulations or written orders of a government agency.
These practices can include the failure of an institution to timely file required reports or the filing of
false or misleading information or the submission of inaccurate reports. Civil penalties may be as high
as $1,000,000 a day for such violations. Criminal penalties for some financial institution crimes have
been increased to twenty years. In addition, regulators are provided with, greater flexibility to
commence enforcement actions against institutions and institution-affiliated parties. Possible -
enforcement actions include the termination of deposit insurance. Furthermore, banking agencies’
powers. to issue cease-and-desist orders have been expanded. Such orders may, among other things,
require affirmative action to correct any harm resulting from a violation or practice, including
restitution, reimbursement, indemnifications or guarantees against loss. A financial institution may also
be ordered ‘to restrict its growth, dispose of certain assets, rescind agreements or contracts, or take
other actions as'determined- by the ordermg agency to be appropriate.

. Anti-Money: Laundering. Financial institutions must maintain anti-money laundering programs. that
include established internal policies, procedures, and controls; a designated compliance officer; an
ongoing employee training program; and testing of the program by an independent audit function. The
Company and the Bank are also prohibited from entering into specified financial transactions and
account relationships and must meet enhanced standards for due diligence and “knowing your
customer” in their dealings with foreign financial institutions and foreign customers. Financial
institutions must take reasonable steps to conduct enhanced scrutiny of account relationships to guard -
against money laundering and to report any: susplclous transactions, and recent laws provide law
enforcement authorities with increased access to financial information maintained by banks. -
Anti-money laundering obligations have been substantially strengthened as a result of the USA Patriot
Act, enacted in 2001 and renewed in 2006. Bank regulators routinely examine institutions for
compliance with these obligations and are required to consider compliancé in connection with the
regulatory review of applications. The regulatory authorities have been active in imposing cease and
desist orders and money penalty sanctions against institutions found to be violating these obligations.
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USA PATRIOT ‘Act/Bank Secrecy Act. Financial institutions must maintain anti-money laundering
programs that include established internal policies, procedures, and controls; a designated compliance
officer; an ongoing employee training program; and testing of the program by an independent audit .-
function. The USA PATRIOT Act, amended, in part, the Bank Secrecy Act and provides for the
facilitation of information sharing among governmental entities and financial institutions for the
purpose of combating terrorism and money laundering by enhancing anti-money laundering and .
financial transparency laws, as well as enhanced: information collection tools and enforcement -
mechanics for the U.S, government, including: (i) requiring standards for verifying customer
identification at account opening; (ii) fules to promote cooperation among financial institutions,
regulators, and law enforcement entities in identifying parties that may be involved in tefrorism or
money laundering; (iii) reports by nonfinancial trades'and businesses filed with the U.S. Treasury
Department’s Financial Crimes Enforcement Network for transactions exceeding $10,000; and (iv) filing
suspicious activities reports if a bank believes a customer may be violating U.S. laws and regulations
and requires enhanced due diligence requirements for financial institutions that administer, maintain,
or manage private bank accounts or correspondent accounts for non-U.S. persons. Bank regulators
routinely examine institutions for compliance with these obligations and are required to consider
compliance in connection with the regulatory review. of applications. i S

Under the USA PATRIOT Act, the Federal Bureau of Investigation (“FBI”) can send to the
banking regulatory agencies lists of the names of persons suspected of involvement in terrorist -
activities. The Bank can be requested, to search.its records for.any relationships or transactions with -
persons on those lists. If the Bank finds any relationships or transactions, it must file a suspicious .
activity report and contact the FBI Lo e comre s L

 The Office of Foreign Assets Control (“OFAC”), which is a division of the U.S. Departmient of the
Treasury (the “Treasury”), is responsible for helping to insure that United States entities do not engage
in transactions with “enemies” of the United States, as defined by various Executive Orders and Acts
of Congress. OFAC has sent, and will send, our'banking regulatory agericies lists of names of persoris
and organizations suspected of aiding, harboring or engaging in terrorist acts. If the Bank finds a hame
on any transaction, account or wire transfer that is on an OFAC list, it must freeze such account; file a’
suspicious activity report and notify the FBL The Bank has appointed an OFAC .compliance officer-to
oversee the inspection of its accounts and the filing of any notifications.. The Bank actively checks
high-risk-OFAC areas such as new accounts, wire transfers and customer files. The Bank performs
these checks utilizing Software, which is updated each time a modification is made to the lists provided
by OFAC and other agencies of Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons. :

Privacy and Credit Reporting. Financial institutions are required to disclose their policies for
collecting and protecting confidential information. Customers generally may prevent financial
institutions from sharing nonpublic personal financial information with nonaffiliated third parties except
under narrow circumstances, such as the processing of transactions requested by the consumer.’ ‘
Additionally, financial institutions generally may not disclose consumer account numbers to any
nonaffiliated third party for use in telemarketing, direct mail marketing or other marketing to .
consumers. It is the Bank’s'policy not to disclose any personal information unless required by law. The
OCC and the federal banking‘agencies have prescribed standards for maintaining the security and
confidentiality of consumer information. The Bank is subject to such standards, as well as standards for-

notifying consumers in the évent of a security breach.

Like other lending institutions, the Bank utilizes credit bureau data in its underwriting activities.
Use of such data is regulated under the Federal Credit Reporting Act on a uniform, nationwide basis,
including credit reporting, prescreening, sharing of information between affiliates, and the use of credit
data. The Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act of 2003 (the “FACT Act”) permits states to enact;
 identity theft laws that are not inconsistent with the conduct required by the provisions of the FACT
Act. . X T :
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Check 21. The Check Clearing for the 21st Century Act gives “substitute checks,” such as a
digital image of a check and copies made from that image, the same legal standing-as the original
paper check. Some of the major provisions include:. . - SIES T

+ allowing check truncatioﬁ» wit‘hbut making_' it mandétofy;

« demanding that every financial institution communicate to accountholders in writing a
description of its substitute check iprocessing program and their rights under the law;

* legalizing substitutions for and replacements of paper Chédks 'w‘ithout_ agréément from
CONSumers; ' o S '

« retaining in place the previously mandated electronic collection and return of checks between
financial institutions only when individual agreements; are in place; oo

* requiring that when acc_ouritholdersf request Veriﬁcation, financial institutions i)foduée the
original check (or a copy that accurately represents the original) and demonstrate that the
account debit was accurate and valid; and i ‘ ' '

* requiring the re-crediting of funds to an individual’s account on the next business day after a
consumer proves that the financial institution has erred...

Effect of Governmental Monetary Policies. - Our earnings are affected by domestic economic :
conditions and the monetary and fiscal policies of ‘the United States government and its agencies. The
Federal Reserve Board’s monetary policies have had, and are likely to continue to have, an important
jmpact on the operating results of commercial banks through its power to implement national monetary
policy in order, among other things, to curb inflation or combat a recession. The monetary policies of
the Federal Reserve Board have major effects upon the levels of bank loans, investments and deposits
through its open market operations in United States government securities and through its regulation
of the discount fate on borrowings of member banks and the reserve requirements against member -
bank deposits. It is not possible to predict the nature or impact of future changes in monetary and
fiscal policies. ' ‘ ’ ' ’

Insurance of Accounts and Regulation by the FDIC. The Bank’s deposits are insured up to
applicable limits by the Deposit Insurance Fund of the FDIC. As insurer, the FDIC imposes deposit
insurance premiums and is authorized to conduct examinations of and to require reporting by FDIC o
insured institutions. It also may prohibit any FDIC insured institution from'éngaging in any activity the
FDIC determines by regulation or order to pose a serious risk to the insurance fund. The FDIC also
has the authority to initiate enforcement actions against savings institutions, after giving the bank’s

.

regulatory authority an opportunity to take such action, and may terminate the deposit insuragée, if it
determines that the institution has engaged in unsafe or unsound practices or.is in an unsafe or
unsound condition. :

EDIC insured institutions are required to pay'a Financing COrporationra‘sse‘ssmeﬁt to-fund the
interest on bonds issued to resolve thriftfailures in the 1980s. The Financing Corporation quarterly
assessment for the fourth quarter of 2012 equaled 1.75 basis points for each $100 of average
consolidated total assets minus average tangible equity. These assessments, Which' may be revised based
upon the level of deposits, will continue until the bonds mature in the years 2017 through 2019.

The FDIC may terminate the deposit insurance of any insured depository institution, including the
Bank, if it determines. after a hearing that the institution has engaged in unsafe or unsound practices, is
in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue operations ot has violated any applicable law, regulation,
rule, order or condition imposed by the FDIC. It also may suspend deposit insurance temporarily:”
during the hearing process for the permanent termination of insurance; if the institution hasno
tangible capital. If insurance of accounts is terminated, the accounts at the institation at the time of the
termination, less subsequent withdrawals, shall continue to be insured for a period of six months to two
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years, as determined by the FDIC. Management is not aware of any practice, condition or violation
that might lead to termination of the Bank’s deposit insurance.

Incentive Compensation. In June 2010, the Federal Reserve Board, the FDIC and the OCC issued
a comprehensive final guidance on incentive compensation policies intended to ensure that the
incentive compensation policies of banking organizations do not undermine the safety and soundness of
such organizations by encouraging excessive risk-taking. The guidance, which covers all employees that
have the ability to materially affect the risk profile of an organization, either individually or as part of a
group, is based upon the key principles that a banking organization’s incentive compensation
arrangements should (i) provide incentives that do not encourage risk-taking beyond the organization’s
ability to effectively identify and manage risks, (ii) be compatible with effective internal controls and
risk management, and (iii) be supported by strong corporate governance, including active and effective
oversight by the organization’s board of directors. ' :

The Federal Reserve will review, as part of the regular, risk-focused examination process, the
incentive compensation arrangements of banking organizations, such as the Company, that are not
“large, complex banking organizations.” These reviews will be tailored to each organization based on
the scope and complexity of the organization’s activities and the' prevalence of incentive compensation

-arrangements. The findings of the supervisory initiatives will be included in reports of examination.
Deficiencies will be incorporated into the organization’s supervisory ratings, which can affect the
organization’s ability to make acquisitions and take other actions. Enforcement actions may be taken
against a banking organization if its incentive compensation arrangements, or related risk-management
control or governance processes, pose a risk to the organization’s safety and soundness and the
organization is not taking prompt and effective measures to correct the deficiencies.

Récent Legislétiv_é and Regulatory Initiativés to Address Financial and Economic Crises. The
Congress, Treasury and the federal banking regulators, including the FDIC, have taken broad action
since early September 2008 to address volatility in the U.S. banking system.

In October 2008, the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 (“EESA”) was enacted. The
EESA authorized Treasury to purchase from financial institutions and their holding companies up to
$700 billion in mortgage loans, mortgage-related securities and certain other financial instruments,
including debt and equity securities issued by financial institutions and their holding companies in the
Troubled Asset Relief Program (“TARP”). The Treasury also allocated $250 billion towards the TARP
Capital Purchase Program (“CPP”), pursuant to which Treasury purchased debt or equity securities
from participating institutions. Participants in the CPP are subject to executive compensation limits and
are encouraged to expand their lending and mortgage loan modifications. The EESA also temporarily
increased FDIC deposit insurance on most accounts from $100,000 to $250,000.

On November 21, 2008; as part of the CPP, the Company entered into a Letter Agreement and
Securities Purchase Agreement (collectively, the “CPP Purchase Agreement”) with the Treasury,
pursuant to which the Company sold (i) 11,350 shares of its Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred
Stock, Series T (the “Series T Preferred Stock™) and (ii) a warrant (the “CPP Warrant”) to purchase
195,915 shares of the Company’s common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $11,350,000 in cash.
The Series T Preferred Stock qualified as Tier 1 capital and was entitled to cumulative dividends at a.
rate of 5% per annum for the first five years, and 9% per annum thereafter. The CPP Warrant had a_
10-year term and was immediately exercisable upon its issuance, with a: _exercise price, subject to
anti-dilution adjustments, equal to $8.69 per share of the common stock. '

On August 29, 2012, we repurchased $3.78 million of our Series T Preferred Stock from the
Treasury through a modified Dutch auction process. This represented 3,780 shares of the original
11,350 shares of Series T Preferred Stock sold to the Treasury pursuant to the CPP. On October 8,
2012, we completed the repurchase of the remaining 7,570 shares of the Series T Preferred Stock from
third party investors who bought the shares on August 29, 2012 in the Dutch auction conducted by the
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Treasury. In addition, on October 25, 2012, the Treasury accepted our bid to repurchase the CPP
Warrant to purchase 195,915 shares of our common stock. The repurchase price agreed upon was
$297,500. The repurchase of the CPP Warrant from the Treasury completely eliminated its equity stake
in the Company through the TARP CPP. g ' IR

On February 17, 2009, the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (the “Recovery Act”) was
signed into law in an effort to, among other things, create jobs and stimulate growth in the United
States economy. The Recovery Act specifies appropriations of approximately $787 billion for a wide
range of Federal programs and will increase or extend certain benefits payable under the Medicaid,
unemployment compensation, and nutrition assistance programs. The Recovery. Act also reduces
individual and corporate income tax collections and makes a variety of other changes to tax laws. The

Recovery Act also imposes certain limitations on compensation paid by participants in TARP.

The EESA and the Recovery Act have been followed by numerous actions by the Federal Reserve
Board, Congress, U.S. Treasury, the SEC and others to address the liquidity and credit crisis that
followed the recession that commenced in 2007. These measures include homeowner relief that “
encourages loan restructuring and modification; the establishment of significant liquidity and credit
facilities for financial institutions and banks; the lowering of the federal funds rate; action against
short-term selling practices, the temporary guaranty program for money market funds; the . :
establishment of a commercial paper funding facility to provide back-stop liquidity. to commercial paper
issuers; and coordinated international efforts to. address illiquidity and other wéaknesse_s in the. bankmg
sector. : ‘

On July 21, 2010, the US President signed into law the Dodd-Frank Act. The DoddFrank Act -
created a fundamental restructuring of federal banking regulation. Among other things, the
Dodd-Frank Act created a new Financial Stability Oversight Council to identify systemic risks in the
financial system and gave federal regulators new authority to take control of and liquidate financial
firms. The Dodd-Frank Act also created a new independent federal regulator to administer federal o
consumer protection laws. Many of the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act have delayed effective dates
and the legislation requires various federal agencies to promulgate numerous and extensive
implementing regulations over the next several years. Although the substance and scope of these
regulations cannot be completely determined at this time, it is expected: that. the legislation and "
implementing regulations will increase the Company’s operating and compliance costs. The following
discussion summarizes certain significant aspects of the Dodd-Frank ‘Act: )

« The Dodd-Frank Act required the Federal Reserve to apply consolidated capital requirements to
depository institution holding companies that are no less stringent than those currently applied
to depository institutions. Under these standards, trust preferred securities will be excluded from
Tier 1 capital unless such securities were issued prior to May 19, 2010 by a bank holding
company with less than $15 billion in assets, such as the Company. The Dodd-Frank Act also
stipulated capital requirements to be countercyclical so that the required amount of capital
increases in times of economic expansion and decreases in times of economic contraction,
consistent with safety and soundness practices. v L

« The Dodd-Frank Act permanently increased the maximum deposit insurance amount for
financial institutions to $250,000 per depositor, and extended unlimited deposit insurance to
noninterest bearing transaction accounts through December 31, 2012. The Dodd_—fFryank"‘Act also
broadened the base for FDIC insurance assessments, which are now based on a financial =~
institution’s average consolidated total assets less tangible equity capital. The Dodd-Frank Act
required the FDIC to increase the reserve ratio of the Deposit Insurance Fund from.1.15% to
1.35% of insured deposits by 2020 and eliminated the requirement that the FDIC pay dividends
to insured depository institutions when the reserve ratio exceeds certain thresholds. Effective
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July 21, 2011, the Dodd-Frank Act eliminated the federal statutory. prohlbmon agamst the
payment of interest on business checking accounts.. “

« The Dodd-Frank Act required publicly traded companies to give; shareholders a non-binding vote
-on executive compensation at their first annual meeting taking place six months after the date of
«enactment. and at least every three years thereafter and on so-called “golden parachute”
.payments in connection with approvals of mergers and acquisitions unless previously voted on by

shateholders. The legislation also authorized the SEC to promulgate rules that would allow
- shareholders to nominate their own candidates using a company’s: proxy materials. Additionally,
. the Dodd-Frank Act directed the federal banking regulators to promulgate rules prohibiting
excessive compensation paid to executives of depository institutions and their holding companies
with assets iniexcess of $1.0 billion, regardless of whether the institution is publicly traded or
not. The Dodd-Frank Act gave the SEC authority:to prohibit broker. dlscret1onary votmg on
- elections of directors and executlve compensatlon matters. ;

e Effectlve July 21, 2011 the Dodd- Frank Act prohibited a depository institution from convertmg
from a state to federal charter or vice versa while it is the subject of a cease and desist order or
other formal enforcement action or a memorandum of understanding w1th respect to a
s1gn1flcant supervisory matter unless the appropriate federal banking agency gives notice of the
‘conversion to the federal or state ‘authority that issued the’ enfor¢cement action and that agency
* does not objéct within 30 days. The notice must include a plan to address the s1gmflcant
superv1sory matter. The convertmg institution must also file a copy of the conversion appllcatlon

~ with'its current federal regulator which must notify the resulting federal regulator of any

- ongoing supervisory or investigative proceedlngs that are likely to result in an ehforcement

_ action and prov1de access to all supervisory and 1nvest1gat1ve 1nformatlon relatmg hereto

* The Dodd-Frank Act authorized national and state banks to estabhsh branches in other states to
the same extent as a bank chartered by that state would.be permitted to branch. Previously,
banks could only establish branches in other states if the host state expressly permitted
out-of-state banks to establish branches in that state. Accordmgly, banks are: able to enter new
markets more freely. : : -

* Effective July 21, 2012 the Dodd-Frank Act expanded the definition of affiliate for puiposes of
quantitative and qualitative limitations of Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Act to include
mutual funds advised by a depository institution or its affiliates. The Dodd-Frank Act now.
applies Section 23A and Section 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Act (governing transactions with. -
insiders) to derivative transactions, repurchase agreements-and securities lending and borrowing
transaction that create credit exposure to an affiliate or an insider. Any such transactions with

. affiliates must be fully secured. Historically;, an exception has.existed that exempts covered . -
transactions between depository institutions and their financial subsidiaries from the 10% capital
and surplus limitation set forth in Section 23A. However, the Dodd-Frank Act eliminated this
exception for covered transactions entered into after July 21, 2012. Effective July 21;:2012, the
Dodd-Frank Act also prohibited an insured depository institution from purchasing an asset from
or-selling an asset to an insider unless the transaction is on market terms and, if representing
.more than 10% of ’capital is approved in advance by the disinterested directors.

* » The Dodd-Frank Act requlred that the amount of any interchange fee charged by a debit card
issuer with respect to a debit card transaction must be reasonable and proportional to the cost
‘incurred by the i issuer.- Effective October 1, 2()11 the Federal Reserve set new caps on
interchange fees at $0.21 per transaction, plus an additional five basis-point charge per o
transaction to help caver fraud losses. An additional $0.01 per transaction is allowed if certain
fraud-monitoring controls are in place. While the restrictions on interchange fees do not apply
to banks that, together with their affiliates, have assets of less than $10 billion, such as the Bank,
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the restrictions could negatively impact bankcard income for smaller banks if the reductions that
are required of larger banks cause industry-wide reduction -of swipe fees.

The Dodd-Frank Act created a new, independent federal agency called the Consumer Financial
Protection Bureau (“CFPB”), which granted broad rulemaking, supervisory and enforcement
powers under various federal consumer financial protection laws, including the Equal Credit
Opportunity Act, Truth in Lending Act, Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, Fair Credit
Reporting Act, Fair Debt Collection Act, the Consumer Financial Privacy provisions of the
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and certain other statutes. The ‘CFPB has examination and primary
-enforcement authority with respect to depository institutions with $10 billion or more in assets.
Depository institutions with less than $10 billion in assets, such as the Bank, are subject: to rules
promulgated by the CFPB but will continue to be examined and supervised by federal banking
regulators for consumer compliance purposes. The CFPB has authority to' prevent unfair,
deceptive or abusive practices in connection with the offering of consumer financial products.
The Dodd-Frank Act also authorized the CFPB to establish certain minimum standards for the
origination. of residential mortgages including a determination of the borrower’s ability to. repay.
Under the Dodd-Frank Act, financial institutions may not make a residential mortgage loan
unless they make a “reasonable and good faith determination” that the consumer has a

“reasonable ability” to repay the loan. In addition, the Dodd-Frank Act allowed borrowers to
raise certain defenses to foreclosure if they receive any loan other than a “qualified mortgage”
as defined by the CFPB. On J anuary 13, 2013, the CFPB published final rules to, among other
things, define “qualified mortgage” and specify the types of income and assets that may be
considered in the ability-to-repay determination, the permissible sources for verification, and the
required methods of calculating the loan’s monthly payments. For example, the rules extend the
requlrement that creditors verify and document a borrower’s “income and assets” to include all

“information” that creditors rely on in determining repayment ability. The rules also provide
further examples of third-party documents that may be relied on for such verification, such as
governmerit records and check-cashing or funds-transfer service receipts. The new rules will take
effect on January 10, 2014. The Dodd-Frank Act also permitted states to adopt consumer
protection laws and standards that are more stringent than those adopted at the federal level
and, in certain circumstances, permits state attorneys general to enforce compliance with both
the state and federal laws and regulations.

In December 2010, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision, an international forum for
cooperation on banking supervisory matters, announced the “Basel III” capital rules, which set new
capital requirements for banking organizations. On June 7, 2012, the Federal Reserve, the OCC, and
the FDIC issued a joint notice of proposed rulemaking that would implement sections of the
Dodd-Frank Act that encompass certain aspects of Basel III with respect to capital and liquidity. On
November 9, 2012, following a public comment period, the US federal banking agencies announced
that the originally proposed January 1, 2013 effective date for the proposed rules was being delayed so
that the agencies could consider operations and transitional issues identified in the large volume of
public comments received. The proposed rules, if adopted, would lead to significantly-higher capital
requirements and more restrictive leverage and liquidity ratios than those currently in place. The
ultimate impact of the US implementation of the new capital and liquidity standards on the Company
and the Bank is currently being reviewed and is dependent on the terms of the final regulations, which
may differ from the proposed regulations. At this point the Company cannot determine the ultimate
effect that any final regulatlons if enacted, would have on its earnings or financial position. In addition,
important questions remain as to how the numerous capital and liquidity mandates of the Dodd-Frank
Act will be integrated with the requirements of Basel IIL.,
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Although it is likely that further regulatory actions will arise as the federal government attempts to
address the economic situation, we cannot predict the effect that fiscal or monetary policies, economic
control, or new federal or state legislation may have on our business and earnings in the future.

Proposed Legislation and Regulatory Action. From time to time, various legislative and regulatory
initiatives are introduced in Congress and state legislatures, as well as by regulatory agencies. Such
initiatives may include proposals to expand or contract the powers of bank holding companies and
depository institutions or proposals to substantially change the financial institution regulatory system.
Such legislation could change banking statutes and the operating environment of the Company in
substantial and unpredictable ways. If enacted, such legislation could increase or decrease the cost of
doing business, limit or expand permissible activities or affect the competitive balance among banks, -
savings associations, credit unions, and other financial institutions. We cannot predict whether any such
legislation will be enacted, and, if enacted, the effect that it, or any implementing regulations, would
have on the financial condition or results of operations of the Company. A change in statutes, ‘
regulations or regulatory policies applicable to the Company or the Bank could have a material effect
on the business of the Company. ' ' ' '

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Our business, financial condition, and results of operations could be harmed by any of the
following risks, or other risks that have not been identified or which we believe are immaterial or
unlikely. Shareholders should carefully consider the risks described below in conjunction with the other
information in this Form 10-K and the information incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K,
including our consolidated financial statements and related notes.

Changes in the financial markets could impair the value of our investment portfblio.

The investment securities portfolio is a significant component of our total earning assets. Total
investment securities averaged $204.9 million in 2012, as compared to $205.7 million in 2011. This -
represents 37.0% and 37.4% of the average earning assets for the year ended December 31, 2012 and..
2011, respectively. At December 31, 2012, the portfolio was 37.1% of earning assets. Turmoil in the
financial markets could impair the market value of our investment portfolio, which could adversely
affect our net income and possibly our capital. '

Since the last half of 2007, the bond markets and many institutional holders of bonds have been
under a great deal of stress partially as a result of the ongoing recessionary economic conditions. At
December 31, 2012, we had mortgage-backed securities (“MBSs”), including collateralized mortgage
obligations (“CMOs”), with a fair vahie of $112.1 million. Of these, approximately $109.4 million were
issued by government sponsored enterprises (“GSEs”) and $2.7 million by private label issuers. In 2008
and 2009, the.private label MBSs and CMOs we own incurred rating agency downgrades, many to
below investment grade. At December 31, 2012, four of our private label MBSs and CMOs with a
carrying value of $1.6 million have been downgraded below investment grade. ‘

Delinquencies on the underlying mortgages on all mortgage securities increased dramatically
throughout 2008 through 2011and continue to remain at high levels at December 31, 2012. We monitor
these investments on a monthly basis. Increasing delinquencies and defaults in the underlying
mortgages have resulted in recognizing OTTI during 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012(see Note 4 to the
financial statements). In evaluating these securities for OTTI, we use assumptions relative to continued
defaults rates, loss severities on the underlying collateral and prepayment speeds. Differences in actual
experience and the assumptions used could result in a loss of earnings as a result of further OTTI
charges, all of which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations. - S
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Our other investments include municipal and corporate debt securities. As of December 31, 2012,
we had municipal securities with an approximate fair value of $32.4 million and corporate debt and
other securities with an approximate fair value of $2.4 million. At December 31, 2012 all of the
municipal and corporate debt securities were rated investment grade. There is a risk that deterioration
in the underlying issuer’s financial condition or the underlying collateral could result in OTTI charges
in future periods. '

On September 7, 2008, the Treasury, the Federal Reserve Board and the Federal Housing. Finance
Agency (“FHFA”) announced that FHFA was placing the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
(the “FHLMC”) under conservatorship. Due to these actions, we took an OTTI charge of $8.1 million
in the third quarter of 2008 relating to the Freddie Mac preferred stock that we held. ‘This charge,
along with our second quarter of 2008 charge of $6.1 million related to our investment in preferred
stock issued by Freddie Mac, eliminated any further direct material exposure in our investment
portfolio to Freddie Mac equity securities.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, our securities, all of which are classified as “Available for -
Sale”, which have unrealized losses were not considered to be “other than temporarily impaired,” and
we believe it is more likely than not we will be able to hold these until they mature or recover our .
current book value. We currently maintain substantial liquidity which supports our intent and ability to
hold these investments until they mature, or until there is a market price recovery. However, if we were
to cease to have the ability and intent to hold these investments until maturity or the market prices do
not recover, and we were to sell these securities at a loss, it could adversely affect our net income and
possibly our capital. : - ' ’

Our decisions regarding credit risk and reserves for loan losses may materially and adversely affect our
business.

Making loans and other extensions of credit is an essential element of our business. Although we
seek to mitigate risks inherent in lending by adhering to specific underwriting practices, our loans and
other extensions of credit may nhot be repaid. The risk of nonpayment is affected by a number of
factors, including: : :

* the duration of the credit;
* credit risks of a particular customer;
* changes in economic and industry coriditions; and

* in the case of a collateralized loan, risks _1jes~1'11ting from uncertainties about the future value of
the collateral. '

We attempt to maintain an appropriate allowance for loan losses to provide for potential losses in
our loan portfolio. We periodically determine the amount of the allowance based on consideration of
several factors, including: :

* an ongoing review of the quality, mix, and size of our overall loan portfolio;
s our historical loan loss experience;

* evaluation of economic conditions;

¢ regular reviews of loan delinquencieé and loan portfolio quality; and

s the amount and quality of collateral, including guarantees, securing the loans.

There is no precise method of predicting credit losses; therefore, we face the risk that charge-offs
in future periods will exceed our allowance for loan losses and that additional increases in the
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alloW‘ance' for:loan losses ‘will be required. Additions to the allowance for loan losses would result .in a
decrease of our net income, and possibly our capital. N '

Federal and state regulators periodically review our allowance for loan losses and may requi}re us
to increase our provision for loan losses or recognize further loan charge-offs, based on judgments
different.than those of our management. Any increase in the amount of our provision or loans
charged-off as required by these regulatory agencies could have a negative effect on our operating
results. - : ‘ ' e L ‘ o

We may have higher loan losses than we have allowed for in our allowance Jor loan losses.

Our actual loan losses could exceed our allowance for loan losses. Our average loan size continues
to increase and reliance on our historic allowance for loan losses may not be, adequate. As of
December 31, 2012, approximately 78.4% of our loan portfolio (excluding loans held for sale) is
composed of construction (3.9%), commercial mortgage (68.2%) and commercial loans (6.3%).
Repayment of such loans is generally considered more subject to market risk than residential mortgage
loans: . Industry experience shows that a portion of loans will become delinquent and a:portion of loans
will require partial or entire charge-off. Regardless of the underwriting criteria utilized, losses may be
experienced as a result of various factors beyond our control, including among other things, changes in
market conditions affecting the value of loan collateral and problems affecting the credit of our
borrowers. : R R ' = g :

A significant portion of our loan portfolio is secured by real estate, and events that negatively impact the
real estate market could hurt our businéss. ‘ - : .

A significant portion of our loan portfolio is secured by real estate. As of December 31, 2012,
approximately 92.1% of our loans (excluding loans held for sale) had real estate as a primary or
secondary component of collateral. The real estate collateral in each case provides an alternate source
of repayment in the event of default by the borrower and may deteriorate in value during the time the
credit is extended. A continued weakening of the real estate market in our primary market area could
result in an increase in the number of borrowers who default on their loans and a reduction in the
value of the collateral securing their loans, which in'turn could have an adverse efféct on our . ;
profitability and asset quality. If we are required to liquidate the collateral securing a loan to satisfy the
debt during a period of reduced real estate values, our earnings and capital could be adversely affected.
Acts of nature, including hurricanes, tornados, earthquakes, fires and floods, which could be
exacerbated by potential climate change and may cause uninsured damage and other loss of value to .
real estate that secures these loans, may also negatively impact our financial condition:

‘We have a concentration of credit exposure in commercial real estate and challenges faced by the
commercial real estate market could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of .
operations. : ‘ ; : I

As of December 31, 2012, we had approximately $237.0 million in loans outstanding to borrowers
whereby the collateral securing the loan was commercial real estate, representing approximately 71.3%
of our total loans outstanding as of that date. Approximately 31.9%, or $75.7 million, of this real estate
are owner-occupied properties. Commercial real estate loans are generally viewed as having more risk
of default than residential real estate loans. They are also typically larger than residential real estate
loans and consumer loans and depend on cash flows from the owner’s business or the property to -
service the debt. Cash flows may be affected significantly by general economic conditions, and a
downturn in the local economy or in occupancy rates in the local economy where the property is
located could increase the likelihood of default. Because our loan portfolio contains a number of
commercial real estate loans with relatively large balances, the deterioration of one or a few of these
loans could cause a significant increase in our level of non-performing loans. An increase in
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non-performing loans.could result in a loss of -earnings from these loans, an.increase in:the related
provision for loan losses and an increase in charge-offs, all of which could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Our commercial real estate loans. have:grown 3.27%, or $7.5 million, since December .31, 2011.
The banking regulators are giving commercial real estate lending, greater scrutiny; and may require
banks with higher Jevels of commercial real estate loans to implement more stringent underwriting,
internal controls, risk management policies and portfolio stress testing, as well as possibly higher levels
of allowances for losses and capital levels as a result of commercial real estate lending growth and
€Xposures. . N - :

Repayment of our commercial business loans is often dependent on the cash flows of the borrower, which
may be unpredictable, and the collateral securing these loans may flictuate in value. '

At December 31, 2012, commercial business loans comprised 6.3% of our total loan portfolio. Our
commercial business loans are originated primarily: based on: the:identified cash flow and general ..
liquidity of the borrower and secondarily on the underlying collateral provided by the; borrower and/or
repayment capacity of any guarantor. The borrower’s cash flow may be unpredictable, and- collateral .
securing these loans may fluctuate. in. value: Although commercial business loans are-often -
collateralized by equipment, inventory, accounts receivable, or other business assets, the liquidation of
collateral in the event of default is often an insufficient source of repayment because accounts
receivable may be uncollectible and inventories may be obsolete or of limited use. In addition, business
assets may depreciate over time, may be difficult to appraise, and may fluctuate in value based on the
success of the business. Accordingly, the repayment of commercial business loans depends primarily on
the cash flow and credit worthiness of the borrower and secondarily on the underlying collateral value
provided by the borrower and liquidity of the guarantor. o T o

Negative developments in the financial industry and thé"domesticj and international credit markets may
adversely affect our operations and results. ’ T o co

Negative developments in the: global credit and 'securitization markets have resulted in uncertainty
in the financial markets in- general with: the expectation-of continuing uncertainty into 2013._As a result,
commercial as well‘as consumer loan portfolio performances deteriorated at institutions and the’
competition for deposits and quality loans has increased significantly. In addition, the values of real:
estate collateral supporting many commercial loans and home mortgages have declined and may
continue to decline. Global securities markets and bank holding company stock: prices inparticular, .
have been negatively affected, as has in general the ability of banks and bank holding companies to
raise capital or borrow in the debt markets. As a result, bank regulatory agencies have been active in
responding to concerns and trends identified in examinations, including by issuing a historically high
number of formal enforcement orders over the past three years. In addition, significant new federal
laws and regulations relating to financial institutions have been adopted, including, without limitation,
the EESA, the Recovery Act, and the Dodd-Frank Act. Furthermore, the potential exists for additional

federal or state laws and regulations, and bank regulatory agencies are expected to be acfive in

responding to concerns and trends identified in examinations by issuing formal enforcement orders.

Negative developments in the financial industry and the domestic and international credit markets, and

the impact of new legislation and bank examination practices in response to those ;lévelopments, may.

negatively impact our operations by restricting our business operations, including our ability to originate

or sell loans, ‘and adversely impact our financial performance. We can provide no assurance regarding
the manner in which any new laws and regulations will affect us. - ' ’
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There can be no assurance that recently enacted legislation wzll help stabilize the U.S. financial system

In response to the challenges facmg the. financial servrces sector a number of regulatory and
legislative actions have been enacted or announced There can be 1o assurance that these govemment
actions will achieve their purpose. The failure of the financial markets to stabilize, or a oontmuatlon or
worsening of the current financial market conditions, could have a material adverse affect on our -
business, our financial condition, the financial condition of our customers, our common stock trading
price, as well as our ability to access credit. It could also result in declines in our 1nvestment portfollo
which could be “other-than-temporary impairments.”

Economic challenges, especially those affecting Lexington, Richland, Newberry, and Kershaw Counties
and the surrounding areas, may reduce our customer base, our level of deposits, and demand for _ﬁnancull
products such as loans.

Our success srgmflcantly depends upon the growth in populatlon income levels, deposits, and
housing starts in our markets of Lex1ngton Richland, Newberry, and Kershaw Counties and the _
surrounding area. The current economic downturn has negatively affected the markets in whlch we '
operate and, in turn, the size and quality of our loan portfolio. If the communmes in which we’ operate
do not grow or if prevailing economic conditions locally or nationally remain unfavorable, our business
may not succeed. A continuation of the economic downturn or prolonged recession would hkely result
in reductions in the size of our loan portfolio and ‘the contmued deterroratlon of the quality of our loan
portfolio and ‘could reduce our level of deposits, which in turn would hurt our business. Interest
received on loans represented approxrmately 79.8% of our interest income for the year ended
December 31, 2012. If the ¢ economic downturn continues ora prolonged economrc recession occurs in
‘the economy as a whole, there may be less demand for new loans and borrowers will be less likely to
repay their loans as scheduled. Moreover, in many cases the value of real e175.0state or other collateral
that secures our loans has been adversely affected by the economic condltlons and could contmue to be
negatively affected. Unlike many larger institutions, we are not able to spread the I‘lSkS of unfavorable
local economic conditions across a large number of diversified economies. A continued economic
downturn could, therefore, result in losses that materially and adversely affect our business.

Our facus on lending to small to mid-sized: community-based businesses may increase our credit risk.

Most of our commercial business and commercial real estate loans are made to small business or
middle market customers. These businesses generally have fewer financial resources in terms of capital
or borrowing’ capacrty than larger entities and have a heightened vulnerability ’to economic conditions.,
If general economic conditions in the markets in which we operate negatively 1mpact this important
customer sector, our results of operatrons and financial condition and the value of our common stock
may be adversely affected. Moreover, a portlon of these loans have béen made by us in recent years
and the borrowers may not have experienced a complete business or economic cycle. Furthermore, the
deterioration of our borrowets’ businesses may hinder their ability to repay their loans with us, which
could have a material adverse effect on our frnancral condition and results of operatrons.

We face strong competition for customers, which could prevent us from obtammg customers and may
cause us to pay higher interest rates to attract customers. :

The banking business is highly competitive, and we experrence competltlon in our market from
many other financial institutions. We compete with commercial banks credit unions, savings and loan
associations, mortgage banking firms, consumer finance companies, securities brokerage firms,
insurance companies, money market funds, and other mutual funds, as well as other super-regional,
national, and international financial institutions that operate offices in our primary market areas and
elsewhere. We compete with these institutions both in attracting deposits and in making loans. In- -
addition, we have to attract our customer base from other existing financial institutions and from new
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residents. Many of our competitors are well:established, larger financial institutions. These institutions
offer some services, such as extensive and established branch networks, that we do not pr0v1de There
is a risk that we will not be able to compete successfully w1th other financial institutions in our market,
and that we may have to pay hlgher interest rates to attract deposits, resulting in reduced profitability.
In addition, competitors that are not deposxtory institutions are generally not subject to the extensive
regulations that apply to us. :

Our deposit insurance premiums could be substdntially higher in the future, which could have a material
adverse effect on our future earnings. T ’

The FDIC insures deposits at FDIC-insured depository institutions, such as the bank, up to .
applicable limits. The amount of a particular institution’s deposit insurance assessment is based on that
institution’s risk classification under an FDIC risk-based assessment system. An institution’s risk
classification is assigned based on its capital levels and the level of supervisory concern the institution
poses to its regulators. Recent market developments and bank failures significantly depleted the FDIC’s
Deposit Insurance Fund and reduced the ratio of reserves to insured deposits. As a result of recent
economic conditions and the enactment of the Dodd-Frank Act, banks are now assessed deposit
insurance premiurns based on the bank’s average consolidated total assets, and the FDIC has modified
certain risk-based adjustments, which 1ncrease or decrease a bank’s overall assessment rate. This has
resulted in increases to the deposit insurance assessment rates and thus raised deposit premiums for
many insured depository institutions. If these increases are insufficient for the Depos1t Insurance Fund
to meet its funding requ1rements further special assessments or increases.in deposn: insurance
premiums may be requlred We are generally unable to control the amount of premiums that we are
required to pay for FDIC insurance. If there are additional bank or financial institution failures, we
may be required to pay even hlgher FDIC premiums than the recently increased levels. Any future
additional assessmients, increases or requlred prepayments in FDIC insurance premiums could reduce
our profitability, may limit our ability to pursue ‘certain business opportunities or otherw1se negatively
impact our operations.

Changes in pret;ailing interest rates may reduce our profitability.

Our results of operations depend-in large part upon the level of our net interest income, which is
the difference between interest income from interest- earning assets, such as loans and MBSs, and
interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities, such as depos1ts and other borrowings. Dependmg on the
terms and maturities of our assets and liabilities, we believe it is more likely than not a significant
change in interest rates could have a material adverse effect on our profitability. Many factors cause
changes in interest rates, including governmental monetary policies and domestic and international
economic and political conditions. While we intend to manage the effects of changes in interest rates
by adjusting the terms, maturities, and pricing of our assets and liabilities, our efforts may not be
effective and our f1nanc1al condltlon and results of operations could suffer.

We are dependent on key individuals, and the loss of one or more of these key individuals could curtail
our growth and adversely ajfect our - prospects.

Michael C. Crapps, our president and chief executlve officer, has extensive and long-standlng ties
within our primary market area and substantial experience with our operations, and he has contributed
significantly to our business. If we lose the services of Mr. Crapps, he would be dlfflcult to replacé and
our business and development could be materlally and adversely affected.

Our success also depends, in part, on our continued ability to attract and retaln expenenced loan
originators, as well as other management personnel. Competition for personnel is intense, and we may
not be successful in attracting or retalnmg quahﬁed personnel Our fallure to: compete for these
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personnel, or the loss of the services of several of such key personnel, could adversely affect our
business strategy and seriously harm our business, results of operations, and financial condition.

- We are subject to extensive regulation that could restrict our activities and impose financial requirements
or limitations on the conduct of our business and limit our ability to receive dividends from our Bank.

We are subject to Federal Reserve Board regulation. Our Bank is subject to extensive regulation,
supervision, and examination by the FDIC, the regulating authority that insures customer deposits, and
the S.C. Board. Also, as a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta (the “FHLB”), our
Bank must comply with applicable regulations of the Federal Housing Finance Board and the FHLB.
Regulation by these agencies is intended primarily for the protection of our depositors and the deposit
insurance fund and not for the benefit of our shareholders. Our Bank’s activities are also regulated
under. consumer protection laws applicable to our lending, deposit, and other activities. A sufficient
claim against our Bank under these laws could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations.

We are exposed to further changes in the regulation of financial services companies.

Proposals for further regulation of the financial services industry are continually being introduced
in the Congress of the United States of America and the General Assembly of the State of South
Carolina. The agencies regulating the financial services industry also periodically adopt changes to their
regulations. On July 21, 2010, the Dodd-Frank Act was signed into law. Pursuant to authority granted
under the Dodd-Frank Act, effective on October 1, 2011, the Federal Reserve Board established new
rules regarding interchange fees charged for electronic debit transactions by payment card i issuers
having assets over $10 billion. While we are not subject to the interchange fee restrictions, the new ‘
restrictions could negatively impact bank card services income for smaller banks if the reductions that
are required of larger banks cause industry-wide reduction of swipe fees. On June 7, 2012, the Federal
Reserve, the OCC, and the FDIC issued a joint notice of proposed rulemaking that would implement
sections of the Dodd-Frank Act that encompass certain aspects of Basel III with respect to capital and
liquidity. On November 9, 2012, following a public comment period, the US federal banking agencies
announced that the originally proposed January 1, 2013 effective date for the proposed rules was being
delayed so that the agencies could consider operations and transitional issued identified in the large
volume of public comments received. The proposed rules, if adopted, would lead to significantly higher
capital requirements and more restrictive leverage and liquidity ratios than those currently in place. See
“Risk Factors—The short-term and long-term impact of the changing regulatory capital requirements and
anticipated new capital rules is uncertain” below. It is possible that additional legislative proposals may
be adopted or regulatory changes may be made that would have an adverse effect on our business. We
can provide no assurance regarding the manner in which any new laws and regulations will affect us. -
See “Risk Factors—We are subject to extensive regulation that could restrict our activities and impose
financial requirements or limitations on the conduct of our business and limit our ability to receive
dividends from our Bank” above.

The short-term and long-term impact of the changmg regulatory capital requtrements and anticipated
new capital rules is uncertain.

On September 12, 2010, the Group of Governors and Heads of Supervision, the oversight body of
the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision, announced an agreement to a stréngthened set of capital
requirements for internationally active banking organizations in the U.S. and around the world, known
as Basel III. Basel III calls for increases in the requirements for minimum common equity, minimum
Tier 1 capital and minimum total capital for certain systemically important financial institutions, to be
phased in over time until fully phased in by January 1, 2019. Any regulations adopted for systemically
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significant institutions may also be applied to or otherwise impact other financial institutions such as
the Company or the Bank.

Various provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act increase the cap1ta1 requirements of bank holdmg
companies, such as the Company, and non-bank financial companies that are supervised by the Federal
Reserve Board. The leverage and risk-based 'capital ratios of these entities may not be lower than the
leverage and risk-based capital ratios for insured depository institutions. In particular, bank holding
companies, many of which have long relied on trust preferred securities as a component of their
regulatory capital, will no longer be permitted to issue new trust preferred securities that count toward
their Tier 1 capital. While the Basel III changes and other regulatory capital requirements will likely
result in generally higher regulatory capital standards, it is difficult at this time to predict how any new
standards will ultimately be applied to the Company and the Bank. :

In addition, in the current economic and regulatory environment, regulators: of banks and bank
holding companies have becomé more likely to-impose capital requirements on bank holding companies
and banks that are more stringent than those required by applicable existing regulations.

The application of more stringent capital requirements for the Company and the Bank could,
among other thmgs result in lower returns on invested capital, require the issuance of additional
capital, and resultt in regulatory actions 1f we were to be unable to comply w1th such requirements.

Our historical operating results may not be indicative of our ﬁtture operating resuits

We may not be able to sustain our hrstoncal rate of growth and, consequently, our historical
results of operatlons will not necessarily be indicative of our future operations. Various factors, such as
economic conditions, regulatory and legislative considerations, and competltlon may also impede our
ability to expand our market presence. If we experience a significant decrease in our historical rate of
growth, our results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected because a high
percentage of our operating costs are fixed expenses.

We may be adversely ajfected by the soundness of other ﬁnanczal mstztutwns

Financial services institutions are interrelated as a result of trading, clearing, counterparty, or other
relationships. We have exposure to many different industries and counterparties, and routinely execute
transactions with counterparties in the financial services industry, including commercial banks, brokers
and dealers, investment banks, and other institutional clients. Many of these transactions expose us to
credit risk in the event of a default by a counterparty or client. In addition, our credit risk may be
exacerbated when the collateral held by the bank cannot be realized upon or is liquidated at prices not -
sufficient to recover the full amount of the credit or derivative exposure due to the bank. Any such
losses could have a material adverse affect on our financial condition and results of operations.

We will face risks with respect to expansion through acquisitions or mergers.

From time to time, we may seek to acquire other financial institutions or parts of those
institutions. We may also expand into new markets or lines of business or offer new products or
services. These activities would involve a number of risks, including:

* the potential inaccuracy of the estimates and judgments used to evaluate credlt operations,
management, and market risks wrth respect to a target 1nst1tut10n,

* the time and costs of evaluating new markets, hiring or retaining experienced local management,
and opening new offices and the time lags between these activities and the generation of
sufficient assets and deposits to support the costs of the expansion; :
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* the incurrence and possible impairment of goodwﬂl assoc1ated w1th an acqulsmon and p0551b1e K
adverse effects on our results of operatlons and o

* .the risk of-loss of key employees and customers

Our underwrztmg decisions may matenally and adversely ajfect our busmess

While we generally underwrite the loans in out portfolio in accordance with our' own internal
underwriting guidelines and regulatory supervisory guidelines, in certain circumstances we have made
loans which exceed either our internal uriderwriting guidelines, supervisory guidelines, or both. As of
December 31, 2012, approximately $6.6-million of our loans, or 10.0%.of our bank’s regulatory capital,
had loan-to-value ratiosthat exceeded regulatory supervisory guidelines, of which five loans totaling
approximately $690 thousand had lean-to-value ratios of 100% or more. In addition, supervisory limits
on commercial loan to value exceptions are set at 30%. of our bank’s capital. At December 31, 2012,
$4.8 million of our commercial loans, or 7.3% of our bank’s regulatory capital, exceeded the.
supervisory loanto value ratio. The number of loans in our portfolio with loan-to-value ratios in excess
of supervisory guidelines, our internal guidelines, or both could increase the risk of dehnquenmes and
defaults in our portfolio. . SURE

We depend on the accuracy and completeness of mfonnatwn about cltents and counter;oames and our
Jfinancial condition could be adversely affected if we rely on misleading information.

In deciding whether to extend credit or to enter into other transactions with clients and
counterparties, we may rely on 1nformat10n furnished to us by or on behalf of clients and
counterparties, including financial statements and other financial information, whlch we do not
independently verify. We also may rely on representations of clients and counterparties as to the
accuracy and completeness of that information and, with respect to financial statements, on reports of
independent auditors. For example; in deciding whether to extend credit to clients, we may assume that
a customer’s audited financial statements conform with GAAP and present fairly, in all material
respects; the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the customer. Qur financial
condition and results of operations could be negatively impacted to the extent we rely on fmanmal
statements that do not comply w1th GAAP . or are matenally mlsleadmg

Our abthty to pay cash dmdends is lzmlted and we may be unable to pay ﬁ;ture dtwdends even if we
desire to do so. . . .

The Federal Reserve Board has issued a policy statement regardmg the payment of dividends by
bank holding companies. In general, the Federal Reserve Board’s policies provide that dividends should
be paid only out of current earnings and only if the prospective rate of earnings retention by the bank
holding company appears consistent with the organization’s capital needs, asset quality and overall
financial condition. The Federal Reserve Board’s policies also require that a bank holdmg company
serve as a source of ﬁnanc1al strength to its subsidiary banks by standing ready to use available
resources to provide adequate capital funds to those banks durlng penods of financial stress or
adversity and by maintaining the financial flexibility and capital- raising capacity to obtain additional °
resources for assisting its subsidiary.banks where necessary. In-addition, under the prompt corrective
action regulations, the ability of a bank holding company to pay dividends may be restricted if a .

* subsidiary bank becomes undercapitalized. These regulatory policies could affect the ablhty of the
Company to pay dividends or otherwise engage in capital distributions.

Our ability to pay cash dividends may be limited by regulatory restrictions, by our Bank’s ability to
pay cash dividends to the Company and by our need to maintain sufficient capital to support our '
operations. As a South Carolina chartered bank, the Bank is subject to limitations on the amount of
dividends that it is permitted to pay. Unless otherwise instructed by the S.C. Board, the Bank is
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generally permitted under South Carolina state banking regulations to pay cash dividends of up to
100% of net income in any calendar year without obtaining the prior approval of the S.C. Board. If our
Bank is not permitted to pay cash dividends to the Company, it is unlikely that we would be able to
pay cash dividends on our common stock. Moreover, holders of our common stock are entitled to
receive dividends only when, and if declared by our board of directors. Although we have historically
paid cash dividends on our common stock, we are not required to do so and our board of directors
could reduce or eliminate our common stock dividend in the future,

Our stock pﬁcé may be volatile, which could result in losses to our investors and litigation against u‘s.'

Our stock price has been volatile in the past and several factors could cause the price to fluctuate
substantially in the future. These factors include but are not limited to: actual or anticipated variations
in earnings, changes in analysts’ recommendations or projections, our announcement of developments
related to our businesses, operations and stock performance of other companies deemed to be peers,
new technology used or services offered by traditional and non-traditional competitors, news reports of
trends, irrational exuberance on the part of investors, new federal banking regulations, and other issues
related to the financial services industry. Our stock price may fluctuate significantly in the future, and
these fluctuations may be unrelated to our performance. General market declines or market volatility in
the future, especially in the financial institutions sector, could adversely affect the price of our common
stock, and the current market price may not be indicative of future market prices. Stock price volatility
may make it more difficult for you to resell your common stock when you-want and at prices you find
attractive. Moreover, in the past, securities class action lawsuits have been instituted against some
companies following periods of volatility in the market price of its securities. We could in the future be
the target of similar litigation. Securities litigation could result in substantial costs and divert
management’s attention and resources from our normal business.

Future sales of our stock by our shareholders or the perception that those sales could éccz_;r may cause
our stock price to decline. ‘

Although our common stock is listed for trading on the NASDAQ Capital Market, the trading
volume in our common stock is lower than that of other larger financial services companies. A public
trading market having the desired characteristics of depth, liquidity and-orderliness depends on the -
presence in the marketplace of willing buyers and sellers of our common stock at any given time. This
presence depends on the individual decisions of investors and general economic and market conditions
over which we have no control. Given the relatively low trading volume of our common stock, -
significant sales of our common stock in the public market, or the perception that those sales may
occur, could cause the trading price of our common stock to decline or to be lower than it otherwise
might be in the absence of those sales or perceptions. ' '

Economic and other circumstances may require us to raise capital at times or in amounts that are.
unfavorable to us. If we have to issue shares of common stock, they will dilute the percentage ownership
interest of existing shareholders and may dilute the book value per share of our common stock and adversely
affect the terms on which we may obtain additional capital. ' ‘ ’

We may need to incur additional debt or equity financing in the future to make strategic .
acquisitions or investments or to strengthen our capital position. Our ability to raise additional capital,
if needed, will depend on, among other things, conditions in the capital markets at that time, which are
outside of our control and our financial performance. We cannot provide assurance that such financing
will be available to us on acceptable terms or at all, or if we do raise additional capital that it will not
be dilutive to existing shareholders. o v

If we determine, for any reason, that we need to raise capital, subject to applicable NASDAQ
rules, our board generally has the authority, without action by or vote of the shareholders, to issue all
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or part of any authorized but unissued shares of stock for-any corporate purpose, .including issuance of
equity-based incentives under or outside of our equity compensation plans. Additionally, we are not. -
restricted from issuing additional common stock or preferred stock, including any securities that are
convertible into or exchangeable for, or that represent the right to receive, common stock or preferred
stock or any substantially similar securities. The market price of our common stock could decline as a
result of sales by us of a large number of shares of common stock or preferred-stock or similar
securities in the market or from the perception that such sales could occur. If we issue preferred stock
that has a preference over the common stock with respect to the payment of dividends or upon
liquidation, dissolution or winding-up, or if we issue preferred stock with voting rights that dilute .the
voting power of the common stock, the rights of holders of the common stock or the market price of
our common:stock could be adversely affected. Any issuance of additional shares of stock will dilute

the percentage ownership interest of our shareholders and may dilute the book:value.per share.of our.:..
common stock. Shares we issue in connection with any such offering will increase the total number of
shares and may dilute the economrc and Votmg ownershrp mterest of our ex15t1ng shareholders

A fazlure in or breach of our operatwnal or securzty systems or mﬁ'astmcmre, or those of our third party '
vendors and other service providers or other third parties, including as a ‘result of cyber attacks, could disrupt
our businesses, result in the. disclosure or misuse of conﬁdentzal or propnetary mformatton, damage our "
reputation, increase our costs, and cause losses

We rely heavily on communications and mformatlon systems to conduct our business. Informatron ,
security risks for financial institutions such as ours have generally increased in recent years in part
because of the proliferation of new technologies, the use of the internet and telecommunications . -
technologies to conduct financial transactions, and the. increased sophistication-and activities of
organized crime, hackers, and terrorists, activists, and other external parties.. As customer, public, and
regulatory expectations regardmg operatronal and information securrty have increased, our operating
systems and infrastructure must continue to be safeguarded and monitored for potentral failures, ‘
disruptions, and breakdowns. Our business, financial, accounting, and data processing systems, or other
operating systems and facilities may stop operating properly or become disabled or damaged as a result
of a nuiber of factors, including events that are wholly or partially beyond our control. For example
there could be electrical or telécommunication outages; natural disasters stich as eaithquakes,
tornadoes, and hurricanes; disease pandemics; events arising from local or larger scale polltlcal or socral
matters, 1nclud1ng terrorist acts; and as described below, cyber attacks. v

As noted above, our business relies on our digital technologles computer and email systems,
software and networks to conduct its operations. Although we have information security procedures
and controls in place, our technologies, systems, networks, and our customers’ devices may ‘become the
target of cyber attacks or information security breaches that could result in the unauthorized release,
gathering, monitoring, misuse, loss, or destruction of our or our customers or other third parties’
confidential information. Third parties with whom we do business or that facrhtate our business
activities, 1nc1ud1ng financial intermediaries, or vendors that provide service or security solutions for our
operations, and other unaffiliated third parties, including the South Carohna Department of Revenue,
which had customer records exposed in a 2012 cyber attack, could also be sources of operational and
information security risk to s, including from breakdowns or failures of their own systems or capacity
constraints.

While we have disaster recovery and other policies and procedures designed to prevent or limit the
effect of the failure, interruption or security breach of our information systems, there can be no
assurance that any such failures, interruptions or security breaches will not occur or, if they do occur,
that they will be adequately addressed. Our risk and exposure to these matters remains heightened
because of the evolving nature of these threats. As a result, cyber security and the continued
development and enhancement of our controls, processes, and practices designed to protect our
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systems, computers, software, data, and networks ‘from attack, damage or unauthorized access remain a
focus for us. As threats continue to evolve, we may be required to expend additional resources to
continue to modify. or:enhance our protective measures or to investigate.and remediate information
security vulnerabilities. Disruptions or failures tin the physical infrastructure or operating systems that
support our businesses and clients, or cyber attacks or security breaches of the networks, systems or
devices that our clients use to access-our products and:services could result in client attrition,
regulatory fines; penalties or intervehtion, reputation damage, reimbursement or other compensation
costs, and/or additional compliance:costs, any of which could have -a material effect on our results of
operatlons or flnancral condition: :

Negatwe publw opinion surroundmg our Company and the ﬁnanctal institutions mdustty generally could
damage our repumtuon and adversely impact our earnings. :

Reputatxon nsk or the risk to our bus1ness earnings and capital from negative pubhc opinion
~ surrounding our company and the financial institutions industry generally, is inherent in our business.
Negative public opinion can result from our actual or alleged conduct in any number. of activities,
1nclud1ng 1end1ng practlces corporate governance and acquisitions, and from actions taken by ‘
government regulators and commumty organizations in response to those activities. Negatlve pubhc
opinion can adversely affect our ability to keep and attract clients and employees and can €XpOSE US t0
litigation and regulatory action. Although we take steps to minimize reputation risk in dealing with our
clients and communities, this: risk will always be present given the nature of our business.
The change of control rules under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code could limit our ability to use
net operating-loss carryforwards to reduce. future taxable income, if we were to undergoa change Of control.

We have net operatmg loss (“NOL”) carryforwards for federal and state income tax purposes
which, generally, can be used to reduce future taxable income. Our use of our NOL carryforwards ’
would be limited, however, under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code, if we were to undergo a
change in ownershlp of more than 50% of our capital stock over a three-year period as measured '
under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. These complex changes of ownership rulés generally ;
focus on ownership changes mvolvmg shareholders owning directly or indirectly 5% or more of our
stock, including certain public * groups > of shareholders as set forth under Section 382 of the Internal
Revenue Code, including those arlsmg from new stock issuances and other equity transactions.

Whether a change in ownership occurs in the future is largely outside of our control, and there can
be no assurance that such a change will not occur. If we experience an ownership change, the resulting
annual limit on the use of our NOL carryforwards (which generally would equal the product of the
applicable federal long-term tax-exempt rate, multiplied by the value of our capital stock immediately
before the ownership change, then increased by certain existing gains recogmzed within five years after
the ownership change if we have a net built-in gain in our assets at the time of the ownership change)
could result in a meaningful increase in our federal and state income tax liability in future years.
Whether an ownershlp change occurs by reason of public trading in our stock is largely outside our
control, and the determination of whether an ownership change has occurred is complex. No assurance
can be, glven that we will not in the future undergo an ownership change that would have an adverse
effect on the value of our stock.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not apphcablc
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Item 2. Properties.

Lexington Propeny The prmcrpal place of busmess of both the Company and our Banlg is located
at 5455 Sunset Boulevard Lexington, South Carolma 29072. This site, which is also the Bank’s main
office branch, is a 2.29 acre plot of land. The site was purchased for $576 thousand and the building
costs were: approx]mately $1 .0 million., The branch operates in an 8,500 square foot facility located .on
this site. S 3 : : '

In October 2000, the Bank acqulred an additional 2. 0 acres ad]acent to the' existing facrlrty for
approximately $300 thousand. This site’ was des1gned to allow for a 24,000 to 48,000 square foot facility
at some future date. The Bank completed construction and occupied the: 28,000 square foot
admmrstratwe center in Tuly 2006. The total .construction cost for the building was approx;mately
$3.4 million. The Lexmgton property is owned by the Bank. :

Forest Acres Property. We operate a branch office facility at 4404 Forest Drive, Columbia, South
Carolina 29206. The Forest Acres site is .71 acres. The banking facility is approximately 4,000 square
feet with a total cost of land and facility of approx1mately $920 thousand. Thrs property is owned by the
Bank. : :

Irmo Propenfy We operate a branch- offrce fac111ty at 1030 Lake Murray Boulevard Irmo South
Carolina 29063. The Irmo site is approximately one acre. The bankmg facility is apprommately 3,200
square feet with a total cost of land and facility of approximately $1.1 million. This property is owned
by the Bank. : :

Cayce/West Columbia Property. We operate a branch office facility at 506 Meetmg Street, West
Columbia, South Carolina, 29169. The Cayce/West Columbia site is approximately 1.25 acres. The
banking facility is approximately 3,800 square feet with a total cost of land and facility of approximately
$935 thousand. This property is owned by the Bank. :

Gilbert Property. 'We operate a branch office at 4325 Augusta Highway Gilbert, South
Carolina 29054. The facility is an approximate 3,000 square foot facility located on an approximate one
acre lot. The total cost of the land and facility was approximately $768 thousand. This property is
owned by the Bank. ’

Chapin Office.  'We operate a branch office facility at 137 Amicks Ferry Rd., Chapin, South
Carolina 29036. The facility is approximately 3,000 square feet and is located on a three acre lot. The
total cost of the facility and land was approximately $1.3 million. This property is owned by the Bank.

Northeast Columbia. We operate a branch office facility at 9822 Two Notch Rd., Columbia, South
Carolina 29223. The facility is approximately 3,000 square feet and is located on a one acre lot. The
total cost of the facility and land was approximately $1.2 million. This property is owned by the Bank.

Prosperity Property. We operate a branch office at 101 N. Wheeler Avenue, Prosperity, South
Carolina 29127. This office was acquired in connection with the DutchFork merger. The banking facility
is approximately 1,300 square feet and is located on a .31 acre lot. The total cost of the facility and
land was approximately $175 thousand. This property is owned by the Bank. On December 27, 2012,
we purchased 1.23 acres directly adjacent to the existing branch for $222 thousand. This additional
land, along with existing property, will be used to replace the existing facility.

Wilson Road. We operate a branch office at 1735 Wilson Road, Newberry, South Carolina 29108.
The banking office was acquired in connection with the DutchFork merger. This banking facility is
approximately 12,000 square feet and is located on a 1.56 acre lot. Adjacent to the branch facility is a
13,000 square foot facility which was formerly utilized as the DutchFork operations center. The total
cost of the facility and land was approximately $3.3 million. This property is owned by the Bank.
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Redbank Property. We operate a branch office facility at 1449 Two Notch Road, Lexington, South-
Carolina 29073. This branch opened for operation on February 3, 2005. The facility is approximately
3,000 square feet and is located on a one acre lot. The total cost of the facxhty and land was
apprommately $1.3 m11110n This property is owned by the Bank.

Camden Property. ‘We operate a branch office facility at 631 DeKalb Street, Camden; South -
Carolina 29020. This office was acquired in connection with the DeKalb merger. The facility is
approximately 11,247 square feet and is located on a two acre lot. The total cost of the facility and land
was appro;nmately $2.2 mllhon ‘This property is owned by the Bank

Highway 219 Property. A .61 acre lot located on’ highway 219 in Newberry County was acquired i m
connection with the DutchFork merger. This lot may be used for a future branch location but no -
definitive plans have been made. The current value of this lot is approximately $250 thousand. This
property is owned by the Bank.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

In the ordinary course of operations we may be a party to various legal proceedings from time to:
time. We do not believe that there is any pending or threatened proceeding against us, which, if
determined adversely, would have a material effect on our busmess, results of operations, or flnanmal
condition.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

None.
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'PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases
of Equlty Securities.

As of March 15, 2013, there were approx1mate1y 1,502 shareholders of record of our common
stock. On January 15, 2003, our stock began-trading on The NASDAQ Capital Market under the
trading symbol of “FCCO.” Prior to January 15, 2003, our stock was quoted on the OTC Bulletin
Board under the trading symbol “FCCO.OB.” The following table sets forth the high and low sales
price information as reported by NASDAQ in 2012 and 2011, and the dividends per share declared on
our common stock in each such quarter. All information has been adjusted for any stock splits and
stock dividends effected during the periods presented.

S High Low Dividends
2012 ' '

Quarter ended March 31,2012 . . .. .......... ... .... $8.00 $5.98. $0.04
Quarter ended June 30,2012 .. .......... ... ..., '$8.80 $7.65° $0.04
Quarter ended September 30,2012.............. ... $8.60 $7.84  $0.04
Quarter ended December 31 2012 ... $8.68 $8.15  $0.04
2011

Quarter ended March 31,2011 ... .................. $675 $540  $0.04
Quarter ended June 30,2011 ... ....... .. ... .. $735 $6.44  $0.04
Quarter ended September 30,2011 . ................. $7.00 $6.17  $0.04
Quarter ended December 31,2011 ........... cev.... $6.60 $542  $0.04

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the future dividend policy of the Company is subject to the
discretion of the board of directors and will depend upon a number of factors, including future
earnings, financial condition, cash requirements, and general business conditions. Our ability to pay
dividends is generally limited by the ability of the Bank to pay dividends to us. As a South Carolina
chartered bank, the Bank is subject to limitations on the amount of dividends that it is permitted to
pay. Unless otherwise instructed by the S.C. Board, the Bank is generally permitted under South
Carolina state banking regulations to- pay cash dividends of up to 100% of net income in any calendar
year without obtaining the prior approval of the S.C. Board.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

(Dollars in thousands except per share amounts)
Balance Sheet Data:

Total assets . . . oo v v [P
Loansheldforsale .. .. .... ... ... i,
Loans ............... T T
Deposits . . .. ... ... S T
Total common shareholders’ equity.. . . . . . vov v v L b
Total shareholders’ equity . . . . .« oo vttt e
Average shares outstanding, basic . . . ... ... ... oo
Average shares outstanding, diluted . ... ......... ... ...

Results of Operations:

Interest iNCOME . . . . . . v v v/ttt ittt e
INterest EXPemse . . o . o v v v vt i e e s
Net interest inCoOme . . .« v v v v v v v v v i e et s e
Provision for loan losses . . . . . W e b e e et e
Net interest income after provision for loan losses . ..........
Non-interest income (I0SS8) . . . oo v it iin et
Securities gains (10sses) . . .. ... L i .
NOD-INtErest EXPENSES v v v v v v v e v e n et e
Impairment of goodwill . ........... ... .. i
Income (loss) before taxes ... ... e e
Income tax expense (benefit) . . . ...... ... ... L i i
Netincome (I08S) . . . o oo v ii e it i i
Amortization of Warrants . . .. ... v e e e

Preferred stock dividends, including discount accretion and

redemption costs . . .. . ..
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders . . . ... ....

Per Share Data:

Basic earnings (loss) per common share . . . . ... ..., 0.l ‘
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share ... . .............
Book value at period end . . . .. ....... ... .. e
Tangible book value at period end . ............ . ...
Dividends per common share. . ........... e e

Asset Quality Ratios:

Non-performing assets to total assets(4) . . ... .o v oo v
Non-performing loans to period end loans .. ..........0 .. .
Net charge-offs to average loans. . . .. ....... ... . 0.0 van.
Allowance for loan losses to period-end total loans . . .. .......
Allowance for loan losses to non-performing assets . . . . ... .. ..

Selected Ratios:
Return on average assets:

GAAP earnings (10sS) . . . ..o o v i e
Operating earnings(3) . . .« .« oo it e

Return on average common equity.

GAAP earnings (10SS) . . . v v vttt
Operating earnings (1oss)(3) . . . ... ... oo v o

Return on average tangible common equity:

GAAP earnings (I0SS) . . .« o v v v vttt e e

Operating earnings (1oss)(3) . . . .. ..o e
Efficiency Ratio(1) . ... ..o it
Noninterest income 1o operating revenue(2) .. .............
Netinterest margin . . . . .. ..ot v i e it et
BQuity to @sSets . . . v v v e
Tangible common shareholders’ equity to tangible assets . ... ...
Tier 1 risk-based capital . . . .. ... .. .. i
Total risk-based capital . . . . ..., ... ..o
Leverage . .. ..t v ittt e e e
Average loans to average deposits(S) . . . .. . o oo

AS of or For the Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
$602,925 $593,887 $599,023  $605,827  $650,233
9658 . 3,725 = — —
332111 324311 329954 344,187 332,964
4740977 464585 . 455344 - 449,576 423798
54183 36759 30762 30501 57,306
54183 47896 41797 41440 68,156
4,144 3,287 3,262 3252 3203
4172 3,287 3,262 3252 3,203
$ 23002 § 25526 $ 27511 $ 30981 $ 33,008
5,428 7,209 90374 13,104 15810
17574 18317 18,137 17877 17,198
496 1,420 1878 3,103 2,129
17,078 16897 16259 14,774 15,069
7,929 5,710 3,017 3543 (10,056)
26 575 827 1,489 (28)
19,445 18401 17,684 16580 15,539
— — — 27,761 —
5,588 4781 2419 (24535)  (10,554)
1,620 1457 565 696  (3,761)
3,968 3,324 1,854 (25231)  (6,793)
7 102 9% . 89 9
604 568 568 567 62
3,292 2,654 1,190  (25887)  (6,864)
$ 079 $ 081 $ 036 $ (795 $ (2.14)
0.79 0.81 036  (795) . (214)
1037 11.11 941 938 17.76
10.23 10.83 914 892 850
0.16 0.16 016 - 024 0.32
145%  216%  220%  138%  039%
144%  “167% - 190%  150% = 0.54%
017% ~ 050%  054%  084%  034%
139%  145%  149%  141%  138%
52771%  35.83%  3739%  5821% 178.53%
055%  044%  020%  (390)% (1.10)%
055%  044%  020%  039%  048%
740%  798%  373% (49.66)% (11.11)%
740%  798%  373%  498%  4.82%
755%  816%  387% (89.13)% (21.60)%
755%  816%  387%  894%  937%
UR%  1555%  BBO%  T3A4T%  1274%
3116%  2555%  1748%  21.97%  19.18%
322%  333%  326%  310%  3.16%
899%  806%  697%  684%  10.48%
888%  604%  500%  480%  4.42%
1733%  1533% 1373%  1241%  12.58%
1858%  1725%  1499%  1356%  13.73%
1063%  940%  879%  841%  8.28%
7033%  7059%  7353%  16.99%  7545%

(1) The efficiency ratio is a key performance indicator in our industry. The ratio is computed by dividing non-interest expense,
less goodwill impairment, by the sum of net interest income on a tax equivalent basis and non-interest income, net of any
securities gains or losses and OTTI on securities. It is a measure of the relationship between operating expenses and

earnings.

38



(2) Operating revenue is defined as net interest income plus noninterest income, exciuding OTTT related to the write-down of
FHLMC preferred shares in 2008. ) ; . o

(3) Constitutes a non-GAAP financial measure. Please see “Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures” below.
(4) Includes non-accrual loans, ioans > 90 ‘days deiihquent and still accruing interest and OREO.
(5) Includes loans held for sale. .

Reconciliations

The following is-a reconciliation for the five years ended December 31, 2012, of net income (loss)
as reported for generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and the non-GAAP measure
referred to throughout our discussion of “operating earnings.”

December 31; B

(Dollars in thousands) . Lo 2012 2011 . 2010 2009 2008
Net income (loss), as reported (GAAP) ........... $3,968 $3;324 - $1,854 $(25,231) §$ (6,793)
Add: Income tax expense (benefit) . ............ 1,620 1,457 565 - 696 (3,761)

© 5,588 4781 2,419 (24,535) (10,554)
Non-operating items: C ' '

Goodwill impairmnt charge ................ = = — 21761 —
- Other-than-temporary-impairment on' FHLMC ' ‘ '
preferred shares ... .. 7. . ........... e = — — 14,325
Pre-tax operating earnings . . ................ ... 5588 4781 2419 3,226 3,771
- Related income tax expense ................ - 1,620 1,457 565 = 696 - 825
Operating earnings, (net income, excluding non : : ‘
operatingitems) .......................... $3,968 $3,324 $1,854 $ 2530 $ 2,946

The following isa reconciliation for the five years ended December 31, 2012, of non-interest ‘
income (loss) as reported for GAAP and the non-GAAP measure referred to throughout our discussion

regarding non-interest income (loss).

(Dollars in thouSgnds) ' ) ' 2012 qulv w 2010 2009 2008
Non-interest income (loss), as reported (GAAP) ...... $7955 $6,285 $3,844  $5,032 $(10,084)
Non-operating items: . ’ '
Other-than-temporary-impairment charge . . . . . . . — — — — 14,325
Operating non-interest income ........... el $7,9550 $6,285  $3,844  $5,032 $ 4,241

The following is a reconciliation for the five years ended December 31, 2011, of non-initerest. -
expense as reported for GAAP and the non-GAAP measure referred to throughout our discussion
regarding non-interest expense. ' o

i ) - 2012 - 2011 - . - 2010 2009 :2008

(Dollars in thousands): -~ - v i
Non-interest expense, as reported (GAAP) . . ... .. $19,445  $18,401 $17,684 $44,341 * $15,539
Non-operating items: - - - ‘ ' SR ' I a
Impairment of goodwill ,................. — —_ — 27,761 - —
Operating non-interest expense . .. ... .. .. ... ... -$19,445  $18401 $17,684 - $16,580 $15,539

Our management believes that the non-GAAP measures above are useful because they enhance -
the ability.of investors and management to evaluate and compare our operating results from period to -
period in a meaningful manner. These non-GAAP measures should not be considered as an alternative
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to any measure of performance as promulgated under GAAP, and investors should consider the OTTI
charges in the second and third quarter of 2008 when assessing the performance of the company.
Non-GAAP measures have limitations as analytical tools, and investors should not:consider them in
isolation or as a substitute for analysis of the company’s results as reported under GAAP.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
Overview

First Community Corporation is a one bank holding company headquartered in Lexington, South
Carolina. We operate from our main office in Lexington, South Carolina, and our 11 full-service offices
located in Lexington (two), Forest Acres, Irmo, Cayce-West Columbia, Gilbert, Chapin, Northeast
Columbia, Prosperity, Newberry and Camden, South Carolina. During the second quarter of 2006, we
completed our acquisition of DeKalb Bankshares, Inc., the holding company for The Bank of Camden.
The merger added one office in Kershaw County located in the Midlands of South Carolina. During
the fourth quarter of 2004, we completed our first acquisition of another financial institution when we
merged with DutchFork Bancshares, Inc., the holding company for Newberry Federal Savings Bank.
The merger added three offices in Newberry County. In 2007, our College Street office in Newberry
was consolidated with our Wilson Road Office in Newberry. On September 15, 2008, the Company
completed the acquisition of two financial planning and investment advisory. firms, EAH Financial
Group and Pooled Resources, LLC. In addition, the Bank expanded its residential mortgage business
unit with the acquisition of the assets of Palmetto South Mortgage Corporation (“Palmetto South”),
effective July 31, 2011. Palmetto South, which operates as a division of the Bank, offers mortgage loan
products for home purchase or refinance in the South Carolina market area. We engage in'a general
commercial and retail banking business characterized by personalized service and local decision making,
emphasizing the banking needs of small to medium-sized businesses, professional concerns and
individuals. :

The following discussion describes our results of operations for 2012, as compared to 2011 and
2010, and also analyzes our financial condition as of December 31, 2012, as compared to December 31,
2011. Like most community banks, we derive most of our income from interest we receive on our loans
and investments. A primary source of funds for making these loans and investments is our deposits, on
which we pay interest. Consequently, one of the key measures of our success is our amount of net
interest income, or the difference between the income on our interest-earning assets, such as loans and

investments, and the expense on our interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits.

We have included a number of tables to assist in our description of these measures. For example,
the “Average Balances” table shows the average balance during 2012, 2011 and 2010 of each category
of our assets and liabilities, as well as the yield we earned or the rate we paid with respect to each
category. A review of this table shows that our loans. typically provide higher interest yields than do
other types of interest earning assets, which is why .we intend to channel a substantial percentage of our
earning assets into our loan portfolio. Similarly, the “Rate/Volume Analysis” table helps demonstrate
the impact of changing interest rates and changing volume of assets and liabilities during the years
shown. We also track the sensitivity of our various categories of assets and liabilities to changes in
interest rates, and we have included a “Sensitivity Analysis Table” to help explain this. Finally, we have
included a number of tables that provide detail about our investment securities, our loans, and our
deposits and other borrowings.

There are risks inherent in all loans, so we maintain an allowance for loan losses to absorb
probable losses on existing loans that may become uncollectible. We establish and maintain this
allowance by charging a provision for loan losses against our operating earnings. In the following
section we have included a detailed discussion of this process, as well as several tables describing our
allowance for loan losses and the allocation of this allowance among our various categories of loans.
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In addition to earning interest on our loans and investments, we earn income through fees and
other expenses we charge to our customers. We describe the various components of this noninterest
income, as well as our noninterest expense, in the following discussion. The discussion and analysis also
identifies significant factors that have affected our financial position and operating results during the
periods included in the accompanying financial statements. We encourage you to read this discussion
and analysis in conjunction with the financial statements and the related notes and the other statistical
information also included in this report.

Recent Developments

Following a 2012 on-site examination of the Bank, the OCC notified the Bank that, effective
June 28, 2012, the Bank was no longer subject to the Formal Agreement that it entered into with the
OCC in 2010. The OCC also notified the Bank that, effective June 28, 2012, it was no longer subject to
the Individual Minimum Capital Ratios established for the Bank on February 24, 2010, which had |
required the Bank to maintain a Tier 1 leverage capital ratio of at least 8.00%, a Tier 1 risk-based
capital ratio of at least 10.00%, and a total risk-based capital ratio of at least 12.00%. The general
regulatory minimums to be well-capitalized are a Tier 1 leverage capital ratio of at least 5.00%, a
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of at least 6.00%, and a total risk-based capital ratio of at least 10.00%.
These regulatory capital ratios for the Bank were 10.34%, 16.87% and 18.12%, respectively, as of
December 31, 2012. The Bank is well-capitalized for regulatory purposes. In addition, the Federal
Reserve Bank of Richmond notified the Company that, effective July 10, 2012, the Company is no
longer subject to the MOU that it had entered into with the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond in
December of 2011. : : » R '

On July 27, 2012, the Company closed a public offering of common stock. The offering resulted in
the issuance of a total of 1,875,000 shares of common stock at $8.00 per share, including 244,565 shares
granted to the underwriters to cover overallotments, resulting in gross proceeds of $15 million. Net
proceeds were approximately $13.8 million after deducting underwriting, discount, commissions and
other estimated expenses. ' '

On August 29, 2012, we repurchased $3.78 million of our Series T Preferred Stock from the
Treasury through a modified Dutch auction process. This represented 3,780 shares of the original
11,350 shares of preferred stock sold to the Treasury in November 2008 pursuant to the TARP CPP.
The remaining 7,570 shares of Series T Preferred Stock were purchased in this same auction by third
party investors unrelated to the Company. The auction price was $982.83 per share, which we believe
was the highest price paid through that date for a company’s shares in the Treasury’s TARP preferred
stock auctions. B ) ' .

Between September 30, 2012 and October 8, 2012, we repurchased or redeemed the remaining
shares of Series T Preferred Stock from the third party investors at par. The repurchase amount,
including those repurchased directly from the Treasury, included related non-recurring expenses in the
amount of $119 thousand including attorney costs, accounting costs, and Treasury underwriter costs. In
addition, we recorded a charge for the remaining discount accretion of approximately $159 thousand.

On October 1, 2012, we completed a planned conversion from a national bank charter to a South
Carolina state bank charter as a non-member bank. It is anticipated that this conversion will reduce
certain regulatory examination costs in the future. . :

On October 25, 2012, the Treasury accepted our bid to repurchase the CPP Warrant to purchase
195,915 shares of our common stock issued to the Treasury pursuant to the TARP CPP. The repurchase
price agreed upon was $297,500, and the transaction was completed in the fourth quarter of 2012. The
settlement of the CPP Warrant completely eliminated the Treasury’s equity stake in the Company
through the TARP CPP.
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On November 15, 2012, we redeemed_the $2.5 million of outstanding subordinated debt at par
which was issued in November 2011. o » :

Critical Accounting Policies

We have adopted various accounting policies that govern the application of accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States and with general practices within the banking industry in the
preparation of our financial statements. Our significant accounting policies are described in the notes
to our consolidated financial statements in this report.

Certain accounting policies involve significant judgments and assumptions by us that have a
material impact on the carrying value of certain assets and liabilities. We consider these accounting
policies to be critical accounting policies. The judgment and assumptions we use are based on historical
experience and other factors, which we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Because of
the nature of the judgment and assumptions we make, actual results could differ from these judgments
and estimates that could have a material impact on the carrying values of our assets and liabilities and
our results of operations. ) '

We believe the allowance for loan losses is the critical accounting policy that requires the most
significant judgment and estimates used in preparation of our consolidated financial statements. Some
of the more critical judgments supporting the amount of our allowance for loan losses include
judgments about the credit worthiness of borrowers, the estimated value of the. underlying collateral,
the assumptions about cash flow, determination of loss factors for estimating credit losses, the impact
of current events, and conditions, and other factors impacting the level of probable inherent losses.
Under different conditions or using different assumptions, the actual amount of credit losses incurred
by us may be different from management’s estimates provided in our consolidated financial statements.
Refer to the portion of this discussion that addresses our allowance for loan losses for a more complete
discussion of our processes and methodology for determining our allowance for loan losses.

The evaluation and recognition of other-than-temporary impairment (“OTTI”) on certain
investments including our private label mortgage-backed securities requires significant judgment and
estimates. Some of the more critical judgments supporting the evaluation of OTTI include projected
cash flows including prepayment assumptions, default rates ‘and severities of losses on the underlying
collateral within the security. Under different conditions or utilizing different assumptions, the actual
OTTI recognized by us may be different from the actual amounts recognized in our, consolidated
financial statements. See Note 4 to the financial statements for the disclosure of certain of the
assumptions used as well as OTTI recognized in the financial statements during the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

Results of Operations

"Our net income was $4.0 million, or $0.79 diluted earnings per common share, for the year ended '
December 31, 2012, as compared to net income of $3.3 million, or $0.81 diluted earnings per common
share, for the year ‘ended December 31, 2011. During 2012, we continued to control our growth in
assets by reducing funding from FHLB borrowings and certificates of deposits greater than $100,000.
We were able to grow loans (excluding loans held for sale) by $7.8 million from December 31, 2011 to
December 31, 2012 despite the continued slow economic environment. Average loan balances increased
slightly during 2012 to $331.6 million compared to $329.5 million in 2011.

Net interest income decreased $743 thousand in 2012 from $18.3 million in 2011. The decrease in
net interest income is due to the continuation of historically low interest rates throughout 2011 and
2012. The net interest margin, on a tax equivalent basis, during 2012 was 3.22% as compared to 3.33%
during 2011. See below under “Net Interest Income” and “Market Risk and Interest Rate Sensitivity”
for a further discussion about the effect of the increase in net interest margin. Net interest spread, the
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difference between the yield on earning assets and the rate paid on interest-bearing| liabilities, was .
2.95% in 2012 as compared t0-3:11% in 2011. The provision for loan losses was $496 thousand in 2012
as compared to $1.4 million in 2011. The reduction in the provision for loan losses reflects lower net
charge-offs and an improvement in our credit quality measures over the last year. Non-interest income
was $8.0 million in 2012 as compared to $6.3 million in 2011. This.increase was primarily. due to
increased mortgage origination fees as a result of the expansion of this business through the acquisition
of Palmetto South Mortgage Corporation “PSMC” in the second half of 2011. Non-interest expense -
increased to $19.4 million in 2012 as compared to $18.4 million in 2011. As discussed below under
“Non-interest incomé and expense,” the i 1ncrease is attributable to increases 1n salary and benefits of
$1.6 million in 2012as compared to 2011, . .

Net interest income increased $180 thousand in 2011 from $18 1 mllhon in:2010 to $18.3 million in
2011. The increase in net interest income was primarily due to the increase in the nct interest margin
in 2011 as compared to 2010. The impact of the improvement in net interest margin was somewhat
offset by a decrease in average earning assets of $5.5 million from $556.0 million during 2010 to
$550.5 million in 2011. The net interest margin, on a-tax equivalent basis, during 2010 was 3.28%, as
compared to 3.33% during 2011. Net interest spread, the difference between the yield on earning assets
and the rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities, was 3.11% in 2011, as compared‘to 3.01% in. 2010. The
provision for loan losses was $1.9 million in 2010 as compared to $1.4 million in 2011. Non-interest -
income was $3.8 million in 2010 as compared to $6.3 million in 2011. This increase is primarily: due to -
lower other-than-temporary-impairment charges, and increases in both mortgage origination fees and
fee income on investment advisory services and commission on sale of non-deposit products in 2011 as
compared to 2010. Non-interest expense increased to $18.4 million in 2011 as compared to
$17.7 million in 2010. As discussed below under “Non-interest income and expense,” the increase is
primarily attributable to increases in salary and benefits of $578 thousand in 2011 as compared to 2010.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income is our primary source of revenue. Net interest income is the difference
between income earned on assets and interest paid on deposits and borrowings used to support such
assets. Net interest income is determined by the rates earned on our interest-earning assets and the
rates paid on our interest-bearing liabilities, the relative amounts of interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities, and the degree of mismatch and the maturity and repricing characteristics of its
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities.

Net interest income totaled $17.6 million in 2012, $18.3 million in 2011 and $18.1 million in 2010.
The yield on earning assets was 4.15%, 4.64%, and 4.95% in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The
rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities was 1.20%, 1.53%, and 1.94% in 2012, 2011, and 2010,
respectlvely The fully taxable equivalent net interest margin was 3.22% in 2012, 3.33% in 2011 and
3.28% in 2010. Our loan to deposit ratio on average during 2012 was 70.3%, as compared to 70.6%
during 2011 and 73.5% during 2010. Loans typically provide a higher yield than other types of earning
assets, and thus, one of our goals is to grow the loan portfolio as a percentage of earning assets in
order to improve the overall yield on earning assets and the net interest margin. At December 31,
2012, the loan (including held for sale) to deposit ratio was 71.9%.

The net interest margin decreased in 2012 as compared to 2011. Starting in early 2008 and

continuing through 2012, interest rates have been at historic lows. The yield on earning assets
- decreased by 49 basis points and our cost of funds decreased by 33 basis points in 2012 as compared to

2011. This resulted in a decrease in our net interest spread of 16 basis points in 2012 as compared to
2011. Continued historically low interest rates have impacted our ability to reduce funding cost in
relation in proportion to the decline in earning asset yields. As a result, we continued to control the
growth of our balance sheet and increased our funding from lower cost sources (non-interest bearing
transaction accounts, interest-bearing transaction accounts, money market accounts and savings
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deposits). During 2012, the average balance in these accounts increased by $26:0 million as compared
to 2011. This change in the mix of funding sources has lessened the impact of the significant decline in
our yield on earning assets. Our average borrowings and time deposits, which are typically the higher
costing funding source, decreased $36.9 million and $18.6 million, respectively, in 2012 as compared to
2011. Throughout 2012, time deposits and borrowed funds represented 59.9% of our total interest
bearing funding sources and in 2011 these balances represented 65.1% of our interest bearing funding
sources. : N o '

The net interest margin showed slight improvement in 2011 as compared to 2010. The yield on
earning assets decreased by 31 basis points and our cost of funds decreased by 41 basis points in 2011
as compared to 2010. This resulted in an increase in our net interest spread of 10 basis points in 2011
as compared to 2010. Close monitoring of time deposit pricing as well as reducing the level of
borrowed funds enabled our cost of funds to decline more than the yield on earning assets between the
two periods. Our average borrowings and time deposits, which are typically the higher costing funding
source, decreased $18.6 million and $14.8 million, respectively, in 2011 as compared to 2010. During
2011, the average balance in the lower cost sources of funding increased by $26.9 million as compared
to 2010. This change in the mix of funding sources contributed to the improvement in our margin
between the two periods. Throughout 2011, time deposits and borrowed funds represented 65.1% of
our total interest bearing funding sources and in 2010 these balances represented 70.3% of our interest
bearing funding sources. ' : ) : :

44



Average Balances, Income Expenses-and. Rates. - The following table depicts, for|the periods
indicated, certain information related to our: average balance sheet and our average yields on assets and
average costs of liabilities. Such yields are derived by dividing income or expense by the average
balance of the corresponding assets or liabilities. Average balances-have been derived from daily

averages.

(Dollars in thousands)
Assets
Earning assets

Loans(1) ............
Securities . . ..........

Other short-term

investments(2) . ......
Total earning assets . . . . .

Cash and due from banks . .-
Premises and equipment . . ..
Intangible assets . . .......
Otherassets............
Allowance for loan losses . . .

Total assets . ......

Liabilities

Interest-bearing liabilities(2)
Interest-bearing transaction
caccounts . ..... IR
Money market accounts . . .
Savings deposits .. ... ..
Time deposits . . .......
Other borrowings . . . ...

Total interest-bearing

liabilities . ........

Demand deposits .. ......
Other liabilities .........

Total liabilities and

shareholders’ equity . . .

Net interest spread . .. . . .. B
Net interest income/margin ...

Net interest margin (tax

equivalent)(3) .. ... .. ..-

(1) All loans and deposits are domestic.

sale.

(2) The computation includes federal

bearing deposits.

Year ended December 31,

(3) Based on 32.5% marginal tax rate.
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2012 2011 2010
Average Income/ Yield/ Average Income/ Yield/ Av:erage Income/ -Yield/
Balance Expense Rate Balance [Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate
$331,564 $18361 5.54% $320,534 $19,110 5.80% $337,143 $19851 5.89%
204,926 4,557 222% 205,744 6,342 3.08% 194,426 7,566 3.89%
17,234 84 . %2% 15,178 74 %% 2;4,420 94 0._32%%
553,724 - 23,002 4._15_% 550,456 25,526 ﬂ% 555,989 27,511 ﬁ%
8,643 7,992 7,556
17,388 - 17,759 18,343
832 740 1,189
25,556 31,791 30,755
- (4,843) (4,823) (4,882)
$601,300 $603,915 $608,950
~$ 89,734 - - 151 0.17% $ 83,625 270 032% $ 7b,138 359 0.51%
52,575 153 029% 48,802 209 043% 44,293 - 307 0.69%
039,020 .- 49 0.13% . 32,093 48 0.15% 29,271 76 0.26%
198,392 2,769 1.40% - 219,737 4,046 1.84% 238,297 5,539 2.32%
71,926 2306 3.21% _ 87460 2,636 301% 102,282 3093 3.02%
451,647 5428 120% 471717 7209 153% 484281 9,374 1.94%
91,737 82,572 76,485
5,469 5,286 5,269
52,447 44,340 42,915
$601,300 $603,915 $608,950
- 2.95% 3.11% 3.01%
$17,574 3.17% $18,317 3.33% $18,137 3.26%

328%

Average lban balances include npn-aécmal ldéns’ aind ioans held f‘or‘

funds sold, securities purchased under agreement to resell and'interest



The following table presents the dollar amount of changes in interest income and-interest expense
attributable to changes in volunie ‘and the amount attributable to changes in rate. ‘The combined effect -
in both volume and rate, which cannot be separately identified, has been allocated proportionately to -
the change due to volume and due to rate. ’ - o

2012 versus 2011 2011 versus 2010

Increase (decrease) due to Increase (decrease) due to
(In thousands) Volume Rate "~ Net Volume Rate Net
Assets C
Earning assets '
LOANS ..t vvie et $117 $ (866) $ (749) $(428) $ (313) § (741)
Investment securities. . . .........ouenn (25) (1,759) (1,784) 420 (1,645) - (1,225)
Other short-term investments ......... .. 10 0 10 (41) 21 (20)
Total earning assets . .............. 151 (2674) (2523) (277) (L,709) (1,986)
Interest-bearing liabilities - '
Interest-bearing transaction accounts ... ... 18 - (137) ". (119) 60 (149) . (89)
Money market accounts ............... 18 (74) (56) 36 (134) (98)
Savings deposits ... ... ...t 9 8 1 7 (35 . (28
Time deposits. . .......... e (366) (911) (1,277) (407) (1,086) - (1,493)
Other short-term borrowings . ........... (515) 186 (329) (447) (11) (458)
Total interest-bearing liabilities. . . .~ . ... (323) (1,457) (1,780) (250) (1,916) (2,166)
Net interest income .. .............. e - $ (743) , $ 180

Market Risk and Interest Rate Sensitivity

Market risk reflects the risk of economic loss resulting from adverse changes in market prices and
interest rates. The risk of loss can be measured in either diminished current market values or reduced
current and potential net income. Our primary market risk is interest rate risk. We have established an
Asset/Liability Management Committee (“ALCO”) to monitor and manage interest rate risk. The
ALCO monitors and manages the pricing and maturity of its assets and liabilities in order to diminish
the potential adverse impact that changes in interest rates could have on our net interest income. The
ALCO has established policy guidelines and strategies with respect to interest rate risk exposure and
liquidity. '

A monitoring technique employed by us is the measurement of our interest sensitivity “gap,” which
is the positive or negative dollar difference between assets and liabilities that are subject to interest rate
repricing within a given period of time. Also, asset/liability modeling is performed to assess the impact
varying interest rates and balance sheet mix assumptions will have on net interest income. Interest rate
sensitivity can be managed by repricing assets or liabilities, selling securities available-for-sale, replacing
an asset or liability at maturity or by adjusting the interest rate during the life of an-asset or liability.
Managing the amount of assets and liabilities repricing in the same time interval helps to hedge the
risk and minimize the impact on net interest income of rising or falling interest rates. Neither the
“gap” analysis or asset/liability modeling are precise indicators of our interest sensitivity position due to
the many factors that affect net interest income including, the timing, magnitude and frequency of
interest rate changes as well as changes in the volume and mix of earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities.

“The following table illustrates our interest rate sensitivity at December '3_1';'2012.
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Interest Sensitivity Analysis

' ,Withi‘n.. Oneto ,?T['hreeto iO?e?

(Dollars in thousands) One Year  ‘Three Years = Five Years = Five Years ' '~ Total -

Assets . ‘ ' ey

Earning assets S o . L '
Loans(l) . . ... ... SR S 111,690 $117,750° § 77,724 § 20,153 '$327,317
Loans Heldfor Sale ................. 9,658 = = = 9,658
Securities(2) . ..... .. i 78,971 45,833 26,013 . 51,636 202,453

Federal funds sold, securities purchased
under agreements to resell and other

earning assets ... ... ...l 7,021 — — — 7,021
Total earning'assets . . . ......covvi .. 207,340 163,583 103,737 71,789 546,449
Liabilities = - ‘ ST

Interest bearing liabilities
Interest bearing deposits : S : o
NOW accounts ............... PR 20,798 34,152 - 14,007 28,014 96,971

Money market accounts . . . . . e .. 13,476 18,866 - 5390 16,171 = 53,903
Savings deposits ... ...... e 8,220 - - 6,165 4,110 22,605 41,100
Time deposits . ........... eas s .. 109369 . 47,086 .. 29,020 2 . 185477
Total interest-bearing - deposits . ...~ ... . 151,863 106,269 52,527 166,792 377,451
Other borrowings .. ... .:¢vs e von e 31,411 - 4,094~ 20,096 12,107 67,708
Total interest-bearing liabilities . ....... ... " 183274 110363 72,623 | 78,899 445,159
Period ap . .« oo ovenene e . ... $24067 $53220 $31114 $ (7,110) $101,291
Cumulative gap.. . ....... Lo e g me s a g we $ 24,067 $ 77,287 $108,401 $101,291 $101,291

Ratio of cumulative gap to total earning assets . 4.40%  14.14%  19.84%  18.54%  18.54%

(1) .Loans CIaséiﬁf;d as non-acgfﬁal ,a‘s' of Décembeir 31, 20‘1;2. are not included in the balances _
(2) Securities based on amortized cost. = ’ '

We entered into a five year interest rate swap agreement on October 8, 2008. The swap agreement
has a $10.0 million notional amount. We receive a variable rate of interest on the notional amount '
based on a three month LIBOR rate and pay a fixed rate interest of 3.66%. The contract was entered
into to protect us from the negative impact of rising interest rates. Our exposure to credit risk is
limited to the ability of the counterparty to make potential future payments required pursuant to the
agreement. Our exposure to market risk of loss is limited to the changes in the miarket value 'of the
swap between reporting periods. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the fair value of the contract was a -
negative $338 thousand and $602 thousand, respectively. The fair value adjustment diring each
reporting period is recognized in other income. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010, the adjustment reflected in earnings amounted to ($58) thousand, $(166) thousand and $(581)
thousand, respectively. The fair value of the contract is the present value, over the rémaining -term of
the contract, of the difference between the estimated swap rate, for the remaining teirm’, at the
reporting date multiplied by the notional amount and the fixed interest rate of 3.66% multiplied by the
notional amount of the contract. The ‘interest rate swap contract expires on October 8, 2013. -

Through simulation modeling, we monitor the effect that an immediate and. sustained change in.
interest rates of 100 basis points and- 200 basis points up and down will have on net-interest income
over the next 12 months. Based on the many factors and assumptions used in simulating the effect of
changes in interest rates, the following table estimates the hypothetical percentage change in net
interest income at December 31, 2012 and 2011 over the subsequent 12 months. At December 31, 2012,
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we are s]ightly asset sensitive. As a result, our modeling reflects improvement in our net interest
income in a rising rate environment. In a declining rate environment, the model reflects a significant
decline in net interest income. This primarily results from the current level of interest rates being paid
on our intefest bearing transaction accounts as well as money market accounts. The interest rates on
these accounts are at a level where they cannot be repriced in proportion to the change in interest
rates. The increase and decrease of 100 and 200 basis points assume a simultaneous and parallel
change in interest rates along the entire yield curve.

Net Interest Income Sensitivity

‘Hypothetical
percentage change in
net interest income

: : December 31,
Change in short-term interest rates 2012 2011
F200bD . - 652%  3.05%
F100DD .« o oot 3.83%  2.06%
Flat . it e e e —_ —
—~100bP . . L ~9.05% —7.48%
—200bp ... e e N —13.58% —12.91%

We also perform a valuation analysis projecting future cash flows from assets and liabilities to
determine the Present Value of Equity (“PVE”) over a range of changes in market interest rates. The
sensitivity of PVE to changes in interest rates is a measure of the sensitivity of earnings over a longer
time. horizon. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the PVE exposure in a plus 200 basis point increase in
market interest rates was estimated to be 7.53% and 2.70%, respectively. During 2012 and 2011, the
improvement in the PVE to rising rates is a result of two factors. The first is the change in the mix of
our funding sources as noted above in the “Net Interest Income” section above. The other significant
impact results from changes in certain assumption in our interest rate risk model in 2011. During 2011,
we performed an internal analysis of our deposit products as it relates to repricing and decay
assumptions on certain deposit products. This study resulted in lengthening the average life and decay
rates of our deposit products from what had been modeled in prior periods. The change in assumptions
was not run for prior periods as the change in these assumptlons has no unpact on the results of
operations or financial position.

Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses

At December 31, 2012, the allowance for loan losses amounted to $4.6 million, or 1.39% of loans
(excludes loans held for sale), as compared $4.7 million, or 1.45% of loans, at December 31, 2011. Our
provision for loan loss was $496 thousand for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to
$1.4 million and $1.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The
provision is made based on our assessment of general loan loss risk and asset quality. The allowance
for loan losses represents an amount which we believe will be adequate to absorb. probable losses on
existing loans that may become uncollectible. Our judgment as to the adequacy of the allowance for
loan losses is based on a number of assumptions about future events, which we believe to be
reasonable, but which may or may not prove to be accurate. Our determination of the allowance for
loan losses is based on evaluations of the collectablhty of loans, including consideration of factors such
as the balance of impaired loans, the quality, mix, and size of our overall loan portfolio, economic
conditions that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, the amount and quality of collateral securing
the loans, our historical loan loss experience, and a review of specific problem loans. We also consider
subjective issues such as changes in the lending policies and procedures, changes in the local/national
economy, changes in volume or type of credits, changes in volume/severity of problem loans, quality of
loan review and board of director oversight and concentrations of credit. Periodically, we adjust the
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amount of the allowance based on changing circumstances. We charge recognized. losses to the
allowance and add subsequent recoveries back to the allowance for loan losses. There, can be no
assurance that charge-offs of loans in future periods will not exceed the allowance -forjloan losses as
estimated at any point in time or that provisions for loan losses will not be significant;to a particular
accounting period, especially considering the overall weakness in the commercial real estate market in
our market areas. - : o

We perform an analysis quarterly to assess the risk within the loan portfolio. The! portfolio is
segregated into similar risk components for which historical loss ratios are calculated and adjusted for
identified changes in current portfolio characteristics. Historical loss ratios are calculated by product
type and by regulatory credit risk classification (See Note 5—Loans). The annualized weighted average
loss ratios over the last 24 months for loans classified substandard, special mention and pass have been
approximately 3.55%, 1.43% and 0.19%, respectively. The allowance consists of an allocated and
unallocated allowance. The allocated portion is determined by types and ratings of loans within the
portfolio. The unallocated portion of the allowance is established for losses that exist in the remainder.
of the portfolio and compensates for uncertainty in estimating the loan losses. As.a result of the
economic downturn beginning in 2008 and continuing through 2012, real estate values have been
dramatically impacted. With our loan portfolio consisting of a large percentage of real estate secured
loans we, like most financial institutions, continue to experience higher delinquencies iand problem
loans from pre 2008 historical levels. Non-performing assets were $13.2 million (2.20% of total assets)
at December 31, 2010, $12.8 million (2.16% of total assets) at December 31, 2011, and $8.8 million
(1.45% of total assets) at December 31, 2012. While we continue to experience moderation in this ratio
as evidenced by the decline as of December 31, 2012 compared to December 31, 2011, and we believe
these ratios are favorable in comparison to current industry results nationally and specifically in our
local markets, we continue to be concerned about the impact of this economic environment on our
customer base of local businesses and professionals. As noted below in the “Allocation of the
Allowance for Loan Losses” table, the unallocated portion of the allowance as a percentage of the total
allowance has grown over the last several years. The allocated portion of the allowance is based on
historical loss experience as well as certain qualitative factors as explained above. The unallocated
portion of the allowance is established for losses that exist in the remainder of the portfolio and -
compensates for uncertainty in estimating the loan losses. The unallocated portion of the allowance is
composed of factors based on management’s evaluation of various conditions that are not directly
measured in the estimation of probable losses through the experience formula or specific allowances.
The unallocated allowance of the portfolio is primarily identified through discussions with senior credit
management and through consideration of various portfolio specifics and other uncertainties outside of
our markets that could impact the risk inherent in the portfolio. These include factors such as
uncertainty as to a sustainable economic recovery, ongoing global debt crisis and sustained levels of
high national unemployment. Given these uncertainties in economic conditions and particularly real
estate valuations, we do not believe it would be prudent to reduce substantially the overall level of our
allowance at this time. The unallocated portion as a percentage of the loan portfolio has grown
recently, primarily as a result of higher historical loss periods dropping out of our overall analysis
accompanied by a relatively flat loan portfolio. As economic conditions show sustainable improvement,
we believe the unallocated portion of the allowance should decrease as a percentage of the total
allowance. In the near term, however, this percentage may continue to increase slightly.

Our Company has a significant portion of its loan portfolio with real estate as the underlying
collateral. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, approximately 92.0% of the loan portfolio had real estate
collateral (see Note 15 to financial statements for concentrations of credit). When loans, whether
commercial or personal, are granted, they are based on the borrower’s ability to generate repayment
cash flows from income sources sufficient to service the debt. Real estate is generally taken to reinforce
the likelihood of the ultimate repayment and as a secondary source of repayment. During this
economic cycle many borrowers’ traditional income sources have been impacted negatively and real
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estate values have dropped significantly. We continue to work closely with all our borrowers that are
experiencing economic problems as a result of this cycle and believe we have the processes in place to
monitor and identify problem credits. There can be no assurance that charge-offs of loans in future
periods will not exceed the allowance for loan losses as estimated at any point in time or that
provisions for loan losses will not be significant to a particular accounting period. The allowance is also
subject to examination and testing for adequacy by regulatory agencies, which may consider such factors
as the methodology used to determine adequacy and the size of the allowance relative to that of peer
institutions. Such regulatory agencies could require us to adjust our allowance based on information
available to them at the time of their examination.

At December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, we had non-accrual loans in the amount of $4.7 million,
$5.4 million and $5.9 million, respectively. Nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2012 consisted of
23 loans. All of these loans are considered to be impaired, are substantially all real estate-related, and
have been measured for impairment under the fair value of the collateral method. We consider a loan
to be impaired when, based upon current information and events, it is believed that we will be unable
to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Such fair values
are obtained using independent appraisals, which we consider to be level 2 inputs. The aggregate
amount of impaired loans was $6.2 million and $9.4 million for the years ending December 31,.2012
and 2011, respeéctively. The non-accrual loans range in size from $1 thousand to $1.4 million. The
largest relationship is in the amount of $1.4 million with a mortgage on an owner occupied commercial
business located in the midlands of South Carolina. :

In addition to the non-accrual loans that are considered to be impaired, we have nine loans
totaling $1.5 million that are classified as troubled debt restructurings but are accruing loans as of
December 31, 2012. The largest relationship consists of two loans totaling $595 thousand. The real
estate securing these two loans is currently under contract to be sold by the borrower. (See Note 5,
Loans, to the consolidated financial statements for additional disclosures related to impaired loans and
troubled debt restructurings.) There were $2.6 million, $3.2 million, and $2.4 million in loans
delinquent 30 to 89 days at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. There were $55 thousand,
$25 thousand and $373 thousand in loans greater than 90 days delinquent and still accruing interest at
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Our management continuously monitors non-performing, classified and past due loans to identify
deterioration regarding the condition of these loans. We have identified three relationships in the
amount of $2.3 ‘million, which are current as to principal and interest at December 31, 2012 and not .
included in non-performing assets, that could be potential problem loans. Each of these loans is real
estate-related, and the loans range in size from $300 thousand to $800 thousand. They have been
identified as potential problems based on our review that their traditional sources of cash flow may
have been impacted and that they may ultimately not be able to service the debt. These loans are
continually monitored and are considered in our overall evaluation of the adequacy of our allowance
for loan losses. :

The following table summarizes the activity related to our allowance for loan losses.
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Allowance for Loan Losses
(Dollars in thousands) =
Average loans and loans held for sale

outstanding .......... ... .

Loans and loans held for sale outstanding at

periodend....... G e
Total nonaccrual loans . . ...............
Loans past.due 90 days and still accruing . . . .

Beginning balance of allowance ..........

Loans charged-off:

Construction and development loans . . . ..
1 - 4 family residential mortgage . .......
Non-farm non-residential mortgage . . . . ..
Multifamily residential ...............
Homeequity ........ovnvennneennn
Commercial . .. ...
Installment & creditcard .............
Overdrafts . .......... e e

Total loans charged-off .............

Recoveries:

1 - 4 family residential mortgage . . ... ...
Non-farm non-residential mortgage . ... ..
Home equity . ......cvvevuveennnnn.n
Commercial . . ... ... . i
Installment & creditcard .............
Overdrafts . .. ...

Total TECOVETIES . . v v v v v i v e e e e e
Net loans charged off" .. ............ e
Provision for loan OSSES . + o v v eee e e

Balance at periodend .. .......... .. ...

Net charge-offs to average loans..........
Allowance as percent of total loans . ... ...
Non-performing loans as % of total loans . . . .
Allowance as % of non-performing loans . . ..

2012

2011

2010 2009 2008
$331,564 $329,534 $337,143 $337,743  $318,954
$341,769  $328,036  $329,954 $344,187  $332,964
§ 4715 $ 5403 $ 5800 § 4136 $ 1757
§ 55 $ 258 313 0§ 1,02 $ 59
$ 4699 $ 4911 § 4854 $ 4581 § 3,530

— — — 1,402 -
126 465 1,273 450 763
187 498 223 117 —
93 84 — — =
— 285 187 107 16
1258 265 125 700 271
44 62 91 174 90
34 37 50 34 110
742 1,696 1,949 2,984 11,250
85 5 43 9 41
— —_ 2 8 —
3 5 9 4 - 4
42 31 32 73 52
25 10 19 54 “18
13 13 23 6 57
168 64 128 154 172
574 1,632 1821 | 2830 1,078
496 1,420 1878 3,103 2,129
$ 4621 $ 4699 $ 4911 § 4854  § 4,581
0.17% 0.50% 054% | 084%  0.34%
1.39% 1.45% 149% ' 141% 1.38%
1.44% 1.67% 1.90% ' 1.50% .55%
96.88%  86.60% 94.11%  252.26%
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The following table presents an allocation of the allowance for loan losses at the end of each of
the past five years. The allocation is calculated on an approximate basis and is not necessarily indicative
of future losses or allocations. The entire amount is ‘available to absorb losses occurring in any category
of loans. . :

Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses

2012 2011 - ; 2010 2009 2008

% of % of % of % of % of
loans - loans lo_ans lo;ms ' lo?ns

in in in in in
Dollars in thousand§ Amount category Amount category Amount category Amount category Amount category

Commercial, Financial ' A
and Agricultural . .. $§ 338 63% $ 331 6.4% $ 681 62% $ 634 6.6% $ 681 8.3%
Real Estate ‘

Construction . . . .. — 3.9% — 3.6% 905 32% 1,331 58% 1,319 8.7%
Real Estate Mortgage: '

Commercial . . . . .. 1,322 682% 1475 679% 1404 662% 1,522 622% 1,641 57.7%

Residential . ... .. 235 11.7% 514 11.8% 465 141% 243 14.8% 289 15.7%
Consumer. ........ 417 9.9% 578  10.3% 414 103% 133 . 10.6% 100 9.6%
Unallocated . ...... 2,309 N/A 1,801 N/A & 1,042 NA 991 N/A 551 N/A
Total ............ $4,621  100.0% $4,699 100.0% $4,911 100.0% $4,854 100.0% $4,581 100.0%

Accrual of interest is discontinued on loans when we believe, after considering economic and
business conditions and collection efforts that a borrower’s financial condition is such that the
collection of interest is doubtful. A delinquent loan is generally placed in nonaccrual status when ‘it
becomes 90 days or more past due. At the time a loan is placed in nonaccrual status, all interest, which
has been accrued on the loan but remains unpaid, is reversed and deducted from earnings as a
reduction of reported interest income. No additional interest is accrued on the loan balance until the
collection of both principal and interest becomes reasonably certain.

Noninterest Income and Expense

Noninterest Income. A significant source of noninterest income is service charges on deposit
accounts. We also originate fixed rate residential loans on a servicing released basis in the secondary
market. These loans are fixed rate residential loans that are originated in our name. These loans have
locked in price commitments to be purchased by investors at the time of closing. Therefore, these loans
present very little market risk for the Company. We typically deliver to, and receive funding from, the
investor within 30 days. Other sources of noninterest income are derived from investment advisory fees
and commissions on non-deposit investment products, bankcard fees, ATM/debit card fees, commissions
on check sales, safe deposit box rent, wire transfer and official check fees. Non-interest income
increased from $6.3 million in 2011 to $8.0 million in 2012. Deposit service charges decreased by
$248 thousand in 2012 as compared to 2011, primarily as a result of changes to Regulation E that
became effective July 1, 2010 required that customers affirmatively opt in to our overdraft protection
program. To the extent customers who had previously utilized this product did not opt in, these changes
have resulted in reduced fees resulting from ATM and point of sale transactions. It is expected that this
regulatory change, along with other proposals or recommendations related to overdraft protection
programs including mandated limitations on the number of items an institution can charge within
established time frames, as well as, the order in which items presented for payment must be processed
on accounts, could reduce deposit service charge fees in the future. Mortgage origination fees increased
by $2.2 million to $4.2 million in 2012 from $2.0 million in 2011. As previously noted, the addition of
Palmetto South as of July 31, 2011 was a significant contributor to the increased mortgage fees in the
third and fourth quarters of 2011 and throughout the entire year of 2012. Historically low interest rates
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continued to impact the level of refinancing activity during 2012. Investment advisoéry fees and
non-deposit commissions decreased to $651 thousand in 2012 as compared to $767 thousand in 2011.
An increased focus on this source of revenue should enable us to reverse this decline in 2013 and
thereafter. s : . S

During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, we sold certain non-agency MBS that were
rated below investment grade. In 2012, we sold eight below investment grade non-agency MBSs and
one investment grade corporate security with a total book value of approximately $11.7 million: The
loss on the sales amounted to approximately $2.1 million and was offset by gains of the approximate
same amount from the sale of certain agency MBSs and municipal securities. The sales in 2011 also
related primarily to the sale of certain non-agency MBSs that had been downgraded to below
investment grade. The sales of below investment grade and the other investment securities resulted in
net gains of $26 thousand and $575 thousand in 2012 and 2011, respectively. The pioceeds, were
reinvested in our investment portfolio, primarily in securities with a risk rating of 20% or less. During
the year ended December 31, 2012, we incurred OTTI charges of $200 thousand (credit component) on
certain non-agency MBSs that were sold as part of the transactions noted above. This compares to
OTTI charges in 2011 of $297 thousand (see Note 4—Investment Securities to our Consolidated
Financial Statements for further information). The sales as well as the OTTI charges in 2012 and 2011
continued to significantly reduce the level of securities on our balance sheet that are rated below
investment grade. At December 31, 2012, there were four remaining investments in our portfolio rated
below investment grade with a carrying value of $1.6 million. During the year ended December 31,
2012 and 2011, we prepaid FHLB advances in the amount of $6.0 million and $10.7 million,
respectively. We incurred losses in the amount of $217 thousand and $188 thousand during 2012 and
2011, respectively, as a result of the prepayment of these advances. ’ b ’

During 2012, we recorded a negative fair value adjustment on an interest rate swap with a notional
amount of $10.0 million in the amount of $58 thousand as compared to a negative $166 thousand in
2011. The interest rate swap was entered into in 2008 to protect assets and liabilities from the negative
impact in a rising interest rate environment (See “Market Risk and Interest Rate Sensitivity”
discussion). This swap expires on October 8, 2013.’ : ;

Deposit service charges decreased by $65 thousand in 2011 as compared to 2010. As previously.
discussed, changes to Regulation E that became effective July 1; 2010 required that customers
affirmatively opt in to our overdraft protection program. To the extent customers who had previously
utilized this product did not opt in, these changes have resulted in reduced fees resulting from ATM
and point of sale transactions. Mortgage origination fees increased by $939 thousand to $1.9 million in
2011 from $1.0 million in 2010. The addition of Palmetto South as of July 31, 2011 was a significant
contributor to the increased mortgage fees in the third and fourth quarters of 2011. Investment
advisory fees and non-deposit commissions increased to $767 thousand in 2011 as compared to
$501 thousand in 2010. This increase results from a continued effort and emphasis placed: on this
revenue source, as well as an overall increase in the assets under management. For the year ended
December 31, 2011, we had net gains on the sale of securities in the amount of $575 thousand, as -
compared to $827 thousand in the comparable period of 2010. The net gains related primarily to the
sale of certain non-agency MBSs that had been downgraded by the rating agencies to below investment
grade, other investment grade non-agency MBSs, agency MBSs and shares of FHLMC preferred stock.
The FHLMC preferred stock was previously written down in 2008 as a result of FHLMC being placed
into conservatorship. These sales were initiated to reduce the level of securities on our balance sheet
that were rated below investment grade. The cash generated from these transactions was reinvested in
our investment portfolio, primarily in securities with a risk rating of 20% or less. During 2010, we
restructured a portion of our available-for-sale investments. During the second quarter of 2010, we sold
a CDO and realized a loss in the amourit of $1.7 million. Approximately $41.0 million in
available-for-sale GSE bonds and MBSs were sold that realized a gain of appro)dmaf!ely $1.7 million. In
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the third and fourth quarters of 2010, we sold two corporate securities, certain non-taxable municipal
securities and other GSE securities and realized gains of $711 thousand. The sales and resulting net
gains during the last half of 2010 were a result of our desire to restructure the portfolio to better
position us for a rising rate environment as well as investing in securities that have a lower regulatory
risk weighting such as GNMA mortgage-backed securities and SBA pools.

Other than temporary impairment (“OTTI”) charges (credit component) were $297 thousand in
2011 as compared to $1.6 million in 2010. The 2011 OTTI charges were taken on four below
investment grade private label MBSs. In 2010, OTTI charges of $477 thousand (credit component)
were realized on nine private label mortgage backed securities and $1.1 million on one pooled trust
preferred security. ; : T .

During 2011, we recorded a negative fair value adjustment on an ifterest rate swap with a notional
amount of $10.0 million in the amount of $166 thousand. This compares to a negative fair value
adjustment of $581 thousand during 2010. The interest rate swap was entered into in 2008 to protect
assets and liabilities from ‘the negative impact in a rising interest rate environment (See “Market Risk’
and Interest Rate Sensitivity” discussion). In 2011, we realized a loss on early extinguishment of debt in
the amount of $188 thousand. “Other” non-interest income increased by $253 thousand in 2011 as
compared to 2010. The increase primarily relates to increases in'ATM surcharge and debit card
exchange fees of $220 thousand. This results from an increase in number of new transaction accounts
as well as increased usage of our debit card product by existing customers. During 2010, we realized fee
income related to ATM and debit card usage, to include interchange fees, of approximately ’
$840 thousand as compared to $1.0 million in 2011. " '

Noninterest Expense. In the very competitive financial services industry, we recognize the need to
place a great deal of emphasis on expense management and continually evaluate and monitor growth in
discretionary expense categories in order to control future increases. Noninterest expense increased
from $18.4 million in 2011 to $19.4 million in 2012. Salary and benefit expense increased $1.7 million
from $9.5 million in the 2011 to $11.2 million in 2012. At December 31, 2011, we had 157 full time
equivalent employees as compared to 158 full time employees at December 31, 2012. As a result of the
Palmetto South acquisition in the third quarter of 2011, we added approximately 10 full time equivalent
employees. The compensation paid to most of these employees is variable based on mortgage -
origination fees generated. Having the Palmetto South employees for the entire year of 2012, normal
salary adjustments and increased health insurance cost account for the majority of the increase in salary
and benefit cost in 2012 as compared to 2011, FDIC insurance assessments decreased $292 thousand in
2012 as compared 2011. During the second quarter of 2011, the FDIC changed the assessment from a
deposit base to an asset based calculation. The impact to community banks in our asset range was to
generally lower the amount of our assessment. This change in assessment, in addition to the lifting of
the previously mentioned formal agreement, resulted in the lower FDIC premiums in 2012. In
November 2009, all insured institutions with limited exceptions were required to prepay insurance
assessments for a three-year period. Our prepayment made in ‘December 2009 amounted to
approximately $2.9 million. At December 31, 2012, the remaining prepaid insurance assessment
amounted to $350 thousand and is included in “Other assets”. Other real estate expenses increased by
$170 thousand in 2012, as compared to 2011. This. increase resuits from a write-down on real estate
previously acquired for a potential future branch site to its estimated fair value. The write down on this
property was $170 thousand. : :

Salary and benefit éxpense increased $578 thousand from $8.9 millionlin the 2010 to $9.5 'm>i11‘ion,‘

in 2011. At December 31, 2010, we had 147 full timb equivalent employees as compared to 157 full
time employees at December 31, 2011. The increase in number of full time equivalent employees, as

well as normal salary adjustments made for 2011, account for the increase in salary and benefit expense

in 2011 as compared to 2010. As previously noted, we acquired Palmetto South on July 31, 2011, which

is the primary contributor to the increase in the number of full time equivalent employees in 2011 as
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compared to 2010. ATM/debit card processing expense increased by $58 thousand in 2011 as compared
to 2010. This increase is a result of increased number of accounts as well as higher utilization by

existing customers of the debit card product. FDIC insurande asséssments decreased’ $114 thousand in-

2011 as compared 2010. As noted above in the second quarter of 2011 the FDIC changed the - 4
assessment from a deposit base to an asset based calculation which resulted in lowéring the amount of
our assessment. : R e T et T T T

The folloWing tableﬂse,t‘s forth for the;periods.iﬁdicated. the priméry componerlts of mjninterést
expense: - . | . , . S v B , : :
v Year e’n&eﬂ Decembélj 31, ’
212 2011 ?l'__“_zolo

-(In thousands) -

Salary and employee benefits .. . . . ... TN L $11,152 $ 9,520 . $ 8,942

L OCCUPANCY . . v vk e s e i 1,358 1,289 0 1,220 .
.Equipment ........ B T e o 1,168 1,147 . 1,162 5 o
Marketing and: public relations . . . ... o eii s 478 - 452 - 4020 .
ATM/debit card-processing. . . . . e e e Laeiiy 479:.. AT 414 -
SUPPHES: . « «vie v e e ..o -138 178 - 150,
Telephome . . voiv v v vvee i e 297. 0307 . . 302.
Courier. . .. vivvvvwens.s b e e e T2 66 1 63
Correspondent services IR ooy ey 10872 193. . 97 :.-.
FDIC/FICO premium . ...c.....«.... e 597, 889 11,003 -

. IDSUTANCE . . v v v vnvonns e s e o 209 213, 20 .. .-
Other real estate exXpenses . ... ..o eee. 1,010 . 840 823

 Professional fEeS . « . v« st v s e i s L 745 . 1,040 @ 1068
Loss on limited partnership interest .. .......... ... 194 . 19 0 119
POStAZE . i v v ce e e e e e e e 1720 174 - 181 -
Director fees. . . .« v e v v v v e Soe 312, - 319 0 - 264
Amortization of intangibles ....... I ST 204~ - 517 .. - 621

Other . ... .. e el e 692 666, 624
| | | $19,445 : $18,401 | $17,684 -

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense for 2012 was $1.6 million as compared to income tax expense for the year -
ended December 31, 2011 of $1.5 million and $565 thousand for'the year ended December 31, 2010
(see note—14 ‘Income Taxes” to the Consolidated Financial Statements fof additional information). We
recognize deferred tax assets for future deductible amounts resulting from differences!in the financial
statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities and operating loss carry forwards. A valuation

allowance is then established. to reduce the deferred tax asset to the level that if is more likely than not

that the tax benefit will be realized. At December 31, 2012, there is a deferred tax valuation allowance

of $132 thousand primarily related to a capital loss carryforward that will likely expire prior to being
realized. Contribution carry forwards of approximately $710 'thousan,d’ expired in 2010, and the related,
valuation allowance in the amount of $241 thousand was reversed. As of December 31, 2012 we-have a’
tax net loss carryforward of approximately $6.2 million. The carryforward expires in 2b3.2QS_ee Note 14,:

Income Taxes, to the financial statements for a fe'con(;iliatiqn of the tax expense. It is%anticipated that
our effective tax rate for 2013 will be between 28% and 31%. : Do

W
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- Financial Position

Assets totaled $602.9 million at December 31, 2012 as compared to $593.9 million at December 31,
2011, an increase of $9.0 million. Over the last three years, we have successfully controlled balance -
sheet growth by paying down FHLB advances as they mature or prepaying the advances when the »
pricing and our liquidity were favorable. Loans at December 31, 2011 were $324.3 million as compared
to $332.1 million (excluding loans held for sale) at December 31, 2012. We funded in excess of
$49.7 million of new loan production in 2012. At December 31, 2011, loans accounted. for 59.9% of
earning assets, as compared to 60.0% at December 31, 2011. The loan-to-deposit ratio at December 31,
2012 was 69.9% as compared to 69.8% at December 31, 2011. During 2011, we began to close and
fund loans originated for sale, in the secondary market, in the name of the Bank. These loans are
generally held for less than thirty days and have locked in purchase commitments by investors prior to
closing. Prior to 2011, the loans originated for sale were closed and funded in the investors name and
therefore were not reflected on our balance sheet. At December 31, 2012, loans held for sale amounted
to $9.7 million as compared to $3.7 at December 31, 2011. Investment securities were $206.0 million at
December 31, 2012 as compared to $206.7 million at December 31, 2011. Short-term federal funds sold
and interest-bearing bank balances were $7.0 million at December 31, 2012 compared-to $5.9 million at
December 31, 2011. Deposits increased by $10.4 million to $475.0 million at December 31, 2012 as
compared to $464.6 million at December 31, 2011. At December 31, 2012, we had no brokered
certificates of deposits. As previously discussed due to the current economic cycle and the significant
emphasis by regulators and the investment community on tangible capital, regulatory capital ratios and
overall liquidity, we attempted to control the growth of our balance sheet throughout 2011 and 2012.
We have focused on growing our pure deposit base (deposits excluding time deposits) while continuing
to fund soundly underwritten loans. As a result non-interest bearing, NOW, money market and savings
deposits grew by $35.4 million in 2012 while time deposits declined by $25.0 million. During 2011 and
2012, we sold certain non-agency MBSs that had previously been downgraded by the rating agencies to
below investment grade, other investment grade non-agency MBSs, agency MBSs and shares of
FHLMC preferred stock. The FHLMC preferred stock had previously been written down in 2008 as a
result of FHLMC being placed into conservatorship. These sales served to significantly reduce the level
of securities on our balance sheet that are rated below investment grade (see Note 5, Investment
Securities, for further information). As of December 31, 2012, the total book value of securities (four
securities) rated below investment grade in our portfolio amounted to $1.6 million. As previously noted,
management continues to monitor the remaining portfolio with a high degree of scrutiny. There can be
no assurance that we will not conclude in future periods that conditions existing at that time indicate
some or all of these securities are other than temporarily impaired, which would require a charge to
earnings in such period. We do not consider any of our investments to have additional
other-than-temporary impairment.in excess of amounts previously recognized at December 31, 2012.

Shareholders’ equity totaled $54.2 million at December 31, 2012, as compared to $47.9 million at
December 31, 2011. As previously noted, on July 27, 2012, the' Company closed a public offering of
common stock. The offering resulted in the ‘issuance of a total of 1.875 million shares of common stock
at $8.00 per share, resulting in gross proceeds of $15 million. Net proceeds were approximately
$13.8 million after deducting underwriting, discount, commissions and other estimated expenses. The
proceeds were used to repurchase the 11,350 outstanding shares of our Series T Preferred Stock
originally issued to the Treasury pursuant to the TARP CPP, In addition, on October 25, 2012, the
Treasury accepted our bid to repurchase the CPP Warrant issued to the Treasury pursuant to the TARP
CPP. The repurchase price was $297,500. The repurchase of the CPP Warrant was closed on
November 1, 2012. The net proceeds were also used to redeem the $2.5 million of outstanding
subordinated debt at par on November 15, 2012, which was originally issued in November 2011. The
balance of the proceeds from the public offering will be used for general corporate purposes, including
contributing a portion of the proceeds to the Bank as additional capital if it may be needed to support
organic growth and, potentially, opportunistic acquisitions that meet our investment criteria.
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Net income available to common shareholders less dividend payments to common shareholders ...
resulted in retained deficit decreasing to $14.9 million as of December 31, 2012. Due to the low
interest rate environment and the continued reduction in below investment grade securities, ‘
accumulated other comprehensive income increased from $1.3 million at December 31, 2011 to
$2.4 million at December 31, 2012. ' ' o '

Earning Assets
Loans and loans held for sale

Loans typically provide higher yields than the other types of earning assets. During 2012, loans
accounted for 59.9% of average earning assets. The loan portfolio (including held-for-sale) averaged
$329.5 million in 2011 as compared to $331.6 million in 2012. Quality loan portfolio growth continues
to be a strategic focus in 2013 and thereafter. Associated with the higher loan yields are the inherent
credit and liquidity risks, which we attempt to control and counterbalance. One of ourgoalsasa R
community bank has, and continues to be, to grow our assets through quality loan growth by providing
credit to small and mid-size businesses, as well as individuals within the markets we serve. In 2012, we
funded new loans (excluding loans originated for sale) of approximately $49.7 million as compared to
$46.5 million in 2011. Loan production and portfolio growth rates continue to be impacted by the '
current slow economic cycle, as borrowers are less inclined to leverage their corporate and personal
balance sheets. However, we remain committed to meeting the credit needs of our Jocal markets. A’
continuation of the slow recovery from recessionary national and local economic conditions, as well as
deterioration of asset quality within our Company, could significantly impact our ability to grow our
loan portfolio. Significant increases in regulatory capital -expectations beyond the traditional “well '
capitalized” ratios and significantly increased regulatory burdens could impede our- ability to leverage -
our balance sheet and expand the loan portfolio. ' . P T -

The following table shows the composition of the loan portfolio by category:

. December 31, T )
(In thousands) ) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Commercial, financial & agricultural ... ... .. $ 20,924 $ 20,608 $ 20,555 $.22,758 § 27,833
Real estate: ' - o TR TR NS
CONStIUCHON « « v v v s v e s eia i e s oo 13,052 11,767 . 10,540 19,972 28,832
Mortgage—residential . . ... ..o 38,892 - 38,337 46,684 - 50,985 . 52423
Mortgage—commercial . .. ... 226,575 220,288 218,298 214,178 191,832
Consumer: _ o o PPN .
Home equity .. ... coovvvuveneennns L 27,173 27,976 27,747 . 28,824 23,872
1011175 TP 5,495 5335 6,130 7,470 8,172 .
Total gross 10ans . ........oovevaeiiann 332,111 324,311 329954 344,187 332,964
Allowance for loan losses .. ... ..veveen (4,621) (4,699) (4911)  (4,854) . (4581)

Totalnet loans . ........... ... .. $327.490 $319,612 $325,043 $339,333 $328,383

In the context of this discussion, a real estate mortgage loan is defined as any loan, other than.
loans for construction purposes, secured by real estate, regardless of the purpose of the loan. We follow
the common practice of financial institutions in the Company’s market area of obtaining a- security
interest in real estate whenever possible, in addition to any other available collateral. This collateral is
taken to reinforce the likelihood of the ultimate repayment of the loan and tends to increase the -
magnitude of the real estate loan components. Generally, we limit the loan-to-value ratio to 80%. The
principal components of our loan portfolio at year-end 2012 and 2011 were commercial mortgage loans
in the amount of $226.6 million and $220.3 million, representing 68.1% and 67.9% of the portfolio,
respectively. Significant portions of these commercial mortgage loans are made to finance :
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owner-occupied real estate. We continue to maintain a conservative philosophy regarding our
underwriting guidelines, and believe it will reduce the risk elements of the loan portfolio through
strategies that diversify the lending mix. :

The repayment of loans in the loan portfolio as they mature is a source. of liquidity. The following
table sets forth the loans maturing within specified intervals at December 31, 2012.

Loan Maturity Schedule and Sensitivity to Changes in Interest Rates

December 31, 2012

"Over one Year
One Year  Through Five  Over five

(in thousands) ; v or Less Years years Total

Commercial, financial and agricultural . . ... ... ... . .. $ 5287 $ 14648 $§ 989 § 20,924
R/E-Construction. .................... .. ... . .. 11,762 157 1,133 13,052
Allotherloan ................... .. .. . e 50,966 199,213 47,956 298,135

$68,015  $214,018  $50,078 $332,111

Loans maturing after one year with:

Variable Rate . ......................... ... .. $ 45,299
Fixed Rate . .. ... ... e e e 218,797
$264,096

The information presented in the above table is based on the contractual maturities of the
individual loans, including loans which may be subject to renewal at their contractual maturity. Renewal
of such loans is subject to review and credit approval, as well as modification of terms upon their
maturity.

Investment Securities

The investment securities portfolio is a significant component of our total earning assets. Total
investment securities averaged $204.9 million in 2012, as compared to $205.7 million in 2011. This
represents 37:.0% and 37.4% of the average earning assets for the year ended December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, our investment securities portfolio amounted to -
$206.0 million and $206.7 million, respectively.

Beginning in 2008 and continuing into 2012, the bond markets and many institutional holders of
bonds came under a great deal of stress partially as a result of increasing delinquencies in the mortgage
lending market. As of December 31, 2012, we own total MBSs and CMOs with an amortized cost of
$110.4 million and an approximate fair value of $112.1 million. These included securities with an
amortized cost of $107.3 million and approximate fair value of $109.4 million issued by GSEs. The
contractual cash flows of the investments are guaranteed by the GSE. Accordingly, it is expected that
the securities would not be settled at a price less than our amortized cost.

Also included in our MBS and CMO portfolio are PLMBSs with an amortized cost of $3.1 million
and approximate fair value of $2.7 million at December 31, 2012. During the second quarter of 2008,
we implemented a leverage strategy whereby we acquired approximately $63.2 million in certain
non-agency MBSs and CMOs. All of the mortgage assets acquired in this transaction were classified as
prime or ALT-A securities and represented the senior or super-senior tranches of the securities. The
assets acquired as part of this strategy were classified as held-to-maturity in the investment portfolio. -
Due to the significant spreads on these securities, they were all purchased at discounts. Starting in early
2009, many of these securities acquired in the leverage strategy, as well as others that were owned prior
to 2008, began to be downgraded by the various rating agencies. Beginning in 2011 and 2012, we began
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selling the majority of these downgraded securities. At December 31, 2012, there are only four CUSIPs
remaining that have been downgraded below investment grade. The carrying value of these remaining
securities is $1.6 million at December 31, 2012. We continue to perform an internal detailed analysis on
each CUSIP on a quarterly basis. The analysis includes stressing each security using various
assumptions for conditional default rate (CDR), prepayment speeds (CPR) and severities of loss on
underlying collateral once it is liquidated. For the year ended December 31,2012, we recognized
impairment charges on four PLMBS investments whereby the credit component was $200 thousand
recognized through earnings (see Note 5 to the financial statements). For the year ended December 31,
2011, we recognized the credit impairment charges of $297 thousand as the ‘credit component on nine
PLMBS securities through earnings. Our exposure to future losses resulting from OTTI has been
greatly reduced as result of the overall reduction through the sale of the majority of these investments.

The following téblé summarizes the PLMBSs portfolio by credit rating as of Decembef ‘31, 2012.
The rating reflects the lowest rating by any major rating agency. ' a

(Dollars in thousands)

Number ‘ T

. ... of . Par Amortized Fair
Credit Rating ’ ' © CUSIPs  Value Cost Value
AA e i e e 2 $ 264 $ 264 $ 268
7N P 1 380 . 380 .. 374 .
A3 e P 320 320 318
- 2 72 72 - 71
BBB . ... e i e e 1 231 231 225
Baal ... e e e 1 71 71 72
Baa2 . ......cvieien.n i e e e 1 97 97 96
Below Investment Grade.. . . ............. . 4 2,008 1,653 1,291
TOtal « o v vt 13 $3,443  $3,088  $2,715

The current rating process does not adequately consider what the holder paid for the bond or the
impact that they are multi-obligor securities. This can cause an entire security to be rated below
investment grade even though a majority of the underlying obligors are paying timely on the underlying
obligation. We believe that the robust monitoring process that we have in place allows us to properly
evaluate the credit risk underlying these securities and record any further OTTI in a timely manner.

We held no other debt securities rated below investment grade at December 31, 2012. At
‘December 31, 2012, the estimated weighted average life of the investment portfolio was approximately
6.1 years, duration of approximately 3.5, and a weighted average tax equivalent yield of approximately
2.0%
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The following table shows the investment portfolio composition.

December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) - B 2012 . 2011 E 2_010
Securities available-for-sale at fair value: N :
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises . ....,... $ 1534 § 34 - $ 13,738
Small Business Administration pools .........,. . 54993 - 36479 -31,496- -
Mortgage-backed securities . . .:........ e 112,144 - 141,631 = 121,257
State ard local government . .............. YRR 32,373  20,488. 19,055
Preferred stock ... .. ;o vievie o v i e i e . 447 21 235 .
-Corporatebonds . .........c0..iun... Gl 1,010 1,415 . 2,585
- Other ............... P 944 964 943
Total .. ... P e .. $203,445 $201,032  $189,309

We hold other investments carried at cost which included Federal Reserve and the FHLB stock.
These investments amounted to $2.5 million and $5.6 million, at December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. At December 31, 2012, as a result of our conversion to a state non member charter, we
are no longer required to hold stock in the Federal Reserve Bank and the balance of $2.5 million
represents our holdings in FHLB stock

Investment Securities Métﬁrity Distribution and Yields

The following table shows;y at amortized cost, the scheduled maturities and average yield of
securities held at December 31, 2012:

After One But After Five But
Within One Within Five Within Ten
Year Years Years . . After Ten Years

(In thousands) Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield

Available-for-sale:

Government sponsored enterprises... . $ 1,500.2.50% -8 22.497% $§ — — § — —
Small Business Administration pools .. . —_ — 12,838 1.44% 24,819 2.50% - 16,491 1.95%
Mortgage-backed securities. . .. ....: 25426 0.65% 68,659 1.44% 4,643 3.99% . 11,697 3.82%
State and local government . . . .. .. ~ 500 3.60% 1,500 3.00%. 28,276 2.76% 1,207 3.35%
Corporate ................... —— 1,000 4.00% _ - L — -
Other ...................... 10 0.97% 50 0.53% — 0.00% 1,289 5.19%
Total investment securities L : ' ,
available-for-sale .............. $27436 0.81% $84,069 1.50% $57,738 2.75% $30,684 2.86%

(1) Yield calculated on tax equivalent basis

Short-Term Investments

Short-term investments, which consist of federal funds sold, securities purchased under agreements
to resell and interest bearing deposits, averaged $17.2 million in 2012, as compared to $15.2 million in
2011. We maintain the majority of our short term overnight investments in our account at the Federal
Reserve rather than in federal funds at various correspondent banks due to the lower regulatory capital
risk weighting. At December 31, 2012, short-term investments including funds on deposit at the Federal
Reserve totaled $7.0 million. These funds are a primary source of liquidity and are generally invested in
an earning capacity on an overnight basis.
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Deposits and Other Interest-Bearing Liabilities -

Deposits. Average deposits were $471.5 million during 2012, compared to $466.8 million during
2011. Average interest-bearing deposrts were $379.7 million during 2012, as compared to $384.3 million
dunng 2011.

The following table sets forth the deposits by category

December 31,

2012 2011 _ 2010
: o % of ) % of % of
(In thousands) . c Amount Deposits Arnount Deposits Amount Deposits
Demand deposit accounts ........ ... $97526 20.5% $ 83,572 18.0% $ 72,625 16.0%
NOW accounts .. ... voveevnnenns . 96,971 20.4% 88,330 19.0% 78,814 17.3%
Money market accounts ....... e - 53,903 11.4% 48,153 104% 44,790 9.8%
Savings accounts . .......... e - 41,100 87% . 34,048 73% 29,886  6.6%
Time deposits less than $100,000 . . . . .. 111,316 23.4% 128616  27.7% 143946 . 31.6%
Time deposits more than $100 000 ..... 74,161 156% 81,866 o 176% 85283  18.7%

$474, 977 100.0% $464,585  100.0% $455 344 : 100.0%

Large certificate of deposrt customers tend to be extremely sensitive to mterest rate levels, making
these deposits less reliable sources of funding for liquidity planning purposes than core deposits. Core
deposits, which exclude certificates of deposrt of $100,000 or more, provide a relatively stable funding
source for the loan portfolio and other earning assets. Core deposits were $400.8 million and
$382 7 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

A stable base of deposrts is expected to continue be the pnmary source of fundlng to meet both
our short-term and long-term liquidity needs in the future The maturity distribution of time deposits is
shown in the following table. : : :
Maturities of Certificates of Deposit and Other Time Deposit of $100,000_, or more

December 31, 2011

After Three . After Six . After
Within Three :I‘hroug’h - -Through Twelve
(In' thousands) - o : -Months Six Months -Twelve Months Months Total
Certificates of deposrt of $100 000 or more .. .. $13,296 $14,780 $17,632  $28,587 $74,295

There were no other time deposits of $100,000 or 'rnore at Decerhber 31, 2012.

Borrowed funds. Borrowed funds consist of securities sold under agreements to repurchase FHLB
advances and long-term debt as a result of issuing $15.5 million in trust preferred securities. Short-term
borrowings in the form of securities sold under agreements to repurchase averaged $15.4 million, $15.9
and $17.4 million during 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The maximum month-end balances during
2012, 2011 and 2010 were $17.3 million, $18.1 million and $21.8 million, respectively. The average rates
paid during these periods were 0.23%, 0.25% and 0.35%, respectlvely The balances of securities sold
under agreements to repurchase were $15.9 million and $13.6 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. The repurchase agreements all mature within one to four days and are generally originated
with customers that have other relationships with the company and tend to provide a stable and
predictable source of funding. As a member of the FHLB, the bank has access to advances from the
FHLB for various terms and amounts. During 2012 and 2011, the average outstanding advances
amounted to $38.8 million and $56.0 million, respectively.
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The following is a schedule of the maturities for FHLB Advances as of December 31, 2012 and
2011:

December 31,
(In thousands) 2012 2011
Maturing_ 4 : Amount Ra_te Amount ‘Ra_te
2001 ... e e e e e e e e — —_— —_ —_
2012 ............ o e e e e e e —_ — 1,000 0.36%
2013 ... e e e e, — — 4,000 3.58%
2015 ... e e 4000 4.22% 6,500 4.09%

After five years. .. ... e [ 32,344 4.13% 32,362 4.13%
‘ $36,344  4.14% $43,862  3.99%

In addition to the above borrowings, we issued $15.0 million in trust preferred securities on
September 16, 2004. The securities accrue and pay distributions quarterly at a rate of three month
LIBOR plus 257 basis points. The debt may be redeemed in full anytime after September 16, 2009 with
notice and matures on September 16, 2034, In the fourth quarter of 2011, we issued $2.5 million in
8.75% subordinated notes maturing December 16, 2019 with interest payable quarterly. On
November 15, 2012 the subordinated notes were redeemed in full at par. Warrants for 107,500 shares
of common stock at $5.90 per share were issued in connection w1th the issuance of the subordinated
debt. The warrants expire December 16, 2019. ’ ‘

Capital Adequacy and Dividends

Total shareholders’ equity as of December 31, 2012 was $54.2 million as compared to $47.9 million
as of December 31, 2011. In November 2008, we issued $11.35 million in Series T Preferred Stock
under‘the CPP. Preferred dividends of 5% were paid during the year ended December 31, 2012
(through the date of redemption) and in 2011 on the Series T Preferred Stock. As previously noted, we
closed on a public offering of common stock which resulted in the issuance of a total of 1.875 million
shares of common stock at $8.00 per share, resulting in gross proceeds of $15 million. Net proceeds
were approximately $13.8 million after deducting underwriting, discount, commissions and other
estimated expenses. The proceeds were used to repurchase all 11,350 outstanding shares of our
Series T Preferred Stock and repurchase the CPP Warrant. Proceeds were also used to redeem the
$2.5 million of outstanding subordinated debt at par on November 15, 2012, which was originally issued
in November 2011. The remaining net proceeds from the common stock offering along with retention.
of earnings available to common shareholders less dividend payments on our common stock, plus an
increase in accumulated other comprehensive income accounted for the increase in shareholders’
equity. During each quarter of 2012 and 2011, we paid a dividend on our common stock of $0.04 per
share.

In addition, a dividend reinvestment plan was implemented in the third quarter of 2003. The plan
allows existing shareholders the option of reinvesting cash dividends as well as makmg optional
purchases of up to $5,000 in the purchase of common stock per quarter. /
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The following table shows the return on average assets (net income divided by average total
assets), return on average equity (net income divided by-average equity), and equity to assets ratio for
the three years ended December 31, 2012. . :

, , | 2012 2011 2010
Return on average assets ... ... e e e 0.55% 0.44% 0.20%
Return on average common equity . ....... e o 140% . 1.98% 3.73%
Equity to assets ratio(1).......... e e . 8.99% 8.06% 6.98%
Dividend Payout Ratio . ......................... 1525% 15.719% 28.1%

(1) For years 2010 and 2011 includes Series T perpetual preferred stock issued November 21,
2008 v

Following a 2012 on-site examination of the Bank, the OCC notified the Bank that, effective
June 28, 2012, the Bank was no longer subject to the Formal Agreement that it entered into with the
OCC in 2010. The OCC also notified the Bank that, effective June 28, 2012, it was no longer subject to
the Individual Minimum Capital Ratios established for the Bank on February 24, 2010, which had
required the Bank to maintain a Tier 1 leverage capital ratio of at least 8.00%, a Tier 1 risk-based
capital ratio of at least 10.00%, and a total risk-based capital ratio of at least 12.00%. In addition, the
Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond notified the Company that, effective July 10, 2012, the Company
was no longer subject to the MOU that it had entered into with the Federal Reserve Bank of
Richmond in December of 2011.

The Company and the Bank exceeded their regulatory capital ratios at December 31, 2012 and
2011, as set forth in the following table:

Required Actual Excess
(In thousands) Amount % B Amount % Alrlount %
The Bank: , .
December 31, 2012
Risk Based Capital ; . SRR
Tier1 ..... e e e $14,605 4.00% $61,588 16.9% $46,983 12.9%
Total Capital ....................... . 29,209 8.00% 66,158 18.1% :36,949 10.1%
Tier 1 Leverage.................... ce.. 23824 400% 61,588 103% 37,764 = 6.3%
December 31, 2011 . D : .
Risk Based Capital : . , ; : . :
Tier1 ....... ... ... ... e $14,647 4.00% $55,377 15.1% .$40,730 11.1%
Total Capital ....................... 29,294 8.00% 59,971 164% 30,677 8.4%
Tier 1 Leverage................. R 23,808 4.00% - 55,377 - 93% 31479 .53%
The Company: A . S ' ‘
December 31, 2012
Risk Based Capital . ' o , ‘ »
Tier1 ....... SR e e $14,628 4.00% $63,381 17.3% $48,753 13.3%
Total Capital ........................ 20,258 8.00% 67,963 18.7% 38,705 10.7%
Tier 1 Leverage........................ 23806 4.00% 63381 106% 39575 6.6%
December 31, 2011 ' '
Risk Based Caprtal : ’ :
Tier1 ...... .. .. . . $14,668 4.00% $56,207 15.3% $41,539 11.3%
Total Capital ........................ 29,335 8.00% 63256 173% 33921 93%
Tier 1Leverage. .. ....oovvvvnenenn... L 23909 400% 56,207 9.4% 32298 5.4%
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Since the Company is a bank holding company, its ability to declare and pay dividends is
dependent on certain federal and state regulatory considerations, including the-guidelines of the
Federal Reserve Board. The Federal Reserve Board has issued a policy statement regarding the
payment of dividends by bank holding companies. In general, the Federal Reserve Board’s policies
provide that dividends should be paid only out of current earnings and only if the prospective rate of
earnings retention by the bank holding company appears consistent with the organization’s capital
needs, asset quality and overall financial condition. The Federal Reserve Board’s policies also require
that a bank holding company serve as a source of financial strength to its subsidiary banks by standing
ready to use available resources to provide adequate capital funds to those banks during periods of
financial stress or adversity and by maintaining the financial flexibility and capital-raising capacity to
obtain additional resources for assisting its subsidiary banks where necessary. In addition, under the
prompt corrective action regulations, the ability of a bank holding company to pay dividends may be
restricted if a subsidiary bank becomes undercapitalized. These regulatory policies could affect the
ability of the Company to pay dividends or otherwise engage in capital distributions.

In addition, since the Company is legal entity separate and distinct from the Bank and does not
-conduct stand-alone operations, its ability to pay dividends depends on the ability of the Bank to pay
dividends to it, which is also subject to regulatory restrictions. As.a South Carolina chartered bank, the
Bank is subject to limitations on the amount of dividends that it is permitted to pay. Unless otherwise
instructed by the S.C. Board, the Bank is generally permitted under South Carolina state banking
regulations to pay cash dividends of up to 100% of net income in any calendar year without obtaining
the prior approval of the S.C. Board. The FDIC also has the authority under federal law to enjoin a
bank from engaging in what in its opinion constitutes an unsafe or unsound practice in conducting its
business, including the payment of a dividend under certain circumstances.

Liquidity Management

Liquidity management involves monitoring sources and uses of funds in order to meet our
day-to-day cash flow requirements while maximizing profits. Liquidity represents our ability to convert
assets into cash or cash equivalents without significant loss and to raise additional funds by increasing
liabilities. Liquidity management is made more complicated because different balance sheet
components are subject to varying degrees of management control. For example, the timing of
maturities of the investment portfolio is very predictable and subject to a high degree of control at the
time investment decisions are made. However, net deposit inflows and outflows are far less predictable
and are not subject to nearly the same degree of control. Asset liquidity is provided by cash and assets
which are readily marketable, or which can be pledged, or which will mature in the near future.
Liability liquidity is provided by access to core funding sources, principally the ability to generate
customer deposits in our market area. In addition, liability liquidity is provided through the ability to
borrow against approved lines of credit (federal funds purchased) from correspondent banks and to
borrow on a secured basis through securities sold under agreements to repurchase. The Bank is a
member of the FHLB and has the ability to obtain advances for various periods of time. These
advances are secured by securities pledged by the Bank or assignment of loans within the Bank’s -
portfolio.

With the successful completion of the common stock offering in 1995, the secondary offerings
completed in 1998 and 2012, the trust preferred offering completed in September 2004, the acquisition
of DutchFork in October 2004, the acquisition of DeKalb in June 2006, we have maintained a high
level of liquidity and adequate capital along with retained earnings, less the 2009 and 2008 net loss,
sufficient to fund the operations of the Bank for at least the next 12 months. We anticipate that the
Bank will remain a well capitalized institution for at least the next 12 months. The loss related to
goodwill impairment in 2009 was a noncash charge and had no impact on regulatory capital or tangible
equity. Total shareholders’ equity was 8.99% of total assets at December 31, 2012 and 8.07% at
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December 31, 2011. Funds sold and short-term interest bearing deposits are our primary source of
liquidity and averaged $17.2 million and $15.2 million during the year ended December 31, 2012 and

© 2011, respectively. The Bank maintains federal funds purchased lines, in the amount of $10.0 million
each with two financial institutions, altbough these were not utilized in 2012. The FHLB has approved
a line of credit of up to 25% of the Bank’s assets, which would be collateralized by a pledge against
specific investment securities and or eligible loans. We regularly review the liquidity position of the-
Company and have implemented internal policies establishing guidelines for sources of asset based
liquidity and limit the total amount of purchased funds used to support the balance sheet and funding
from non-core sources. We believe that our existing stable base of core deposits, along with continued
growth in this deposit base, will enable us to meet our long term liquidity needs successfully.

We believe our liquidity remains adequate to meet operating and loan funding requirements and
that our existing stable base of core deposits, along with continued growth in this deposit base, will
enable us to meet our long-term and short-term liquidity needs successfully.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the normal course of operations, we engage in a variety of financial transactions that, in
accordance with GAAP, are not recorded in the financial statements, or are recorded in amounts that
differ from the notional amounts. These transactions involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit,
interest rate, and liquidity risk. Such transactions are used by the company for general corporate
purposes or for customer needs. Corporate purpose transactions are used to help manage credit,
interest rate, and liquidity risk or to optimize capital. Customer transactions are used to manage
customers’ requests for funding. Please refer to Note 16 of the Company s flnanmal statements for a
discussion of our off-balance sheet arrangements

Impact of Inflation

Unlike most industrial companies; the assets and liabilities of financial institutions such as the
company and the bank are primarily monetary in nature. Therefore, interest rates have a more
significant effect on our performance than do the effects of changes in the general rate of inflation and
change in prices. In addition, interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction or in the
same magnitude as the prices of goods and services. As discussed previously, we continually seek to
manage the relationships between interest sensitive assets and liabilities in order to protect agalnst wide
interest rate ﬂuctuatrons including those resultmg from 1nﬂat10n o

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Additional information required under this Item 8 rnay ‘be found under the Notes to Financial
Statements under Note 24.
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of First Community Corporatlon is respons1ble for estabhshmg and mamtammg
adequate internal control over financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as a process designed by, or
under the supervision of, our principal executive and principal financial officers and effected by our
board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regardmg the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements . for external purposes in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting pr1nc1p1es and includes those policies and
procedures that:

* Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fa1rly reflect the
- transactions and dispositions of our assets;

* Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and
that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our
management and directors; and

* Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on the f1nanc1al
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, 1nternal control over financial reportmg may not prevent or
detect misstatements. PrOJectlons of any evaluation of effectlveness to future periods are. subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in condltlons or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2012. In making this assessment, our management used:the criteria set forth by the .
Committee of Sponsoring Orgamzatrons of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework.

Based on that assessment, we believe that, as of December 31, 2012 our mternal control over
financial reportmg is effective based on those criteria.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of our regrstered public accountlng firm
regarding our internal control over financial reporting. Management’s report on internal control over
financial reporting was not subject to attestation by our registered public accounting firm pursuant to
rules of the Securities and Exchange Commlssmn that permlt the company to provrde only
management’s report in this ‘annual report.

/s/ MICHAEL C. CRAPPS /s/ JOSEPH G. SAWYER

Chief Executive Officer and President Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors
First Community Corporation
Lexington, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of First Community Cerporation
and subsidiary (the Company) as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated
statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each
of the years in the three year period ended December 31, 2012. These consolidated financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. R

<. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company: Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of- material misstatement. The
Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over
financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose -
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial réporting;
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence -
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles -
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial '
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of First Community Corporation and subsidiary as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
years in the three year period ended December 31, 2012, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. v '

/s/ Elliott Davis, LLC

Columbia, South Carolina , . : -
March 28, 2013 s . ;
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FIRST COMMUNITY; CORPORATION
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Dollars in thousands, except par values) )
: 0 ASSETS C

Cash and due from banks ..... A S SR
Interest-bearing bank balances . ... ... .. .. oo
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell . .........
Investment securities—available for sale ............ e
Other INVEStMENES, 8L COSE .+« v v v v v o e ev e n e s e eee s eee e PR
Toansheld forsale . ... ..o e e e

) 07T T R I I I :

Less, allowance for loan losses . . . ...t R Pt

NEtlOANS . o v vv vt v e oot e st en st i e e e e e e e
Property, furniture and equipment—mnet. ... ... ...
Bank owned life iNSUTANCE . . o v v oo v v v v ii e viin e vme e i
Other real estate OWREA . . . . . o v vt v i vt ne ot e s e e
Intangible assets .. .. .....cia i e e e
Goodwill ............. R T
Other assets . ...... e F e

TOtal ASSELS. « o i v e e e e e e e e e e e e

Deposits:
Non-interest bearing demand . ......... ... .
NOW and money market accounts. . . . .. e e .
SAVIIES .+ 2 e voe e v e e e e e
Time deposits less than $100,000 . . .. ... . oot
Time deposits $100,000 and OVET . . . .o oo vvvvnne e

TOtal dEPOSILS . « + « v o v v v e e v
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase . ....... ...
Federal Home Loan Bank AQVances . . ... ... oo viiiiiinnenn e
Junior subordinated debt . . ... ... e
Other Habilities . . . oot i it e i emea oo

Total HabiliIes . . « o v v v v v et e i e im e

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Preferred stock, par value $1.00 per share; 10,000,000 shares authorized; 0 and

11,350 issued and outstanding at December 31,2012 and 2011 . . ... ... ool t
Common stock, par value $1.00 per share; 10,000,000 shares authorized; issued and

outstanding 5,227,300 at December 31, 2012 and 3,307,531 at December 31, 2011 .
Common stock warrants issued . . . .. .. .
Nonvested Testricted STOCK . . v v v v e vttt m i aaa i
Additional paid in capital. . ... ...
Accumulated defiCit . . . oo oottt s

Accumulated other comprehensive inCOmMe . . . ... oo
Total shareholders’ equity . ... ... ..o
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity .. ... ... ..o

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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December 31,

2012 2011
$ 11517 § 10,599
67719 5512
412 381
203,445 201,032
2527 5637
9658 3,725
332111 324,311
4,621 4,699
7327490 319,612
17258 17,483
10.868 10,974
3987 7351
160 365
571 571
8253 10,645
$602.925 $593,887
$ 97526 § 83,572
150,874 136,483
41100 34,048
111182 128,616
74295 81,866
474977 464,585
15900 13,616
36344 43862
15464 17,913
6057 6015
548742 545,991
11,137
5207 3,308
50 560
(152) —
61615 49,165
(14915)  (17,603)
2,358 1.329
54183 47,896
$602,925 $593,887




FIRST COMMUNITY. CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Income

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands except"per share amounts) 2012 2011 2010

Interest income: s , : )

- Loans, including fees. . . ... ... ..t e e e $18,361 $19,110 - $19,851
Investment securities—taxable . ... ... ... ... i i e e e 3,832 6,291 - 7,376
Investment securities—non taxable ... ........... ... .0 .. 0.0, i e . 725 51 190
Other shortterm investments . . .. ................... eee P 84 - 74 94

Total interest income . . . .. R TR, S e 23,002 .~ 25,526 27,511

Interest expense: _ ) L .
DEPOSItS .« . . ot e e e e e e e 3,122 4,573 6,281
Securities sold under agreement to repurchase . . ... oL 0L L APEPEF SR 35 40 60
Other borrowed money . ................ i e e i e e e e ete S S 2,271 2,596 - 3,033

Total INTETeSt EXPENSE . « v & v v v v vt e et e e e M. 5428 07209 9374
-Net interest income . e e e 17,574 = 18317 - 18,137
Provision fordoan losses . . . . .. ... i i e 496 1,420 1,878
Net interest income after provision for loan losses . . .................. 17,078 16,897 16,259

Non-interest income: S
Deposit service charges .. .......... L 1,562 1,810 1,875
Mortgage origination fees .. ....... .. . i e 4,242 1,973 1,034
Investment advisory fees and non-deposit commissions . . . ...... e 651 767 501
Gain on sale of securities. . . . . . ... ... .. i e e e 26 575 827
Gain (loss) onsale of otherassets. . .. ....... ..oy 89) (155) 35
Other-than-temporary-impairment write-down on securities . . . . . e (200)- (297) © (1,560)
Fair value loss adjustments on interest rate SWap . . . . ... oovv v i (58) (166) (581)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt . . . . .......... ... ... .. ... ... (217 (188 - . —
Other ............... S 2,038 - 1,966. 1,713

Total NON-INtEreSt INCOME . . . & v vt v vt it et e e s ettt e e teasnnnssonas 7,955 6,285 3,844

Non-interest expense: v :
Salaries and employee benefits . .. ........ .. ... . o i o 11,152 9,520 8,942
OCCUPANCY .+« o v v ittt ittt et e e e e e e s 1,358 1,289 1,229
Equipment. . . ... ot e e e i e e 1,168 1,147 1,162
Marketing and public relations . .. ........ .. ... . il i 478 452 402
FDIC Insurance asseSSmMENtS. . . . . v v v v v vttt te e ee e esoneenneeness 597 889 1,003
Other real estate €Xpense. . . . . . ..ottt ii ittt ittt it e 1,010 840 823
Amortization of intangibles ... ....... ... . i i e 204 517 621
Other ... e e e Ve e 3,478 3,747 3,502

Total NON-INEETESt EXPEMSE . & « o v v v v v v et e e e et tece ot en oo nnenenn 19,445 18,401 17,684

Net income before tax . . .. . v v ittt ittt ittt et e et e e 5588 4,781 2,419

Income tax expense .. ... @t e et e i e e e e e e e e e e 1,620 1,457 565

Net MO . . . . ..ottt it ittt ettt e $ 398 $ 3324  $ 1,854
Preferred stock dividends . ... ...... ... . . i e 557 670 664
Preferred stock redemption costs . . ...... ... . i i 119 — —
Net income available to common shareholders. . ... .................. $ 3292 $2654 $ 1,19
Basic earnings per common share. . . .. ... oo i i $ 079 $ 081 § 036
Diluted earnings per common share . ... ...ttt ennnn.. $ 079 $ 081 §$§ 036

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Year ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) ». o o 2m - 2000
NEtINCOME .+ o v v oottt ettt et e ettt ittt eiieee e $3,968 $3,324 - $ 1,854
Other comprehensive income (loss): | ‘ ‘ o
Unrealized gain (loss) during the.period on available for sale securities,
net of tax of $471, $1,964 and $564, respectively ................. - 914 3,751 - (1,065)
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gain included in net income, net of B '
tax of $9, $201, and $289, respectively ............. ... .. ... ... a7n @14 (531
Reclassification adjustment for ofher-thén-temporary—impairment on : .
securities net of tax benefit of $68, $104 and $546, respectively ... ... 132 193 1,014
Other comprehensive income (l0SS) . .o . v v v vi v vee it e 1,029 - 3,570 - (588)
Comprehensive income . . . . . e e $4,997 $6,894  § 1,266

AN

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements’
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FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION
Consolidated- Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Common Stock

. —_ Accumulated
. iR Number Common Additional Nonvested Other
Preferred Shares Common  Stock Paid-in  Restricted Accumulated Comprehenswe
(Dollars and shares in th ds) Stock Issued Stock Warrants  Capital Stock - Defi¢it + Income (loss) Total
Balance December 31,2009 .. .". .. §$10939 3252 $3,252 §$ 509 $48,873 $ (79 $(20,401) $(1,653) ~ $ 41,440
Netincome ... ........... Y ’ R i 1,854 e 1,854
. Other comprehensive loss ‘net of : T
taxof $307 . . .. ... ... .. : : : : C 1 (588) - (588)
Amortization of compensation on : :
“ restricted stock . . ... .. : 79 . - I 79
Dividends: Common ($0 16 per share) . . w821y o (521)
Preferred stock . 96 . (664) coo o (568)
Dividend reinvestment plan . .. v.’ .. 18 18 83 o 101
Balance, December 31, 2010 FRFET 11,035 3,270 3,270 509 48,956 — (19,732)" 2241) - 41,797
Net income™. . . ... .. R : : 3,324 ' : 3,324
Other comprehensive income net : . R o =
of tax of $2,061 . ... .. .. . . ' C 3,570 3,570
Issuance of stock warrants ., . . . . 51 . . ; 51
Issuance of restricted stock .. . . . 23 23 133 . (65) .. © 91
Amortization of compensatlon on . , v
restricted stock . . ... ... ..., ) 65 . s 65
Dividends: Common ($0.16 per share) - (525) (525)
. Preferred stock . . ... ... ... ) 102 L 70 . "~ (568)
Dividend reinvestment plan . . . . . . 15 15 76 . L 91
Balance, December 31, 2011 . . . .. . 13,137 3,308 3,308 560 49,165 — T (17,603) = 1,329 - 47,896
“Net income ... .. .... L ~ 3,968 - . 13,968
“Qther comprehensive income net PO . . . : o :
oftaxof $561 . .. ... .... : . . : 1,029 - 1,029
- Repurchase of stock warrants . . . . o (510) 212 . L e (298)
Issuance of restricted stock ..-. . . 33 33 239 (272) N =
Amortization of compensation on ) . . L
restricted stock . . .. ... ... .. 120 i 120
Issuance of common stock net of ' ) T o
expenses of $1,200 . . ... ... .. 1,875 1,875 11,917 ’ ‘ : 13,792
Dividends: Common ($0.16 per share) o . ©0s) - - (605)
Preferred stock .~. . . . ... ... (475) ) (475)
Redemption of preferred stock . ... (11,285) Sese o TN (11,285)
Accretion and redemption costs . . . . 148 : (200) - < (52)
Dividend reinvestment plan .. . . . . 11 11 82 CT Cor 93
Balance, December 31,2012 . . . . . . $5,227 $ 50 $61,615

2

l
W
S
-~

$(152)  $(14,915) $2358  §54183

|

|
|

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows '

Year Ended December 31,

(Amounts in thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Cash flows from operating activities: ;
NEE AHCOME .+ + + v v e e e on e e e e et et e e et e e e e $ 398 § 3324 § 184
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided in operating activities ’ ‘
DEPreciation . . . . vt s v v v e e e e 862 841 882
Premium amOTrtiZation . . « « v v v e e o e vt bt n e e s e 3,112 1,968 1,421
Provision fOr I0AM IOSSES - « « v v v v v v v v v e b vt a e e e 496 1,420 1,878
Writedowns of other real estate owned . . . . . .. ... e e 317 261 333
Loss on sale of other real estate owned . . . . . . ... ..o e 89 < - 155 .3
Originations of HFS 10808 . . . v vttt (134,275) (60,488) —
Sales Of HES JOAMS « - -« & ¢« v v v e e et v et ae e ie e et 128,342 56,763 —
Amortization of intangibles . . . . ... ..o e ' 204 517 621
Gain On 5ale OF SECUTTHIES « « « v v v v vt v o n e e oo et (26). (575) (827)
Other-than-temporary-impairment charges on SeCUrities . . . ............coeoen.. 200 297 1,560
Net decrease in fair value option instruments and derivatives . . .. ..o oo e 58 166 . 581
Writedown of 1and . . . . . ot i e e e e 170 — e
Loss on early extinguishment of debt. . . . . ..o 217 188 —
Decrease in Other ASSELS . . . v v v v v v v v o v v i et e e 2,260 1,214 1,016
Increase in accounts payable . . . ... ... e e e 38 496 336
Net cash provided in operating activities. . . . . ... oo vt 6,032 6,547 9,658
Cash flows from investing activities: :
Proceeds from sale of securities available-for-sale . . .. ... ......... e e e s 59,012 56,003 85,456
Purchase of investment securities available-for-sale . ... .......... e e e (103,245)  (103,040)  (140,374)
Maturity/call of investment securities available-fOr-sale . . . . v v v i i e e e e 43,144 40,441 42,910
Purchase of investment securities held-to-maturity . ... ... ..o . — — (10)
Maturity/call of investment securities held-to-maturity . .. ... ... oovvea e — — 8,874
(Increase) decrease MIOANS . . .. oo v vt v v s v s (11,312) 241 4,778
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned . . . . . ..« . o e T 5,728 3,020 3,208
Proceeds fromsale of 1and . . . . . . .. .o i e e e - 10 —
Purchase of property and eqUIPMENt . . . . .« oot v e (806) -~ (308) (242)
Net cash provided (used) in investing activities . . ... .. ... - (7.479) (3,633). 4,600
Cash flows from financing activities: -
Increase in dePOSit ACOOUNES . .+« « v v v oo v v i v v s o e e 10,392 9,242 5,710
Advances from the Fecderal Home Loan Bank . . . ... ... o veve e 1,500 7,500 —
Repayment of advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank ............. .00 S e e (9,235) . (31,921) (5,232)
Increase (decrease) in securities sold under agreements to repurchase . ... ... oot 2,284 929 (7,990)
Decrease in other borrowings . . . . ... ..o oo e e e e e — (120) (44)
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated note payable . ... ... .. ... e — 2,500 —
Repayment of subordinated note payable:. . . .. ... (2,500) — —
Proceeds from sale CommoOn StOCK . . .« o v v v vt i i 13,792 — —
Redemption of Preferred StOck . . . o« oo v v (11,073) — —
Repurchase Of StOCK WAITAIES . « o .+« o v v e ov o mmem e on st e s ) (510) — —
Dividend reinvestment Plan . . . . . .. ..o 93 182 101
Dividends paid: Common StOCK . .+ v v v v v v e (605) (525) (522)
Preferred STOCK & « v v v v o e e et et et e e e e (475) (670) (664)
Net cash provided (used) in financing activities . ...... e e e e e '3,663 (12,883) (8,641)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . . ... ..o : 2,216 (9,969) 5,617
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . .. .. ... - 16,492 26,461 20,844
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year. . . . . . ... ... oo ... '$18708 $ 16492 §$ 26461
Supplemental disclosure:
Cash paid during the period for: INtEIest . . .o .o v vt ev v $ 6023 $§ 7706 § 9413
T $ — 3 — § —
Non-cash investing and financing activities: .
Unrealized (loss) gain on securities available-forsale . .......... ..o $ 1,029 $ 3570 $ (588)
Transfer of loans to foreclosed PrOPerty . . ... .o v vv v i n v n oo e $ 2770 $ 3889 §$ 7278
Transfer of HTM securities to AFS securities . . . ...« v oo v v oo $ —- 8 — $ 46,244

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION
Notes to Consohdated Fmanclal Statements

Note 1—ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of First Community Corporation (the
“Company”) and its wholly owned subsidiary, First Community Bank (the “Bank”). The Company owns
all of the common stock of FCC Capital Trust 1. All material intercompany transactions are eliminated
in consolidation. The Company was organized on November 2, 1994, as a South Carolina corporation,
and was formed to become a bank holding company. The Bank opened for business on August 17,

1995. FCC Capital Trust I is an unconsolidated special purpose subs1dlary organized for the sole
purpose of issuing trust preferred securities.

Note 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Use of Estimates '

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. These principles require management to make estimates and '
assumptions that affect. the amounts reported in the fmancnal statements and accompanymg notes.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. :

Material estimates that are particularly',susceptible to significant change relate to the determination
of the allowance for loan losses. The estimation process includes management’s judgment as to future
losses on existing loans based on an internal review of the loan portfolio, including an analysis of the
borrower’s current financial position, the consideration of current and anticipated economic conditions
and the effect on specific borrowers. In determining the collectability of loans management also
considers the fair value of underlying collateral. Various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their
examination process, review the Company’s allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require the
Company to recognize additions to the allowance based on their judgments about information available
to them at the time of their examination. Because of these factors it is poss1ble that the allowance for
loan losses could change materially. ~

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, due from banks, interest-bearing bank balances,
federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell. Generally federal funds are sold
for a one-day period and securities purchased under agreements to resell mature in less than 90 days..

Investment Securities

Investment securities. are classified as either held-to-maturity, available-for-sale or trading
securities. In determining such classification, securities that the Company has the positive intent and
ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to maturity and are carried at amortized cost. Securities
classified as available-for-sale are carried at estimated fair values with unrealized gains and losses
included in shareholders’ equity on an after tax basis. Trading securities are carried at estimated fair
value with unrealized gains and losses included in Non-interest income (See Note 4).

Gains and losses on the sale of available-for-sale securities and trading securities are determined
using the specific identification method. Declines in the fair value of individual held-to-maturity and
available-for-sale securities below their cost that are judged to be other than temporary are written
down to fair value and charged to 1ncome in the Consolidated Statement of Incorne
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FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) *

Premiums and discounts are recogmzed in 1nterest income usmg the mterest method over the
period to maturity.

Mortgage Loans Held for Sale-

The Comipany originates fixed rate residential loans on a seercmg released basis in the secondary
market. Loans closed but not yet settled with an investor, are carried in the Company s loans held for
sale portfolio. These loans are fixed rate residential loans that have been originated in the Company’s
name and have closed. Virtually all of these loans have commitments to be purchased by investors at a.
locked in price with the investors on the same day that the loan was locked in with the Cornpany S
customers. Therefore, these loans present very little market risk for the Company. '

The Company usually delivers to, and receives funding from, the investor within 30 days.
Commitments to'sell these loans to the investor are considered derivative contracts and are sold to-
investors on a “best efforts” basis. The Company-is not obligated to deliver a loan or pay a penalty if a
loan is not delivered to the investor. As a result of the short-term nature of these derivative contracts,
the fair value of the mortgage loans held for sale in most cases 1s the same as the Value of the loan
amount at its origination. These loans are classified as Level 2.7

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

Loans receivable that management has the mtent and ablhty to hold for the foreseeable future or:
until maturity or pay-off are reported at their outstanding principal balance adjusted for any .
charge-offs, the allowance for loan losses, and any deferred fees or costs on originated loans. Interest is:
recognized over the term of the loan based on-the loan balance outstanding. Fees charged for
originating loans, if any, are deferred and offset by the deferral of certain direct expenses associated
with loans originated. The net deferred fees are recognized as yield adjustments by applying the
interest method.

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level believed to be adequate by management to’
absorb potential losses in the loan portfolio. Management’s determination of the adequacy of the -
allowance is based on an evaluation-of the.portfolio, past loss expenence, economic conditions and
volume, growth and composition of the portfolio.. :

The Company considers a loan to be impaired when, based upon current information and events,_
it is believed that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the loan agreement. Loans that are considered impaired are accounted for at the lower of
carrying value or fair value. The accrual of interest on impaired loans is discontinued when, in -
management’s opinion, the borrower may be unable to meet payments as they become due, generally
when a loan becomes 90 days past due. When interest accrual is discontinued, all unpaid accrued
interest is reversed. Interest income is subsequently recognized only to the extent cash payments are
received first to principal-and then to interest income. v

Property and Equzpment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated deprematlon Deprematxon is
computed using the straight-line method over the asset’s estimated useful life. Estimated lives range up
to 39 years for buildings and up to 10 years for furniture, fixtures and equipment.
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FIRST COMMUNITY. CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidatgd Financjal tStatelb_l.;gn(t:si .(Cogginug_d)

Note 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ;.ACCO?UN"I‘ING POLICIES }}(g_o‘ntilﬂmﬂgd)»
Gooawill and Other Intangible Assets..

Tes >

Goodwill represents the cost in-excess of fair value of net assets acquired (including identifiable -
intangibles) in purchase transactions. Other intangible assets represent premiums paid for acquisitions -
of core deposits (core deposit intangibles). Core deposit intangibles are being amortized on a
straight-line basis over seven years. Goodwill and identifiable intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of
an asset may not be recoverable. The annual valuation is performed on September 30 of each year.

Other Redl Estate Owned

Other real estate owned includes real estate acquired through foreclosure. Other real estate owned
is carried at the lower of cost (principal balance at date of foreclosure) or fair value minus estimated
cost to sell. Any write-downs at the date of foreclosure are charged to the allowance for loan losses.
Expenses to maintain such assets, subsequent changes in the valuation allowance, ‘and gains or losses on
disposal are included in other‘expenses. . . Sl e SR T
Comprehensive Income

The Company reports comprehensive income in accordance with ASC 220, “Comprehensive -
Income.” ASC 220 requires that all items that are required to be reported under accounting standards
as comprehensive income be reported in a financial statement that is displayed with the same =~
prominence-as other financial statements. The disclosures requirements have been included in the
Company’s consolidated statements of comprehensive income. R Dl co
Mortgage Origination Fees

» I\{Ilértg‘ag_e;o'rigination fees relate to activities comprised of accepting r‘esidéntiali'nioft’g'é:g‘e,_
applications, qualifying borrowers to standards established by investors and selling the mortgage loans
to the investors under pre-existing commitments. The loans are funded by the investor at closing and

the related fees received by the Company for these services are recognized at the time the loan is
closed. :

Adbvertising Expense :

AdvertiSing“, and public relations costs are generally expehsed’ as incurred. External costs incurred in
producing media advertising are expensed the first time the advertising takes place. External costs
relating to direct mailing costs are expensed in the period in which the direct mailings are sent.

Income Taxes

A deferred income tax liability or asset is recognized for the estimated future effects agtributabl_c
to differences in the tax bases of assets or liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial
statements as well as operating loss and tax credit carry forwards. The deferred tax asset or liability is
measured using the enacted tax rate expected to apply to taxable income in the period in which the.
deferred tax asset or liability is expected to be realized. ' : : : P

In 2006, the FASB issued guidance related to Acpount_iné for Uilcertainty in Income Taxes. This
guidance clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial
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statements in accordance with FASB ASC topic 740-10, “Income Taxes”. It also prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in an enterprise’s tax
return. : , :

Stock Based Compensation Cost

The Company accounts for stock based compensation under the fair value proviSions of the
accounting literature. Compensation expense is recognized in salaries and employee benefits.

The fair value of each grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Sholes option pricing
model. No options were granted in 2012, 2011 or 2010.

Earnings Per Common Share

Basic earnings per common share (“EPS”) excludes dilution and is computed by dividing income
available to common shareholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for-
the period. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing net income available to common shareholders by the
weighted average number of shares of common stock and common stock equivalents. Common stock
equivalents consist of stock options and warrants and are computed using the treasury stock method.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date but before
financial statements are issued. Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide
additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the
estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements. Non-recognized subsequent events
are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance sheet but
arose after that date. In preparing these financial statements, subsequent events were evaluated through
the time the financial statements were issued and all material subsequent events have been either
recognized or disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Segment Information

ASC Topic 280-10, “Segment Reporting,” requires selected segment information of operating:
segments based on a management approach. The Company operates as one business segment.

Recently Issued Accbunling Standards

In September 2011, the Intangibles topic was amended to permit an entity to consider qualitative
factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less:
than its carrying amount as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the two-step
goodwill impairment test. These amendments were effective for the Company on January 1, 2012.

In April 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-02 to assist creditors with their determination of when a
restructuring is a Troubled Debt Restructuring (“TDR”). The determination is based on whether the
restructuring constitutes a concession and whether the debtor is experiencing financial difficulties as
both events must be present. The new guidance was effective for the Company beginning January 1,
2012 and did not have a material effect on the Company’s TDR determinations.
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In April 2011, the criteria-used to determine effective control of transferred assets in the Transfers
and Servicing topic of the ASC was amended by ASU 2011-03. The requirement for the transferor to
have the ability to repurchase or redeem -the financial assets on substantially the agreed terms and the
collateral maintenance implementation guidance related to that criterion were removed from the -
assessment of effective control. The other criteria to assess effective control were not changed. The.
amendments were effective for the Company on January 1, 2012 and had no effect on the financial
statements. ' o

ASU 2011-04 was issued in May 2011 to amend the Fair Value Measurement topic of the ASC by
clarifying the application of existing fair value measurement and disclosure requirements and by
changing particular principles or requirements for measuring fair value or for disclosing information
about fair value measurements. The amendments were effective for the Company beginning January 1,
2012 and had no effect on the financial statements.

The Comprehensive Income topic of the ASC was amended in June 2011. The amendment
eliminates the option to present other comprehensive income as a part of the statement of changes in
stockholders’ equity and requires consecutive presentation of the statement of net income and other
comprehensive income. The amendments were applicable to the Company on January 1, 2012 and have
been applied retrospectively. In December 2011, the topic was further amended to defer the effective
date of presenting reclassification adjustments from other comprehensive income.to net income on the
face of the financijal statements. Companies should continue to.report reclassifications out of
accumulated other comprehensive income consistent with the presentation requirements.in effect prior-
to the amendments while FASB finalizes its conclusions regarding future requirements.

In July 2012, the Intangibles topic was amended to permit an entity to consider qualitative factors
to determine whether it is more likely than not that indefinite-lived intangible assets are impaired. If it
is determined to be more likely than not that indefinite-lived intangible assets are impaired, then the
entity is required to determine the fair value of the indefinite-lived intangible asset and perform the
quantitative impairment test by comparing the fair value with the carrying amount. The amendments
are effective for annual and interim impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after
September 15, 2012. Early adoption is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have a material
effect on the Company’s financial statements.

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-
setting bodies are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial position, results
of operations or cash flows.

Risk and Uncertainties

In the normal course of business, the Company encounters two significant types of risks: economic
and regulatory. There are three main components of economic risk: interest rate risk, credit risk and
market risk. The Company is subject to interest rate risk to the degree that its interest-bearing
liabilities mature or reprice at different speeds, or on a different basis, than its interest-earning assets.
Credit risk is the risk of default on the Company’s loan and investment portfolios that results from
borrowers’ or issuer’s inability or unwillingness to make contractually required payments. Market risk
reflects changes in the value of collateral underlying loans and investments and the valuation of real
estate held by the Company. '
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The Company is subject to-regulations.of various governmental agencies (regulatory risk). These
regulations can and do change significantly from period to period. The.Company also undergoes
periodic examinations by the regulatory agencies, which may subject it to further changes with respect
to asset valuations, amounts of required loan loss allowances and operating restrictions from regulators’
judgments based on information available to them at the time of their examination. - L

Reclassifications

Certain captions and amounts in the 2011 and 2010 consolidated financial statements were -
reclassified to conform to the 2012 presentation. . - S : : :

Note 3—BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The Bank expanded its residential mortgage business unit with the acquisition of the assets of
Palmetto South Mortgage Corporation (“Palmetta South”), effective July 31, 2011. Palmetto South,
which operates as a division of the Bank, offers mortgage loan: products for-home purchase or
refinance in the South: Carolina market area. The acquisition price will be paid during a three year
earn out period with the actual amount calculated based on the achievement of certain profitability
metrics. The earn out terms over the three year period provide for contingent consideration which
ranges from $0 to $1.2 million based upon annual net income. Management anticipates the amount will
be approximately $600 thousand based upon recent past operating results and as such a contingent
liability was recognized for this amount when considering business combination accounting rules. The
purchase price of operating assets was $22 thousand. This acquisition was not considered material to
the financial statements.

78



FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 4—INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The -amortized cost and estimated fair values.of investment securities are summarized below:

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE:

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
(Dollars in thousands) Cost Gaiof _ Lossee Value
December 31, 2012: . o
Government sponsored enterprlses ................. $ 1522 § 12 $ —.  $ 1,534
Mortgage-backed securities .. ............ T, <. 110, 425 2,343 S 624 112,144
Small Business Administration pools . .............. . 54148 1,008 163 54,993
State and local government .. ............. e 31,483 936 46 32,373
Corporate and other securities . ................... 2,349 53 1 2,401

2 $199927. $4352  $ 834 $203.445

December 31, 2011: ‘ : ! TR : o .
Government sponsored enterprises . .......0.. ... .08 Ble $ 23§ — § 34

Mortgage-backed securities . ... ... ... ... s el 0 141,103 <L 2,876 2348 -~ 141,631
Small Business Administration pools . ...... Celhudess o 35,889 w0 634 0 o 447 36,479
State and local government . .. ...................... 19617 871 . —.. 20488
Corporate and other securities . .............. e oo 2432 54 86 | 2400

$199,072  $4,438 $2,478  $201,032

At December 31, 2012, corporate and other securities available-for-sale included the followmg at
fair value: corporate bonds at $1.0 million, mutual funds at $884.5 thousand, foreign debt of . ’
$59.7 thousand, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation preferred stock of $30.0 thousand and
Corporate preferred stock in the amount of $416.7 thousand. At December 31, 2011, corporate and
other securities available-for-sale included the following at fair value: corporate bonds at $1.4 million, -
mutual funds at $904.9 thousand, foreign debt of $59. 6 thousand and Federa] Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation preferred stock of $20.9 thousand :

e
7

Other investments, at cost include Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) stock in, the amount of
$2.5 million at December 31, 2012 and FHLB and Federal Reserve stock in the. amount of $1.8 million
and $3.8 million at December 31, 2011, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, proceeds from the sale of securities available-for-sale
amounted to $55.8 million, gross realized gains amounted to $2.2 million and gross realized losses
amounted to $2.1million. For the year ended December 31, 2011, proceeds from the sale of securities
available-for-sale amounted to $56.0 million, gross realized gains amounted to $2.6 million and gross
realized losses amounted to $2.0 million. For the year ended December 31, 2010, proceeds from the
sale of securities available-for-sale amounted to $85.5 million, gross realized gains amounted to
$2.5 million and gross realized losses amounted to $1.7 million. The tax provision applicable to the net
realized gain was approximately $9.0 thousand, $201.0 thousand, and $289.0 thousand for 2012, 2011
and 2010, respectively.
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The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities at December 31, 2012, by contractual
maturity, follow. Expected maturities differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have
the right to call or prepay the obligations with or without prepayment penalties. :

Available-for-sale

Amortized Fair
(Dollars in thousands) Cost Value -
Dueinoneyear orless..........coovvvieeeevnnnnnn.. $ 26,725 $ 26,722
Due after one year through five years .................. 83,068 84,630
Dug after five years through tenyears .................. 30,565 31,161
Due after ten YEars . . ... .. ov vt ittt 59,569 60,932

$199,927  $203,445

Securities with an amortized cost of $29.0 million and fair value of $30.3 million at December 31,
2012, were pledged to secure FHLB advances, public deposits, and securities sold under agreements to
repurchase. Securities with an amortized cost of $35.1 million and fair value of $36.6 million at
December 31, 2011, were pledged to secure FHLB advances, public deposits, demand notes due the
Treasury and securities sold under agreements to repurchase. : .

~ The following tables show gross unreahzed losses and fair values, aggregated by investment
category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous loss position at
December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Less than 12 months 12 months or more : Total

December 31 2012 - Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair = Unrealized
(Dollars in thousands) Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss’
Available-for-sale securities:
Government Sponsored Enterprise : '

mortgage-backed securities .. ...... $22,662 $233 $4,583 $ 13 $27,245 $246
Small Business Administration pools ... 11,013 158 2,447 5 13,460 163
Non-agency mortgage-backed securities . — — 2,363 378 2,363 378
State and local government. ......... 2,599 46 - — 2,599 46
Corporate bonds and other.......... S — 50 1 50 1

Total ........ ... o i $36,274 $437 $9,443 $397 $45,717 $834
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Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total

December 31, 2011 - -~ - Fair - -Unrealized - - Fairr ~~ Unrealized ~ Fair Unrealized
(Dollars in thousands) . . Value Loss: Value Loss Value Loss
Available-for-salé securities:
Governiment Sponsored Enterprise ' ' '

mortgage-backed securities . ... ... ©$25,113 ¢ $163 $3269 $ 24 -$28382 $ 187
Small Business Administration pools .. 6,108 38 2,203- - 6 8,311 44
Non-agency mortgage-backed securities -+ * - 574 3 13,275 - 2,158 - 13,849 2,161
Corporate bonds and other . . .. ... .. 940 60 524 - 26 1,464 86

Total .......... .. o i -$32,735 $264 —$19 271 . $2 214 $52 006  $2,478

-Government Sponsoréd Enterprise, Mortgage Backed Securities: Throughout 2008 and -
continuing through 2012, the bond markets and many institutional holders of bonds came under a great
deal of stress partially as a result of increasing delinquencies in the mortgage lending market. At
December 31, 2012, the Company owns mortgage-backed securities (“MBSs”) including collateralized
mortgage obhgatlons (“CMOs”) with an amortized cost of $107.3 million and apprommate fair value of
$109.4 million issued by government sponsored enterprises (“GSES”) Current economic conditions
have impacted MBSs issued by GSEs such as the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (the
“FHLMC”) and the Federal National Mortgage Association (the “FNMA”). These entities have
experienced increasing delinquencies in the underlying loans that make up the MBSs and CMOs. As of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, all of the MBSs issued by GSEs are classified: as “Available for Sale.”
Unrealized losses on certain of these investments are not considered to b e “other than temporary,”
and we have the intent and ability to hold these until they mature. or recover the current book value.
The contractual cash flows of the investments are guaranteed by the GSE. Accordingly, it is expected
that the securities would not be settled at a price less:than. the amortized cost of the. Company’s
investment. Because the Company does not intend to sell these securities and it is more likely than not
the Company will not be required sell these securities before a recovery of its amortized cost, which
may be maturity, the Company does not cons1der the mvestments to be other-than-temporanly
impaired at December 31, 2012

Non-agency Mortgage Backed Securities: - The Company‘also holds private label mortgage-backed
securities (“PLMBSs”), including CMOs, at December 31, 2012 with an amortized cost of $3.1 million
and approximate fair value of $2.7 million. Management monitors each of these sgcurities on a
quarterly basis to identify any deterioration in the credit quality, collateral values and credit support
underlying the investments.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company identified two PLMBs with a fair value
of $2.5 million that it considered other-than-temporarily-impaired. As prescribed by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 320-10-65, the
Company recognized an impairment charge in earnings of $199.8 thousand (credit component) during
year ended December 31, 2012. The $199.8 thousand represents the estimated credit losses on these
securities for the year ended December 31, 2012. One of the securities identified as '
other-than-temporarily-impaired during the year ended December 31, 2012 was subsequently sold after
the impairment was recognized.
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For the year ended December 31, 2011, we recognized impairment charges on three PLMBs
investments whereby the credit component was.$293 thousand recognized through earnings and the
amount recognized through other comprehensive income amounted to $(35) thousand. For the-year .
ended December 31, 2010, we recoghized impairment charges on nine PLMBs investments whereby the
credit component was $477 thousand recognized through earnings and the amount recognized through -
other comprehensive income amounted to $2.9 million. For the year ended December 31, 2009, we
recognized the credit impairment charges of $491 thousand as the credit component on five PLMBs .
securities through earnings and $1.7 million through other comprehensive income. The PLMBs. -
continue to.experience high levels of delinquencies in the underlying loans that make up the PLMBSs,
and as a result we could experience additional OTTI in the future.

" As prescribéd by FASB -ASC 320-10-35 for the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the
Company recognized the credit component of OTTI on debt securities in earnings and the non-credit
component in other comprehensive income (OCI).for those securities in which the Company does not
intend to sell the security and it is; more likely than not the Company will not be required to sell the
securities prior to recovery.

Corporate Bonds: Corporate bonds held by the Company are reviewed on a quarterly basis to
1dent1fy downgrades by rating agencies as well as deterioration of the underlylng collateral or the
issuer’s ability to service the debt obligation.. As of December 31, 2012, the Company owns ‘one
corporate bond which i is rated above investment grade The Company does not cons1der this investment
to be OTTL

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, the Company recorded $4 0 thousand in
OTTI charges on a preferred term security. During-the third quarter of 2011, the Company sold this
security and recorded an additional realized loss of $455 thousand. This loss was offset by the sale of
two municipal bonds with a recorded gain of $488 thousand. During the fourth quarter of 2011, the
Company sold an SLLM Corporation bond that was rated below investment grade with a book value of
$1 million and recorded a $73.0 thousand loss.

State and Local Govemments and, Other: Management monitors these securltles on a quarterly
basis to identify any deterioration in the credit quality. Included in the momtonng is a review of the
credit rating, a financial analysis and certain demographic data on the underlying issuer. The Company
does not.consider these securities to. be OTTI at December 31, 2012. .

During the years ended, December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the
Company recorded OTTI losses on held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities as follows:

Year ended
December 31,
o 2012
Available-
) "for-s_a}e
. (Dollars in thousands) _ . : __SE_"E""L
Total OTTI charge realized and unreahzed ................... . $415
OTTI recognized in other comprehensive income (non- credit
component) ... .. e e e e 215
Net impairment losses recogmzed in earnings (credit component) . . ... $200
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. Year ended-

December 31,
- 2011
- Available-

: : ) for-sale .
(Dollars in thousands) : . M}L
Total OTTI charge realized and unrealized ...........: e e e e . $262
OTTI recognized in other comprehensive income (non-credi ‘

component) . ....... e R Y P R € ))
Net impairment losses recognized in earnings (credit component) .. . .. $297

Year ended December 31, 2010

Held-to- .
maturity
mortgage-  Available-
. . backed . for-sale

(Dollars in thousands) v secnn‘tles A securities Total
Total OTTI charge realized and unrealized. ...................... $108 $4,310 4,418
OTTI recognized in other comprehensive income (non-credit component) — 2,858 . 2,858
Net impairment losses recognized in earnings (credit component) . .. ... $108 $1,452  $1,560

During 2012, 2011 and 2010, OTTIs occurred for which only a portion is attributed to credit loss
and recognized in earnings. The remainder was reported in other comprehensive income. The following
is a roll forward analysis of amounts relating to credit losses on debt securities recognized in earnings
during the twelve months ended December 31, 2012, December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, there were two non-agency mortgage backed securities
with OTTI in which $200 thousand of OTTI representing the credit loss was recognized in earnings.
The Company uses a third party to obtain information about the structure in order to assist in
determining how the underlying cash flows will be distributed to each security. The following is a
rollforward analysis of amounts relating to credit losses recognized in earnings:

2012 2011 2010

Available Available Available Held to
for Sale for Sale for Sale  maturity

(Dollars in thousands)

Balance at beginning of period ........... ... .. ... $930 $2143 § 545 $132
Other-than-temporary-impairment not previously recognized . . . 173 50 291 98
Additional increase for which an other-than-temporary

impairment was previously recognized related to credit losses . 27 247 1,161 10
Realized losses during the period . . . ....... ... ..ot (180) (1,510) (%4 —
Other-than-temporary impairment previously recognized in

securities sOld ... ... ... (679) — — —
Transfer to available-for-sale ................ e — — 240 (240)
Balance related to credit losses on debt securities at end of

PETOd . . o oot e $271 $ 930 $2,43 $§ —
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In evaluating the non-agency mortgage backed securities, relevant assumptions, such as prepayment
rate, default rate and loss severity on a loan level basis, are used in determining the expected recovery
of the contractual cash flows. The balance of the underlying portfolio cash flows are evaluated using
ongoing assumptions for loss severities, prepayment rates and default rates. The ongoing assumptions
for average prepayment rate, default rate and severity used in the valuations were approximately
13.7%, 8.0%, and 50.4%, respectively. The underlying collateral on substantially all of these securities
are fixed rate residential first mortgages located throughout the United States. The underlying
collateral includes various percentages of owner-occupied, as well as, investment related single-family,
2-4 family and condominium residential properties. The securities were purchased at various discounts
to par value. Based on the assumptions used in valuing the securities, the existing discount and
remaining subordinated collateral provide coverage against future credit losses on the downgraded
securities for which no OTTI has been recognized.

The following table summarizes as of December 31, 2012 the number of CUSIPs, carrying value
and fair value of the non-agency mortgage-backed securities/fCMOs by credit rating. The credit rating
reflects the lowest credit rating by any major rating agency. All non-agency mortgage-backed /CMO
securities are in the super senior or senior tranche.

-(Deollars in thousands)

Number )

of Par Amortized Fair
Credit Rating R ,‘ Co CUSIPs Value Cost - Value
AA ... e e . 2 $-2064 $264 $ 268
Al...... R A 1 380 380 © 374
A3......... S O SN 1 320 3200 318
A e e 2 .12 72 71
TBBB . e e 1 231 . ..231 225
Baal ................... e 1 71 mn .72
Baa2 .......... e e e 1 97 .97 96
Below Investment Grade................. 4 2,008 1,653 1,291
Total . ... ... .. 13 $3,443  $3,088  $2,715
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Loans summarized by category are as follows:

December 3i,
(Dollars in thousands) B ‘ 2012 2011
Commercial, financial and dgricultural ............. oeee.-. $20924 $ 20,608
Real estate: ‘ B
ConStruction . .. v v vttt et i ettt e 13,052 11,767
Mortgage-residential ................ e e 138,892 38,337 :
Mortgage-commercial. . .. ... ... PPN 226,575 220,288
Consumer: : ' C
Home equity . . ........... e e 27073 27,976 -
Other .......... P e 5,495 5,335
TOtAl & vttt ettt e e $332,111  $324,311

Activity in the allowance for loan losses was as follows:

Years ended December 31," - .
2012 - 2011 2000 <

(Dollars in thousands) ¥
Balance at the beginning of year . . . ............... $4,699 $ 4911 :$ 4,854 -
Provision for loanlosses . . ... ... .o it i il 496 - 1,420, 1,878
Chargedoffloans ..........ccoouinneinnannns coo (742)  (1,696)  (1,948) -
Recoveries. ... ............. e e 168 64 127
Balance at end Of YEar . .. .ovvvvvweeeein. .. on. - $4,621  $4,699 § 4911
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The detailed activity in the allowance for loan losses and the recorded investment in loans -
receivable as of and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 follows:

Real estate Real estate ) . }
Real estate  Mortgage Mortgage Consumer _Consumer

(Dollars in thousands) Commercial Construction Residential Commercial Home equity ~ Other  Unallocated Total

2012

Allowance for loan
losses: )

Beginning balance . ... $§ 331 § — $ 514 $ 1475 $ 521 $ 57 $1,801 $ 4,699
Charge-offs . ...... 258 — 112 293 — 79 = 742
Recoveries. . . .. ... 42 — 86 — 3 37 — 168
Provisions . ....... o223 — (253) 140 (124) 2 508 496

Ending balance ... $ 338 $ — $ 235 $ 1,322 $ 400 $ 17 $2,309 $ 4,621

Ending balances:

Individually evaluated

for impairment ... § — 5 — $ — $ - $ — $ — 8 — 8 —
Collectively evaluated ’ o )

for impairment . . . 338 — 235 1,322 400 17 2,309 4,621

Loans receivable:

Ending balance-total . . .  $20,924 $13,052 $38,802 $226,575 $27,173 $5,495 $ —  $332111

Ending balances: C
Individually evaluated ) ; :

for impairment . . . 37 — 357 5,772 —_ 10 — 6,176
Collectively evaluated e
for impairment . . . 20,887 13,052 38,535 220,803 27,173 5,485 — 325,935

Real estate Real estate
Real estate  Mortgage  Mortgage Consumer Consumer

(Dollars in thousands) Commercial Construction Residential Commercial Home equity Other  Unallocated Total

2011

Allowance for loan
losses:

Beginning balance .... § 681 $ 905 $ 465 $ 1,404 $ 325 $ 88 $1,043 $ 4911
Charge-offs . ...... 265 — 186 861 285 99 - 1,696
Recoveries. . ... ... 31 — 5 — 5 23 — 64
Provisions . ....... (116) (905) 230 932 476 45 758 1,420

Ending balance ... § 331 $ — $ 514 $ 1475 $ 521 $ 57 $1,801 $ 4,699

Ending balances:

Individually evaluated

for impairment ... § 1 $ — $ — $ 1 $  — $ — $ — 3 2
Collectively evaluated

for impairment . . . 330 — 514 1,474 521 57 1,801 4,697

Loans receivable:

Ending balance-total . . . $20,608 $11,767 $38,337 $220,288 $27,976 $5,335 $ —  $324311

Ending balances: .

Individually evaluated

for impairment . . . 45 —_ 622 8,667 — 19 — 9,353
Collectively evaluated

for impairment ...  $20,563 $11,767 $37,715 $211,621 $27,976 $5,316 $ — $314,958

Loans outstanding and available lines of credit to bank directors, executive officers and their
related business interests amounted to $10.9 million and $11.3 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Repayments on these loans during the year ended December 31, 2012 were $855 thousand,
and loans made amounted to $230 thousand. Repayments on these loans during the year ended
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December 31, 2011 were $577 thousand, and loans made amounted to $1.2 million. Related party loans

are made on substantially the same terms; including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at
the time for comparable transactions with unrelated persons and generally do not involve more than !
the normal risk of collectability.

The following table presents at. December 31,2012, 2011 and 2010, loans individually evaluated
and considered impaired under FAS ASC 310’ “Accounting by Creditors for Impaxrment of a Loan.”
Impairment 1ncludes performing troubled debt restructurings. T

December 31, .
2012 2011 . 2010

(Dollars in thousands)

Total loans considered impaired atyearend ...............couiinunn.. $6,176 $9,353 $9,587
Loans considered.impaired for which there is a related allowance for loan loss:* LR
‘Outstanding 10an balance . .. ..........ouvuenernennenennneaenn. $ — § 148§ 378
Related allowance .................. e e $ —$ 28 9
Loans considered impaired and previously written down to fair value . ....... $6,176 $9,205 $ 9,209
Average impaired 10ans . . ... ... ... e i '$6,704 $9,926 $10,576
Amount of interest earned during period of impairment ................. $ 179 $ 397§ - 323,
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The following tables :are by loan category and present at December 31, 2012 and December 31,
2011 loans individually evaluated and considered-impaired under FAS ‘ASC 310 “Accounting by
Creditors for Impairment of a Loan:” Impairment includes performing troubled debt restructurings.

Unpaid - ;\verage Inferest
(Dollars in thousands) . } e . Recorded . Principal . Related Recorded Income
December 31, 2012 . . Investment  Balance = Allowance Investment Recognized

With no allowance recorded: : S v : : N ;
Commercial . ...........ccvviii. ... $ 37 $ 50 $— $ 53 $ —
Real estate: - -

Construction . ... . v ovei e — — — —
~ Mortgage-residential . ................ 357 381 — . 442 1
Mortgage-commercial . . .. .o s 5,772 6,162 = — 6,188 178..
Consumer: _ . :
Home Equity . ..... e e — — — = -
Other..... e e i - 10 10. _ 21 Vo —
With an allowance recorded: o :
Commercial ... ... ..ot i — o — —_— —_ L —
Real estate:
Construction . . . ............vvuen.. — — — — —
Mortgage-residential . ................ — —_— —_— — —
Mortgage-commercial ................ — —_ — — —
Consumer:
Home Equity ...................... — — _— — —
Other......... .. i, —_ — — —_ —
Total:
Commercial ......................... 37 50 — 53 —
Real estate:
Construction . . . .................... — —_ —
Mortgage-residential . ............... . 357 381 — 442 1
Mortgage-commercial ................ 5,772 6,162 — 6,188 178
Consumer:
Home Equity ...................... — —
Other...... ..., 10 10 21 —

$6176  $6603  $—  $6704  $179
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Average ::

... Interest - .

(Dollars in thousands) ~ ' " " Recorded Pg;::l)c?;il " Related  Recorded  _Income.
December 31,2011~~~ - S " Investment - Balance - Allowance- Investment *° Récognized’
With no allowance recorded: ‘ e ‘ o
Commercial . ......... S 08 12 %8 190 $— 821 $—
Real estate: o L e e e g O
Construction’....'. .. . . Tt e e W —_ = — — —
“Mortgage-residential ... ... ... 0 oo a 622 650 - . — i 656 4.
Mortgage-commercial .. ..o il 8,552 8,975 . — = - 9,066 382
Consumer: : v ‘
Home Equity ............... e — —_ — — —
Other ... vvevvevnnnn. e 19 19— ©30 1
With ‘an allowance recorded: . _ o o o -
COmmMErCial .., ..o vvvvr v 333 1 36 T2
Real estate: o ‘ o "
“ConStIUCHION .« . v v v v e e et e e —_ — — — —_
Mortgage-residential .. ... oo — — - — —
Mortgage-commercial ... ci. oo : 115 .+ 115 1= 117 - 8
Consumer: oo B 2 v
Home Equity ...........ccvvveennn — — — — —

: O’ther..‘._.'_._ ...... e e —_ — —_— —_ =
Total: B ; 4 ) , ‘ o
Commercial . . ... .. .vuvenn.. e - 45 52 1 57" 2

Real estate: '
ConsStruCtion . . . v v v v e v cv i i e eee e — — — — —
Mortgage-residential .. ............... 622 650 — 656 4
Mortgage-commercial . .......... .. ... 8,667 9,090 1 9,183 390
Consumer:
Home Equity ........covvvuvnnnnn. — — — — —
101171 U 19 19 = 30 1
$9,353 $9,811 $2 $9,926 $397
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The Company categorizes loans into risk categories based on relevant information about the ability
of borrowers to service their debt such as: current financial information, historical payment experience,
credit documentation, public information, and current economic trends, among other factors. The
Company analyzes loans individually by classifying the loans as to credit risk. This analysis is performed
on a monthly basis. The Company uses- the following definitions for risk ratings: R

Special Mention. Loans classified as special mention have a potential weakness that deserves
management’s close attention. If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in.
deterioration of the repayment prospects for the loan or of the institution’s credit position at some
future date. Special mention assets are not adversely classified and do not expose an institution to
sufficient risk to warrant adverse classification.

Substandard. Loans classified as substandard are inadequately protected by the current net
worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classified
have a well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They are
characterized by the distinct possibility that the institution will sustain some loss if the deficiencies
are not corrected. '

Doubtful. Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified as
substandard, with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in
full, on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable and
improbable.

Loans not meeting the criteria above that are analyzed individually as part of the above described
process are considered to be “Pass” rated loans. As of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, aqd
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based on the most recent analysis performed, the risk category of loans by class of loans is shown in
the table below. As of chember 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, no loans were classified as doubtful.

(Dollars in thousands) ” Special
December 31, 2012 - Pass Mention Substandard  Doubtful Total :
Commercial, financial & agricultural ......... $2086 $ 27 $§ 71 $— $.20,924
Real estate: ‘ ‘
ConStruction . .. ...v i ittt tneeeanns 8,595 2,047 2,410 —_ 13,052
Mortgage—residential . ................. 36,493 1,677 722 — 38,892
Mortgage—commercial . ... .. e 208,825 3,803 13,947 — 226,575
Consumer: ' ' '
Home Equity ........... ... ovvuennn. 26,604 124 445 — 27,173
Other . ...... . i i it 5,475 3 17 — 5,495
Total .. e $306,818 $7,681 $17,612 $— $332,111
(Dollars in thousands) Special
December 31, 2011 : : Pass Mention = Substandard Doubtful Total
Commercial, financial & agricultural ....... Lo $ 19,827 $ 499 $ 282 $— $ 20,608
Real estate: o ‘ :
Construction . .. ..o v it ineecnennnn 6,764 —_ 5,003 — 11,767
Mortgage—residential . ................. 37,063 305 969 —. 38,337
Mortgage—commercial .. ............... 200,984 8,009 11,295 — 220,288
Consumer: :
Home Equity ............. .ot 27,692 38 246 —_ 27,976
Other ...ci it i i et 5,311 5 19 —_ 5,335
Total ..ot $297,641 $8,856 $17.814 $__—_ $324,311

* At December 31, 2012 and 2011, non-accrual loans totaled $4.7 million and $5.4 million,

respectively. The gross interest income which would have been recorded under the original terms of the

- Interest recorded on non-accrual loans in 2012 and 2011 amounted to $112 thousand and

$163 thousand, respectively.

non-accrual loans amounted to $352 thousand and $224 thousand in 2012 and 2011, respectively.

“Troubled debt restructurings (“TDRs”) that are still accruing are included in impaired loans at
December 31, 2012 and 2011 amounted to $1.5 million and $3.9 million, respectively. Interest earned
during 2012 and 2011 on these loans amounted to $123 thousand and $234 thousand, respectively.

. Loans greater than 90 days delinquent and stilIlaccruing interest at December 31, 2012 and 2011

amounted to $55 thousand and $25 thousand, respectively.
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The following tables are by loan categery and present loans past due and on non-accrual status as
_ of December 31,2012 and December 31, 2011: ~ :

Greater than
(Dollars in thousands) ) 30 - 59 Days 60 - 89 Days 90 Days and Total Past

December 31, 2012 : Past Due -~ Past Due Accruing  Nonaccrual ~ Due Current - Total Inaiﬁs
Commercial ............ $ 17 $ 107 $— $ 8 §$ 209 § 20,715 $ 20, 924
Real estate: .

. Construction . ...... . — = — — — 13,052 13,052
Mortgage—residential . . . 311 378 — 357 1,046 37,846 38,892
Mortgage—commercial . . 627 '898 55 4263 5843 220,732 226,575

Consumer: . "
Home equity . ......... 211 — — —_ 211 26,962 27,173
Other ............... ‘ 32 7 — 10 49 5,446 5,495

Total ...... e $1,198. $1,390 . $55° $4,715 $7,358 $324,753 $332,111

. . ) Greater than

(Dollars in thousands) 30-59 Days 60 - 89 Days 90 Days and Total Past

December 31, 2011 " Past Due Past Due Accruing  Nonaccrual Due . Current Total Loans

Commercial ............ $ 147 $ 123 $— $ 12 $ 282 §$ 20,326 $ 20,608

Real estate: _ ' . _ : - '

Construction .. ........ — — — — — 11,767 11,767
Mortgage—residential . . . 391° 95 —_ 623 1,109 37,228 . 38,337
Mortgage—commercial . . 1,382 966 25 4,749 7,122 213,166 220,288

Consumer: ‘ ’ ' ' ' =
Home equity .. ........ 45 D= — — 45 27931 27976
Other .....{......... 42 18 — 19 79 5,256 5,335

Total ................. $2,007  $1, 202 . $25 $5,403  $8,637 $315 674 $324,311

As a result of adopting the amendments in ASU 2011-02, the Bank reassessed all restructurlngs
that occurred on or after the beginning of the fiscal year of adoption (January 1, 2011) to determine -
whether they are considered TDRs under the amended guidance. The Bank identified as TDRs certain
loans for which the allowance for loan losses had previously been measured under a general allowance
methodology Upon identifying those loans as TDRs, the Bank identified them as impaired under the
guidance in ASC 310-10-35. The amendments. in ASU 2011-02 require. prospectlve application of the
impairment measurement guidance in ASC 310-10-35 for those loans newly identified as impaired. At
December 31, 2012, the recorded investment in loans for which the allowance was previously measured
under a general allowance méthodology and are now impaired under ASC 310-10-35 was $3.3 million,
and no allowance for loan losses was associated with those loans. At December 31, 2011, the recorded
investment in loans for which the allowance was previously measured under a general allowance
methodology and are now impaired under ASC 310-10-35 was $7.7 million, and a $2 thousand
allowance for loan losses was associated with those loans.
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The following table, by loan category, present loans determined to. be TDRs dunng the twelve
month period ended December 31, 2012. .

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2012

- " Pre-Modification = Post-Modification
Troubled Debt Number Outstanding Outstanding

Restructurings of Recorded .- Recorded
(Dolars in thousands) Contracts Investment “Investment .
Nonaccrual

Mortgage—Commercial . . . ......... 1 $ 40 $-40
Total nonaccrual .. . ................. 1 $ 40 $ 40
Accrual :

Mortgage—Commercial . . .......... 2 $596 $596
Total Accrual . ....... e e g - $596 $596

3 $636 8636 |

Total TDRS oot i it e e e e

Durlng the twelve month ended December 31, 2012 the Company modified three loans that were
considered to be TDRs. The payment and interest rate were lowered for two.of these loans and the
payment was modified to interest only-for-one loan. ; :

The followmg table, by loan category, present loans determmed to be TDRs during the twelve
month period ended December 31, 2011

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2011
Pre-Modification  Post-Modification

Troubled Debt Number Outstanding Outstanding
Restructurings - of ~ Recorded : Recorded
(Dollars in thousands) . . Contracts Investment . Investment
Nonaccrual

Mortgage—Commercial . . . ......... 5 $ 741 $ 741

Commercial & Industrial . . ......... 2 43 ' 43
Total nonaccrual . .. ................ 7 $ 784 $ 784
Accrual ‘

Mortgage—Commermal ....... s 1 - $3,138 $3,138
Total Accrual . ................. . 1 " $3,138 $3,138

8- $3,922 $3,922

Total TDRS . ... v i i i et

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, the Bank modified eight loans that were
considered to be TDRs. The payment and interest rate were lowered for six of these loans, the
payment was lowered for one loan and for one loan the business and guarantor were released. One
TDR that had been restructured with a lower payment in 2011 was paid out during the fourth quarter
of 2011.

The following table, by loan category, presents loans determined to be TDRs in the twelve months
ended December 31, 2011 that had payment defaults during the period ended December 31, 2011.
There were no loans determined to be TDRs in the twelve months ended December 31, 2012 that
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subsequently defaulted during the twelve month period ended December 31 2012. Defaulted loans are
those loans that are greater than 89 days past due. :

For the twelve months

Troubled Debt : ended December 31,

Restructurings that ’ i ) 2011

subsequently defaulted Number

this period ~~of - Reecorded

(Dollars in thousands) Contracts Investment
Mortgage—Commercial ............. .. .. ... 4 - $704
Commercial & Industrial. .......................... 1 11

Total TDRS .« o oottt e e e 5 $715

During the twelve month period ended December 31, 2011, five nonaccrual loans that had
previously been restructured, had payment defaults.

In the determination of the allowance for loan losses, all TDRs are reviewed to ensure that one of
the three proper valuation methods (fair market value of the collateral, present value of cash flows, or
observable market price) is adhered to. All non-accrual loans are written down to its corresponding:.
collateral value. All TDR accruing loans and where the loan balance exceeds the present value of cash
flow will have a specific allocation. All nonaccrual loans are considered impaired. Under ASC 310-10, a
loan is impaired when it is probable that the Bank will be unable to collect all amounts due including
both principal and interest according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement.

Note 6—FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Company adopted FASB ASC Fair Value Measurement Topic 820, which defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value -
measurements. ASC 820 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or
paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. ASC 820 also
establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels
of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level | Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable
market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and
that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3
assets and liabilities include financial instruments whose value is
determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or
similar techniques, as well as instruments for which the determination of
fair value requires significant management judgment or estimation.
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FASB ASC 825-10-50 “Disclosure about Fair Value of Financial Instruments”, requires the
Company to disclose estimated fair values for its financial instruments. Fair value estimates, methods,
and assumptions are set forth below.

Cash and short term investments—The carrying amount of these financial instruments (cash and
due from banks, interest-bearing bank balances, federal funds sold and securities purchased under
agreements to resell) approximates fair value. All mature within 90 days and do not present
unanticipated credit concerns and are classified as Level 1. '

Investment Securities—Measurement is on a recurring basis based upon quoted market prices, if
available. If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are measured using independent pricing
models or other model-based valuation techniques such as the present value of future cash flows,
adjusted for prepayment assumptions, projected credit losses, and liquidity. Level 1 securities include
those traded on an active exchange, such as the New York Stock Exchange, or by dealers or brokers in
active over-the-counter markets. Level 2 securities include mortgage-backed securities issued both by
government sponsored enterprises and private label mortgage-backed securities. Generally these fair
values are priced from established pricing models. Level 3 securities include corporate debt obligations
and asset—backed securities that are less liquid or for which there is an inactive market.

Loans Held for Sale—The Company originates fixed rate residential loans on a servicing released
basis in the secondary market. Loans closed but not yet settled with an investor, are carried in the
Company’s loans held for sale portfolio. These loans are fixed rate residential loans that have been
originated in the Company’s name and have closed. Virtually all of these loans have commitments to be
purchased by investors at a locked in by price with the investors on the same day that the loan was
locked in with the Company’s customers. Therefore, these loans present very little market risk for the
Company and are classified as Level 2. The carrying amount of these loans approximates fair value.

Loans—The fair value of loans are estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the
current rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the
same remaining maturities and are classified as Level 2. As discount rates are based on current loan
rates as well as management estimates, the fair values presented may not be indicative of the value
negotiated in an actual sale: Loans which are deemed to be impaired are primarily valued on a
nonrecurring basis at the fair value of the underlying real estate collateral. Such fair values are
obtained using independent appraisals, which the Company considers to be Level 3 inputs.

Other Real Estate Owned (OREO)—OREO is carried at the lower of carrying value or fair value
on a non-recurring basis. Fair value is based upon independent appraisals or management’s estimation
of the collateral and is considered a Level 3 measurement.

Accrued Interest Receivable—The fair value approximates the carrying value and is classified as
Level 1.

Interest rate swap—The fair value approximates the carrying value and is classified as Level 3.

Deposits—The fair value of demand deposits, savings accounts, and money market accounts is the
amount payable on demand at the reporting date. The fair value of fixed-maturity certificates of
deposits is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using rates currently offered for deposits of
similar remaining maturities. Deposits are classified as Level 2.
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Federal Home Loan Bank Advances—Fair value is estimated based on discounted cash flows using
current market rates for borrowings with similar terms and are classified as Level 2.

Short Term Borrowings—The carrying value of short term borrowings (securities sold under
agreements to repurchase and demand notes to the Treasury) approximates fair value. These are
classified as Level 2.

Junior Subordinated Debentures—The fair values of junior subordinated debentures is estimated
by using discounted cash flow analyses based on incremental borrowing rates for similar types of
instruments. These are classified as Level 2.

Accrued Interest Payable—The fair value approximates the carrying value and is classified as
Level 1.

Commitments to Extend Credlt—The fair value of these commitments is immaterial because their
underlying intérest rates approximate market.

The carrying amount and estimated fair value by classification Level of the Company’s financial
instruments as of December 31, 2012 are as follows:

December 31, 2012

Carrying - Fair Value

(Dollars in thousands) Amount Total Level 1 Level. 2 Level 3

Financial Assets: :
Cash and short term investments ........... $ 18296 $ 18,296 $18,296 $ — 5 —
Available-for-sale securities . .............. 203,445 203,445 914 202,114 417
Other investments, at cost ................ 2,527 — .- — 2,527
Loans heldforsale ..................... 9,658 9,658 —_ 9,658 —
Net loans receivable . . .. ................. - 327,490 328,893 — 322,717 6,176
Accruedinterest .............. .. ..., 2,098 2,098 2,098 — —
Interest rate sSWap .. ..........viiiiinn (338) (338) — —  (338)

Financial liabilities:
Non-interest bearing demand . ............. $ 97526 $97526 $§ — $97526 $ —
NOW and money market accounts .......... 150,874 150,874 — 150,874 —_
Savings . ... e e 41,100 41,100 — 41,100 —_—
Time deposits ...........ccvviveniin... 185,477 187,313 — 187,313 —
Total deposits . ........... ... ... ...... 474,977 476,813 — 476,813 _—
Federal Home Loan Bank Advances . ........ 36,344 41,977 —_ 41,977 —
Short term borrowings . .................. 15,900 15,900 —_ 15,900 —
Junior subordinated debentures ............ 15,464 15,464 — 15,464 —
Accrued interest payable ................. 1,029 1,029 1,029 —_— —
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The carrying amount and estimated fair value of the Company’s financial instruments as of
December 31, 2011 are as follows:

December 31, 2011
Carrying Fair
(Dollars in thousands) Amount Value
Financial Assets: ' . "
Cash and short term investments ......... R . $16492 §$ 16,492
Available-for-sale securities ........ TP ' 20'1,03_2 201,032
Other investments, at cost ......... e, L. 5637 —
Loans heldforsale ........................ Ceee... 3725 3725
Net loans receivable. . . ........................... - 319,612 319,505
Accrued interest ... ..... s, e P 1,914 1,914
Interest rate.swap .............. e .. (602)  (602)
Financial liabilities: N E '
Non-interest bearing demand ......... e $ 83,572 $ 83,572
NOW and money market accounts . .........iin....., - 136,483 < - 136,483
Savings . ..... ..., ... I 34,048 134,048
Time deposits ©......... 0 ...... e e 210,482 214,437
Total deposits . .. .....iviiii e 464,585 468,540
Federal Home Loan Bank Advances . ................. 43,862 50,238
Short term borrowings ... .7 .iwt i i e 13,616 13,616
Junior subordinated debentures ..................... 17,913 17,913
Accrued 1nterest pa,yable e e e e e e 1,624 1,624

The follong table: reﬂects the changes in fair values for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011
and 2010 and where these changes are included in the income statement: . :

2012 2001 2010

Non-interest  Non-interest Non-lnterest
income: income: income:
Fair-value Fair-value Fair-value
adjustment adjustment adjustment
(Dollars in thousands) gain (loss) gain ‘(loss) gain (loss)
Interestrate sWap . . . ............... P (58) (166)  ~ (581)
Total.......... e 1) $(166)  $(581)

The following table summarizes quantltatlve disclosures about the fair value for cach category of
assets carried at fair value as.of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 that are measured on a
recurring basis. There were no liabilities carried at fair value as of December 31, 2012 or December 31,
2011 that are measured on a recurring basis.
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(Dollars in thousands)

Description

Available for sale securities
Government sponsored
enterprises . .............
Mortgage-backed securities .
Small Business Administration
SECUrities . . ..o vvi i
State and local government . . ..
Corporate and other securities . .

(Dollars in thousands)

Description

Available for sale securities
Government sponsored
enterprises .......... S
Mortgage backed securities . . . .
Small Business Administration

SECUITtIES .+« v v vv v v v vn o .

State and local govérnment . . . .
Corporate and other securities .

Quoted Prices

Significant

in Active
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
December 31, Assets Inputs Inputs
2012 (Level 1) (Level 2) " (Level 3)
$ 1,534 $— 0§ 153 § —
112,144 — _112,144 —
54,993 — 54,993 —
32,373 — 32,373 —
2,401 914 1,070 417
203,445 914 202,114 417
(338) — — (338)
$203,107 $914 $202,114 $ 79
.Quoted Prices - . :
in Active Significant .=
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable  Unobservable
December 31, Assets Inputs Inputs
2011 - (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level.3)
$ 34 $ — $ 34 $ —
141,631 — 141,631 —
36,479 = - 36,479 —
20,488 — 20;488 —
2,400 926 1,474 —
201,032 926 200,106 —
(602) — L= (602)
© $200,430 $926 $200,106  $(602)
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The following tables reconcile the changes in Level 3 financial instruments for the year ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011 measured on a recurring basis:

2012
L o Interest rate  Corporate Preferred

(Dollars in thousands) . Swap Stock
Beginning Balance December 31,2011 ........... $@©602) =
Total gains or losses (realized/unrealized) R : :

Included in‘earnings . . ..................... (58) =

Included in other comprehensive income . .. ..... — : —
Purchases, issuances, and settlements ............ 322 o e 417
Transfers in and/orout of Level 3. .............. — T
Ending Balance December 31,2012 ............. - $(338) 417

2011

State and local B
) government Corporate and other  Interest rate
(Dollars in thousands) securities securities Swap

Beginning Balance December 31, 2010 $ 625 $182 $(778)
Total gains or losses (realized/ ‘ L

unrealized) '

Included in earnings . . .......... — (103) (166)

Included in other comprehensive

income .................... — (79) —

Purchases, issuances, and settlements . (625) —_ . 342
Transfers in and/or out of Level 3. . .. — — —
Ending Balance December 31, 2011 . . $ — $ — $(602)

|
|

During the fourth quarter of 2011, a state and local government bond with a fair value of
$579 thousand was called and removed from the Level 3 category.

The following tables summarize quantitative disclosures about the fair value for each category of
assets carried at fair value as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 that are measured on a
non-recurring basis. There were no liabilities carried at fair value and measured on a non-recurring
basis at December 31, 2012 and 2011.
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(Dollars in thousands)

Description

Impaired loans:

Commercial & Industrial . ..

Real estate:

Mortgage-residential . . . . .
Mortgage-commercial . . . .

Consumer:

Home equity ..........
Other ............. .

Total impaired: . ...... ‘

Other real estate owned:

Construction ............
Mortgage-residential .. ....
Mortgage-commercial . . . . . .

Total other real estate

Quoted Prices  Significant
in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable  Unobservable
December 31, Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

2012 (Level 1) (Level 2) - (Level 3)

§ 37 §— — s 3
357 — ~ 357
5,772 —_ — 5,772
10 = = 10
6,176 — — 6,176
301 — — 301
488 — — 488
3,198 — — 3,198
3,087 — — 397
$10,163 $— $— $10,163
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Note 6—FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) "
(Dollars in thousands) : ' R : SURTERIE T

l Quoted Prfées K 'Signiﬁcant
in Active Other Significant -

Markets for Observable  Unobservable
o L December 31, Identical Assets .- Inputs Inputs
Description TN 2011 (Level 1)~ (Level 2) (Level 3)

Impaired loans: - - - v
Commercial & Industrial . $ 44 $— $— $ 44
Real estate: e

Mortgage-residential . . . . . 622 — — 622
Mortgage-commercial . ... . . 8,666, - — —_ 8,666 -
Consumer: .
Home equity ........ _— o — — — .
Other ............... 19 e — 19
. Total impaired ... .... 9351 — — 9,351
Other real estate owned: . . ... L — —
Construction ............ 2,156 — — 2,156
.Mortgage-residential ... ... 4,278 — — 4,278
: Mortgage-commercial . . . . .. 917 = — 917
Total other real estate i _ :
OWIlCd . d e .y ........ 7,351 — [ 7,351
Total ....ocnviiLL.. $16,702 $— $— $16,702

The Company has a large percentage of loans with real estate serving as collateral. Loans which
are deemed to be impaired are primarily valued on a nonrecurring basis at the fair value of the
underlying real estate collateral. Such fair values are obtained using independent appraisals, which the
Company considers to be Level 3 inputs. Third party appraisals-aré ‘generally obtained when a loan is
identified as being impaired or at the time it is transferred to OREQ, This internal process would,
consist of evaluating the underlying collateral to independently obtained comparable properties. With
respect to less complex or smaller credits, an internal evaluation may be performed. Generally the
independent and internal evaluations are updated annually. Factors considered in determining the fair
value include geographic sales trends, the value of comparable surrounding properties as well as the
condition of the property. The aggregate amount of impaired loans was $6.2 million and $9.4- million
for the year ended December 31, 2012 and year ended December 31, 2011, respectively.
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Note 6—FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

For Level 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring or non-recurring basis as of
December 31, 2012, the significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurements were as

follows:
Fair Value as of Significant Significant
December 31, . . Observable Unobservable
(Dollars in thousands) 2012 Valuation Technique Inputs ‘ I‘nputs
Interest Rate Swap . . ..... $ (388) Discounted cash Weighted 3.20%
flows Average Credit.
Factor
Preferred stock. . ........ $ 417 Estimation based on =~ Comparable n/a
comparable transactions
non-listed securities '
OREO................ $3,987 Appraisal Value/ ' Appraisals and Appraisals
Comparison Sales/ or sales of- discounted 6%
Other estimates ". comparable to 16% for sales
properties commissions
: and other
- holding cost
Impaired loans . e $6,176 Appraisal Value Appraisals and ©  Appraisals

Note 7—PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

(Dollars in thousands)

Land .. .0 0., ................

Premises

Equipment......... ..ottt

Accumulated depreciation. . .......... .. o L,

.....................................

or sales of discounted 6%
comparable  to 16% for sales
properties commissions
: .- and other
. holding cost
December 31,
2012 2011
...... $ 5297 $ 5467
..... 13,990 13,990
..... 7,187 6,381
26,474 25,838
..... 9,216 8,355
$17,258 $17,483

Provision for depreciation included in operating expenses for the years ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010 amounted to $862 thousand, $841 thousand, and $882 thousand, respectively.
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Note 8—GOODWILL, CORE DEPOSIT INTANGIBLE AND OTHER ASSETS

Intangible assets (excluding goodwill) consisted of the following:

December 31,
(Dellars in thousands) 2012 2011
Core deposit premiums, gross carrymg amount . ............. $ 3,438 § 3,438
Other intangibles .. ..........uuuniiniinieinnnnnnnn.. ~ 646 646
4,084 ° 4,084
Accumulated amortization . . ................. e oo (3924)  (3,719)
Net . e e $ 160 $ 365

Amortization of the intangibles amounted to $204 thousand, $517 thousand and $621 thousand the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectlvely Amortlzatlon of the intangibles is
scheduled to be as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

2013 ........ e 160

$160

The acquisition of two financial advisory firms in 2008 resulted in recognition of $646 thousand in
an intangible asset related to the customer list. The intangible asset is being amortized on a straight
line basis over five years.

As a result of the acquisition of Palmetto South mortgage on July 31, 2011, we have recorded
goodwill in the amount of $571 thousand. Beginning in 2012 and each year, thereafter this goodwill
will be tested for lmpalrment

Bank-owned life insurance prov1des benefits to various exnstlng ofﬁcers The carrying value of all
existing policies at December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $10.9 million and $11.0 million, respectively.
Note 9—OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED

The following summarizes the activity in the other real estate owned for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011.

December 31,

(In thousande) o N 2012 2011
Balance—beginningofyear ............................. $7,351  $6,904
Additions—foreclosures . ........... ... 2,770 3,889
Writedowns . ........... e e e 317 . 261
Sales . . e 5817 3,181
"Balance,end of year ............ ... . . ... . . . i $3,987 $7,351
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Note 10—DEPOSITS
At December 31, 2012, the scheduled maturities of Certificates of Deposits are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

203 1 3 NGOG $109,239
27 0 1 O 32,423
1270 ) 5 S 14,793
D016 - -+ e e e e e e 16,240
2017 o et e e e e 12,780
ETCATLET . « o o o v e e et e e e e e e et e e )

$185,477

Interest pald on certificates of depos1ts of $100 thousand or more totaled $1. 2 million, $1.7 mllhon,
and $2.1 million in 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.

Deposits from directors and executive officers and their related interests at December 31, 2012 and
2011 amounted to approximately $4.8 million and $4.4 million, respectively.

The amount of overdrafts classified as loans at December 31, 2012 and 2011 were $142 thousand
and $119 thousand, respectively.

Note 11—SECUR][TIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE AND OTHER
BORROWED MONEY

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase generally mature within one to four days from the
transaction date. The welghted average interest rate at December 31, 2012 and 2011 was 0.21% and
0.25%, respectively. The maximum month-end balance during 2012 and 2011 was $17.3 million and
$18.1 million, respectively. The average outstanding balance during the years ended December 31, 2012
and 2011 amounted to $15.5 million and $15.9 million, respectively, with an average rate paid of 0.23%
and 0.25%, respectively. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are collateralized by securities
with a fair market value of 100% of the agreement.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had unused short-term hnes of credlt totalmg
$20.0 million.
Note 12—ADVANCES FROM FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK

Advances from the FHLB at December 31, 2012 and 2011, consisted of the following:

. December 31,

(In thousalrh’l\s) ‘ 2012 : 2011-

Maturing Amount  Rate Amount  Rate

2012 . 0t —  — 1,000 036%

2013 . e — — 4,000  3.58%

20015 . e e e e e e 4,000 4.22% 6,500 4.09%

Afterfiveyears .. ..... ..., 32,344 ﬁ% 32,362 ﬁ%
$36,344 ﬁ% $43,862 3.99%
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Note 12—ADVANCES FROM FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK (Continued) ‘-

As collateral for its advances, the Company has pledged in the form of blanket liens, eligible loans,
in the amount of $43.8 million at December 31, 2012. In addition, securities with a fair value of
approximately $3.8 million have been pledged as collateral for advances as of December 31, 2012. As
collateral for its advances, the Company has pledged in the form of blanket liens; eligible loans, iri the
amount of $58.1 million at December 31, 2011. In addition, securities with a fair value of approximately
$15.9 million have been pledged as collateral for advances as of December 31, 2011. Advances are
subject to prepayment penalties. The average advances during 2012 and 2011 were $38.8 million and
$56.0 million, respectively The average interest rate for 2012 and 2011 was 4.15% and 3.84%,
respectively. The maximum outstanding amount at any month end was $42.9 m11110n and $64.8 million
for 2012 and 2011.

During the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the Company prepaid
advances in ‘the amount of $9.1 million and $14.0 million, respectively, and realized losses on the early
extinguishment of $217 thousand and $188 thousand, respectively. The Company did not prepay any
advances for the year ended December 31, 2010. ‘

Note 13—JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBT

On September 16, 2004, FCC Capital Trust I (“Trust I”’), a wholly owned unconsolidated subsidiary
of the Company, issued and sold floating rate securities having an aggregate liquidation amount of
$15.0 million. The Trust I securities accrue and pay distributions quatterly at a rate per annum equal to
LIBOR plus 257 basis points. The distributions are cumulative and payable in arrears. The Company
has the right, subject to events of défault, to-defer paymients-of interest on the Trust I securities for a
period not to exceed 20 consecutive quarters, provided no extension can extend beyond the maturity
date of September 16, 2034. The Trust I securities are mandatorily redeemable upon maturity at
September 16, 2034. If the Trust I securities are redeemed on or after September 16, 2009, the
redemption price will be 100% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid intérest. The Trust I
security were eligible to be rédeemed in whole but not in part, at any time-prior to Septembet 16, 2009
following an occurrence of a tax event, a capital treatment event of arn investment company event.
Currently, these securities qualify under risk-based capital guidelines as Tier 1 capital, subject to certain
limitations. The Company has no current intention to-exercise its'right to defcr payments of interest on
the Trust I securities.

On December 16, 2011, the Company sold 2,500 Units (the “Units™), with each Unit consisting of
an 8.75% Subordinated Note, due in 2019, $1,000 principal amount (collectively, the “Notes”), and a
Warrant to purchase 43 shares of common stock of the Company at an exercise price equal to $5.90
per share (collectively, the “Warrants™), to certain accredited investors, including directors and
executive officers of the Company, for an aggregate purchase price of $2.5 million. Interest on the
Notes is payable quarterly on February 15, May 15, August 15 and November 15 of each year,
commencing on February 15, 2012, at a rate of 8.75% per annum. Proceeds were retained by the
Company and available to pay dividends on the Company’s common and preferred stock, interest on
the Notes and dividends on the Company’s trust preferred securities, and for general corporate and
banking purposes. On November 15, 2012, the Company redeemed the $2.5 million of Notes at par
plus accrued but unpaid interest to the redemption date. The Warrants to purchase 107,500 shares are
immediately exercisable and will automatically expire on December 16, 2019. The number of shares of
common stock of the Company for which, and the price per share at which, a Warrant is exercisable

105



FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 13—JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBT (Continued)

are subject to adjustment upon the occurrence of certain events, including, without limitation, a stock
split, stock dividend or a merger, as provided in the Warrant. :

Note 14—INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended December 31 2012, 2011and 2010 consists of the
following: v

Year ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

(Dollars in thousands)

Current
Federal..............cciuiiuenennn. [P $ — $§ — $136
State ... .. e e e s 284 . 142 102
' ' 284 142 238
Deferred
Federal......... ..o, e 1,336 1,315 327
0] 721 7 PP — — —
) ’ ' 1,336 1,315 327
Income tax expense (benefit) .. ......... ... ... ... $1,620 $1,457 $565

Reconciliation from expected federal tax expense to effectlve income tax expense (benefit) for the -
periods indicated are as follows: :

Year ended Decembei' 31
2012 2011 2010

(Dollarsy in thousands)

Expected federal income tax eXpense ................ $1,900 = $1,625 §$ 822
State income tax net of federal benefit . .............. 187 112 67
Tax exerpt 11101 (=) A PO o (182) 29) (52
Increase in cash surrender value life, jnsurance ......... (130) (59) (131)
Valuation allowance . . ........... o viiuneenn... — 35 97 .
Other . ...v it i e - (155)  (227) (238)

$1,620 $1,457 $ 565
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Note 14—INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The following is a summary of the tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant
portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities:

December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) o2 21
Assets:
Allowance for loan losses ............................... $1,609 $1,598
Excess tax basis of deductible intangible assets .......... S - 121 121
Net operating loss carry forward . . . ............ ... nnnn 1,699 3,277
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities . . .. ............ — —
Compensation expense deferred for tax purposes. ............. 767 736
Fair value adjustment on interest rate swap agreement.......... 115 205
Deferred loss on other-than-temporary-impairment charges . .. . . . 257 471
Interest on nonaccrual [0ans. . .. .....ooviii i 99 109
Tax credit carry-forwards . ......... ... i 829 410

. Excess. discount accretion on securities for tax purposes . ...... .. — 360
117 S PO PRI e 401 232
Total deferred tax asset .. ... e e, e . 5897 7519
Valuation TESEIVE . . o v v v o v vt ii it in e an e s 132 132
Total deferred tax asset net of valuation reserve . ............. 5,765 . 7,387
Liabilities: ‘ :
Tax depreciation in excess of book depreciation . .............. 118 126
Excess tax basis of non-deductible intangible assets ............ 1 42
Excess financial reporting basis of assets acquired . ...... e 956 1,014
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities . ... ... e 1,266 705

" Other ............ .ot [ e — 22
Total deferred tax liabilities . ............c... ..., e 2,351 1,909
Net deferred tax asset recognized . ........ e L. $3414 $5478 -

At December 31, 2012 there is a $132 thousand valuation allowance that relates to deferred tax
benefits for contnbutxon carry forwards and capital loss carry forwards At December 31, 2012, the
Company has net operating loss carry forwards for federal income tax purposes of approximately
$5.0 million available to offset future taxable income through 2031. The ultimate realization of deferred
tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the
temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred
income tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this .
assessment. Additional amounts of these deferred tax assets considered to be realizable could be .
reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are
reduced. During 2010, the Company recognized OTTI charges on certain investment securities in the
amount of $13.5 million, which resulted in recognition of a $4.6 million deferred tax asset at
December 31, 2010. These losses were not deductible until the securities were either sold or deemed
worthless. During 2011 and 2012, a significant portion of those investments that created the deferred
tax asset were sold and as a result created an $8.0 million taxable loss. The remaining $5.0 million tax
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Note 14—INCOME TAXES (Continued)

net operating loss can be carried forward until the year ended 2031. The net deferred asset is included
in other assets on the consolidated balance sheéts.: oo

A portion of the change in the net deferred tax asset relates to unrealized gains and losses on
securities available-for-sale. The change in the tax expense related to the change in unrealized losses on
these securities of $564 thousand has been recorded directly to shareholders’ equity. The balapce in the
change in net deferred tax asset results from the current period deferred tax expense of $1 3 million.

Tax returns for 2010 and subsequent years are subject to examination by taxing authorltles.

Note 15—COMMITMENTS, CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK AND CONTINGENCIES

The Bank is party to financial instruments w1th off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of
business to meet the financing needs of its customers These financial instruments include commitments
to extend credit. These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credlt risk in excess of the
amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets.

The Bank’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the
financial instrument for commitments to extend credit is represented by the contractual amount of
these instruments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in making commitments as for on-balance
sheet instruments. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Bank had commitments to extend credit
including lines of credit of $53.3 million and $40.3 m11110n respectively.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no
violation of any condition established in the contract Commitments generally have fixed expiration
dates or other termination clauses and may require a payment of a fee. Since commitments may expire
without being drawn upon, the total commitments do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements. The Bank evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case- by-case ba51s ‘The -
amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Bank upon extension of credit, is based on
management’s credit evaluation of the party. Collateral held varies but may include mventory, property
and equipment, residential real estate and income producing commercial properties.

The primary market area served by the Bank is Lexington, Richland, Newberry and Kershaw
Counties within the Midlands of South Carolina. Management closely monitors its credit concentrations
and attempts to diversify the portfolio within its primary market area. The Company considers
concentrations of credit risk to exist'when pursuant to regulatory guidelines, the amounts loaned to "~
multiple borrowers engaged in similar business activities represent 25% or more of the Bank’s risk
based capital, or approximately $15.4 million. Based on this criteria; the Bank had four such
concentrations at December 31, 2012, mcludmg $82.0 million (24.7% of total loans) to private -
households, $45.8 million (13.8% of total loans) to lessors of residential properties, $62.1 million
(18.7% of total loans) to lessors of non-residential properties and $26.8 million (8.1% of total loans) to
religious organizations. As reflected above, private houséholds make up 24.7% of total loans and’
equate to apprommately 133.1% of total regulatory capital. The risk in this portfolio is diversified over .
a large number of loans (approximately 2 065) Commercial real estate loans and commetcial
construction loans represent $237.6 million, or 72.1%, of the portfolio. Approximately $76.0 million, or
31.7%, of the total commeftcial real estate loans are owner occupied, which can tend to reduce the risk
associated with these credits. Although the Bank’s loan portfolio, as well as existing commitments,
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Note 15—COMMITMENTS, CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK AND CONTINGENCIES.
(Continued) | o o : ,
reflects the diversity of itsyprim’ary market area, a substantial poi"tion of its debtor’s ability to honor
their contracts is dependent upon the economic stability of the area. ‘
The nature of the bus1ness of the company and bank may at times result in"a-certain amount of
litigation. The bank is involved in certain litigation that is considered incidental to the normal conduct
of business. Management believes that the liabilities, if any, resulting from the proceedings will not
have a material adverse effect on the consolidated fmanmal pos1t10n consohdated results of operations
or consolidated cash flows of the company.

At December 31, 2012, the Bank has entered into the follewiﬂg interest rate sWap agieement:

(Dollars in thousands) . ' Cap/Swap Contract Explratlon Fair Value
Notional Amount N Description "“Rate < - ‘Date - Date - 12/31/2012
$10,000 .................. Interest Rate Swap 3.66% fixed 10/8/2008 ° 10/8/201_3 $(338)

The Bank entered into a five year interest rate swap agreement on October 8, 2008. The swap
agreement has'a $10.0' million netional amount. The Bank will receive a variable rate of interest on the
notional amount based on a three month LIBOR rate and pay a fixed rate interest of 3.66%. The
contract was entered into to protect us from the negative impact of. rising intgrest-rates, The Bank’s. .
exposure to credit risk is limited to the ability of the counterparty to make potential future payments
required pursuant to the agreement. The Bank’s exposure to market risk-of loss-i§:limited. to the” -
changes in the ‘market value of the swap between reporting periods: Thie fair value ‘of the ‘contract- was :
($338) thousand and ($602) thousand as of December 31,2012 and December 31, 2011 respectwely
The change in fair value of the ¢ontract recognized in “éarnings duririg 2012, 2011; and 2010 was
$58 thousand, $166 thousand and $581 thousand, respectively. The fair value of the contract is* -
calculated based on the present value, over the remaining-term of the corittaet, of the difference -
between the five year swap rate multiplied by the notional amount at the reportitig-date and the fixed -
interest rate of 3.66% multiplied by the notional amount of the. contract.-
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Note 16—OTHER EXPENSES
A summary of the components of other non-interest expense is as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

(Dollars.in thousands)

Data processing .. .......... [P $ 479 $ 472 § 414
Supplies . . .« vvviii e s 138 178 150
Telephone . ........... A e o297 307. 302
COULIET + v v vt eee e e eenes e 72 66 63
Correspondent SEIvices . . . .............. e O 168 193 97
Insurance . .. .... P e - 209 - 213 220
Postage .. ... ceeee e e 172 174 181
Loss on limited partnership interest.......... e 194 19 119
Director fees .. ... e e e 312 319 264
Professional fees. . ... ..... ... e . 745 1,040 1,068
Other ...........c.....n e e 692 666 624

$3.478 . $3747 $3,502

Note 17—STOCK OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED STOCK

The Company has adopted a stock option plan whereby shares have been reserved for issuance by
the Company upon: the grant of stock options or restricted stock awards. At December 31, 2012 and.
2011, the Company had 307,779 and 340,640 shares, respectively, reserved for future grants. The:
350,000 shares reserved were approved by shareholders at the 2011 annual meeting. The-plan provides
for the grant of options to key employees and directors as determined by a stock-option committee -
made up of at least two members of the board of. directors. Options are exercisable for a period of ten
years from date of grant. : »

Stock option transactions for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 are summarized
as follows:

Weighted-

Average
Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Average Contractual  Intrinsic Value
Shares Exercise Price Term (Years) (in thousands)

Outstanding December 31, 2010. 188,441 13.28 1.70 $—
Forfeited ........ e (113,419) 9.30
Outstanding December 31, 2011. 75,022 19.69 3.03 $—
Forfeited ................. —_ —
Outstanding, December 31, 2012 75,022 19.69 2.03 $—
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Note 17—STOCK OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED STOCK (Continued) -

Stock options outstanding and exercisable as of December 31, 2012 are asfollows:

Number of Option  Weighted Average' \

o Shares Remaining Weighted
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Contractual Average Exercise
Low/High ... and Exercisable Life (Years) . Price. -
$1235 . ... 1,619 095 $12.35
$14.21 /%1670 . . ... ... 9,903 2.26 14.46 - .
$19.00 /$2250 .. ... ... 63,500 2.02 02022

‘ 75,022 . 203 $19.29

In 2012, each non-employee director received 604 common shares of restricted stock in connection
with their overall compensation plan. A total of 7,852 shares were issued to these directors at a value
of $8.27 per share. All of these shares vested on January 1, 2013. :

In 2012, 25,009 restricted shares were issued to executive officers in connection with the Bank’s
incentive compensation plan. The shares were valued at $8.27 per share and cliff vest on May 15, 2015.
The assumption used in the calculation of these amounts for the awards granted in 2012 is based on
the price of the Company’s common stock on the grant date.

Warrants to purchase 107,500 shares at $5.90 per share were issued in connection \'N:i/t‘h\'the 'issuing"
of subordinated debt on November 15, 2011. (See Note 13-Junior Subordinated Debt)

Note 18—EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company maintains a 401(k) plan, which covers substantially all employees. Participants may
contribute up to the maximum allowed by the regulations. During the years ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010, the plan expense amounted to $276 thousand, $254 thousand and $233 thousand,
respectively. Prior to July 1, 2007, the Company matched 50%. of an employee’s contribution up to a
6.00% participant contribution. Beginning July 1, 2007, the: Company began matching. 100% of the::
employee’s contribution up to 3% and 50% of the employee’s contribution on the next 2% of the
employee’s contribution. : ' '

The Company acquired various single premium life insurance policies from DutchFork that are
used to indirectly fund fringe benefits to certain employees and officers. A salary continuation plan was
established payable to two key individuals upon attainment of age 63. The plan provides for monthly
benefits of $2,500 each for seventeen years. Other plans acquired were supplemental life insurance
covering certain key employees: No expense is accrued relative to these benefits, as the life insurance
covers the anticipated payout with the Company receiving the remainder, thereby recovering its
investment in the policies. In 2006, the Company established a salary continuation plan which ‘covers six
additional key officers. The plan provides for monthly benefits upon normal retirement age of varying
amounts for a period of fifteen years. Additional single premium life insurance policies were purchased
in 2006 in the amount of $3.5 million designed to offset the funding of these additional fringe benefits.
The cash surrender value at December 31, 2012 and 2011 of all bank owned life insurance was
$10.9 million and $11.0 million, respectively. Expenses accrued for the anticipated benefits under the
salary continuation plans for the year ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 amounted to
$261 thousand, $161 thousand, and $275 thousand, respectively.
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Note 19—EARNINGS PER SHARE -

The following reconciles the numerator and denominator of the basic and diluted earnings per
common share computation;

) ) , Year ended. December 31,

(Amounts in thousands) T w12 2om 2010
Numerator (Included in basic and dlluted earnings per »

share). . ... .. $3,292  $2,654 $1,190
Denominator ‘ v
Weighted average common shares outstanding for:
Basic earnings common per share .................. 4,144 3,287 3,262
Dilutive securities: “ o

Warrants—Treasury stock method . ............... 28 — —
Diluted common share outstanding ........... R 4,172 3,287 3,262
The average market price used in calculating assumed l _ ‘ ,

number of shares ................ ... ... ... .. $ 798 $634 $578

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, options are not dilutive in calculating™ -
diluted earnings per share. In 2010, 2011, and 2012 the exercise price on all outstanding options
exceeded the average market price for the year. : .

On December 16, 2011 there were 107,500 warrants issued in connection with the issuance |
$2.5 million in subordinated debt. (See Note 13) These warrants were not dilutive to earnings per share
for the period ended December 31, 2011. As: shown above, the warrants were d11ut1ve for the period
ended December 31, 2012. ; : e :

Note 20—SHARLHOLDERS’ EQUITY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS AND DIVIDEND
RESTRICTIONS

The Company and Bank are subject to various federal and state regulatory requii'ements, including
regulatory capital requirements. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain
mandatory, and possibly additional discretionary, actions that, if undertaken, could have a direct
material effect-on the Company’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines. and the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company and Bank must meet specific capital
guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Company’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance
sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Company and Bank capital
amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about
components, risk weighting, and other factors. The Company and Bank are required to maintain
minimum Tier 1 capital, total risked based capital and Tier 1 leverage ratios of 4%, 8% and 4%,
respectively. ' : ;

On April 6, 2010, the Bank entered into the Formal Agreement with the OCC, the Bank’s then
primary federal regulator (the “Formal Agreement”). The Formal Agreement was based on the findings
of the OCC during a 2009 on- -site examination of the Bank. As reflected in the Formal Agreement the
OCC’s primary concern with the Bank is driven by the rating agencies downgrades of non-agency MBS
in its investment portfolio. The Formal Agreement did not require any adjustment to the Bank’s
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Note 20—SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY, CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS AND DIVIDEND
RESTRICTIONS (Continued) : .

balance sheet or income statement; nor did it change the Bank’s “well capitalized™ status. The- OCC
did, however, separately establish the following individual minimum capital ratios for the Bank: a Tier 1
leverage capital ratio of at least 8.00%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of at least 10.00%, and a Total
risk-based capital ratio of at least 12.00%. :

Following a recent on-site examination of the Bank, the OCC notified the Bank that, effective
June 28, 2012, the Bank is no longer subject to the Formal Agreement. As of December 31, 2012, the
Bank had reduced the non-agency MBSs in its investment portfolio that are rated below investment
grade to $1.3 million.

-"The OCC also notified the Bank that, effective June 28, 2012, it was no longer subject to the -
Individual Minimum Capital Ratios established for the Bank on February 24, 2010. In-addition, the
Federal Reserve notified the Company that, effective July 10, 2012, the Company is no longer subJect
to the MOU.

On July 27, 2012, the Company closed a public offering of common stock. The offermg resulted in
the issuance of a total of 1.875 million shares of common stock at $8.00 per share, resulting in gross
proceeds of $15 million, as compared to our original target of $12.5 million, and net proceeds of
approximately $13.8 million.

On August 29, 2012, we repurchased $3.78 million of our Series T Preferred Stock from the U. S
Treasury through a modified Dutch auction process. This represented 3,780 shares of the original -
11,350 shares of preferred stock sold to the U.S. Treasury in November 2008 pursuant to the TARP
Capital Purchase Program. The remaining 7,570 shares of Series T Preferred Stock were purchased in
this same auction by third party investors unrelated to the Company. The auction price was $982.83 per
-share. As of October 8, 2012, we have repurchased or redeemed the remaining shares of Series T
Preferred Stock from the third party investors. The financial results reported for the year ended |
December 31, 2012 include non-recurring expenses related to this matter in the amount of
$119 thousand including attorney costs, accounting costs, and U.S. Treasury underwriter costs. In
addition, we recorded a charge for the remaining discount accretion of approximately $159 thousand. -

On October 1, 2012, we completed a planned conversion from a national bank charter to a state
bank charter as a'non-member bank. The conversion is expected reduce certain regulatory examination -
costs in the future. '

On October 25, 2012, the U.S. Treasury accepted our bid to repurchase the warrant to purchase )
195,915 shares of our common stock issued to the U.S. Treasury pursuant to the TARP Capital
Purchase Program. The repurchase price agreed upon was $297, 500. The repurchase transaction was '
completed on November 1, 2012. The repurchase of the warrant from the U.S. Treasury has completely
eliminated the Treasury’s equity stake in the Company through the TARP Capital Purchase Program.

On November 15, 2012, we redeemed the $2.5 million of outstanding subordinated debt at par
which was issued in November 2011. :
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Note 20—SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY, CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS AND DIVIDEND
RESTRICTIONS (Continued) ;

The actual capital amounts and ratios as well as minimum amounts for each regulatory defined
category for the Bank and the Company are as follows: :

Required to be
Categorized

Adequately .
.- Actual Capitalized R%%‘:g:ﬁtzzge

Amount Ratio Amount: Ratio ~ Well Capitalized

(Dollars in thousands)
December 31, 2012
First Community Corporation

Tier 1 Capital .......... ... ... .. o $63,381 17.33% $14,628 4.00% N/A  NA

Total Risked Based Capital .............. 67,963 - 18.58% 29,258  8.00% N/A NA

Tier 1 Leverage. . ......c.civiuvin. .. 63,381 - 10.63% 23,846 4.00% N/A N/A
First Community Bank

Tier 1 Capital ........................ $61,588 16.87% $14,605 4.00% $21,907 6.00%

Total Risked Based Capital .............. 66,158 18.12% 29,209 8.00% 36,512 10.00%

Tier 1 Leverage . . . ... ..o uuiininn. .. 61,588 10.34% 23,824 4.00% 29,779 5.00%

December 31, 2011
First Community Corporation

Tier 1 Capital ............... ... .. ... $56,207 15.33% $14,668 4.00% N/A N/A
Total Risked Based Capital .............. 63,256 17.25% 29,335 . 8.00% N/A NA
Tier 1 Leverage . ... ....covvuiuuuene.n. 56,207 9.40% 23,909 .4.00% N/A N/A
First Community Bank : S c
Tier 1 Capital . .. .. e $55,377  15.12% $14,647 4.00% $21,971 6.00%
Total Risked Based Capital .............. 59,971 16.38% 29,294 8.00% 36,616 10.00%
Tier 1 Leverage . ... ............ e e 55377 9.27% - 23,898 4.00% 29,873  5.00%

The Federal Reserve Board has issued a policy statement regarding the payment of dividends by
bank holding companies. In general the Federal Reserve Board’s policies prov1de that dividends should
be paid only out of current earnings and only if the prospective rate of earnings retention by the bank
holding company appears consistent with the organization’s capital needs, asset quality and overall
financial condition. The Federal Reserve Board’s policies also require that a bank holding company
serve as a source of financial strength to its subsidiary banks by standing ready to use available
resources to provide adequate capital funds to those banks during periods of financial stress or
adversity and by maintaining the financial flexibility and capital-raising capacity to obtain additional
resources for assisting its subsidiary banks where necessary. In addition, under the prompt corrective
action regulations, the ability of a bank holding company to pay dividends may be restricted if a
subsidiary bank becomes undercapitalized. These regulatory policies could affect the ability of the
Company to pay dividends or otherwise engage in capital distributions.

The Company’s principal source of cash flow, including cash flow to pay dividends to its
shareholders, is dividends it receives from the Bank. Statutory and regulatory limitations apply to the
Bank’s payment of dividends to the Company. As a South Carolina chartered bank, the Bank is subject
to limitations on the amount of dividends that it is permitted to pay. Unless otherwise instructed by the
S.C. Board, the Bank is generally permitted under South Carolina state banking regulations to pay cash
dividends of up to 100% of net income in any calendar year without obtaining the prior approval of the
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Note 20—SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY, CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS AND DIVIDEND
RESTRICTIONS (Continued) ' ,

S.C. Board. The FDIC also has the authority under federal law to enjoin a bank from engaging in what
in its opinion constitutes an unsafe or unsound practice in conducting its business, including the
payment of a dividend under certain circumstances. _— ;

If our Bank is not permitted to pay cash dividends to the Company, it is unlikely that we would be
able to pay cash dividends on.our common stock. Moreover, holders of our common stock are entitled
to receive dividends only when, and if declared by our board of directors. Although we have historically
paid cash dividends on our common stock, we are not required to do so and our board of directors
could reduce or eliminate our common stock dividend in the future. - ‘ '

Note 21—PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The balance sheets, statements of operations and cash flows for First Community Corporation
(Parent Only) follow: o . S

v

Condensed Balance Sheets

At December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2012 2011
Assets:

Cash 0N dEPOSIt . . . oot it i $ 1,417 § 3,547
Securities purchased under agreement to resell ............. 128 128
Investment securities available-for-sale . . .................. 429 12
Tnvestment in bank subsidiary . . ....... ... i 67,055 61,713
(07117 ST PG 767 608
TOtal ASSELS &+ - v v o et e e e et $69,796  $66,008
Liabilities:

Subordinated notes payable. . .. ... ... .o $ — § 2449
Junior subordinated debentures. . ... ... ... i 15,464 15,464
(0311 SRS 149 199
Total Habilities . . v v v vt e i ittt e e et i an s 15,613 18,112
Shareholders’ eqUItY . . . .o vvi v e 54,183 47,896
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . . .. ..... ..ot $69,796  $66,008
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Note 21—PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)
Condensed Statements of Operations ‘

Year ended ﬁwember 31, .
2012 2011 2010

(Dollars in thousands)

Income: o ,
Interest and dividend income ......... ... ;... $ 1S 9§52
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary. . . ... ... . 4313 3,782 2,270
Dividend income from bank subsidiary. . . . . P 320 0 — —
Total income . . . . . P 4634 3,791 2322
Expenses:

Interest expense ... .......... ... 00 0 ... 658 446 . 443
- - I
Total expense . .......... ... .. 959 685 . 620 -
Income before taxes ... ..............ccvri. ... 3,675 3,106 1,702
Income tax benefit . .................... ... ..... (293) - (218) ~ (152)
Netincome ..........oiiniiennnnnnn.. $3,968 $3,324 $1,854
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Note 21—PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION, (Continued) -
Condensed Statements-of Cash-Flows :

Year ended December 31,

(Pollars in ﬂ_;q'l_léﬂyds) 2012 2011 20.10
Cash flows from operating activities: e
Netincome............... e e $ 3968 $3324 $1,854
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash -used e

by operating activities ...................... SR o
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary . ...... ~ (4,313) (3,782) - (2,270)
Other-net . ...... e e T (90) 232 - 72
Net cash used by operating activities . ... ... A T (435)  (226)  (344)
Cash flows from investing activities: ) : _
Purchase of available-for sale-securities ........... .~ 417) . — o
Maturity of available-for-sale securities . . . . .. e ) — . 1,250 —
Other-net .. ..... PR e o= a(16). (52)
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities . . . . . . 417) 1,174 (52)
Cash flows from financing activities: =
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated note payable . — 2500 @ —
Repayment ‘of subordinated note payable .......... © (25000 0 —  —
Dividends paid: Common stock . .............. . (605)  (525) (522)

Preferred stock .............. .. ... ........ (475)  (670)  (664)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock . ......... 13838 | 182 101
Redemption of preferred stock ................. 11,073 = — @ —
Redemption of stock warrants .......... P ‘ (510) - — -
Net cash provided (used) in financing activities . . . . . . (1,278) 1,487  (1,085)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. .. .. *(2,130) 2435  (1,481)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ....... 3,547 1,112 2,593
Cash and cash'equivalent_s, endofyear.......... o8 1,417 $3547  $ 1,112

Note 22—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date but before
financial statements are issued. Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide

additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the

estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements. Non-recognized subsequent events
are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance sheet but

arose after that date. Management has reviewed events occurring through the date the financial
statements were available to be issued and no subsequent events occurred requiring accrual or
disclosure.
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Note 23—QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following provides quarterly financial data for 2012 and 2011 (dollars in thousands, except per
share amounts).

Fourth Third Second First

2012 ) Quarter Quarter ~Quarter  Quarter
Interest income . ..........ccennn.. e $5,468 $5,650 $5,840 - $6,044
Net interest income ........ e e e e 4285 4329 4451 4,509
Provision for loan losses . ................. 80 115.. 7N 230
Gain (loss).-on sale of securities . . . .......... 88 (35) 3% 11
Other-than-temporary-impairment . .......... — — — (200)
Income before income taxes ............... 1,338 1,793 1,327 1,130
NetinCOmMe . ..o v v iv e et ieneeanaoonns 1,021 1,220 928 799
Preferred stock dividends . ............... - — 17339 168 169
Net income available to common shareholders .. $1,021 § 881 § 760 ~$ 630
Net income per share, basic .............. . $020 $019 $023 $ 019
Net income per share, diluted .. ............ $019 $019 $023 §0.19
' Fourth  Third  Second _ First
2011 Quartér Quarter Quarter  Quarter
Interest income ............... e $6,238 $6,382 $6,466 $6,440
Net interest income ... ............... ... 4616 4628 4619 4454
Provision for loan losses . ............ ... 310 360 390 360
Gain on sale of securities . . . .. e 301 133 7 134
Other-than-temporary-impairment . .......... (243) (50) - . @
Income before income taxes ............... 1,565 1,398 1,020 798
NetiNCOME . o v v v v vne e aee e anie e 1,071 957 726 570
Preferred stock dividends . .........i. ..., 168 167 ~ 168 167
Net income available to common shareholders....  $ 903§ 790 $.558 $ 403
Net income per share, basic ......... fewe.. $027 $024 $017 $0.12
Net income per share, diluted .. ............ - $027 $024 $017 $0.12
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure. -

- None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

As of the end-of the period covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the
supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and, procedures as defined in
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e). Based upon that evaluation, our Chre;f‘ Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer have concluded that our current disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of
December 31, 2012. There have been no significant changes in our internal controls over financial
reporting during the fourth fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2012, that have materially affected, or
are reasonably lik"ely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting.

* The design of any system of controls and procedures is based in part upon certain assumptions
about the likelihood of future events. There can be no.assurance that any design will succeed in
achieving its stated goals’ under all potential future conditions, regardless of how remote.

Management’s Report on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls over financial
reporting. Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2012, is included in Item 8 of this report under the heading “Management s Report
on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting.” :

This annual report does not 1nclude an attestation report of our reglstered pubhc accountmg firm
regarding internal control over financial reporting. Management’s report was not subject to attestation
by our reglstered pubhc accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange
Comnmission that perrmt us to provide only management’s report in this annual report,

Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes in our internal controls over fmanmal reportmg that occurred during our
most recent fiscal quarter that materially affected, or are ‘reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal controls over financial reporting.

O T R . ¢

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.

PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers >and. Corporate Go&ernance;f

The information required by Item 10 is hereby 1ncorporated by reference from our proxy statement
for our 2013 annual meeting of shareholders to be held on May 22, 2013.

We have adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to our directors, executive officers (including our
principal executive. officer and principal financial officer) and employees in accordance with the
Sarbanes-Oxley Corporate Responsibility Act of 2002. The Code of Ethics is available on our web site
at www.firstcommunitysc.com. We will disclose any future amendments to, or waivers from, provisions
of these ethics policies and standards on our website as promptly as practicable, as.and to the extent
requlred under NASDAQ Stock Market hstlng standards and apphcable SEC rules.
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Item 11. Executive Compénsation. - -

The information required by Item 11 is hereby incorporated by reference from our proxy statément
for our 2013 annual meeting of shareholders to be held on May 22, 2013.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters. . L .

The following table sets forth equity compensat1on plan mforniatlon at December 31;2012."All
information has-been ad]usted for aény stock spl1ts and stock d1v1dends effected durmg the penods
presented. o
Equlty Compensatlon Plan Informatlon

Number of secuntles
remammg available for
Number of securities . future issuance under

to be issued Welghted average equlty compensation
upon exercise of exercise price of -plans. (¢) (excluding:
. . outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected
Plan Category warrants and rights  warrants and rights- in colnmn(a))
(@) k (b) . _
Equity compensation plans approved by ' ‘ ' v T
security holders.. . ....... e e - 75,022 $19.69 307,729
Total(l)................; ...... 75,022 $1969 307,729

(1) Includes 9, 713 shares with a welghted average exercise price of $13.90 1ssuable under the Flrst
Community Corporation / DeKalb Bankshares, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan. This plan, and the v
outstanding awards, were assumed by us in connection with the merger with DutchFork
Bancshares, Inc. and DeKalb Bankshares, Inc. We are not authorized to make any additional
awards under these plans. These plans were previously approved by the shareholders of ButchFork
Bancshares, Inc. :

The additional information required by this Item 12 is set forth under “Security Qwnership.of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and hereby incorporated by reference from our proxy
statement for our 2013 annual meeting of shareholders to be held on May 22, 2013
Item 13. Certain Relatlonshlps and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required by Item 13 is hereby incorporated by reference from our proxy statement
for our 2013 annual meeting of shareholders to be held on May 22, 2013.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by Item 14 is hereby mcorporated by reference from our proxy statement
for our 2013 annual meeting of shareholders to be held on May 22, 2013 te
Item 15, EXhlbll S, Fmanclal Statement Schedules l
(a)(1). Financial Statements _

The followmg consohdated f1nanc1al statements are located in Item '8 of this report

* Report of Independent Registered Pubhc Accountmg Frrm ’

* Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011

« Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2012 2011 and 2010
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* Consolidated Statements of Comprehens1ve Income for the ‘years ended December: 31 2012,

2011 and 2010
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equlty for the years ended December 31,

2012, 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended Decemher 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules ,

These schedules have been omitted because they are not requ1red are not apphcable or have been
included in our consolidated financial statements. : :

(a)(3) Exhibits

The following eXhlbltS are requrred to be filed wrth th1s Report on Form 10-K by Item 601 of
Regulation S-K. oo .

2.1

2.2

31

32

33

4.1

4.2

4.3.

10.1

10.2

10.3

Agreement and Plan of Merger between First Community Cotporation' and DeKalb
'Bankshares, Inc. dated January 19, 2006 (mcorporated by reference to Exhlblt 2.1to the
Company’s Form 8-K filed on January 20, 2006) ~

‘Agreement and Plan of Merger by and betwéen First Community Corporation and DutchFork
Bancshares, Inc. dated as of April 12, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Appendlx A of the
Form S-4 filed on June 7, 2004).

Amended and Restated Articles of Tncorporation (incorporated by reference to EXhlblt 31to
the Company’s Regrstratron Statement No. 33-86258 on Form S- 1) ' '

Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company s Regrstratron Statement
No. '33-86258 on Form S-1).

Articles of Amendment to the Company s Amended and Restated Art1cles of Incorporatron
establishing the terms of the Series T Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhlbrt 3.1
‘to the Company’s Form 8-K filed 6n November 25, 2008). ' : :

Provisions in the Company’s Articles of Incorporatron and Bylaws deflmng the rights of holders
of the Company s Common Stock (1ncluded in Exhibits 3. 1 3.2 and 3.3)

Form of Series T Preferred Stock Cert1f1cate wrth the Umted States Department of the

" Treasury dated November 21, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s

Form 8-K filed on November 25, 2008).

Warrant to Purchase up to 192,915 Shares of Common Stock (mcorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on November 25, 2008)

1996 Sto_ck‘Optron Plan and Form of Option Agreement (mcorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Form 10-KSB for the period ended December 31, 1995).*

First Community Corporation 1999 Stock Incentive Plan and Form of Option Agreement

- (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company s Form 10-KSB for the period

ended December 31, 1998).*.

First Amendment to the Frrst Community Corporatlon 1999 Stock Incentlve Plan (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the period ended December 31,
2005).*
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10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

Divided Reinvestment Plan dated July 7, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Form S-3/D filed
with the SEC on July 14, 2003, File No. 333-107009).* .

Employment, Consulting, and Noncompete Agreement between First Community Bank, N.A.,
Newberry Federal Savings Bank, DutchFork Bancshares, Inc., and Steve P. Sligh dated April 12,
2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company s Registration Statement

No. 333-116242 on Form S-4).

Employment, Consulting, and Noncompete Agreement between First Community Bank, N.A.,
Newberry Federal Savings Bank, DutchFork Bancshares, Inc., and J. Thomas Johnson dated
April 12, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company s Reglstratlon
Statement No. 333-116242 on Form S-4). ~

Amendment No. 1 to the Employment, Consulting,"and Noncompete Agreement between First
Community Bank N.A., and Steve P. Sligh dated September 14, 2005 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on September 15, 2005).

Form of §>alary Continuation Agreement dated August 2, 2006 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on August 3, 2006).* '

Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensation Plan approved September 30, 2006 and Form
of Deferred Compensation Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.1 and 10.2 to
the Company’s Form 8-K filed on October 4, 2006).

Employment Agreement by and between Michael C. Crapps and First Community Corporation
dated June 17, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K
filed on June 19, 2008).*

Employment Agreement by and between Joseph G. Sawyer and First Community Corporation
dated June 17, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K
filed on June 19, 2008).*

‘Employment Agreement by and between David K. Proctor and First Community Corporation

dated June 17, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company s Form 8-K
filed on June 19, 2008) *

Employment Agreement by and between Robin D. Brown and First Commumty Corporation
dated Jure 17, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exh1b1t 10.4 to the Company’s Form 8-K
filed on June 19, 2008).*

Employment Agreement by and between J. Ted lesen and First Commumty Corporation dated
June 17, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 5 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on
June 19, 2008).*

Employment Agreement by and between James C. Leventis and First Communlty Corporation
dated June 17, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 6 to the Company s Form 8-K
filed on June 19, 2008).*

Agreement by and between First Community Bank and the Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on
April 9, 2010). '

Subordinated Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement, dated December 16, 2011 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on December 19, 2011).

Form of First Community Corporation Subordinated Note Due 2019 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on December 19, 2011).
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10.19

211
23.1
241
311
31.2

32
99.1

99.2

101

Form of First Community Corporation Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to
the Company’s Form 8K filed on December 19, 2011)..

Subsidiaries of -the Company.

Consent of FIﬁd.ep'endent Registered Public Accounting Firm—Elliott Davis, LLC.
Power of Attorney (contained on the signature page hereto).

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Officer.

Rule 13a-‘14(é)“(fcrtification of the Chief Financial Officer.

Section 1350 Certifications.

TARP Compliance Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 31 C.ER.
Section 30.15. '

TARP,Compliancé Cerfificafion of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 31 CER.
Section 30.15. ' ,

The following materials from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

" December 31, 2012, formatted in eXtensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL): (i) the

Consolidated Balance Sheets as December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011; (ii) Consolidated
Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010;

(iii) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010; (iv) Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the
years ended December 31, 2012,-2011 and 2010; (v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for
the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010; and (vi) Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.(1)

The Exhibits listed above will be furnished to any security holder free of charge upon written request
to the Corporate Secretary, First Community Corporation, 5455 Sunset Blvd., Lexington, South
Carolina 29072. .

*  Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an Exhibit to
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(1) Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the Interactive Data Files on Exhibit 101 hereto are
deemed not filed or part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or
12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, are deemed not filed for purposes of Section. 18 of
" the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwise are not subject to lability under
those sections. ' '

(b) See listing of Exhibits above and Exhibit List following this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a
listing of exhibits filed herewith. ' o

(c) Not applicable. '
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

Date: March 28, 2013 : . FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION

By: /s/ MICHAEL C. CRAPPS

Michael C. Crapps
President and Chief Executive Officer
" (Principal Exe'cutive‘ Oﬂicer)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below
constitutes and appoints Michael C. Crapps, his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full
power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name; place and stead, in any and all
capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this report, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto,
and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting
unto attorney-in-fact and agent full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and
thing requisite or necessary to be done in and about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes
as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that attorney-in-fact and agent,
or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capac1t1es and on the dates
indicated.

Signature = Title o * Date

/s/ RICHARD K. BOGAN

- Director ‘ March 28, 2013
Richard K. Bogan ; : .
THOMAS C. BROWN ' ’
Ll Director - March 28, 2013
Thomas C. Brown L :
/s/ CHIMIN J. CHAO - L o SRR ,
. : Director ; March 28, 2013
Chimin J. Chao
/s/ MICHAEL C. CRAPPS Director, President, & Chief Executive

Michael C. Crapps Officer (Principal Executive Officer) March 28, 2013

/s/ ANITA B. EASTER
Anita B. Easter

Director March 28, 2013
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Signature

/s/ O. A. ETHRIDGE

O. A. Ethridge

/s/ GEORGE H. FANN, JR.

George H. Fann, Jr.

/s/ J. THOMAS JOHNSON

J. Thomas Johnson

/s/ W. JAMES KITCHENS, JR. .

W. James Kitchens, Jr.

/s/ JAMES C. LEVENTIS

James C. Leventis

/s/ ALEXANDER SNIPES, JR.

Alexander Snfpes, Jr.

/s/ RODERICK M. ToDD, JR.

Roder_ick M. ’Tod_,d,,. Ir.

/s/ LORETTA R. WHITEHEAD

Loretta R. Whitehead

/s/ MITCHELL M. WILLOUGHBY

Mitchell M. Willoughby

/s/ JOSEPH G. SAWYER

Joseph G. Sawyer

Title

Director

Director =

Director, Vice Chairman of the Board,

Director

Director, .Ch‘airman of ’the Bd‘ard, &
Secretary - .

[

Director . -

Director

Director

Director

Chief Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer
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Date.

March 28, 2013

March 28, 2013

- March 28, 2013

‘March 28, 2013

March 28, 2013

‘March 28, 2013

.. “March 28, 2013

March 28, 2013

March 28, 2013

March 28, 2013



Exhibit List

The following exhibits are required to be filed with this Report on Form 10-K by Item 601 of

Regulation S-K.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm—Elliott Davis, LLC.
Power of Attorney (contained on the signature page hereto).

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Officer.

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Chief Financial Officer.

TARP Compliance Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 31 C.ER.
TARP Compliance Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 31 C.ER.

The following materials from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2012, formatted in eXtensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL): (i) the
Consolidated Balance Sheets as December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011; (ii) Consolidated
Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010; (i) Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010;
(iv) Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended

December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010; (v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010; and (vi) Notes to the Consolidated Financial

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company.
23.1
24.1
31.1
31.2
32 Section 1350 Certifications.
99.1
Section 30.15.
99.2 !
Section 30.15.
101
Statements.(1)
(1

Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the Interactive Data Files on Exhibit 101 hereto are
deemed not filed or part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or
12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, are deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwise are not subject to liability under
those sections.
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